City of Lemon Grove
City Council Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, April 19, 2016, 6:00 p.m.
Lemon Grove Community Center
3146 School Lane, Lemon Grove, CA

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation District
Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board,
and Lemon Grove Successor Agency

Call to Order

Flag Ceremony — Cub Scout Pack

Pledge of Allegiance — Flag Ceremony presented by Cub Scout Pack 108
Changes to the Agenda

Public Comment

(Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not scheduled on
the agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. If appropriate, the item
will be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.)

1. Consent Calendar

(Note: The items listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless removed
from the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public. Items that are pulled will be considered
at the end of the agenda.)

A, Approval of Meeting Minutes

April 5, 2016 — Regular Meeting
Members present: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, and Vasquez

B. City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands
Reference: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director

Recommendation: Ratify Demands
C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda

Reference: Jim P. Lough, City Attorney

Recommendation: Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this
agenda; Ordinances shall be introduced and adopted by title
only

D. Financial Audit Services Agreement

The City Council will consider a resolution extended the agreement with Badawi &
Associates to audit the City's financial records fiscal years ending 2016 and 2017.

Reference: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

E. Amendment to the Agreement for Tree Maintenance Services

The City Council will consider a resolution amending the existing agreement with West
Coast Arborists, Incorporated to provide tree maintenance services.

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution



F. Agreement for Claims Management Services

The City Council will consider a resolution adopting an agreement with George Hills
Company to provide general liability claims management services.

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

G. Code Enforcement Hearing Officers Recruitment

The City Council will consider appointment of three candidates to the Code Enforcement
Hearing Officer Appeals Panel.

Reference: Paolo Romero, Code Enforcement Officer and
David De Vries, Development Services Director
Recommendation: Appoint Code Enforcement Hearing Officers

H. Professional Services Agreement Addenda with CityPlace Planning

The City Council will consider second addenda to the contract with CityPlace Planning to
further assist the City in the review, preparation, and completion of the General Plan
Update and the PEIR and related public hearings and outreach. The addendum for
$26,920 will allow for assistance through the adoption of the General Plan. The total
contract will now be for $56,590.

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

l. Professional Services Agreement with Dudek for the Preparation of a Program
Environmental Impact Report for the General Plan Update

The City Council will consider a resolution awarding a contract with Dudek for an
amount not to exceed $142,290 for the preparation of program environmental impact
reports for General Plan updates, with a project budget includes a contingency amount
of $5,500.

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP150-0003, Tentative Map TMO-
000-0062, General Plan Amendment GPA-150-0003, and Zoning Amendment ZA1-500-0004
Authorizing a 25-Lot Subdivision and Construction of 22 Dwelling Units on 2.064 Acres at the
Southwest Corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas

The City Council will consider Tentative Subdivision Map to authorize a subdivision 22
residential lots, one private street lot, and two common area lots located on the southwest
corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas and certifying Mitigated Negative
Declaration ND16-02.

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing; adopt a resolution approving General Plan
Amendment GPA-150-0003 and certifying Mitigated Negative Declaration ND16-02;
introduce and conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 440 approving Zoning Amendment
(ZA1-500-0004); adopt a resolution approving Tentative Map TM0-000-0062; and adopt
a resolution approving Planned Development Permit PDP-150-0003.



3. Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP-150-0002, and Tentative Map
TMO0-000-0061 to Authorize a 14-lot Subdivision with 12 Dwelling Units on a 1.59-Acre Parcel
at 6800 Mallard Street.

The City Council will consider a proposed project located at 6800 Mallard Street on a 1.59 acre
vacant lot. The project is a request for a Tentative Subdivision Map and a Planned
Development Permit to authorize a 14-lot subdivision on a 1.59 acre parcel, including 12
residential lots, one private street lot and one common area lot, and a Planned Development
Permit with a total of 12 single-family dwelling units (four restricted to moderate-income
households), common open space, pedestrian paths, all-ages play equipment, lighting,
landscaping, and other improvements.

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Conduct the public hearing, and approve the Resolution for TMO-
000-0061 certifying Mitigated Negative Declaration ND-16-03

and Resolution for PDP-150-0002

4. Public Hearing to Consider an Appeal AA1-600-0001 of the Development Services Director
Determination Regarding the Denial of a Home Occupation Permit Application for General
Gunsmithing

The City Council will consider will conduct a public hearing and either adopt a Resolution
upholding the determination to deny or adopt a Resolution reversing the decision of the
Development Services Director conditionally approving the home occupation permit for general
gunsmithing at 8204 Blossom Hill Court.

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director
Recommendation: Conduct public hearing and adopt resolution

5, Authorization to Recruit Three Members of the Community Advisory Commission pursuant to
Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter 2.08

The City Council will consider a resolution to establish the recruitment and appointment
process for the Community Advisory Commission (“CAC”).

Reference: James P. Lough, City Attorney
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City.
(GC 53232.3 (d) states that members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on meetings
attended at the expense of the local agency at the next reqular meeting of the legislative body.)

Department Director Reports (Non-Action ltems)
Adjournment

dations for persons who reguil
igs of the City Council, If you require such e, e contact the City Clerk at (61
o ihe meeting A full agenda packet is avallable for publi ew at City Hall




MINUTES OF A MEETING OF
THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

April 5, 2016

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation District
Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and Lemon Grove

Successor Agency

Call to Order

Members present:

Members absent:

City Staff present:

Mayor Mary Sessom, Mayor Pro Tem George Gastil, Councilmember Jerry Jones,
Councilmember Jennifer Mendoza, and Councilmember Racquel Vasquez.

None.

Lydia Romero, City Manager, David DeVries, Development Services Director;

Daryn Drum, Division Fire Chief, Miranda Evans, Assistant Planner; Mike James, Public Works
Director; Lt. May, Sheriff's Department; Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director; Laureen Ryan Ojeda,
Administrative Analyst; and Michael Wapner, City Attorney.

Changes to the Agenda

Mayor Sessom noted that Consent Calendar item 1.H Code Enforcement Hearing Officers
Recruitment will be removed from this agenda and placed on the April 19, 2016, City Council

agenda.

Public Comment

John L. Wood commented on a vehicle accident on Central Avenue, the Trolley crossing gate at
Broadway and Lemon Grove Avenue, and a vehicle parked on Massachusetts.

Melanie Lucero commented on the current Joint Use Agreement between the City of Lemon
Grove and the Lemon Grove School District and asked if the City would consider expanding the
agreement to the other schools in the City.

1. Consent Calendar
A. Approval of City Council Minutes
March 8, 2016 Special Meeting
March 15, 2016 Regular Meeting

Ratification of Payment Demands
Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda

vcow

F.
G.

Memorandum of Understanding for the Completion of Phase 1 Activities
Associated with Investigative Order No. R9-2015-0058 for the Investigation
of Sediment Quality in the Mouth of Chollas Creek

Chollas Creek Diazinon, Metals, Bacteria TMDL Cost Share Agreement (FY
2015-16)

Workers Compensation Insurance Coverage for Volunteers

Acceptance of the Palm and Golden Avenue Improvement Project

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Vazquez, to
approve the Consent Calendar passed, by the following vote:

Ayes:

Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

1



Resolution No. 2016-3396: Resolution of the Lemon Grove City Council Approving a
Memorandum of Understanding for the Completion of Phase 1 Activities Associated with
Investigative Order R9-2015-0058 Pertaining to an Investigation of Sediment Quality in the
Mouth of Chollas Creek, San Diego Bay, San Diego County, California

Resolution No. 2016-3397: Resolution of the Lemon Grove City Council Authorizing
Participation in the Chollas Creek Hydrologic Unit 908.22 Implementation Monitoring for Chollas
Creek Diazinon and Dissolved Metals Total Maximum Daily Loads (Investigation Order No. R9-
2004-0277 And Addendum No. 1) and Chollas Creek Monitoring for Total Maximum Daily Loads
For Indicator Bacteria, Project | - Twenty Beaches and Creeks in the San Diego Region
(Including Tecolote Creek) (Resolution No. R9-2010-0001)

Resolution No. 2016-3398: Resolution of the City Council of the City Of Lemon Grove,
California Ratifying Workers Compensation Insurance Coverage for City Approved Volunteers

Resolution No. 2016 — 3399: Resolution of the Lemon Grove City Council Accepting the Palm
and Golden Avenue Improvement Project (Contract No. 2016-06) as Complete

2, New Business
A. Fiscal Year 2015-16 Mid-Year Budgets

Gilbert Rojas explained that on June 2, 2015, the City Council adopted a City-wide Consolidated
Operating & Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-16. Since the budget was adopted, the
revenues and expenditures for FY 2014-15 have been finalized and audited. In addition, staff
has monitored the revenue projections for the first seven months of the Fiscal Year. Staff
recommends that the City Council consider midyear modifications to the FY 2015-16 Budget.

Mr. Rojas recommended that the General Fund revenues be increased in total by $75,000. This
entails an increase in the Vehicle License Fee ($61,000), Franchise Fees ($30,000), Building
Permits ($150,000) and a decrease in Sales Tax ($200,000). Mr. Rojas noted a change in
Transient Occupancy Tax that was reported in the staff report from $34,000 to $14,000. All
proposed changes are a result of the activity within the first seven months of the Fiscal Year.

Staff is also recommending the reinstatement of an Associate Planner/Senior Planner position
in the Development Services department. The recent promotion of the Principal Planner to the
Development Services Director has created the need to back fill the Director's former position.
This position will fill and be funded by the vacant Principle Planner position. The qualifications
of the applicant pool will determine the final classification of this position. The maximum annual
cost to the City will be $93,240. The General Fund has been and will continue to fund 50% of
this cost.

An increase of $45,000 to the City Attorney budget due to the unanticipated costs of dealing
with code enforcement issues related to marijuana shops.

Due to a recent loss at the public works yard, staff recommends an additional $2,500 in capital
outlay to replace a flat screen television used for staff training, 12 tablets and tablet cases. This
amount is below the City’s insurance deductible to cover the loss.

Staff is recommending that the Transfer In for administrative costs from the Gas Tax Fund be
eliminated this fiscal year due to the declining revenue in the Gas Tax Fund. We project that
transferring these funds would cause the Gas Tax Fund to be in a deficit Fund Balance.

The General Reserve Fund Appropriations (Expenditures) should be increased in total by
$579,446. This would include the $558,946 reimbursement to San Diego County RPTTF
(Redevelopment Fund) which was an agreement with the State Department of Finance that the
City Council approved in December, 2015.



Mr. Rojas also recommended an increase to the Vacation Payoff ($8,000) amount due to the
larger then expected turnover rate for the first six months of the Fiscal Year. The City budgeted
$30,000 for an animal control vehicle, however, the bids came in significantly higher then
expected. Staff is requesting an additional $30,000. There was $17,500 set aside for the City
Manager recruitment but, the cost of the recruitment was paid for from the professional services
account within the General Fund. So this amount can be eliminated from the budget.

Revenue from the taxing of gasoline sales is down due to the low price of gasoline. Staff is
recommending lowering revenue estimates in total by $103,250. The elimination of the
administrative cost from the General Fund will result in the Gas Tax Fund balance being
projected at $18,990.

Public Speaker(s)
There were no requests from the public to speak.

Action: Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Gastil, seconded by Councilmember Jones, to adopt
the resolution with amendment to the transient occupancy tax passed, by the following
vote:

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 2016-3400: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California Approving the City of Lemon Grove Mid-Year Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 and
Authorizing Expenditures Thereto

B. Construction Management Services for the Lemon Grove Realignment Project

Mike James stated that in support of the city’s five year capital improvement program (CIP), the
city invited firms to respond to a request for proposals (RFP) as the construction manager for
the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project (Contract No. 2016 — 14). The RFP was
publically advertised on February 25, 2016. The city held a mandatory pre-bid meeting on
March 8, 2016, in which five firms attended. On March 17, 2016, the city received one response
to the RFP from Infrastructure Engineering Corporation (IEC).

Staff thoroughly reviewed IEC’s proposal, cost estimate, and conducted reference checks and
recommends that an agreement is awarded to IEC for an amount not to exceed $384,766. The
project budget includes a contingency amount of $35,000 in addition to the proposed amount of
$349,766. He noted that $384,766 is budgeted from Fund 64-7130 — CIP Lemon Grove
Realignment during the Fiscal Year 2015-16 through Fiscal Year 2016-17 years.

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to
adopt the resolution passed, by the following vote:

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 2016-3401: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California Awarding an Agreement to Provide Construction Management Services for the
Lemon Grove Realignment Project to Infrastructure Engineering Corporation

a3



3. Public Hearings

A. Public Hearing to Consider Ordinance No. 439 — Zoning Amendment ZA1-
600-0001 Amending the Beekeeping Regulations (Chapter 18.16 of the
Municipal Code)

Miranda Evens reported that during public comment at a City Council meeting in early 2015,
several citizens spoke about existing beekeeping activity and their positions regarding that
activity. There was a current code enforcement case at the time that has since been closed. A
property owner with bee hives asked that the City Council consider allowing the beehives
utilizing the current provisions and the neighboring property owner asked that the hives be
removed because she has small children. After that discussion, the City Council directed staff
to prepare an agenda item that would allow them to discuss potential guidelines for beekeeping
activities in the City.

At the April 21, 2015 City Council meeting, staff presented an item to City Council that
discussed the City's existing beekeeping regulations, regional beekeeping programs, and
current trends for the City Council's consideration. Staff noted that there had been
approximately six requests in the past decade for beekeeping activities and less than that in
code enforcement activities. The records show that there are currently no beekeeping permits
issued in the City (a requirement under the City’s beekeeping regulations) and no open code
enforcement cases related to beekeeping. At the hearing, a total of two citizens spoke in favor
of beekeeping, and two residents expressed concerns for beekeeping in their neighborhood.
The City Council directed staff to return with a draft beekeeping ordinance.

Ms. Evans stated that staff analyzed beekeeping regulations throughout the County of San
Diego. Out of the nineteen local jurisdictions, there are six agencies (including Lemon Grove)
that currently include standards for beekeeping activities.

Staff considered more stringent separation requirements for sensitive sites such as public and
private schools, parks, playgrounds, picnic areas, outdoor sports facilities, daycare centers,
residential care facilities, medical facilities, kennels, and horse-boarding facilities. Staff
determined that further restrictions could be considered as a part of the minor use permit
process and applying such restrictions could restrict future land uses (e.g., a park couldn’t open
because it's next to an apiary) and restrict sensitive sites from operating an apiary (e.g., a
school wants to include beekeeping as a part of a community garden or a medical facility is
researching medicine associated with bees). The minor use permit would allow sensitive sites to
express their concerns as a part of the appeal process and the application could be denied or
amended based on the facts that the apiary is not compatible with the neighborhood due to its
proximity to sensitive sites and could be detrimental to the public health and welfare.

Public Speaker(s)
There were no requests from the public to speak.

After the City Council discussion, the public hearing was continued to May 17, 2016.

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the
City. (GC 53232.3 (d))

Councilmember Jones attended an Independent Rate Oversight Committee, SANDAG
Transportation Committee meetings and sat in for the Mayor’s regular SANDAG meetings.



Councilmember Mendoza attended the new Lions Club meeting, Eyes Across California Event,
participated in a blood pressure test with the Fire Department, Assemblywoman Weber's Salute
to Women Leaders, the Community Egg Hunt, Interfaith Clergy Walk, the Lemon Grove
Historical Society’s film event, the Grand Opening of the Diego Hills Charter School, and the
Urban League Walk-a-Thon.

Councilmember Vasquez attended City/County Reinvestment Task Force and Heartland
Communications Facility Authority meetings.

Mayor Pro Tem Gastil attended Assemblywoman Weber's Salute to Women Leaders, Grand
Opening of the Diego Hills Charter School, and an East County Economic Development Council
meeting, MTS meeting, and presented a proclamation to the Michael Monsoor VFW Post 2082
Mayor Sessom attended an Airport Authority meeting.

City Manager and Department Director Reports

David De Vries expressed appreciation for the opportunity to serve as the City’s Development
Services Director.

Lt. May reported that Deputy Ortiz, of the Lemon Grove substation, was honored with
“Outstanding DUI Officer Award” at the recent MADD Awards Ceremony and Luncheon,

Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the City Council, Housing Authority, Sanitation

District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and the Lemon Grove Successor
Agency the meeting was adjourned at 7:05 p.m.

Ditdern (Sfereia

Susan Garcia, City Clerk




City of Lemon Grove Demands Summary
Approved as Submitted

Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director
For Council Meeting: 04/19//16

Check No Yendor No Wendor Name

CRMG INVOICE NG WERNDOR NAME

ACH 225716 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC
ACH Iiarlé Pers Health

ACH Feblé Dharma Merchant Services

ACH Feblé Power Pay Biz

ACH Febl6 Bluefin Payrment Systems

ACH Iard 16 Ernployment Development Department
ACH Feblt Authorize. Net

ACH 3/3/16 Fitney Bowes Global Financial Sers

ACH Jan 36 Colonial Life

ACH Feblé Colonial Life

MCH 298236696 WS Bank Egquipment Finance

AL arl6 Aflac
ACH Marl 16 s Treasury

ACH 4154920380 SDGEE

ACH 3568860625  SDGEE

ACH 3816 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC

ACH Febl7-Marl Calpers Supplemental Income 457 Plan

ACH Feblé Wells Fargo Bank

ACH Marls 16 Ernployment Development Department

ACH 316416 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC

ACH 31706 Pitnay Bowes Global Financial Services LLC

ACH Mar2-Marls  Calpers Supplemental Income 457 Plan

ACH Febl6 Home Depot Credit Services

ACH Marls 16 LS Treasury

ACH liarl7 16 Southern CA Firefighters Benefit Trust

ACH Feb3-Marl California Public Empl Retirement System

ACH 3f26/16 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC

ACH 443768744 WEKX Wright Express Fle

ACH 3739416 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC
J ACH Iiards 16 Errployment Developrment Department

ACH fiard® 16 LIS Treasury

ACH Feb16 San Diego County Sheriff's Department

Check Date

02/26/2016

03/02/2016

03/02/2016

(3/02/2016

03/02/2016

03/03/2006

03/03/2016

03/04/2016

03/04/2016

03/04/2016

03/07/2016

03072016

03/08/2016

03/08/2016

03/08/2016

03/09/2016

03/10/2016

03/11/2016

(13/17/2016 Sta

03/18/2016

03/21/2016

03/21/2016

03/21/2016

0342242016

U3/23/2016

a3/24/2016

03/25/2016

03/28/2016

03/30/2016

O3/31/2016

03/31/2016

03/31/2016

ACH/AP Checks 02/26/16-04/06/16

Payroll - 3/29/16

Total Demands

Vendor Nane

i

Postage Usage 2/25/16

Pers Haalth Insurance - Mar'l6
Ierchant Fees - Feb'16

Online Credit Card Processing - Feb'16
Merchant Statement Fee - Feb'16

State Taxes 3/1/16

Merchant Fees ln-$tore & Online - Feb'16

Postage Usage 3/3/16

Optional Insurance - Jan' 16

Optional Insurance - Feb' 16

Defibrillator Lease-Contract Payment 3/11/16

Aftac Insurance - Mar'l6

Federal Taxes 3/1/16

Flectric Usage:St Light 1/31/16-2/29/16

Electric Usag ight 1/31/16-2/29/16

Postage Usage 3/8/16

457 Plan 2/17/16-3/1/16

Bank Service Charge - Feb'16

@ Tanes :

15/16
Postage Usage 3/16/16
Postage Usage 3/17/16
457 Plan 3/2/16-3/15/16

Feb'16

farme Depot Charges -

Federal Taxes 3/15/16

LG Firefighters Benefit Trust 3/3/16, 3/17/16

Pers Retirement 2/3/16-3/1/16
Postage Usage 3/24/16

Fuel - Fire Dept - Feb'16
Postage Usage 3/29/16

State Taxes 3/29/16

Federal Taxes 3/29/16

Law Enforcement Services - Jan'16
Law Enforcement Services - Feb'16

1,424,160.67

113,543.14

1,537,703.81

Checl Armount
SNVERCE SBATIINT

250.00

53,701.49

263.08

54.76

9,95

7,734.93

41,50

250.00

793,78

793.78

1,663.30

743,86

31,263,04

2,774.26

1,24591

250,00

4,034 45

BaS

6,781 97

25000

250,00

4,482.04

1,644 70

28,441 04

1,707 55

54,543 63

250.00

433

250,00

5,722.95

26,100.03

413,942
409,557 52

53,701:4%

263.08

54.76

9.95

7,734.93

41,50

250.00

YEENE)

793.78

1,663.30

ZER

31,263 04

2,174.26

1,245.91

250.00

4,034.45

845,53

6,781.97

250 00

4,482.04

1,644.70

28,441.04

1,707 55

54,543.63

250 00

43397

250.00

5,722 98

5

26,100.03

500 07



ACH

ACH

ACH

ACH

ACH

ACH

ALH

ACH

5464

5465

5466

5467

5468

5469

5470

5471

5472

5473

5474

5475

5476

5477

5478

5479

5480

5481

5482

5483

ACH

ACH

ACH

ACH

ACH

ACH

Marié
Marle
Marié
Marle
Marlé
Aprit
Mayle
Aprlé
Nov-Febl16
1896448
Marl? 16
67891
3716
32416
2/28/16
3846
2/2B)16
3/5/16
fumas
(311162305

Maré 16

3/07-10/16
3/44-17/16

Mard 16
00250251
00035413

06-00
9528873-00

28180
28247

BOTGAA-

Febl6
Febl6
Febio
Febit
Feb16
Febl6
Fabit
INYOOTS T2
11153
2160049
197027
197028
Marl 16
Febl6
3/3/16
lanl6

Feb 16

298236696

Colonial Life

Dharma Merchant Services

Power Pay Biz

Authorize, Net

Bluefin Payment Systems

Aftac

Aflac

Pers Health

Albfare b, Florenting

American Fence Company ne

California State Dishurserment Unit

Carrion, lorge

Coxn Communications

CWEA

Domestic Linen- California inc.

Ek, James

Esgil Corporation

Gamester, Sean

Hindertiter De Llamas & Associates

Hudson Safe-T- Lite Rentals

Hydro-Scape Products, Inc

KTU + A Planning + Landscape Architecture

LandCare

Lounsberry Ferguson Altona & Peak LLP

Municipal Emergency Services [nc

MASSCO, Inc

MBS

Minyo & Moore

Employment Development Department

Authorize Net

Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC

Colonial Life

Colonial Life

US Bank Equipment Finance

04/01/2016
04/04/2016
04/04/2016
04/04/2016
04/04/2016
04/04/2016
04/04/2016
04/04/2016
03/23/2016
03/23/2016
03/23/2016
03423/2006

0342372016

03/23/2036
03/23/2016
03232016

03/23/2016

03/23/2016
037232016
0372372016

0372372036

03/3342016

03/23/2016

03/23/2016

03/23/2016
03/23/2016
03/23/2016
03/23/2016
03/03/2016
03/03/2016
03/04/2016
03/04/2016
03/04/2016

03/07/2016

Optional Insurance - Mar'16

tercharnt Fees - Mar'16

Online Credit Card Processing - Mar'16

Merchant Fees In-Store & Online- Mar'16

Merchant Statement Fee - Mar'16

Aflac Insurance - Apr'is

Aflae Insurance - May'16

Pers Heatth Insurance - Apr'l6

Cell Phone Retmbursement- Nov 15- Feb 16

Morth @ Olive Fence Rental- 2/7/16-3/16/16

Wage Withholtding Pay Period Ending 3/15/16

8210 Sifksoux - Setup Compost Socks- LG Realignment
Calsense Modern Line:2259 Washington 3/6/16-4/5/16
Calsense Modermn Line:7071 Mt Vernon- 3/6/16-4/5/16
Internet/Cormmunity Ctr- 3/1/16-3/29/16

B/L Phone/Fire /7853 Central- 3/7/16-4/6/16

Peg Cireuit Sve- 3/1/16-3/29/16
Phone/Rec Cr/ 3131 Schoot bn- 3/4/16-4/3/16

CWEA Membership Renewal - Dumas
Shop Towsls & Safety Mats 3/11/16
EMT Recertification Fee- Bk

75% Building Fees- 3/7/16-3/10/16
75% Building Fees- 3/14/16-3/17/16

Uniform Relmbursement- Gamester 3/2/16
Sates Tax Audit Services - Qtr 3 2015
Post Cap/ Wrench

Paint/ Weed Killer
L&A Median & Parks Supplies

Prof Serv: Main St Promenade Phase?- Jan
Prof Serv: Main 5t Promenade Phase2- Febl-

tandscape Maintenance- Feb16

General 01363-00002 - Fel'16

Code Enforcement 01163-00003 - Feb'16
BOF 01163-00017 - Feb'16

Affordable Housing 01163-00019 - Feb'16
Cost-Share Agreement 00023 - Feb'16
7309 Broadway- 00024 - Fel'16

797% North Avenue- 00025 - Feb'16

Uniform Alowance- Drom 3/3/16

NASSCO Membership Dues

Sanitation Rate Study- Thru FebZ9, 2016

Golden Ave Row Homes Inspection- thru Feb26'16

Materials Testing Sve-SRTS Palm & Golden- thru Feb26'16

State Taxes 3/1/16

Merchant Fees In-Store & Online - Feb'16

Postage Usage 3/3/16

Cptional Insurance - Jan'16

Optional Insurance - Feb'16

Defibritfator Lease-Contract Payment 3/11/16

1,190 67
374.86
53 14

G 45
T43 86
IEER
55,390 90
G000
105 Q0
267,00
A%6.21
2110
19,99
75,00
31.55
2,941 15
EXE]
164.00
G075
54.00

4,673.35
2,842 31

32.37

2,826 64

34.72

408 40
957 55

1,072 50
9,384 60

9,479.00

870
S5T7 05

267 14

29500

4,084.02

1,489 50

250 00

79378

93 78

1,663 30

1,190.67

37486

226,58

53,14

995

743.86

743.86

55,350.90

60.00

105.00

267.00

496,21

3,186 .52

164.00

G0.75

54 00

7,515.66

2,826.64

72

1,366 95

10,457.10

9,479 00

15,453 49

267,14

295 00

4,084 02

8,489 50

1734 93

41 50

250.00

938

EENG

1,663 30



5489

5490

5491

5492

5493

5494

5495

5496

5497

5498

5499

5516

A517

5518

5520

5541

EEY Y

5523

5524

5525

Marl6é

G7824

Mard5 16

9761514925

73066282
7I066283

032316

0597

1902718

AZL136

1263

680354-9

681324-9

681746-9

6826059

6H2882-9

BRO9E783

13618

14435

10060141152

3099

79382

0325162305

534840307

T8

00035474

7637126

LaPawn

197029

197232

197330

WO-26825-1

(verton

121340

Uni-3/25/16

Ross

3/18/16

SCIDefined

(214446

3/24/16
3/24/16

E5A 2005

IR

Tauat

Standard Insurance Company

Tristar Risk Management

Wartage Point Transfer Agents-457

Werizon Wireless

Vulcan Materials

American General Life Insurance Company

A-Pot Rentals

American Fence Company Inc

Aztec Fence Co ll Inc,

Badaw! & Associates

Bl's Rentats

Boundtree Medical LLE

City of El Cajon

City of La Mesa

City of San Diego

- Man Enginesring Inc,

Day Wireless Systems fnc.

Domestic Linen- California inc

Federal Express

Glabatstar USA, inc

Hudson Safe-T- Lite Rentals

Kirntey- Horn and Associates inc.

Lamon Grove Pawnbroker

Winyo & Moore

Office Adventage, lnc,

Overton, Dawn

Pacific HVAC Service

Pacific Sweeping

Ratkovich, Michael

Rass, Thomas/Kim

Russell, Corinne

5 CF Defined Benefit Pension Plan

SCh Engineers

SRGRE

Sessom, Mary

Superior Ready Mix Concrete LP

Tauai, Marie/Esera

0372372016
03/23/2016
03/23/2016
0342372036

03/23/2016

03/23/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/ 2016
03/30/2016

03/30/2016

03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016

03/30/2016

03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/1016
03/30/2016
3/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016
03/30/2016

03/30/2016

03/30/2016
03/30/2016

03/30/2016

Long Term Disability Insurance - Mar'16

Losses Paid- 2/1/16-2/29/16

1Chs Deferred Compensation Pay Period Ending 3/1, 3/15
Muodels- Cardiac Monitors- 2/4/16-3/3/16

Asphalt
Asphalt

Life tnsurance - L Romero

Partable Restroom Rental- 3/9/16-4/8/16

Morth & Olive Fence Rental- 3/17/16-04/16/16

Fence Repair- Berry Street Park

FeEs Audit - Final Billing

Compactor Plate Rental

Propane

Compactor Plate Rental

Compactor Plate Rental

Propane

Medicat Supplies

HFTA Cuarterly Billing- FY15/16- 4th QTR

Cwvertime Reimbursement-Loper/Mast/Provence/Sergent
FY16 Regional 3C's Network Connections and Support
Northside Commons Stormwater Plan Feview- thru 3/10/16
E310- Engine Radio Repair

Shop Towels & Safety Mats 3/25/16

Shipping Charges - Fire Dept,

Satelite Services- 2/16/16-03/15/16

12 Point Wrench

Lemon Grove Safe Routes Project- Through 3/31/16
Refund/ Lemon Grove Pawnbroker/ License

Project Inspeckor Sve thru Fels 26,2016- SRTS PalmBGolden
Materials Testing Sve- SRTS PalmBiGolden Ave- thry Marz
Project Inspector Sve thru Mar 23, 2016- SRTS Patm&Goelden
Office Supplies

Cansultant Services - Goal Setting

AL Repair- Sheriffs 3/23/16

Street Sweeping/Parking Lot- Febl6

Uniform Allowance- Ratkovich 3/25/16

Refund/Ross, Thomas/Kim/ License Refund

Reimb: Mileage- Russell Mar22-23, 2016

Refund/ ¢ Defined Benefit Pension Plan/ TPM Review

Monitoring Well Instaltation & Sampling- Main $t Prop- Feb'16

3225 Olive- 2/22/16-3/21/16
3500 1/2 Main- 2/22/16-3/21/16

FSH 2015 Sessom
Recycled Class |

Refund/Taual, Marie/Fsera/ License Refund

1.624.79

3,007 82

1,161 54

18,18

134.14
134.14

141 18

132.20

105.00

47500

1,604.00

316.80

25.60

107.55

139.26

26,20

1,141 .36

2,932.00

,645.83

3,000.00

270.00

280,00

90,75

12.69

95.98

43 40

9,867 .00

130.00

8,563 25

1,849 568

3,207 .00

128.67

6,262.50

192 .50

6,051 28

320 14

124.00

118 80

949.73

#,280.00

B0 20
147 43

494 .00

261.76

TOTE

1,624.79

3,007.82

1,161.54

28.18

268,28

141.18

105.00

475.00

1,604 06

1,141.36

2,932.00

3,645.83

3,000.00

27000

22000

90,75

12,69

43.40

9,867 00

130,00

13,619.75

128.67

6,262 50

192.50

6,051 28

32014

124.00

118 80

3,280.00

454.00

261.76

IS



5528

55e9

5530

EETY

5537

5542

5543

5546

5547

H548

5549

5550

B551

YIER04T 140
YI62047741
GI62048393

F1072410

71072412

75852881

10729

15011

3/22/16

4467594

6842029
6845479

Aprie

15881664

2801
2802
2803
2804
2805
2806

3/20/16
Drawis
13001

3/31/16

Uni-3/30/16

2/29-3/3/16

AROOT6ES

103

201611

Uni-3/29/16

INLO13175

10271

T029747-MR16

Aprl6

7210

7230

Aprle

SynergyEast

2010 Bond

71067701

Verizon Wireless

Vulcan Materials

Waxie Sanitary Supply

ALK Imaging

Alir Purification Systems

ATET

Bearcom

Bl's Rentals

California Dental Network Inc

Canon Financlal Services Inc.

CityPlace Planning, Inc,

Clark Telecom & Electric inc.

Cox Communications

Crest Equipment nc

Custormn Auto Wrap Inc,

Drumn, Daryn

Duenez, Nicholas

Esgil Corporation

Grossmont Union High School District

Janazz, LLC DF

Lemon Grove Car Wash

tedina, Travis

Municipal Emergency Services Ine

Penske Ford

Pitrey Bowes Global Financial Services LLC

PLIC- SBD Grand tsland

RapidScale Inc

Spring Valley Lawn Mower Shop

Standard Insurance Company

Synergy East

LIS Bank- Corporate Trust Services

Yulean Materials

03/30/2016

03/30/2016

03/30/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016

04/06/2016

04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016

04/06/2016

04/06/2016
04/06/2016
O4/06/2016
G4/06/2016
Q4/06/2016

04/06/2016

04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016
04/06/2016

04/06/2016

City Phone Charges- 2/13/16-03/12/16

PW Tablets/Phone Charges - Sanitation -2/13/16-3/12/16

Mobile Broadband Access- 2/13/16-03/12/16
MDC Engine Tablets- 2/21/16-3/20/16

Asphalt
Asphatt
Asphalt
Asphalt
Cleaning Supplies

faps

Installation of Vehicle Exhaust Removal System

ATET High Speed Internet Max Plus 2/23/16-3/22/16

Portable Radios Monthly Contract- 3/22/16-4/21/16

Propane
Propane

California Dental Insurance - Apr'i6
Canon Copier Contract Charge- 4/1/16
CLG General Plan Project - Feb'16

Street Light Maintenance- lanl16

Street Light Repairs- Janl6

Street Lighting Dig Alert Mark Outs - Janl6
Traffic Signal Maintenance- Janl16

Traffic Signal Repairs- Janl6

Traffic Signal Dig Alert Mark Outs- Janlé
Street Light Maintenance- Febl6

Street Light Repairs- Febl16

Traffic Signal Maintenance- Feb16

Traffic Signal Repairs- Febl6

Phone/PW Yard/2873 Skyline- 3/19/16-4/18/16

Safe Routes to School Palm/Golden 3/1/16-3/31/16 Drawis

Day Camp Banners

Reimb: Kitchen Towels/Cups/vehicle Towels
Uniform Allowance- Duener 3/30/16

75% Building Fees- 2/29/16-3/3/16

75% Building Fees- 3/21/16-3/24/16

T5% Building Fees- 3/2B/16-3/31/16

Spring Camp/Egg Hunt Flyers

Cormputer Maintenance- Marl6

Full Service Car Wash 3/1/16

Uniform Allowance- Medina 3/29/16
Shipping - Combustible Sensor

LGPWOT- Gil & Filter Change

Pastage Meter Rental Adj - 12/30/15-3/30/16
Dentat insurance - Apr'l6

Virtual Hosting- Mar16

Weed Whip Line

Long Term Disability - Apr'16

Refund/Synergy East/ Overpaid Business License Fees

CDA 2010 Tax Allocation Refunding Bond - Reserve Fund

Asphalt

190 05

134 14
130 46
13046
16711
1,380.38
110 00
19,416 59
130 00

15000

2510
2728

309.98
642,60
5,790 00
137.33
270,85
98.84
117000
1,158 22
156 44
13733
2,244.42
117000
671.63
211.92
A7,761.07
405 00
12280
19327
9,198.59
2,267 42
3,866 62
1,650.00
G609 00
16.00
39.42

B 64
13,37
4,595 96
2,048.07
9.67
1,624.79
63 00
548307

13219

B68 55

56217

1,380.38

110.00

19,416.59

150.00

150,00

309.98

642 60

5,790.00

7,215.06

21192

37,761 07

405,00

122.80

293.27

15,332.63

1,650.00

BOG 00

16 00

39.42

#.64

42 66

13.37

4,595 96

2,048.07

967

1,624.79

G300

5,483.07

654.26



71079266
71082907
7086835

Q163860

2870
2871
293 7Reissue
2952
3018
3023
3056
3068
306%
3070
3098
3099
3106
3108
3114
3115

Zurnay industries, Inc.

D~ May Engineering Inc.

04/06/2016

04/06/2016

haphalt
Asphalt
bPaphalt

Street Mame Signs

Valencia Construction Inspections- 4/1/15-5/31/15
1606 Celslus - WOTR Lst Review

FY14/15 industrial Commercial Program-Compliance Inspections
Shirley Lane WEOTR 3rd Review

Lemon Grove Vista Azul- SWIMP 1st Review

Shirley Lane WOTR Review Meeting

Matkard Court WOTR 2nd Review

temon Grove Vista Azul- SWMP 2nd Review

LG Lofts- SWMP 3rd Review

2065 G9th Street- SWOMP 1st Review

Lemon Grove Vista Azul- SWMP 3rd Review
Northside Commons- Erosion Control Plan Review
Lermon Grove Vista Azul- SWMP 4th Review
Mallard Court SWOMP 4th Review

Promenade Extension Conceptual Design Review
BAMP Design Manual Update 10/1/15-2/29/16

300.67
126.74
92.66

1,796.66

2,867.30
1,116.70
6,491.13
1,301.70
992850
54358
93170
1,248.75
1,439 20
1,541.25
1,22545
27000
72000
#70.00
620.00
11,710.00

1,424,160.67

1,796,66

33,889,246

1,424,160.67



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ltemNo. 1D
Mtg. Date __ April 19, 2016
Dept. __Finance

Item Title: Financial Audit Services Agreement
Staff Contact:  Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director

Recommendation:

Adopt a resolution (Attachment B) approving an amendment to agreement for financial audit
services with Badawi & Associates.

Item Summary:

In 2013 the City Council authorized a Request for Proposal (RFP) for financial audit services which
resulted in Badawi & Associates being awarded a three year agreement to audit the City financial
records. The agreement also provided options to extend the agreement for fiscal years ending
2016 and 2017. The staff is aware that Badawi & Associates experience in auditing the City is very
valuable and useful to the City. Therefore, is recommending extending the agreement for the
Fiscal Year 2016 audit.

Fiscal Impact:

The Fiscal Year 2015-16 cost for the audit will be $23,000—this is an increase from last years
audit cost of $16,040. In addition, Badawi & Associates also prepares and submits the State
Controllers Report and the Street Report. This cost will decrease from $2,613 to $2,000.

Environmental Review:
X Not subject to review [] Negative Declaration

[] Categorical Exemption, Section [ ] Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

X None [ ] Newsletter article [ ] Notice to property owners within 300 ft.
[ ] Notice published in local newspaper [ ] Neighborhood meeting
Attachments:

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution (with Agreement for Professional Services)



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT

Item No. 1.D

Mtg. Date _April 19, 2016

item Title: Financial Audit Services Agreement
Staff Contact: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director

Discussion:

The advantages of extending the services of Badawi & Associates include the following:

e Badawi & Associates has 3 years of knowledge and experience in the City's finances;

o Badawi & Associates has reasonable fees;

e Badawi & Associates received 100 percent positive feedback from cities contacted by
staff;

e The partner, Mr. Ahmed Badawi, and staff at Badawi & Associates have extensive
experience in auditing local government entities.  Their staff has a thorough
understanding of California laws and PERS. In addition, the partner is a member of
various governmental committees, has actively participated in the development of
accounting and audit guidelines for the governmental sector, and is an instructor for the
California Society of Municipal Finance Officers.

Staff recommends that the City Council consider the reappointment of Badawi & Associates.
Staff has prepared a resolution (Attachment B) authorizing the execution of an amendment to
the agreement between the City and Badawi & Associates.

Included with the resolution is the City’s Amendment to the Agreement for Professional Services
for a one year term.

Conclusion:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution (Attachment B) awarding the
contract to Badawi & Associates.



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-____

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT
TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE AND BADAWI &
ASSOCIATES TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL AUDITING SERVICES

WHEREAS, on January 15, 2013, the City Council authorized the release of a Request
for Proposals for Audit Services; and

WHEREAS, after evaluating the firms qualified based on RFP criteria, the City Council
selected Badawi & Associates to provide financial audit services; and

WHEREAS, the original agreement approved in 2013 provided for an agreement
extension of auditing services beyond the original three years; and

WHEREAS, an amendment for financial auditing services has been prepared to extend
audit services for Fiscal Year 2015-16.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby:

1. Approves the Amendment for Professional Services (Exhibit 1) with Badawi &
Associates to provide financial audit services; and

2. Authorizes the City Manager to execute said agreement.



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL FINANCIAL AUDITING
SERVICES

This amendment is entered into the __ day of April, 2016, by and between the City of Lemon
Grove (“CITY") and Badawi & Associates (“AUDITOR");

The following sections are changed to read as follows:
Section 5. TOTAL COST AND PAYMENT.

The total cost for all work and deliverables (including the optional reports) specified in
Attachment A is not to exceed Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) for the Fiscal Year
ending June 30, 2016. AUDITOR will submit to CITY detailed invoices, describing work
performed and the associated costs. CITY will pay AUDITOR for undisputed invoiced amounts
within thirty (30) days of receiving an invoice.

Section 6. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT.

This agreement is effective as of the date noted above in Section 1. The agreement will
terminate when all work is complete for fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.

Section 18. NOTICES.

All communication to a particular party is deemed made when received by that party at the
following name and address:

Gilbert Rojas Ahmed Badawi

Finance Director Partner

City of Lemon Grove Badawi & Associates

3232 Main Street 180 Grand Avenue, Suite 955
Lemon Grove, CA 91945 Oakland, CA 94612

Written communication is conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five (5)
days after it is deposited in the United States Mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed.

CITY OF LEMON GROVE BADAWI & ASSOCIATES
Lydia Romero, City Manager Ahmed Badawi, Partner
Date Date



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ItemNo. _1E
Mtg. Date _ April 19, 2016
Dept. Public Works

Item Title: Tree Maintenance Services Agreement Amendment
Staff Contact: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation:

Adopt a resolution (Attachment B) approving an agreement amendment (Attachment B —
Exhibit 1) with West Coast Arborists, Inc. for tree maintenance services in the City of Lemon
Grove. |

Item Summary:

On November 4, 2014, the City Council approved an agreement with West Coast Arborists, Inc.
(WCA) for tree maintenance services in the City of Lemon Grove. The intent of the agreement was
to establish a professional services tree maintenance cycle that is appropriate for the size and type
of urban forest that exists in the City of Lemon Grove. Since working with WCA, staff has been
very satisfied with the response times, quality of work, and professional quality of services that has
been received. In December 2015, staff was approached by WCA to discuss a new prevailing
wage determination that was issued by the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR). On August
22, 2015, a new rate was established that is higher than the Landscape Maintenance Laborer
classification and therefore will increase the rates that are reflected in the city’s tree maintenance
agreement. At this time, WCAs proposes a 31 percent cost increase to account for the DIRs
determination. The requested increase exceeds the consumer price index that is authorized per
the existing agreement and therefore requires City Council approval. Staff has met with WCA
multiple times to discuss the impacts of the DIRs decision and has concluded that the amendment
is necessary to continue to provide tree maintenance services throughout the City.

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment B) approving an
agreement amendment (Attachment B — Exhibit 1) with West Coast Arborists, Inc. for tree
maintenance services in the City of Lemon Grove,

Fiscal Impact:

There is no fiscal impact at this time. However, in light of the recent increase in unit costs, staff
anticipates a funding adjustment as part of the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget process.

Environmental Review:
X Not subject to review [] Negative Declaration

[] Categorical Exemption, Section ] Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None [] Newsletter article [] Notice to property owners within 300 ft.
[ | Notice published in local newspaper [ ] Neighborhood meeting
Attachments:

A. Resolution



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 -

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING A TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT WITH WEST
COAST ARBORISTS, INC. FOR TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES IN THE CITY OF LEMON

GROVE

WHEREAS, in 2014, the City established an agreement with West Coast Arborists, Inc.
(WCA) to provide tree maintenance services throughout the City; and

WHEREAS, on August 22, 2015, the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) increase
the minimum hourly wage rates of employment classifications that provide services to the City;
and

WHEREAS, in December 2015, WCA requested a 31 percent increase to its unit prices
to adhere to the new DIR requirements; and

WHEREAS, staff believes that WCA continues to provide a special and unique services
package of special tree maintenance equipment, ISA certified staff, and maintains a
professional training standard that continues to manage all tree maintenance service requests in
the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby:
1. Approves an agreement amendment (Exhibit 1) with West Coast Arborists, Inc. for
tree maintenance services in the City of Lemon Grove; and

2. Authorizes the City Manager or designee to execute and manage all contractual
documents.

Ny
11111



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Clty of Lemon Grove
Urban Forestry Management

WCA, Inc. Prices for FY 2016-2017

UL
BESCRIP TN LT PG
Trivy Prranivigy [y b} i ELi
Trey Pruning fhy Saneebon Biaqronin) ]
[ % H).ANCY ]
BV % 60,60 %
sR i § 85 06 3
1 3 4 116,00 % 150,68
el iy 13 165,00 $ 242,55
fats $ 26000 % JEE60
Lt B k] P L % ira gl
Lotrers Fisduim, hmranro 19 oudu ateloanned e
'R $ 2000 $
712" § 26,00 &
13-18" § 60,00 &
19-24" $ 5060 13
2 4 50.00 $ .50
-3 13 8000 i 104,60
et 3" % [ % il Y
Yo Bl uswsweh (g Yo bisodep
i jij 17.00 %
742" 3 17.00 §
1316" 12 17.00 $
oA 5 v &
25-40" & 1700 %
3408 $ 21.00 §
et e 1 Eap il K
Soirey Garivediong Croor Wlammtor Biveh) % S 1 045
Pabn Trsen $elmwmdong
Tty Piate Palm (Pl B, & 120,00 % 15720
Clean Yk it Tt Pl (Fheb wpy ) Lirnar Foot % .00 % 39,50
Pt # e Paslegr (W tilosggont wp ) § 44,00 % B7.60
Einaury Frord v Far Pai (Whishinglonie s )/ Linsar Fook | & 10.00 % 1310
[y bt eofbvr ol St ) A AW J Hehf
Tiwa Pimndbegy
% 120,00 % 167 2
b3 200 $ 26200
by s § 500,00 %
At o & LR #
Eff ety Bk E 2 [
Woggin Wanburlgg {mor hooury # £l Aty ¥ ¥ i
B gy Gt (e boesmred Ssipt) £ FAE i3 1%
st Brevibing Epoe moar font) % ] %
Root faeriir Ittt (oo W fanty - F i
Chtrenigrn] Lkt Rt |y o
Hiewty rate for 1 Ground-parson % 60,00 & 7860
Hawihy rate for 1 Equipment Operator W G000 5 7860
oy rate for 1 Trimmer % G0 06 13 1860
Hourly rate for Mapieipsd Srsialbsg b 6600 3 7860
Flamity rete for LIy Spaninlis 1 6600 B 1
Fhspiby wibs bisr Llesg Chiatemice £ailoct Trimmers -3 il A0 § 76.60
oy Runter Sorrwdee Ui = (pus vhiby) 4 1t L 4 o RE M
Bowm truck per wisl (75 hour iy Lt sk & Chip
by oo chieibiand s, ¥ A, 2 opeend e
oty Eepnignmant Uoey Fbnla {gaor chiy} % bk X £ Vet £3F
Emergency Sarvioes - e e}
iy payiaiprard 3 person crew for amergancy SHrVIGE:
ey itk buelness hours § 140 5500
At s, ko stdfon tudbys i TR #
Fuibrueeiad Fpaen = {pat honiy % TECE 0 i
ST vy rvanibasry pd 1 st LI Y

The propet piees roflaet o 318 ereass lo offset e new pravailing wege datgemination
for Teens MEadistneo) IR




LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. __ 1.F
Mtg. Date __April 19, 2016
Dept. Public Works

Item Title: Agreement for Claims Management Services
Staff Contact: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation:

Adopt a resolution (Attachment B) approving an agreement for claims management services
with George Hills Company.

Item Summary:

Currently, the City self administers its claims management services in compliance with state and
federal regulations. With the recent dissolution of the San Diego Pooled Insurance Program
Authority (SANDPIPA), the City continues to evaluate all aspects of its risk management program.

As a part of that analysis, City staff substantially reviewed its claims management program to
determine if this is an area that it should continue to be performed in-house or if there are greater
benefits to the City if this service is contracted out.

The staff report (Attachment A) details the City’s claims management history, the comparison
between providing said services in-house or contracting those services to a third party
administrator, and concludes with staff's recommendation.

Fiscal Impact:

In Fiscal Year 2015-2016 (FY 2015-16) funds are allocated in Fund 29 — Self Insured Liability
Retention Fund. However, moving forward to FY 2016-17, staff anticipates this amount will
increase to reflect the not to exceed cost estimate of $15,000 per fiscal year.

Environmental Review:
X Not subject to review [] Negative Declaration
[] Categorical Exemption, Section [ ] Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

X] None [] Newsletter article [ ] Notice to property owners within 300 ft.
[] Notice published in local newspaper [ ] Neighborhood meeting
Attachments:

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT
item No. _1.F

Mtg. Date _ ‘April 19, 2016

Item Title: Agreement for Claims Management Services
Staff Contact: Mike James, Public Works Director

Background:

On April 21, 2015, the City Council adopted a resolution that provided its written authorization to
the dissolution of the San Diego Pooled Insurance Authority Program Authority (SANDPIPA).
The City Council also authorized staff to solicit proposals to provide general liability and workers
compensation excess insurance coverage as well as third party administrative services.

The remaining portion of this staff report details staffs selection process while reviewing
proposals from qualified third party administrative services for general liability claims
management services.

Discussion:

Since April 1986, the City has benefited from multiple agreements that were negotiated by
SANDPIPA’s General Manager, for the benefit of its 12 members. One of those agreements
included a third party administrative service for claims management services with Carl Warren
and Associates (Carl Warren). However, in 2013, Carl Warren terminated its agreement with
SANDPIPA. Since that time staff has self administered its claims management services.

During the transition period from SANDPIPA to a direct relationship with California State
Association of Counties — Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA), staff researched and now
recommends that outsourcing claims management services may be in the best interest of the
city for the following reasons: allows staff to focus on other competing priorities, retains the
services of professional experts in the field of claims management, and improves the city’s
claims system with an external review of processes and procedures.

Staffs first step in this process was to schedule meetings and request proposals from qualified
third party administrators for general liability claims management services. In March, staff
received proposals from five firms: Adminsure, Incorporated, Carl Warren and Associates (Carl
Warren), George Hills Company (George Hills), Veritas Claims, LLC, and York Risk Services
Group. Of those five firms staff interviewed two: Carl Warren and George Hills. Staff felt that
both firms brought forward a tremendous amount of experience managing claims for local
government entities. However, after meeting with both entities staff felt that George Hills will
bring a tailored methodology that will best fit the current needs of staff and the City’s risk
program. Before detailing the benefits that George Hills will bring to the city's risk management
program, staff felt it was prudent to include information about the company:

e Since 1954, George Hills has provided best practice claims administration and litigation
management services to private and public sector clients,

e Currently employees 40 claims management professionals and 14 full time corporate
and support staff employees. Each claims professional holds the applicable industry
standard certification,



Attachment A

e Seven offices are located throughout California. The nearest office that will support
Lemon Grove is located in San Bernardino,

Because the city is in a direct relationship with CSAC-EIA it receives additional support services
from its broker, Alliant Insurance Services (Alliant). Alliant is familiar with the city’s risk profile,
since it was also a SANDPIPA broker for insurance, and Alliant staff members attended both
interviews with Carl Warren and George Hills.  Alliant staff concurred with staff's
recommendation to partner with George Hills. A summary of some of the benefits that were
noted by partnering with George Hills included:

¢ Financially stable company with one owner,
e Claims adjuster coverage that will allow 24 hour servicing if needed,
e Subrogation recovery program for public entities,

e Currently is an approved vendor for CSAC-EIAs primary general liability program. This
is important because George Hills is familiar with the reporting requirements of the city’s
excess insurance provider, and

» Wil provide the conversion to the claims management tracking software (SYSTEMA) at
no additional cost to the City.

Agreement Details:

In moving forward, staff felt it important to review a few of the key points of George Hills’
proposal and the final agreement.

Cost: Because the agreement was created on a time and material basis ($83 per hour)
there is no guaranteed method to predict the annual expenditures that will occur.
However, based on the costs listed on page 37 of this report, staff estimates that the
cost range in the first 14 months will not exceed $15,000.

Duration: The agreement will expire no sooner than June 30, 2017 with the option to
extend for four additional one-year periods. The June 30, 2017 date was selected
because that coincides with the anticipated completion date of staff's analysis and
comparison of excess insurance providers.

Review of Policies and Procedures: During discussions with George Hills about the
city's current risk program, George Hills staff volunteered its services to review all
templates and forms related to risk management for not additional cost.

In closing, staff concluded that George Hills Company is not the largest firm that is available to
the city. However, its uniquely tailored approach, coupled with its core values of honesty &
integrity, customer satisfaction, financial sustainability, loyalty and continuous improvement are
in keeping with what staff believes will best fit the general liability risk program moving forward.

Conclusion:

That the City Council adopts a resolution (Attachment B) approving an agreement
(Attachment B — Exhibit 1) for claims management services with George Hills Company.



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 -

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
AWARDING A CLAIMS MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT TO GEORGE HILLS
COMPANY

WHEREAS, the City currently self-administers its general liability claims management
services; and

WHEREAS, with the recent formation of a direction relationship with the California State
Association of Counties — Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA) staff expanded its risk
management program analysis to include general liability claims management services, there is
a need to ; and

WHEREAS, staff solicited and received five proposals for claims management services,
and

WHEREAS, after reviewing each proposal staff interviewed two firms: Carl Warren and
George Hills Company; and

WHEREAS, staff believes that George Hills Company provides a special and unique
service package of personnel and experience that can manage all claims services in the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby:

1. Approves an agreement (Exhibit 1) with George Hills Company for claims
management services; and

2. Establishes an initial term ending on June 30, 2017, with the option to execute four
one-year extensions; and

3. Establishes an annual budget not to exceed fifteen thousand ($15,000.00) per fiscal

year; and
4. Authorizes the City Manager or designee to execute and manage all agreement
documents.
11111
11111



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN
THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE
AND
GEORGE HILLS COMPANY

THIS AGREEMENT is approved and effective upon the date of the last signature, by
and between the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, a municipal corporation (the “CITY"), and
GEORGE HILLS COMPANY a claims and JPA management service provider (the
“CONSULTANT").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to provide third party
administration for claims management services.

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the CONSULTANT is a professional claims
and JPA management service provider and is qualified by experience and ability to perform the
services desired by the CITY, and the CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:
1. ENGAGEMENT OF CONSULTANT. The CITY hereby agrees to engage the

CONSULTANT and the CONSULTANT hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set
forth in accordance with all terms and conditions contained herein.

The CONSULTANT represents that all services required hereunder will be performed
directly by the CONSULTANT or under direct supervision of the CONSULTANT.

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. The CONSULTANT will perform services as set forth on
pages 18-55 of Exhibit 1 (Attached).

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all research and reviews related to the work
and shall not rely on personnel of the CITY for such services, except as authorized in advance
by the CITY. The CONSULTANT shall appear at meetings cited in Exhibit 1 to keep staff and
City Council advised of the progress on the project.

The CITY may unilaterally, or upon request from the CONSULTANT, from time to time
reduce or increase the Scope of Services to be performed by the CONSULTANT under this
Agreement. Upon doing so, the CITY and the CONSULTANT agree to meet in good faith and
confer for the purpose of negotiating a corresponding reduction or increase in the compensation
associated with said change in services.

3. PROJECT COORDINATION AND SUPERVISION.

The City Manager or designee is hereby is designated as the Project Coordinator for the
CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this Agreement. The CONSULTANT shall
assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall responsibility for the




Attachment B — Exhibit 1

progress and execution of this Agreement for the CONSULTANT. John Chaquica or designee
thereby is designated as the Project Director for the CONSULTANT.

4. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT. The compensation for the CONSULTANT shall
be based on monthly billings covering actual work performed. Billings shall include labor
classifications, respective rates, hours worked and also materials, if any. The total cost for all
work described on page 37 of Exhibit 1 shall not exceed fifteen thousand ($15,000.00) (the
Base amount) without prior written authorization from the City Manager or designee. Monthly
invoices will be processed for payment and remitted within thirty (30) days from receipt of
invoice, provided that work is accomplished consistent with Exhibit 1 as determined by and in
the sole discretion of the CITY. The CONSULTANT shall maintain all books, documents,
papers, time sheets, accounting records and other evidence pertaining to costs incurred and
shall make such materials available at its office at all reasonable times during the term of this
Agreement and for three (3) years from the date of the final payment under this Agreement, for
inspection by the CITY and for furnishing of copies to the CITY, if requested.

5. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT. This agreement will last until June 30, 2017. The
contract may be extended for four (4) additional one (1) year periods by written agreement of
the parties, and may be subject to both City Council appropriation of funds and City Council
authorization of such contract extension(s).

6. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. The Memoranda, Reports,
Maps, Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONSULTANT for
this Project, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property of the CITY for use with
respect to this Project, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon completion of the Project, or
any phase thereof, as contemplated by this Agreement. By accepting payment for completion,
filing and delivering documents as called for in this paragraph, the CONSULTANT discharges
the City of all of the City’s payment obligations and liabilities under this agreement.

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns
to the CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and
the right to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work
prepared under this agreement, except upon the CITY’s prior authorization regarding
reproduction, which authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall,
upon request of the CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this
waiver and disclaimer.

The CONSULTANT agrees that the CITY may use, reuse, alter, reproduce, modify,
assign, transfer, or in any other way, medium or method utilize the CONSULTANT's
written work product for the CITY’s purposes, and the CONSULTANT expressly waives
and disclaims any residual rights granted to it by Civil Code Sections 980 through 989
relating to intellectual property and artistic works.

Any modification or reuse by the CITY of documents, drawings or specifications
prepared by the CONSULTANT shall relieve the CONSULTANT from liability under Section 14
but only with respect to the effect of the modification or reuse by the CITY, or for any liability to
the CITY should the documents be used by the CITY for some project other than what was
expressly agreed upon within the Scope of this project, unless otherwise mutually agreed.



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

7. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT. Both parties hereto in the performance of this
Agreement will be acting in an independent capacity and not as agents, employees, partners or
joint venturers with one another. Neither the CONSULTANT nor the CONSULTANT'S
employees are employees of the CITY and are not entitled to any of the rights, benefits, or
privileges of the CITY’s employees, including but not limited to retirement, medical, unemploy-
ment, or workers' compensation insurance.

This Agreement contemplates the personal services of the CONSULTANT and the
CONSULTANT’s employees, and it is recognized by the parties that a substantial inducement to
the CITY for entering into this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and
competence of the CONSULTANT and its employees. Neither this Agreement nor any interest
herein may be assigned by the CONSULTANT without the prior written consent of the CITY.
Nothing herein contained is intended to prevent the CONSULTANT from employing or hiring as
many employees, or subCONSULTANTS, as the CONSULTANT may deem necessary for the
proper and efficient performance of this Agreement. All agreements by CONSULTANT with its
subCONSULTANT(s) shall require the subCONSULTANT to adhere to the applicable terms of
this Agreement.

8. CONTROL. Neither the CITY nor its officers, agents or employees shall have any
control over the conduct of the CONSULTANT or any of the CONSULTANT’s employees except
as herein set forth, and the CONSULTANT expressly agrees not to represent that the
CONSULTANT or the CONSULTANT'’s agents, servants, or employees are in any manner
agents, servants or employees of the CITY, it being understood that the CONSULTANT, its
agents, servants, and employees are as to the CITY wholly independent CONSULTANTSs and
that the CONSULTANT’s obligations to the CITY are solely such as are prescribed by this
Agreement.

9. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW. The CONSULTANT, in the performance
of the services to be provided herein, shall comply with all applicable State and Federal statutes
and regulations, and all applicable ordinances, rules and regulations of the CITY OF LEMON
GROVE, whether now in force or subsequently enacted. The CONSULTANT, and each of its
subCONSULTANTS, shall obtain and maintain a current CITY OF LEMON GROVE business
license prior to and during performance of any work pursuant to this Agreement.

10. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC. The CONSULTANT represents and covenants that it
has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that is legally required
to practice its profession. The CONSULTANT represents and covenants that the
CONSULTANT shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of
this Agreement, any license, permit, or approval which is legally required for the CONSULTANT
to practice its profession. Submittals Required with the Agreement. Failure of the
CONSULTANT to provide the following documentation with the executed agreement will cause
delay in the agreement being executed by the City:

A. Insurance as specified in Section 15 of this agreement;
B. City Business License,

11. STANDARID OF CARE.

A. The CONSULTANT, in performing any services under this Agreement, shall
perform in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members
of the CONSULTANT'’S trade or profession currently practicing under similar conditions and in
similar locations. The CONSULTANT shall take all special precautions necessary to protect the




Attachment B — Exhibit 1

CONSULTANT's employees and members of the public from risk of harm arising out of the
nature of the work and/or the conditions of the work site.

B. Unless disclosed in writing prior to the date of this agreement, the
CONSULTANT warrants to the CITY that it is not now, nor has it for the five (5) years preceding,
been debarred by a governmental agency or involved in debarment, arbitration or litigation
proceedings concerning the CONSULTANT’s professional performance or the furnishing of
materials or services relating thereto.

C. The CONSULTANT is responsible for identifying any unique products,
treatments, processes or materials whose availability is critical to the success of the project the
CONSULTANT has been retained to perform, within the time requirements of the CITY, or,
when no time is specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. Accordingly, unless the
CONSULTANT has notified the CITY otherwise, the CONSULTANT warrants that all products,
materials, processes or treatments identified in the project documents prepared for the CITY are
reasonably commercially available. Any failure by the CONSULTANT to use due diligence
under this sub-paragraph will render the CONSULTANT liable to the CITY for any increased
costs that result from the CITY’s later inability to obtain the specified items or any reasonable
substitute within a price range that allows for project completion in the time frame specified or,
when not specified, then within a commercially reasonable time.

D. City’s Right to Terminate for Default. If the CONSULTANT fails to perform or
adequately perform any obligation required by this agreement, the CONSULTANT’s failure
constitutes a Default. If the CONSULTANT fails to satisfactority cure a Default within ten (10)
calendar days of receiving a written notice from the City specifying the nature of the Default, the
City may immediately cancel and/or terminate this Agreement, and terminate each and every
right of the CONSULTANT, and any person claiming any rights by or through the
CONSULTANT under this Agreement. The rights and remedies of the City enumerated in this
paragraph are cumulative and shall not limit the City’s rights under any other provision of this
Agreement, or otherwise waive or deny any right or remedy, at law or in equity, existing as of
the date of this Agreement or enacted or established at a later date, that may be available to the
City against the CONSULTANT.

12. NON-DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS. The CONSULTANT shall not discriminate
against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, color, ancestry,
religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or medical
condition. The CONSULTANT will take positive action to insure that applicants are employed
without regard to their age, race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status,
national origin, physical handicap, or medical condition. Such action shall include but not be
limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment
advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for
training, including apprenticeship. The CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places
available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by the CITY setting
forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. The CITY may from time to time communicate to
the CONSULTANT certain confidential information to enable the CONSULTANT to effectively
perform the services to be provided herein. The CONSULTANT shall treat all such information
as confidential and shall not disclose any part thereof without the prior written consent of the
CITY. The CONSULTANT shall limit the use and circulation of such information, even within its
own organization, to the extent necessary to perform the services to be provided herein. The
foregoing obligation of this Section 13, however, shall not apply to any part of the information
that (i) has been disclosed in publicly available sources of information; (ii) is, through no fault of
the CONSULTANT, hereafter disclosed in publicly available sources of information; (iii) is
already in the possession of the CONSULTANT without any obligation of confidentiality; (iv) has

-10-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

been or is hereafter rightfully disclosed to the CONSULTANT by a third party, but only to the
extent that the use or disclosure thereof has been or is rightfully authorized by that third party; or
(v) is disclosed according to law or court order.

The CONSULTANT shall not disclose any reports, recommendations, conclusions or
other results of the services or the existence of the subject matter of this Agreement without the
prior written consent of the CITY. In its performance hereunder, the CONSULTANT shall
comply with all legal obligations it may now or hereafter have respecting the information or other
property of any other person, firm or corporation.

CONSULTANT shall be liable to CITY for any damages caused by breach of this
condition, pursuant to the provisions of Section 14.

14. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. The CONSULTANT shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the CITY, and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any
and all claims, demands, costs or liability that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence,
recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, and
subCONSULTANTS in the performance of services under this Agreement. CONSULTANT's
duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for damages for death or bodily
injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole
negligence or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and
employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance
provisions of this Agreement. The CITY AND CONSULTANT expressly agree that any payment,
attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee
under the CITY 's self-administered workers' compensation is included as a loss, expense, or
cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section will survive the expiration or early
termination of this Agreement.

15. INSURANCE. The CONSULTANT, at its sole cost and expense, shall purchase and
maintain, and shall require its subCONSULTANTS, when applicable, to purchase and maintain
throughout the term of this agreement, the following insurance policies:

X A. If checked, Professional Liability Insurance (errors and omissions) with minimum
limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence.

B. Automobile insurance covering all bodily injury and property damage incurred during
the performance of this Agreement, with a minimum coverage of $1,000,000 combined single
limit per accident. Such automobile insurance shall include hired and non-owned vehicles.

C. Comprehensive general liability insurance, with minimum limits of $1,000,000
combined single limit per occurrence, covering all personal injury, bodily injury and property
damage arising out of its operation under this Agreement. Contractual liability shall include
coverage of tort liability of another party to pay for bodily injury or property damage to a third
person or organization. Contractual liability limitation endorsement is not acceptable.

D. Workers’ compensation insurance covering all of CONSULTANT’s employees. The
CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the provisions of the Worker's Compensation Insurance
and Safety Acts of the State of California, the applicable provisions of Division 4 and 5 of the
California Government Code and all amendments thereto; and all similar state or Federal acts
or laws applicable; and shall indemnify, and hold harmless the CITY and its officers, and
employees from and against all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings and
judgments of every nature and description, including reasonable attorney's fees and defense
costs presented, brought or recovered against the CITY or its officers, employees, or

11-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

volunteers, for or on account of any liability under any of said acts which may be incurred by
reason of any work to be performed by the CONSULTANT under this Agreement. That policy
shall provide a minimum of $1,000,000 of employer’s liability coverage, and the CONSULTANT
shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against the City
and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives.

E. The aforesaid policies shall constitute primary insurance as to the CITY, its officers,
employees, and volunteers, so that any other policies held by the CITY shall not contribute to
any loss under said insurance. Said policies shall provide for thirty (30) days prior written notice
to the CITY of cancellation or material change.

F. If any required insurance coverage is provided on a “claims made” rather than
“occurrence” form, the CONSULTANT shall maintain such insurance coverage for three years
after expiration of the term (and any extensions) of this Agreement.

G. Insurance shall be written with only California admitted companies which hold a
current policy holder's alphabetic and financial size category rating of not less than A VIII
according to the current Best’'s Key Rating Guide, or a company equal financial stability that is
approved by the CITY.

H. Deductibles. All deductibles on any policy shall be the responsibility of the
CONSULTANT

I. Specific Provisions Required. Each policy required under this section shall
expressly provide, and an endorsement shall be submitted to the City, that:

1. Said policies, except for the professional liability and worker's compensation
policies, shall name the CITY and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds. The
CITY’s Additional Insured status must be reflected on additional insured endorsement form CG
20 12, or equivalent, which shall be submitted to the CITY.

2. The Policies cannot be canceled, non renewed or materially changed except
after thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice by the CONSULTANT to the CITY by certified
mail, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY except for non-
payment of premium, in which case ten (10) days notice will be provided.

3. This Agreement shall not take effect until certificate(s) or other sufficient proof that
these insurance provisions have been complied with, are filed with and approved by the CITY.
If the CONSULTANT does not keep all of such insurance policies in full force and effect at all
times during the terms of this Agreement, the CITY may elect to treat the failure to maintain the
requisite insurance as a breach of this Agreement and terminate the Agreement as provided
herein.

4. The CONSULTANT may obtain additional insurance not required by this
Agreement.

16. LEGAL FEES. If any party brings a suit or action against the other party arising from
any breach of any of the covenants or agreements or any inaccuracies in any of the
representations and warranties on the part of the other party arising out of this Agreement, then
in that event, the prevailing party in such action or dispute, whether by final judgment or out-of-
court settlement, shall be entitled to have and recover of and from the other party all reasonable
costs and expenses of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

17. MEDIATION/ARBITRATION. If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement,
or the breach thereof, the parties agree first to try, in good faith, to settle the dispute by mutual
negotiation between the principles, and failing that through nonbinding mediation in San Diego,
California, in accordance with the Commercial Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration
Association (the “AAA”). The costs of mediation shall be borne equally by the parties.

If a third part dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any way to the
services provided under this Agreement, upon the City’s request, the CONSULTANT, its agents,

-12-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the dispute or litigation. The
CONSULTANTSs assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing professional consultations,
attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any event related to the dispute
resolution and/or litigation.

18. TERMINATION. A. This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by
the CITY. Termination without cause shall be effective only upon 30-day’s written notice to the
CONSULTANT. During said 30-day period the CONSULTANT shall perform all services in
accordance with this Agreement. The CONSULTANT may terminate this agreement upon thirty
(30) days prior notice in the event of a continuing and material breach by the City of its
obligations under this Agreement including but not limited to payment of invoices.

B. This Agreement may also be terminated immediately by the CITY for cause in the
event of a material breach of this Agreement that is not cured to the City’s satisfaction within a
ten (10) day prior cure period, or material misrepresentation by the CONSULTANT in
connection with the formation of this Agreement or the performance of services, or the failure to
perform services as directed by the CITY.

C. Termination with or without cause shall be effected by delivery of written Notice of
Termination to the CONSULTANT as provided for herein.

D. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished Memoranda Reports, Maps,
Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONSULTANT, whether
paper or electronic, shall immediately become the property of and be delivered to the CITY, and
the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work
satisfactorily completed on such documents and other materials up to the effective date of the
Notice of Termination, not to exceed the amounts payable hereunder, and less any damages
caused the CITY by the CONSULTANT's breach, if any. Thereafter, ownership of said written
material shall vest in the CITY all rights set forth in Section 6.

E. The CITY further reserves the right to immediately terminate this Agreement upon:
(1) the filing of a petition in bankruptcy affecting the CONSULTANT; (2) a reorganization of the
CONSULTANT for the benefit of creditors; or (3) a business reorganization, change in business
name or change in business status of the CONSULTANT.

F. The termination of the services shall be effective upon receipt of the notice by the
CONSULTANT.

19.NOTICES. All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall
be in writing, and shall be personally delivered; or sent by overnight mail (Federal Express or
the like); or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or
sent by ordinary mail, postage prepaid; or telegraphed or cabled; or delivered or sent by telex,
telecopy, facsimile or fax; and shall be deemed received upon the earlier of (i) if personally
delivered, the date of delivery to the address of the person to receive such notice, (ii) if sent by
overnight mail, the business day following its deposit in such overnight mail facility, (iii) if mailed
by registered, certified or ordinary mail, five (5) days (ten (10) days if the address is outside the
State of California) after the date of deposit in a post office, mailbox, mail chute, or other like
facility regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service, (iv) if given by telegraph or
cable, when delivered to the telegraph company with charges prepaid, or (v) if given by telex,
telecopy, facsimile or fax, when sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other
communication delivered or sent as specified above shall be directed to the following persons:

To the CITY: CITY MANAGER
CITY OF LEMON GROVE
3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945-1701

13-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

To the CONSULTANT;

Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice in the manner specified in
this Section. Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed
address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to constitute receipt of the notice,
demand, request or communication sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other
communication sent by cable, telex, telecopy, facsimile or fax must be confirmed within forty-
eight (48) hours by letter mailed or delivered as specified in this Section.

20.CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND POLITICAL REFORM ACT OBLIGATIONS.
During the term of this Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall not perform services of any kind for
any person or entity whose interests conflict in any way with those of the CITY OF LEMON
GROVE. The CONSULTANT also agrees not to specify any product, treatment, process or
material for the project in which the CONSULTANT has a material financial interest, either direct
or indirect, without first notifying the CITY of that fact. The CONSULTANT shall at all times
comply with the terms of the Political Reform Act and the Lemon Grove Conflict of Interest
Code. The CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. The CONSULTANT
represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests that would require it to disqualify
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY.

If the CONSULTANT violates any conflict of interest laws or any of these provisions in this
section, the violation shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement. Further, the
violation subjects the CONSULTANT to liability to the CITY for attorney fees and all damages
sustained as a result of the violation.

[] If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of
the Political Reform Act and the CITY OF LEMON GROVE Conflict of Interest Code.
Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall:

Go to www.fppc.ca.gov

Download the Form 700: Statement of Economic Interests

Completely fill out the form

Submit the form to the Public Works Department with the signed contracts.

O =

The CONSULTANT shall be strictly liable to the CITY for all damages, costs or
expenses the CITY may suffer by virtue of any violation of this Paragraph 21 by the
CONSULTANT.

21.MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

A. Computation of Time Periods. If any date or time period provided for in this
Agreement is or ends on a Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday, then such date
shall automatically be extended until 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time of the next day which is not a
Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday.

-A4-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

B. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute but one and the
same instrument.

C. Captions. Any captions to, or headings of, the sections or subsections of this
Agreement are solely for the convenience of the parties hereto, are not a part of this Agreement,
and shall not be used for the interpretation or determination of the validity of this Agreement or
any provision hereof.

D. No Obligations to Third Parties. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the
execution and delivery of this Agreement shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon, or
obligate any of the parties hereto, to any person or entity other than the parties hereto.

E. Exhibits and Schedules. The Exhibits and Schedules attached hereto are hereby
incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes.

F. Amendment to this Agreement. The terms of this Agreement may not be modified or
amended except by an instrument in writing executed by each of the parties hereto.

G. Waiver. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not
operate as a waiver of any future breach of any such provision or any other provision hereof.

H. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of California.

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations
and communications, oral or written, and contains the entire agreement between the parties as
to the subject matter hereof. No subsequent agreement, representation, or promise made by
either party hereto, or by or to an employee, officer, agent or representative of any party hereto
shall be of any effect unless it is in writing and executed by the party to be bound thereby.

J. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to
the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

K. Construction. The parties acknowledge and agree that (i) each party is of equal
bargaining strength, (ii) each party has actively participated in the drafting, preparation and
negotiation of this Agreement, (iii) each such party has consulted with or has had the
opportunity to consult with its own, independent counsel and such other professional advisors
as such party has deemed appropriate, relative to any and all matters contemplated under this
Agreement, (iv) each party and such party’s counsel and advisors have reviewed this
Agreement, (v) each party has agreed to enter into this Agreement following such review and
the rendering of such advice, and (vi) any rule or construction to the effect that ambiguities are
to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement,
or any portions hereof, or any amendments hereto.

L. Severability. The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this
Agreement shall not render any other provision of this Agreement unenforceable, invalid, or
illegal.

-15-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date
and year first above written.

CITY OF LEMON GROVE GEORGE HILLS COMPANY
{Corporation — signatures of two corporate officers)
(Partnership — one signature)
(Sole proprietorship — one signature)

By: By:

Lydia Romero (Name)

City Manager

(Title) (Title)

(Date) (Date)
(Name)
(Title)
(Date)

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: By:
James Lough (Name)

City Attorney
(Title) (Title)

(Date) (Date)

-16-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Prepared for:

City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Submission to: i
Mike James | General Liability Claims
Public Works Director Handling

and Administration

March 17, 2016

Prepared by:

Susan Legdre
Business Development
Manager

On.behalf of John Chaduica,
CPA MBA, ARM

Chief Executive Officer
George Hills Company N B
3043 Gold Canal Drive
Suite 200

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

f

Professional Claim Services
Established 1954

A7-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

18-

March 17, 2016

City of Lemon Grove

Mike James, Public Works Director
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 81945

Dear Mr. James;

As Chief Executive Officer of George Hills Company, Inc. (George Hilis), | would like to thank
you for the opportunity to submit a proposal for General Liability Claims Handling and
Administration to the City of Lemon Grove (City).

George Hills is a California "C” Corporation, incorporated in 1978. We have provided best
practice claims administration and litigation management services to private and public sector
clients since 1954. Today, George Hills employs 40 experienced claims handling/incident
management professionals, and 14 full-time corporate and support staff employees. We have
seven (7) offices in the State of California and work with over 100 diverse clients, including
counties, cities, school districts, insurance carriers, joint powers authorities, and agencies. Cur
firm's extensive California public entity claims handling history, along with our specific focus on
property and liability third party administration, has resulted in George Hills’ specialized
knowledge of public entity oversight and claims handling needs.

In summary, the City of Lemon Grove has my promise George Hills will place the highest priority
on responsiveness and quality customer service in meeting the City’s unique general liability
administration needs and requirements. George Hills' culture is focused on hiring the best
people and providing them with the support and state-of-the-art tools necessary to deliver
superior service and reports. | have made our service fees as economical as possible without
compromising on talent, effort, or outcomes.

George Hils has all State of California permits, licenses, authorizations, approvals, and
professional credentials necessary to perform services for the City of Lemon Grove. This
proposal shall remain valid for 90 days from the due date of submittal.

Susan Legare, George Hills Business Development Manager, will be your contact throughout
this bid process.

Susan Legare, Business Development Manager

3043 Gold Canal Drive, Suite 200

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

Phone: 916-844-4016 / Email: susan.legare@georgehills.com

Respectfully submitted,
John E. Chaquica, CPA, MBA, ARM

Chief Executive Officer, George Hills Company
Email: john.chaquica@georgehills.com

¥ Clegrge Fitls Comgperney L.
Respanse to Roguest for Praposal City of Lemon Crove



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Organization of Firm

.................................................. PP TUSRUPRPRI £- | 3
AN oo e s Tab 2
Experience . , Tab 3
Seope Of WWOIK ... Tab 4
Quality Control Procedures .........cooviiiiiiiiiiiii i e s Tab5
Reports ...

Fees

Appendices

A. George Hills Decision-Making Report Samples
B. George Hills TPA Experience/Case Studies

Begpanse to Beguest for Proj

-19-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Firre Marme:

Sacramento/Rancho Cordova
Address:

e
24-Hour:

Cwmership: I E3A

p TIumu
M. mx’mqmrw mm 100% of owner
e to negoliate on behalf of Ge

1 I: practice
te the public
m GO M i

liabllity anc

stor and private ins

*I&‘«“t‘v'"r*tw joint pow
I

slcla g, Rancho

A Redding.

nals, and
ancl

wm
Wilorlk U

(A

%

Mmml ‘Vm ME-Hi
andle the tre

George
of our field acd

fills’ call cen W uw 500 wwﬂ and ransla
when bexel,

n Crewrpe Flitls Comperny I,
Response bo Beauest for Proposaf City of L omon Croppe
Kagponse o Roquest for P f ity f (.

-20-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Tab 2

ing and Approach

Statfing

Aostrong diffe u iafor for

the way we as

We Prope

mis" for s

nen Gro ¢ e in dealing with in claim
litigation ag - adjuster's workflow and case loz collaborat
mumw Wﬂ, mm umaﬂy and in 5, as well as ed at the

Ceorg
(D16) ¢

. Chief
hn (”;mw m ﬂ”

T v":m raparry in th fficer at

served as Exec 2 [ mmwr ﬁ“‘w
consultant to ¢ : the
Corporation, serving as /’Wc(

MJH,U\W, h
tte of America

Fills Comppenry Ln.

of Leaon Crrove

Cleoy
Regponse o Roquest for Proposol ¢

-D1-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

.22.

Hills hedicare '
T amento; /"wmmt

mm Nz M

crarent

g umqm

s career |

m» by Mutual Insurance
Dver  th s N Mw tisk
Rendig n ¥ Hence in iitigation
: in the public 5 well as with self-insured
sector Medicare Compliance reguitements and

(L&

=S
B2 5
B O X
E A

COUnts.
ulations
Other: Mr.

&

ignation, & COLA | ation

MANCY
Wan

G, hnlﬂmmm for her
5. Wayne has been
3 ervisory clain
RSAC 3 I Bouthern California,
lwenty-nine Palms, just to name a few.
Jﬁ claims for several CIPA cities, including A
L , Westminster and Yorba Linda W V»/a i
) umu«» amount of professional claims worlk for San Galbriel Walley 2y JPA g
higghly ar with Government Code i and Hm YL
airns handling proc and procedur o joini
‘f M Warren & Cony : has also worked at Hazeligg Risk Man «wmmwlr
o5 MH;A(U W’m o Merth Arner

Orar W“

et industry events anc

KAT
Giuality

Ch

I Cororge Fills Comepeny L,

Bespanse ts Bogeest for Proposal Civy of Lawmn Crope



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

rithly rep
docurme

nte, w b
wan:

e
wedunek

7 anc wri
P Fifth Sumn,
el WMM
fior with :
t Informiation &

Twar e , ﬂ‘“‘um\iu

written

I from t“”wﬂuﬁ“m iz

ar
s and ca

i
e W‘W
m g aut

ining
1 : uiel e of value
Taxperien: ‘Juum “M yw g . pr @l in
ship ﬂumv‘ﬂr e etings ‘w‘lHT w;‘ 4
f i b controls
thiat includs

S
M

¥ Coeoyve FHifls Comparny Lo,

y o

Response o Bogues’ for Propose! eI

23-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

24-

Oiffce Locations and Contact Information

SACRAMENTO

3043 Gold Canal Drive, Suite 200
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670
Phone: (916) 859-4800

Fax: (916) 859-4805

Contact:

Susan Legare

(916) 844-4016

OAKLAND

¢/o HSNO

1330 Broadway, Suite 430
Oakland, CA 94608
Contact:

Tammy Hunt

(916) 233 2544

SAN JOSE

4010 Moorpark, Suite 106
San Jose, CA 95117
Phone: (408) 260-2030
Fax: (408) 260-0154
Contact:

Rodger Hayton

(408) 260-0152

SAN BERNARDINO

275 W. Hospitality Lane, Suite 316
San Bernardino, CA 92408
Phone: (909) 806-4001

Fax: (909) 806-4043

Contact:

Craig Yeary

(909) 806-4184

FAIRFIELD

4830 Business Center Drive, Suite 130
Fairfield, CA 94534

Phone: (707) 419-7500

Fax: (707) 419-7505

Contact:

Chris Carmona

(707) 419-7517

WILDOMAR

Phone: (951) 226-8853
Fax: (909) 806-4001
Contact:

Nancy Wayne

(714) 585-0922

REDDING

PO Box 992600
Redding, CA 96099
Phone: (530) 524-2626
Contact:

Chris Carmona

(707) 419-7517

Kegpanse to Begssest for Prop




Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Jab 3

perience

Overview of Qualifications

¢

Hills Company, Inc. { : Hills) has
drninistration and Jitigation  mar
r since the comp

istricts, joint powears
& mu oIlé

Gieo)

?Um,
main wu
2 with L

by cur
Hients who have

5 been "o
that by a

ice
customized service.

Hi
e nt,

dives

1 client

rate  and
incustry
stared

hold
“jate In
I LHA WA
sation Claim
ublic A

1 Worke
ro(SIAY
(CGMAY;
[ ke
| B

/fy

as weli as a
addition, i &
ted Information
oits
for our
'wﬂ @ feant i
s ane

mation
ith of ¢

Hills ooy
‘ tion R @y mw
affort to mu*”uﬂmm to
Techy “muw W W ‘

2
= .
—
3

place for |
Regulations.

T he las
i rewy muw @
actices workfc

Wihile G
sontinually | i
strong “nawt generation best p

Response o Roquest Jor Pro:

.25.



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

oy

3 quica, CPA, MBA, ARM

i

Restonse 2o Wequest for P

-26-



rendc

1S

Hillily

Attachment B — Exhibit 1

PO Box 276130, Sacramento, CA 95827

Description: Estimated annual new claim volume: 650

Project Start: 1983

Project Status: Current

Steve Page, Risk Manager

(916) 470-6067 pagesth saccounty net

Gounly of Napa
1185 Third 5t |, 8-20, Napa, CA 94559

Description: Administration of County of Napa's lability & property claims. Eslimated annual
new claim volume: 40

Project Start: 1980

Project Status: Current

Kerry John Whitney, Risk Manager

{707y 2534821 | kerry whitneygd countyofnapa org

456 W, Olive Ave  Sunnyvaele, CA 94066

Description: Administration of City of Sunayvale's liability and property ¢laims
Estimated annual new claim volume: 103

Project Start: 1995

Project Status: Current

Anthony Giles, Risk Manager

(408)y-730-7503 I agites@@sunnyvale ca gov

CSRL-BLA — Pool of 218 entities (34 CA counties)
75 lron Point Clrcle, Suite 200, Folsom, CA 85830

Description: A preferred provider for administration of pool's primary liability & property
claims. Estimated annual new claim volume: 300

Project Start: 1997

Project Status: Current

Mike Pott, Chief Claims Officer

{916y 850-7333

mpott@desac-eia,org

2725 ., Rancho Cordova, CA

95670

Description: Administration of Cily of Rancho Cordova's liability and property claims.

Project Start: 2008

Project Status: Current

Mindy Cuppy, CMC

(916) 851-8721 meuppy@cityofranchocordova org

450 Civie Center Plaza,
PO Box 40486, Richmond, CA 94804

Description: General Liability Claims Handling and Administration,

Project Start: 2004

Project Status: Current

Kirn Greer, Risk Manager

I

{510) B20-6E ‘! kim greer@@ci richmond ca us

venue, Sulte 250, West Hills, CA

91307

Description:
Adrministration of CharterSafe lability & property claims, Estimated annual new claim
volurne: 120

Project Starl: 2009

Project Status: Current

Sue Bedard, Risk and Claims Manager

sueBggcommunityRS com;

(818) 429-3474: (818) 708-1570 Shedard@charterSafe net

San Franclseo WSO
1011 Andersen Drive, San Rafael, CA 94801~
5318

Description:
Administration District's iability and property claims Eslimated annual new claim volume:
20" For SFUSD George Hills investigates EPL cases, predominantly EEQC complaints

Project Start: 2005

Project Status: Current

Calhy Bui

{415) 241-6054 buic@sfusd. adu

-27-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

98-

Tab4

Boope of Waorl

es and proce its proprietary
owtlin nt to nots
w‘m Muuw outhned in the Manual in

srpuirements,

Maral i
Jst follow the
cific rule:

swith

job is to inve
on s the Mumdm
on @
oS rved by waorld
aims, and when ww m}m oecur, to reduce the
mw olli It on the knowls
ication arnd rappor

orge Hills requires
IS,

m
pervisor, T 0! llity of the adjuste
s having working lnowle of pending and open files in

AT

ce fhe
t of those claims. €
with all jrv

TEintal f‘ﬁ‘m”w
to ensure ate :: ke i Iudi uELD
nsible for k‘w ac 1
the

inTa ﬂ;» 5

A. Claims Handling

mmv riptly make up a claim fi
5 m\m ine wihich may b
of subimitted cle

as well 2
the City, and

e frorn the
clairm

5 and evaluate the nature and extent of each claim, and ¢
al damages, property 1o stigation expens
ely clairn h: ling followw-

bligh clairm
5, A ﬂmm eXPenses
o with

entation,
ity The ction 2 and suk

IRETTalY

Mm to the insurer and work with the |
the insurer's reporting requirement,  sukim
. of Lemon Grove to the insure

|




Attachment B — Exhibit 1

e Hills will coordinaie e
1T of the MMSES

s i
" e ol

1

o by wiay

lills
seft

by the

B. Litigation

Claimas Handbing Manual ar
all re

> with

ity of

o by the Cily
ey,

Vel 05

ns

| counsel, whi
el recornmendatio

v from i

et pro
v e futhey

ancho
L

v,owdth the o
wen to an au




Attachment B — Exhibit 1

-30-

an conduct a
enr [vic}
Lemon

sk s don

audit of ¢

it Y of Lemon Giove
Tie m ensure ’r?r e irntegrity mr the ac
and will ¢ Mt with the Cit
it of aw Cf ne
nt negotiations within the authority granted by the O
NH secure all appropriate  rebe saals, and other
fille

G, WoLICh

I addition
for the pe

s draven by us to pay benefits
Mills wall provide a  monthly

ions

rds the City of
coount to ensure the integ

hit b conduct @ financial audit

i the trust

D. Data Products

1w proprietary Claims Hmw m " which
s outlined and cor
and procedi
mgwﬂmm ns, and

\V‘MJ‘”” and w

Hills  has M»wﬂmu Bi

Manual
e ‘H i

rly acce repotting,
pwe will continue 1o be

EW of M o

sation a

and yrodific nmatched in Hm, rriar Hm t. Uﬂmm
supported by S "“‘mm

month as
refer to
wihich

md STy wmm each

G

IS e pwww repol m on M
in TMU | oof ¢ IGeE
mw provide our p ity cliernts.

56 run data and required reports for actuarial, auditing, and res

24 hours per day, 7 o

5 el

[

with Systermea, who provides a "hosted environment” utilizing

compliance with reperting
1 of the Medicare, Medi
ts immediately to ol (
ures all nece ry paperwork and docurmentation

g self

reguirements for M\UHM/ ncludin

f)m'u‘

E. Additional Services

L Clvoror J Tidls Comgpoony Ine.
Regponse to Requesy for Proposal

Faowwon Clrope



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

s will

At |

LT

r——with the O

writing, ore
L element of the

Hills wili attend all mee

ity of Lermaon CGir
is by the ity when requesiad,

e and prograrm aucits with City i xd awuditors,

iary of all ¢

City of 1L
Mg e

all cormrmuricatio ignated Clalms

suing to the City of Lemon
eI

Filly Comperny

[ 4 WMW

Regporse ty Bequest Jor Praposad Civy of Lemon Giror

-39



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

covery P

| Sub-Rosa and Fraud Investigations $85 per how

Expanded Subragation Recovery for Public Entities

Total Program Fee 30% of amount collected with a minimum of $250 per claim

Subrogation Recovery Services to include:

Subrogation Recovery Cliant Set-Up
Meet with client and review organization structure ordinances
Coordinalion meeting with Department Heads o esteblish rofe and contact information
Development and review of Cuslomized Policy and Procedures for client and staff
Review reparting requirements/implement Standeardized Forms

Subrogation Recovery Claim Handling Services
Set up claim file on receipt of incident; maintain claim file on each polentialiactual incident reported
Assess and evaluale the nalure and extent of each claim
Prepare proofs of loss statement and forward (o appropriate party
Initiate setiferent discussion wilh appropriate parly through resolution
Frovide an account manager and lead subrogation adjuster

Subrogation Recovery Reports

Weekly/Quarterly—showing number of cases, total len amounts pending and total recavery obtained

Metrics™ Business Intelligence Reports with Executive In-Person Debriefs
| "Lessons Learned" Round Tables for Public Entity Risk Management Tearms

No charge

No charge

Hive
$ wide hig
risk control decisi
will m mﬂu Um m mUmw\W identify «
oppert i et

oregy &
a for optirmum me of \mruwm
ting, The City of Lemaon
1M performance ( ‘ ‘ﬂ m
s are intuitive with easy-to-read ¢

H ear-
hily tar
P

Jills’ ‘Lesgsons |

arpect” Found Talbie

rict ta

Wﬁ wMWU \\W‘;wﬂ“m learned”

i rou
eI *th d i i

H\ P ‘wm\“)ﬂ
d ona client
control r

s 7oL
i how to

Ll fos
1is M SLsec oy Lse

ol \m
rika ne

7 Cleonge Hills Company Lne,

Regpons to Begress fos Proposal City of Lemon Grove



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

dovdowh v K Yt

Guality Control Procedur

: FECOnz
chnology to prov

orge Hils' Fr
m\?}””ﬂ“‘y" ‘
bt @ i
ement and

W‘ Hills
irnuen |
vmuw

vy

ey er res urw

B 0
Ci W of Lemo

in our firm's Claims Frocedures Manuwal
Ak s ft followed in accordance with the specific
hay are tracked per adjuster, par clairm,

prietary best practice
forth pelicies and pr
ndd reguirements of our ¢

George Hills
1eviews by

o ensure 2 data in adjuster diares
sible for : unit, and the Account
at different times, including whe FLLS A
‘ y way of that loss run s acour

ity of Lermion Gr )
ior they

nt Mm

view of | JE
sournentation of comminica ‘
1 y,«“M‘W”MM the unt M) r il Wﬂ[um and follow through
aceolint

fion o Mw %

21 wﬂww W partics. Mufﬂ a
with the adjus ﬁm

19 Crewnpe FLitls Congperny Le,

Response o Riquest for P wvwww My of Lawean Crore

Creorpe Hilly

-33-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

-34-

® duced overall p
w duced litigated £

o FReduc

Ten (10) fi
be miss

lairng-
rhance

Acoount t
analyze data accouracy, compare the
settlerment,

active, hi
nge claims

arng rieat monthly regarding the "Watch
ghts, or cha

A
culture and pr
TIVE PV I
loss, and the
o
trans
way. As m
olici

wworge Hills, "service” is the operative w Fis the foundation of our fir

d tearn with our 5

g
(56 ills" e
tioning them into a trusted s

2o @arlier in this

nology and re
in @ time

ntrel " stop

]
actice,  hig —gill of

> Mills” highly-rmonitored, guality-focu

I Within one (1) busin
receipt of the clain as
will I ‘
investigation wil

s claims file

and a claim

begin.

s days of receipt of assignment, all files will be created and

Within twe (2) busin
i sterr,

and all necessary data will be input into the claims information sy

e is reviewed on a

review of claim withir fiv
is tirmely and sufficlant, T
set forth 1 the Califo

4. The :
chays and notifies the entity whether th
clairn complies with the reporting reguire

Code,

(8] busi)
s confirms the
a Government

irr
ents

b0
18

Hidls Compenry e,
sy af Lemow Grove

Regponse to Beguess for Propos



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

rve revisions, and file clsin

5 will be promptly and accu
ed and within the

Ml payment, re

to the entity in the mornthly claims status reports 1f regues
database.

t autt

o from the antity in the manner pre

ribed by

eritity

arity is obtain

st to the claimant within five (8) business days of
rel

upervisor will maintzin

ieww andior and

will e comipris

2l of the categories listed in

roorthly  claim  stelus reports  with  detailed
ified; additional categories will be added at the entity's

Cieprge Hitls Conpeey Do,

af Lamron Crrove

Response vo Beqness for Propasef €

-35-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

by providing T
5. George

s learned and gu

client in pdf, U or jpeg format, and all
I I MH\“ N u“wmmw“w quarte

vw arter, iscal year), Our reporting rmodule
Tﬂw alility m adjw bthe criteria on a report ensures thal a client
‘ There is no need to filter out unwanted information.
at no exira cost. Pl
sted below, Wy

WWA&UJHWWWMM B in “muw i1 m SErmp
discuss other reports needed for the W ity mr L

# ol Register Report
or multiple payments on e claion, is a payment hansaction record For

v Banmp mew M’MW ater e, ,\uwm

Frowic h claim with o nt buckets of payrment

res
M,
L
L3
L
® T Mw Metrics ™ Rep

ovide additional informeti

of Lernon Grove we §

of Leman Gro wnﬂ“mw X eIy

«fﬂ\\mwmg real-time ¢ decision-n \mﬂw w d
§ cand modification abiities to meet th

unrratched T

the 1 i

ctly at an y
ot

20 [

Flifts Camppaniy D,

Regpanae fo Reguest for Proposel

of Lemon Growe

-36-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

A

l

in the uniikely event of a catastrophe, the cap will require further negoliation

Mileage

Pot Hole Claims-—flat fee unless referred to Small Claims Court, af which point hourly
fees will be charged

Photo Expenses

Photo Copy Expense

Transcriptions of Recorded Staterments
Monthly Loss Run Reporting

Data Processing

1089 Preparation

iy [hedex

[ iy fOT iy |
\mn\\\mwn\\\\u\\wwmuuummuunnmmuuuwuumuuuuuuum‘uwww\uu;ummmmmwmwww

\J““\Lﬂummmmm I

Annual Administration Fee
Adrministration
Data Management
Account Managermen
Ctlaim Repotting (online, fax, telephone)
Detaited Annual *Stewsardship Report”
Electronic Delivery of Monthly Loss Feturn

One Time Data Conversion/Program Transition Charge
Cost varies based on current system used, amount of open claims, efc

HNHWWWM K ‘ I
i

Sub-Rosa and Frawd Investigations

Expanded Subrogation Recovery for Public Entities

Subrogation Recovery Semvices to include:
Subrogation Recovery Clienl Set-Up
Meet with client and review organizalion structure ordinances
Coordination meeting with Department Heads 1o establish role and comtact information
Development and review of Customized Policy and Procedures for client and staff
Review repor fing requirements/implernent Standardized Forms
Subrogation Recovery Claim Handling Services
Set up claim file on receipt of incident; maintain claim file on each polentialfactual incident reporled
Assess and evaluale the nature and exlent of each claim
Prepare proofs of loss statemenl and forward lo appropriale party
Initiate setflement discussion with appropriate party through resolution
Provide an account manager and lead subrogalion adjusier
Subrogation Recovery Reporls
Weelkly/Quariterly-—showing number of cases, lotal lien amounts pending and tolal recovery oblained

iMetrics™ Business Intelligence Reports with Executive In-Person Debriefs
‘Lassons Learned” Round Tables for Public Entity Risk Managsmen Teams

Claim Sewvices-—including office/overhead expenses Capped at $15,000 annually

50 55 per mile (IRS Approved)

Total Program Fee 30% of armount collected with a minfmurm of 3250 per claim

fma‘nmmmm

MY
$83 per hour

excluding expenses

%225 flat fos

$2 00 per pholo
0 25 per page
$3.50 per page
Included
Included
Included

$15

included
included
Frseafishoct
frdodied
Indijchgied.

Frststuiidiged
Irwilusidisny

Estirnated $1,000
Capped al $1.500

$85 per hour

No charge

No phargs

o

91 (frw“r‘)’v

ilds Comperny L.

Respomse 1o Roquest for Propossl City of Lemon Growe

-37-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Appendix B Ge

endix A: George Hills D
orge Hills TRA Lxperence/Expertise

Tab 8

Appendices

igion-Making Repor
Brief C

samples
s Study Examples

-38-

Clonge Flitls Consperny Due.
Begpanse o Reguest fov Proposal City of Lemon Crove



Provides individual or multiple payments on a claim; is a payment transaction record for

Gifidists___ Check Register

[T b

Aoriats i et L

Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Appendix A

George Hills Report Sample 1

Sample Check Register Report

each claim.

Ao bt PR e g

Py

Fuggs 4 9 4

s gt

S I
T
G ol Dawrar anin) LI FRCR T 14,1564 11
£
) aiEx} Wlal, it LA, BOAR T
e i
2058 Twdh ks i EURITTRY e
u, SR
FaEt] [ aE) B oy ity i NN GrL
BN 4
Bl 6 RRCTTEA A Progse i DT Paviert  Vaiens R EEgvELav)
R 14 Fergi e S B NREA R £ A P
AT
R Tk By i LA S 1cida) fi, it p
B Sehudir b it b Ky RIS B LS LA B
ke g 5 OF LI Tiakih Ao, W LR 08| D

5 i o K . 3o

Tatnl Mumber of Checks: §

[

Tobe) Ao

Gl 464 06

sonse 1o Roguest fi

-30-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

George Hills Report Sample 2

Sample Claim Register Report

Provides multi-line information for each claim with different "buckets” of
payments and reserves broken out for optimum detail.

CATY Fagpars ke ot of (14 ) 51

i 1t
i 2ol it o1 I ;
i i
IEE
a4 ‘
50 £ 64

o) N

$04G
G187 63
.06

o

cpt 53,000

24 Cleorge Hills Compongy Ln.

sose fo Regest for Propasal Ciy of Lewon Growe

-40-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

George Hills Report Sample 3
Sample Transaction Register Report

Provides all payment within a specific time period for a claim.

T o £ WA Tt Loy Fgalteg w6
B i 41 D040k oA B W PN
e et

LT g o D v, Zfthen s Wy b i P e oy Mo Gt I Toma b I Tobul Bulk Febil by Py Bage
o il sz o Pt o Mo Bl

e AT

T e,

e WA e i
ity AN Sk i it
B2 VWO [Es o {
p Goecens 5 6
465 [ e
WA e s
] GateE D e 0t 0.
Vot
i 3 [
o Tkl P T
e Folait, d L0 Vi 50

Fiuw gy OO

Companny I,
Rogpose to Request for Proposal City of Lemon Growe

-41-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

o, -

eoroye Hills Fegport

Sample Diary Report

Provides all work completed and/or in process of being completed on a claim

Diaries
Dt Dbt bovinen o inhier i sl lwsesh 0 3oy, [hary Type aslofpst Comnphoten et Closed Dele Mgy
IR ol iy Wiy, Vi iy LR C e S )
o s
[aET] E i, Tk
k L) Vi, i
e
fiodta il ik Bieris, Py b Wit etn oo s o o [
S ey e ey
e}
Y 1 B BT Ly A oo i Fl sy
ik
Ifimerr P § of | WS g

aise fo Rgs

42



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Gieorge Hills Report Samiple §

PRELIMINARY INITIAL PROPERTY REPORT SAMPLE (WITHIN 72 HOURS)

Date

To

RE: Client:
Claimant:

Date of Loss:

Client File:

George Hills File: George Hills000
This is our initial and concluding report in fegard to this injury claim,
LOCATION:

TYPE OF
LOSS

ASSIGNMENT: We were advised of this loss when the claimant filed a timely and
sufficient claim.

INVESTIGATION: We received this claim on XXXXX. The claim was/was not timely
and sufficient and why.

ESTIMATE:

LIABILITY STATEMENTS:

SUBROGATION:

SUMMARY:

COMMENT: This will conclude our investigation of this file. We will place this matter on
an extended diary until advised to close.

Sincerely,

GEORGE HILLS COMPANY, INC.
Sr. Claims Adjuster

27 Cleonge Fifls Compenny Ln.

Response to Regnest for Proposald City of Lamon Grove
i i . Wl

-43-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

-44-

Gieorge Hills Report Sample 6

PRELIMINARY PROPERTY FULL CAPTIONED REPORT Sample (Within 30 Days)

Date VIA E-MAIL
To:
RE: Client: Insurance Company
Claim #: XXX
Insured: XXXXXX, CA
Date of Loss: Early March, 2013

George Hills File: XXX

This is our invesligalive report on this claim.

LOCATION: | XXXXX, CA

LOSS

TYPE OF Automobile impact into corner of old service station,

ASSIGNMENT:
INVESTIGATION:
SCOPE:

BACK STORAGE ROOM:
SALES OFFICE:

ROOF:

EXTERIOR:

GENERAL:
ESTIMATION: We computed the estimate in Xactimate.
LIABILITY:
SUBROGATION:
SUMMARY:

CONMMENT: We thank you for this assignment and the opportunity to assist you in this

loss.

Sincerely,

GEORGE HILLS COMPANY, INC.
Sr. Claims Adjuster

Respanse tv Bequest for Prap

it 1 ;“W);:‘;"W‘ﬁiﬁj’ Do,

uf Lemon Crope



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

George Mills iMetrics ™ Raports-—&ample 1

SAMPLE CLIENT
Claim Frequency by Flscal Year
7/1/2006-3/31/2012
Asof 4/1/2012

Ciewyge FHills Company Lne.
Rogponse to Request for Praposol City of Lenraw Grove

45



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

George Hills iMetrics™ Reports-—Sample 2

SAMPLE CLIENT

Total Incurred by Fiscal Year
7/1/2006-3/31/2012

2s of 4172012
il N0, L0t
43,500,000

§3,000,000

47,500,000

S2000,000 -

41,500,000

S1ooo,oon ¢

‘
i
g

500,000

I
WOR200  2007/200 2008200 20000201 | 2010/201
! # B v i ) 1 . B
a1 pgal ST 92219074 SHWAD GHAZKAS | SLATTONT A%
lespenses  s2.514 1046 b o 50 59

Dndemmily  SBABAGG | $1,604,577  SBEMOLG | S302,520 G2 7P0.827 4175001

0 O

Regponse Ju Reauest for Prop

-46-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

52,500,000

52,7

5 L, AR, UG

5L

SAMPLE CLIENT
Total Incurred by Members
7/1/2006-3/31/2012
s of 4/1/2012

4158, 0

0 L

3 G, BEY
i

/N

I § / %M

/

W sttt iy
“"f&{’ﬁ"‘:; @» W Wﬁ;ﬂyﬁ o M‘
o ‘w‘{ﬁg qﬁ” u’“ o

sworge Hills iMetrics™ Feports

T 51BN,

1 /9% Sl 705
i !

; il
[ (4‘

1 d

/
/ |

A -

W W & mﬁ“ ,,y/”
WMW e ﬂ,"a"" MZ;

%}M/"” p
W‘ p?"w‘
v

i

4
s

-47-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

R

54,000,000

43,500,000 -
o

63,000,000

S, S0, 600

B8, SO0 O00 - -

G000, 00

Gieorge Hilks iletrics ™ Re porbs-—--Samphe 4

SAMPLE CLIENT !
Total Incure ed by Deparbnents
7/1/2006-3/31/2012
As of 4/1/2012

s2,000,000 7

i,

///
) 5178 34
i . w W " (M]‘f TP
EEEREND:
& N3

BEH0HN -

Coeorge Fidlls Congperny .
Respomse to Foquest for Proposd ity of Leowson Girowe



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Appendix B,

rge Hills Case Study Examples

Geoww H z/ /s

‘‘‘‘‘ S M P AL

Claims and JPA Managemeni Services

George Hills TPA Experience8 Expertise = Powerful Client RC| and Satisfaction
George Hills Goal—Protect Client Assets with Insight and Influence

At George Hills, we are all committed to excellence, and we focus on returning measurable
bottorn-line value to our clients through service, innovation, and industry experience. We feel
privileged to be a central component of our clients’ integrated liability claims programs, helping
them to reduce the number of claims and claims paid amounts. George Hills’ philosophy in
handling claims is values-based, ethical, and transparent. In short, our focus is finding out if we
owe on a claim. If we do, find out how much and pay it, If we do not, fight hard through trial. This
philosophy pays dividends in the long-run as payment of nuisance or unmeritorious claims
typically lead to more of the same. We take a hard stand on claims with no merit. For over six
decades, George Hills’ expertise and consultative, hands-on approach have been a winning
combination, delivering powerful client results and satisfaction. We are proud to share below
several George Hills client success stories—and we are prouder still of the professional and
trusted role we played in helping our clients achieve favorable outcomes.

Case #1

“George Hills’ files “speak for themselves” with orderly, chronologically-managed reports and
documentation, including Plans of Action (PAOs) and updated captioned reports, allowing us fo
clearly see the point at which ‘enough information is enough’ to base a conclusion.”

Facts:

A lawsuit resulted in Northern California because of an accident at an intersection between a
county senior construction inspector (defendant) and a private citizen (plaintiff). The defendant
was stopped in the “number three" lane behind the plaintiff. The traffic signal turned green and
the defendant started to proceed forward. The plaintiff was still stopped. The defendant rear
ended the plaintiff’'s vehicle. The County accepted 100% liability in this case as their driver failed
to proceed forward only when it was reasonably safe to do so and rear ended the plaintiff.

George Hills Adjustors—Protect Client Assets with Unmatched Insight, Influence, and
integrity

George Hills' adjustors acted swiftly and discovered that there was no damage to the
defendant's vehicle and minor damage to the plaintiff's vehicle. It was also verified that the

74 Coownge L ills Comperny e,
Regponse to Bequest for Proposl City of Lemon Cirove

-49-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

-50-

plaintiff suffered low impact injuries to her neck, lower back, and left leg. Her damages included
chiropractic treatment of $4,640 and MRI expense of $2,305.50 for a total pre-surgery amount
of §6,945.50. The plaintiff's miscellaneous out of pocket expenses were $261.69 for total special
damages of $7,207.19. She had no loss of earnings claim. George Hills' adjustors evaluated
this case and accepted the damages with a total settlement range of $14,000 to $21,000. The
plaintiff's attorney presented a settlerment demand of $556,575.50—which was based on an
alleged back surgery and total specials of $78,100.

George Hills’ experienced adjustors were not convinced the plaintiff needed surgery as their
investigative work revealed she had been involved in two prior accidents and was claiming loss
of earnings due to surgery. Further, George Hills' IME report discovered the alleged surgery
was no more than an injection procedure—there was no incision. Also revealed through George
Hills' adjustor diligence: Multiple insurance companies and the FBI were concurrently involved in
an investigation and lawsuit of the plaintiff’s’ surgeon'—i.e., a potential surgeon scam operation.

George Hills' biomechanical expert determined the accident between the plaintiff and defendant
at the intersection was at an impact speed of 10 MPH—enough for a Delta 5, sufficient enough
for neck strain but not enough for disc disruption, which allegedly resulted in herniation and
protrusion.

The arbitration result was an award of $15,000 and the plaintiff rejected it. At mediation the
demand was $500,000 and George Hills’ initial offer was $11,000. The plaintiffs counter
demand was $150,000 & George Hills' final offer was $12,500.

At the Mandatory Settlement Conference, the plaintiff's new demand was $250,000. George
Hills advised the mediator we were ready to go to trial in five weeks. George Hills’ only offer to
settle the case and avoid the trial was $20,000. The plaintiff countered at $25,000. George Hills
held firm with our only offer which was finally accepted. The property damage claim was settled
with the Insurance Company for $4,273.16.

Case #2

“A George Hills’ claim adjustor's job is to investigate, document, evaluate, negotiate, and settle
claims. In order to effectively do so, each adjustor must handle every claim with a strategy, or
POA.”

Facts:

A California County’s snowplough engaged in snow removal operations on a winding foothills
road lost traction in a curve to the right, went over the centerline and collided with an oncoming
Ford Expedition. The Ford spun counter-clockwise off the curve and hit a tree with its right rear.
The husband and wife occupants of the Ford came up with neck and upper extremity
complaints. The wife eventually had a three level cervical disc replacement, the husband a
single level cervical disc replacement and bilateral wrist surgeries. All of the surgical procedures
were financed by Medfin, even though each plaintiff had their own health insurance
policy. Medical specials between the two plaintiffs were claimed to be approximately $370,000,
based on the payments Medfin made and the liens it held in that amount. The husband was no
longer able to do his telephone company splicing work because of his wrist injury and a wage
loss of up to $805,000 was asserted.

S Crevpge FLitls Comppeny T
Besponse to Roqnest for Proposal City of Lomon Cirore



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

George Hills Adjustors—Protect Client Assets with Unmatched Insight, Influence, and
Integrity

George Hills helped the County defend this lawsuit on two fronts. We denied liability on the
basis that:

1. The snowplough operator was meeting the standard of care and was, therefore, not
negligent

2. The medical specials were artificially inflated

3. The County should be fiable only for medical specials allowabie under the
Hanif/Nishihama rules

On the second front, our retained medical biling expert "reverse-engineered” the billings and
estimated what would be allowed by most carriers, subject to reimbursement per
Hanif/Nishihama. This came to be 25% of what was billed.

George Hills’ adjustors strongly asserted the provisions of Government Code Section 985,
which provides for a post-verdict court hearing to determine, in the Court's discretion, the extent
to which medical liens should be reimbursed. The president of Medfin was present at the
mediation where the case settled for $650,000 against an initial demand of $2,000,000. Both
Medfin and the plaintiffs’' attorneys made significant concessions in order to settle the case.

Case #3

“George Hills has been providing best practice liability and property claims administration and
litigation management services to the public and private sector since 1954.”

Facts:

A claimant was stopped by the CHP for speeding in California County, but told by the CHP
Officer he was being arrested for another County Court FTA—for an unpaid 1995 traffic ticket.
He was arrested. Claimant subsequently secured documentation from the Court that he had
paid his 1995 traffic ticket in a timely manner. As a law enforcement trainer, he wanted
compensation for improper arrest and imprisonment and compensation for future damages, as
the arrest reflected on his Department of Justice (DOJ) record and could affect his career.

George Hills Adjustors—Protect Client Assets with Unmatched Insight, Influence, and
Integrity

Working jointly and diligently with the County Counsel’s Office, George Hills helped accomplish
the difficult feat of getting the arrest itself off of the claimant's DOJ record and the claim resolved
with no monetary payment.

Case #4

“All George Hilis public entity adjustors have extensive knowledge on current California
Government Codes and Legislation having direct effect on our client base.”

Facts:

Regpunar fo Baguest for Prog

-51-



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

_52-

George Hills had a case that involved “free standing condominiums”—legally described and
marketed as “condominiums.” Our client was an insurer of primarily artisan subcontractors, and
their policy contained an exclusion which precluded coverage for any work performed by an
insured on a condominium project. Coverage was denied to the insured and a default judgment
of $2,000,000 was later entered against the insured. Following the resolution of the case, the
project developer sued our client in an effort to collect on the judgment.

George Hills Adjustors—Protect Client Assets with Unmatched Insight, Influence, and
Integrity

George Hills' construction defect and construction liability TPA team worked with our client’s
counsel as the developer alleged that even though the homes were sold and marketed as
condominiums due to density requirements, that the homes were in fact single family homes.

The developer argued that that condominium exclusion was ambiguous in that it did not define a
condominium. The trial court held that the statutory definition of a condominium includes free
standing structures and that the exclusion was not ambiguous. The appellate court upheld the
trial court decision.

Important to note: This legal decision was recently published as “citable case law,” concluding it
was a good case law for the insurance community in that it clarifies the intent of the exclusion is
to exclude all condominiums regardiess as to how structured.

el Coeprpe F7, L,

&, b3 P i T
Response to Reguest for Proposal iy o



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

afbesroee,

e rib g

W weol be hrorno

George Hills

COMPANY

Claiss wid P Munagement Servioe

Respanse o Bevest fior P

-53-



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

item No. _1.G
Mtg. Date _April 19, 2016
Dept. Development Service Department :

Item Title: Code Enforcement Hearing Officers Recruitment

Staff Contact: Paolo Romero, Code Enforcement Officer
David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation:

Appoint the three candidates to the Code Enforcement Hearing Officer Appeals Panel.

Item Summary:

On March 1, 2016, the City Council authorized staff to conduct a recruitment of hearing officers for
code enforcement citation appeal hearings. The City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code (LGMC)
Chapter 1.24 provides the authority to issue administrative citations for violations of the City
municipal code. A recipient of an administrative citation may appeal the violation or whether he or
she is the Responsible Person for the violation. The appeal is required to be heard by a hearing
officer appointed by the City Council and chosen at random from a panel of three to six appeal
hearing officers. Staff requests that the City Council review the three applications herein and

appoint hearing officers. |

At the last City Council meeting, this matter was referred back to staff to consult with the City
Attorney about the possibility of a conflict of interest arising out of the potential appointment of a
current School Board member as a Hearing Officer. Staff has consulted with the City Attorney and
he does not see a significant issue arising out of the appointment of a sitting School Board member
as a Hearing Officer.

Fiscal Impact:
$75.00 Per Administrative Citation Hearing

Environmental Review:
X! Not subject to review [ ] Negative Declaration
[] Categorical Exemption, Section . [] Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

Xl None [ ] Newsletter article ] Notice to property owners within 300 ft.
] Notice published in local newspaper [ ] Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A. Staff Report C. Administrative Citation Manual

B. Applications



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT

Item No. _1.G
Mtg. Date _ April 19, 2016
Item Title: Code Enforcement Hearing Officers Recruitment

Staff Contact: Paolo Romero, Code Enforcement Officer
David De Vries, Development Services Director

Discussion:

On March 1, 2016, the City Council authorized staff to conduct a recruitment of hearing
officers for code enforcement citation appeal hearings. The City of Lemon Grove Municipal
Code (LGMC) Chapter 1.24 provides the authority to issue administrative citations for
violations of the municipal code. The LGMC provides for escalating fines and late payment
penalties for noncompliance and eventually, property liens when the fines and penalties
exceed $2,000. A recipient of an administrative citation may contest the violation or
whether he or she is the Responsible Person for the violation. The City Council may fill a
panel of no less than three and no more than six code enforcement citation appeal hearing
officers from a list of candidates provided by staff. Currently, there is only one appeal
hearing officer authorized by Council. Staff requests that the City Council review the
attached applications and appoint the three applicants as hearing officers. The City
Manager will then select a hearing officer at random from the panel of hearing officers
selected by City Council for an administrative citation hearing.

At the last City Council meeting, this matter was referred back to staff to consult with the
City Attorney about the possibility of a conflict of interest arising out of the potential
appointment of a current School Board member as a Hearing Officer. Staff has consulted
with the City Attorney and he does not see a significant issue arising out of the appointment
of a sitting School Board member as a Hearing Officer.

The City Attorney considered two issues. First, is the Hearing Office an incompatible office
with the office of a School Board member? Second, is there a conflict or due process
problem in a Hearing Officer holding an office on the School Board?

While the Offices of City Council and School Board are incompatible and no person can
hold both, the Hearing Officer position does not have the same conflicts. Code
enforcement matters relate to City code issues and seldom intersect with School Board
jurisdiction. They are subject to appeal to the City Council on city code issues only, not on
school board jurisdictional issues. Overall, school issues seldom, if ever, intersect with
code issues. A City Hearing Officer is not an incompatible office with the office of a School
Board member.

On the conflict issue, the School Board member would be subject to the same conflict of
interest rules as any other appointed Hearing Officer. It is possible that the School District
will be involved in a code matter. However, the same could be true of any other
appointee’s job, neighborhood, residence or church involvement. In these rare cases, the
Hearing Officer with a conflict would be removed from the rotation for that matter. The most
likely conflict will be if the Hearing Officer either is related to a party or the alleged violation

3.



Attachment A

is in their neighborhood. Disqualification is the option since every appointee who lives in
Lemon Grove will have that possibility.

Finally, the conflict issue may raise a due process issue where potential bias may require
that a Hearing Officer recuse themselves. School Board membership is no more an
impediment than other occupations. For instance, an EDCO employee would be
disqualified from hearing a case involved alleged scavenging of recyclables. However, they
could hear other code matters that do not provide a benefit to their employer. The School
does not present different types of challenges than other occupations of local residents
applying to be a Hearing Officer.

Reauirements for Code Enforcement Hearing Officers

A hearing officer presides over citation hearings, reviews evidence, and makes an unbiased
judgment. A candidate is not required to be a resident of Lemon Grove and the distance in
which the candidate resides may be a consideration factor in determining his or her ability
to attend appeal hearings. A candidate must be able to conduct a hearing, analyze the
City’'s municipal code, weigh evidence and make unbiased judgments based on evidence
and testimony presented. A candidate must possess effective verbal and written
communication skills. A candidate may not have been issued a code enforcement citation
with a fine for a period of eighteen (18) months from the time of applying for a hearing
officer position. In the event a hearing officer is issued an administrative citation with a fine
while serving a term, he or she shall be disqualified as a hearing officer. Lastly, a candidate
may not be a full or part-time employee of the City of Lemon Grove (including paid
committee or commission members).

Hearing Officer Service Term

The term of the hearing officer is no more than three years. However, the Council may re-
appoint a hearing officer through this current selection process. To create an appropriate
conclusion of terms, the Council may decide to periodically, on a case-by-case basis, to
reduce the length of a term to two years to create staggered terms on the hearing officer
panel.

Hearing Officer Compensation

A hearing officer is compensated $75 per appeal hearing. Appeal hearings include, but are
not limited to, all appeals consolidated into a single hearing and any subsequent
continuance or future dates until a final determination is rendered by the hearing officer.
The compensation amount is for travel, preparation time, conducting the hearing, and
preparing the written decision. There will be no additional payment in the event the hearing
officer is requested to testify at a court proceeding. In the event the hearing is canceled
after the Notice of Hearing has been established, the hearing officer will be compensated
$40. In the event the hearing officer is disqualified or recuses himself/herself, no
compensation shall be paid.

Conflicts of Interest

Hearing officers are required to disqualify themselves from serving as the hearing officer for
a particular case if they have a personal or business relationship or any other type of
relations, with any of the involved parties which might cause them to have a conflict of
interest, bias or prejudice in regards to the case to be heard. In the event that the hearing
officer believes that a conflict of interest does not exist but might be perceived, he or she is
required to disclose to both the City and the appealing party the nature of the relationship



that might cause such a perception at least eight (8) days prior to the hearing date. Either
of the parties may then request that a new hearing officer be selected, provided that such
request is made known to the hearing officer within two (2) business days of such
notification.

In the event that the hearing officer does not disqualify herself/himself or does not
announce a relationship that might be perceived as a potential conflict of interest and either
party believes that a conflict of interest may exist, that party may request of the City
Manager that a different hearing officer be selected, provided such request is made within
five (5) days of the hearing date. The City Manager will determine whether or not to take
such action based on the evidence presented of a relationship, prejudice or bias that might
impede the hearing officer’s ability to provide a fair hearing. Failure to disclose a conflict of
interest as defined herein may result in the termination of the hearing officer’s participation
on the panel.

Response to Recruitment

The City received three applications and the candidates are listed below. The hearing
officer recruitment was advertised through news flash updates on the City’s website
homepage and City's code enforcement webpage, the City's Facebook and Twitter
accounts, e-mail list serve notifications to the Development Services Department list and
City press release list and a press release notification to local news agencies. Staff also
reached out to past hearing officers to gauge their interests. A one page application was
issued and the form asks applicants to provide information about work and community
experience (including volunteer activities and experience or special knowledge). The
completed applications are attached (Attachment B).

Candidates

Franco Del Rosario
Katie Dexter
Anthony Jemison

Recommendation

Appoint the three candidates to the Code Enforcement Hearing Officer Appeals Panel.



Attachment B

APPLICATION FOR CODE ENFORCEMENT
HEARING OFFICER

CONTACT INFORMATION

Name: Franco Del Rosario Home Address:

Phone: Email Address

WORK & COMMUNITY EXPERIENCE
Retired San Diego County Sheriff Title: Retired Deputy Sheriff

Employer:

Statement of Occupational Experience: | worked for the City of Lemon Grove as a Motorcycle

[Traific as Deputy as well as the School DARE Officer at the Lemon Grave School

District. | honorably retired with 28 Years of Service from the San Diego County

Sheriff's Department in 2009.

List any past or current community or public service appointments with dates served: | worked in

Lemon Grove from 1989 to 1999. Motorcycle Deputy, Traffic Investigator,
Accident Reconstructionist, DARE Officer, and Safety Patrol Officer.

What experience or special knowledge can you bring as a Code Enforcement Hearing Officer?
| have represented the Sheriff's Department and the City of Lemon Grove in over

thousands of cases involving traffic citations, municipal code violations, and accident

investigations. My duties required me to know and interpret/enforce codes, statues,

and laws of the State of California, County of San Diego, and the City of Lemon Grove.

PERSONS HOLDING THIS POSITION ARE REQUIRED TO FILE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLITICAL REFORM ACT AND THE CITY OF
LEMON GROVE CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE.

pmm— T Y

03/15/2016

P R P S R AR e - Lo e

Signature: Date:




Attachment B

APPLICATION FOR CODE ENFORCEMENT
HEARING OFFICER

GONTACT INFORMATION

Mt ﬁ{% MM,W/ g Home Address:

Phone: ., . , — Email Address:lfm'“”’ Lot
WORK & COMMUNITY EXPERIENCE
Employer: T L /"‘MM et 4/ 17 SO T /
Staterment of Oeeupationst Experienss:
/ 4r — 3,;;»«* v plar (& CASA
"/ﬁ“i}j; ~Sams //‘/ w - £t Clevk
Kol - e Jlor MMM e - e / M,Zaﬁi”

Ll any past or current comminity or mblm wrwm e

A OO~ ﬂ,«mm s W{NW M»M”/Jﬁﬁ Pt/ Mﬁwm A
ﬂ’“/“"? /ffv L& ﬁﬂ/’?ﬂw”‘i 4 AM” (”/’”MNM{‘”\’E‘*"W

Seredom stita /x;fm;f Ozl bt s

o : Ju an |

7 VM .«‘«:‘/ﬂ/m /? /:’ 0L dF 1My //@w/w 7 W) a;f,»r(mvh a4 A/
SHale clelesnrs— dlads iy Mwi fwm’%f vz 7 7,
/M.v/ﬂ oot uﬂ/"www M/ﬁ/w frr M b /«"/w,//
L MN G /

PERSONS HOLDING THIS POSITION ARE REQUIRED TO FILE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLITICAL REFORM ACT AND THE CITY OF
LEMON GROVE CONF}A‘CT OF INTEREST CODE.

‘ P Date: ﬁy”/[)%ﬁ

Sigrature., ...

-8-




Attachment B

APPLICATION FOR CODE ENFORCEMENT

HEARING OFFICER
CONTACT INFORMATION
Name: Anthony J. Jemison Home Address: __ -
Phone: o Email Address: 5 bl

WORK & COMMUNITY EXPERIENCE

Employer. General Dynamics NASSCO Title: __Senior Manager Labor Relalions

Statement of Occupational Experience: ['ve heen employed with General Dynamics NASSCO since

January 2007, Liviialy sarved as the EECYAInmative Action Officer. | servad as nn instructor at the

solloutate lovel. | have atl

| have served on the Board of Eihics since 2008, | served as a member of the City of the City of Chula

Wists Hurmen Relations Commission lom 1997 thropah 2007, 1 was the Ghair from 2004 - 2007

What experience or special knowledge can you bring as a Code Enforcement Hearing Officec? | serve

current pmplover, | bave mors (han 20 years of human resouces, manacerial and administrative

L olen called wpon o resolve conlicts, counsel and coach sroplovess, supervdsion and

bl

She droportanes of actively

v al-play, | understs

PERSONS HOLDING THIS POSITION ARE REQUIRED TO FILE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLITICAL REFORM ACT AND THE CITY OF
LEMON GRO VE/SZONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE.

7

/ Pl Y—

’

Signature; _ ‘i Date’ s Ix/ jﬁl’ & /w//’ (Lu::z




Attachment C

.
n

Hmmm

ITYO
EMON GROVLE

Administrative (_itation
Procedures Manual

-11-



Attachment C

Administrative (_itation FProcedures Manual

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I....ccovvrimmnnnnns Introduction.................... e |
SECTIONII.............. Violations Appropriate for Administrative Citation....... 1
SECTIONIIL.............. Administrative Citation Issuance Policy . ....... Ce e 1

A. To Whom Citations Can Be Issued
B. Service of Citation Procedures

C. Form of Citation

D. Fine Schedule

E. Satisfaction of Citation

SECTION IV .............. Appeal of Administrative Citation.......... e .. 4
A. Process of Appeal
B. Hardship Waiver
C. Selection of Hearing Officer
D. Request for Rescheduling a Hearing
E. Hearing Procedure
F. Administrative Enforcement by Stipulation
G. Hearing Officer Authority
H. Judicial Review

SECTIONV ....cccvnnennn Citation Fines (Waivers and Penalties) . ......... ceae 7
A. Failure to Pay Fines
B. Late Payment Penalty
C. Reduction of Cumulative Fines

SECTION VI .............. Hearing Officer Policy . . ............... e 8
A. Purpose
B. Requirements of a Hearing Officer
C. Selection of Hearing Officer Panel
D. Term of Hearing Officer
E. Hearing Officer Compensation
F. Conflict of Interest

SECTION Vil ............. OtherProcedures . . . ..........covvvnnn P 9
A. Hostile Encounters
B. Entry Upon Private Property
C. Release of Information

SECTIONVIll . Exhibits . . . ....... ... ... ... ... ..... o e 12
A. Administrative Citation Form
B. Request for Appeal Hearing Form
C. Request for Hardship Waiver Form
D. Notice of Appeal Hearing

-13-



Attachment C

SECTION I -INTRODUCTION

Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 1.12.012 provides the authority to issue administrative
citations for violations of the City Municipal Code (hereafter “City Code or “Code”). The City
Code provides for escalating fines for noncompliance. The Code also defines the service
procedures for issuing a citation, addresses hardship waivers, and identifies the process for
appeals. The purpose of this Code section is to induce compliance by applying a monetary
penalty for continuing violations.

The purpose of this Procedures Manual is to establish the process by which Municipal Code
Section 1.12.012 is implemented by the City. The operational policies and procedures identified
in this Procedures Manual are compliant with applicable Municipal Code sections.

SECTION Il -VIOLATIONS APPROPRIATE FOR ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION

The Code allows for the use of various tools to encourage or require abatement of Code
violations. The issuance of an administrative citation for a Code violation serves as a tool for
those violations that do not impose immediate health and safety risk. The issuance of a citation
should be used for violations that are clear-cut, relatively un-complex and easily correctable. As
with any enforcement tool, the decision to use administrative citations should include
assessment of how effective it is likely to be in gaining compliance and whether or not it is
appropriate to the situation.

SECTION Il - ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION ISSUANCE POLICY
A. To Whom Citations Can Be Issued

An administrative citation may be issued to the party responsible for the violation. In general,
the Responsible Person as defined in the Municipal Code Section 1.12.012 will be one or more
of the following:

1. The owner, tenant, or occupant of real property;
2. The holder or the agent of the holder of any permit, entitlement, or review:

3. The party or the agent of a party to an agreement covered by Chapter 1 of the
Municipal Code;

4. The owner or the authorized agent of any business, company, or entity subject to
Chapter 1 of the Municipal Code; or

5. The parent or legal guardian of any such person under the age of 18 years and

who violates any ordinance, regulation, permit, entitlement, review, or agreement
described in the Municipal Code.

-14-



Attachment C

Any or all of these persons or entities may be cited for the violation when a citation is
justified.

B. Service of Citation Procedures

The issuance of an administrative citation should be on the appropriate City form
(Exhibit A). The form should be completed in full and should be delivered to the
Responsible Person in the following manner:

1. Personal Issuance — the enforcement officer shall attempt to personally serve the
Responsible Person with the citation and, if possible, obtain the signature of the
Responsible Person on the administrative citation form. If the Responsible
Person refuses to sign the administrative citation form, the citation will remain
valid.

2. Service by Mail — if the enforcement officer is unable to locate the Responsible
Person, the administrative citation shall me mailed to the Responsible Person by
certified mail with a requested return receipt. The administrative citation shall
also be sent by first class mail. If the administrative citation sent by certified mail
is returned unsigned, the letter mailed first class shall be deemed effective
noticing of the violation.

3. Service by Posting Notice — if the enforcement officer does not succeed in
personally delivering the administrative citation and certified mail and first class
mail fails to reach the Responsible Person, the enforcement officer shall post the
administrative citation on the property in violation.

After the administrative citation has been served to the Responsible Person by any of
the means listed above, the enforcement officer shall complete a declaration of service.

C. Form of Citation
The administrative citation form should include the following information:

1. Date, approximate time, and address or definite description of the location or
property where the violation(s) was observed.

2. The name of the Responsible Person(s) and, if possible, the signature of the
Responsible Person(s).

3. The Code sections or conditions violated and a description of the violation(s).

4. An order to the Responsible Person(s) to correct the violation(s) within a
specified time period.

5. The amount of the fine for the violation(s).

15-



Attachment C

6. An explanation of how the fine is to be paid and the deadline for making payment
of the fine.

7. A notification that the payment of the fine does not excuse or discharge the
failure to correct the violation.

8. A notice of the right and process to appeal the administrative citation.
9. The name and signature of the enforcement officer.
D. Fine Schedule

The administrative citation form should indicate whether the administrative citation is a
warning or the amount of the fine. If the violation is not a critical health and safety risk,
the enforcement officer shall first allow the Responsible Person(s) to abate the
violation(s) within a 15-day warning period.

In the event the violation(s) are not corrected within the warning period, fines shall be
assessed in the following amounts:

1. $100 for the first administrative citation fine if the violation(s) are not corrected
within the specified time and/or if the same violation occurs within the next 18-
month period.

2. $200 for the second administrative citation fine if the violation(s) are not
corrected within the specified time and/or if the same violation occurs within the
next 18-month period.

3. $500 for the third administrative citation fine if the violation(s) are not corrected
within the specified time and/or if the same violation occurs within the next 18-
month period.

4. $1,000 for the fourth administrative citation fine if the violation(s) are not
corrected within the specified time and/or if the same violation occurs within the
next 18-month period.

E. Satisfaction of Citation

If a warning administrative citation is issued and the violation(s) is corrected within the
specified warning period, the case shall be closed. However, if fines are levied, in order
to satisfy the administrative citation, the Responsible Person shall correct the violation
within the specified time and pay the fine within thirty (30) days from the correction date
listed on the administrative citation. Fines shall be made payable to the City of Lemon
Grove’s Treasurer.

-16-



Attachment C

SECTION IV — APPEAL OF ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION
A. Process of Appeal

A recipient of an administrative citation may contest the violation or whether he or she is
the Responsible Person for the violation. To contest the administrative citation, the
recipient must complete a Request for an Appeal Hearing form (Exhibit B). The form
should be completed in full and returned to the City within thirty (30) days from the
correction date identified on the administrative citation.

The request for an appeal hearing must be accompanied be either an advance deposit
of the fine or a Request for a Hardship Waiver (Exhibit C). If the hardship waiver is
denied, the Responsible Person shall deposit the fine amount within ten (10) days of
receiving the notice of denial.

In the event the administrative citation is excused by the Hearing Officer, the City shall
refund the deposited fine within three (3) business days.

B. Hardship Waiver

A person filing a request for an appeal hearing may also request a hardship waiver of
the fine deposit by checking a box on the appeal form. To allow time for the review of
the hardship waiver request, the request for the appeal hearing shall be submitted to the
City within fifteen (15) days from the correction date on the administrative citation.

The hardship waiver request must include a sworn affidavit, together with any
supporting documents or materials demonstrating the person’s actual financial inability
to deposit the amount of the fine. The hardship waiver will be considered by the City
Manager, or by his or her appointee. The City Manager will inform the Responsible
Person in writing of whether the waiver was approved. The City Manager's
determination is final and is not subject to appeal or judicial review.

If the hardship waiver is denied, the Responsible Person shall deposit the fine within ten
(10) calendar days of the City Manager’s notice. Failure to deposit the fine shall cancel
the request for the appeal hearing and renders the fine delinquent.

C. Selection of Hearing Officer

The Hearing Officer will be selected from a panel of Hearing Officers appointed by the
City Council (see Section VI for policies related to the Council appointment of Hearing
Officers). The Hearing Officer shall be selected randomly by the City Manager, or by
his or her appointee, prior to setting the date of the appeal hearing.

Any Hearing Officer residing or owning property within 500 feet of the subject property

of the appeal shall be excluded from the selection process for that specific appeal
hearing.

-17-



Attachment C

D. Request for Rescheduling a Hearing

The City will accommodate requests made by the person requesting an appeal hearing,
provided that the request is made at least five (5) days prior to the scheduled hearing.
Requests for rescheduling within five (5) days of the hearing may be considered for
good cause (illness, death, emergency situation, etc.) and must be substantiated. The
City Manager will consider whether to reschedule the hearing. This determination is
final and not subject to judicial review.

E. Hearing Procedure

The following describes the rules and procedures for conducting an appeal hearing:

1. The appeal hearing cannot occur until the following have been completed:

-18-

a. An appeal hearing has been appropriately requested by the responsible
person by submitting a Request for an Appeal Hearing form.

b. The Responsible Person has deposited the administrative citation fine in
advance or a hardship waiver has been issued.

c. A hearing has been established not less than fifteen (15) days and not more
than sixty (60) days from the date of the request for the appeal hearing. The
Responsible Person shall be notified of the date, time and place of the
hearing, and the Hearing Officer's name at least ten (10) days prior to the
hearing date.

d. At least ten (10) days prior to the hearing, the City shall provide the
Responsible Person with copies of the citations, reports and other documents
that will be submitted to the Hearing Officer at the time of the hearing.

City staff should not have contact with the Hearing Officer regarding the hearing
subject so as the Hearing Officer can maintain an attitude of neutrality and
objectivity at all times.

City staff will arrange for the hearing, provide a hearing room and ensure that a
tape recorder is in place.

The Hearing Officer shall conduct the appeal hearing and is responsible for
ensuring that order is maintained and that due process is provided.

The person issued the administrative citation is entitled to bring legal
representation to the hearing.



Attachment C

6. The Hearing Officer shall take testimony first from the Responsible Person. At
this time the Responsible Person will have the opportunity to present evidence
regarding the administrative citation’s issuance.

7. Each party shall have an opportunity to question the other party’s witnesses, if
witnesses are included in the testimony.

8. Each party shall have an opportunity to present rebuttal evidence.,

9. The Hearing Officer shall consider the evidence that is relative to whether the
violation(s) occurred and whether the Responsible Person has caused or
maintained the violation(s).

10.Formal rules of evidence shall not apply.

11.The Hearing Officer may continue the hearing to request additional information
from the enforcement officer or the recipient of the administrative citation.

12.The Hearing Officer may or may not issue a decision orally at the conclusion of
the hearing. Within ten (10) days of the hearing, the Hearing Officer shall provide
the City and the recipient of the administrative citation with a written decision.
The decision shall briefly state the reasons for the conclusion of the Hearing
Officer.

13.The City is not required to provide transcripts of the hearing, but is required to
provide copies of the tapes of the hearing at a cost determined by the City’s
Master Fee Schedule.

14.If the Responsible Person, or his or her representative, fails to appear at the
hearing, the deposited fines shall be forfeited, the administrative citation(s) at
issue shall be deemed valid, and judicial review shall be precluded for failure to
exhaust administrative remedies.

F. Administrative Enforcement by Stipulation.

Occasionally, the City and the Responsible Person will reach agreement prior to a scheduled
hearing. When such an agreement is approved and executed prior to the hearing, the hearing
may be cancelled at the discretion of the City Manager and shall be entitled to an Administrative
Enforcement Order by Stipulation. When such an agreement is presented at the hearing, the
Hearing Officer may issue a finding which incorporates the agreement. Such a finding shall
authorize or approve the terms of the agreement to ensure its validity and shall be entitled to an
Administrative Enforcement Order by Stipulation.

G. Hearing Officer Authority

After conducting an appeal hearing and weighing the testimony and evidence
presented, the Hearing Officer can make one of two decisions: 1) affirm the issuance of

-19-



Attachment C

the administrative citation, or 2) excuse the administrative citation. The Hearing
Officer’s decision shall be final.

The Hearing Officer may impose conditions and deadlines to correct any violations or
require payment of outstanding penalties. The Hearing Officer may also assess
reasonable administrative costs for scheduling and processing of the hearing and
subsequent actions. The Hearing Officer does not have authority to reduce the fine.

H. Judicial Review

Either the City or the person in receipt of an administrative citation may request review
of the appeal hearing decision with the San Diego Superior Court. Judicial review of a
citation may not occur without first exhausting all available administrative remedies.

SECTION V — CITATION FINES (WAIVERS AND PENALTIES)
A. Failure to Pay Fines

If the Responsible Person fails to pay the fines imposed through the administrative
citation within the time specified on the citation, the City may file a claim with the Small
Claims Court or the Superior Court for recovery of the fine. In the event the courts are
used to recover fines, the City may also recover the costs associated with the Hearing
Officer, court fees, and collection costs.

The City may also or in addition to court action, impose a code enforcement lien in the
amount of the fine plus interest and late charges, on the real property upon which the
violation occurs. Any lien imposed shall be recorded in the Office of the San Diego
County Recorder.

B. Late Payment Penalty

Any Responsible Person that fails to pay a fine on or before the date payment is due
shall be liable for payment of a late charge in the amount of 25 percent of the fine.
Delinquent fines shall also accrue interest at the rate of 10 percent per month, excluding
late payment penalties.

C. Reduction of Cumulative Fines

If the violation is corrected within a reasonable time after the decision of the Hearing
Officer, the City Manager shall have the discretion to reduce cumulative fines that
exceed $1,000. The City Manager may not reduce the fine amount to less than $1,000.
The determination of the City Manager shall be final and shall not be subject to appeal
or judicial review.



Attachment C

SECTION VI - HEARING OFFICER POLICY
A. Purpose

The purpose of this section is to establish policies regarding the requirements, the City
Council selection procedures, the term, and the rate of compensation for Hearing
Officers.

B. Requirements of a Hearing Officer

The following criteria are established as requirements to be considered for the position
of Hearing Officer:

1. A candidate is not required to be a resident of Lemon Grove. However, the
distance in which the candidate resides may be a consideration factor in
determining his or her ability to attend appeal hearings.

2. A Hearing Officer candidate must be able to conduct a hearing, analyze the
City’s Municipal Code, weigh evidence and make unbiased judgments based on
evidence and testimony presented.

3. A Hearing Officer must possess effective communication skills—both verbal and
written.

4. A Hearing Officer candidate may not have been issued a code enforcement
citation with a fine for a period of 18 months from the time of applying for a
Hearing Officer position.

5. In the event a Hearing Officer is issued an administrative citation with a fine while
serving a term, he or she shall be disqualified as a Hearing Officer.

6. A Hearing Officer may not be a full or part-time employee of the City of Lemon
Grove (including paid committee or commission members).

C. Selection of Hearing Officer Panel

The City Council may fill a panel of no less than three and no more than six Hearing
Officers. Hearing Officers may apply in writing for consideration for Council selection at
any time, if the panel is not full. The Council may conduct interviews with the full
Council or may appoint a sub-committee of members of the Council to administer the
selection process. The full Council must ratify the appointment of a Hearing Officer to
the panel.

21-



Attachment C

D. Term of Hearing Officer

The term of the Hearing Officer shall be no more than three years. However, the
Council may re-appoint a Hearing Officer through the selection process identified in the
previous section. To create appropriate conclusion of terms, the Council may decide
periodically, on a case-by-case basis, to reduce the length of a term to two years to
create staggered terms on the Hearing Officer panel.

E. Hearing Officer Compensation

A Hearing Officer shall be compensated $75 per appeal hearing. For purposes of this
Section, an “appeal hearing” shall include, but not be limited to, all appeals consolidated
into a single hearing and any subsequent continuance or future dates until a final
determination is rendered by the Hearing Officer. This amount is for travel, preparation
time, conducting the hearing, and preparing the written decision. There shall be no
additional payment in the event the Hearing Officer is requested to testify at a court
proceeding. In the event the hearing is canceled after the Notice of Hearing has been
established, the Hearing Officer shall be compensated $40. In the event, the Hearing
Officer is disqualified or recuses him/herself under Section F below, no compensation
shall be paid.

F. Conflict of Interest

Hearing Officers are required to disqualify themselves from serving as the Hearing Officer for a
particular case if they have a personal or business relationship or any other type of relations,
with any of the involved parties which might cause them to have a conflict of interest, bias or
prejudice in regard to the case to be heard.

In the event that the Hearing Officer believes that a conflict of interest does not exist but might
be perceived, he or she is required to disclose to both the City and the appealing party the
nature of any relationship that might cause such a perception at least eight (8) days prior to the
hearing date. Either of the parties may then request that a new Hearing Officer be selected,
provided that such request is made known to the Hearing Officer within two (2) business days of
such notification.

In the event that the Hearing Officer does not disqualify her/himself or does not announce a
relationship that might be perceived as a potential conflict of interest and either party believes
that a conflict of interest may exist, that party may request of the City Manager that a different
Hearing Officer be selected, provided such request is made within five (5) days of the hearing
date. The City Manager shall determine whether or not to take such action based on the
evidence presented of a relationship, prejudice or bias that might impede the Hearing Officer’s
ability to provide a fair hearing.

Failure to disclose a conflict of interest as defined herein may result in the termination of the
Hearing Officer’s participation on the panel.

229



Attachment C

SECTION VIl - OTHER PROCEDURES

A. Hostile Encounters

An enforcement officer shall not initiate physical force to halt, restrain or attempt to
physically engage a code violator. If an enforcement officer is threatened by hostile or
aggressive behavior or with bodily harm during the course of performing his or her
duties, the enforcement officer shall leave the scene immediately, contact the Sheriff's
Department, contact his or her immediate supervisor, and document the incident as part
of the code case file.

If there is or has been past aggressiveness or hostility from a resident, the enforcement
officer shall not attempt to personally deliver notices and/or citations without the
presence of a Sheriff deputy. Otherwise, the enforcement officer may deliver notices
and/or citations by way of mail as specified in this manual.

B. Entry Upon Private Property

No enforcement officer shall enter upon private property except in an attempt to contact
the owner or occupant of the property or to post or deliver a notice and/or citation. The
enforcement officer may access the property with the consent of the property owner or
occupant or with a search warrant issued by the court.

C. Release of Information

In order to preserve effectiveness and not jeopardize investigative activities and to
protect the privacy of residents, the following procedures apply to the release of
information, once a case file is created:

1. Except in accordance with the direction of the City Attorney or to comply with a
subpoena, the City shall not disclose:

a. That a complaint about a particular incident has been filed,
b. The fact that a case is pending, or
c. That a particular complaint is under investigation.

2. The City shall advise the complaining party that the complaint has been received
and is under investigation.

3. Upon request, in accordance with the Public Records Act, the City shall disclose:
a. The date on which a citation has been set for court trial,

b. The date which has been set for a hearing before a Hearing Officer,

-23-



Attachment C

c. The fact that a civil lawsuit has been filed and served.

4. Upon the closing of a case initiated by a private party’s complaint, the
complainant will be advised of the result, if so requested by the complainant.

5. Any information developed during the investigation shall be released only to City
personnel actively and directly involved in the enforcement action.

-24-



Attachment C

EXHIBIT A — Administrative Citation Form

CITY OF LEMON GROVE
ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION

A} TYPE OF VIOLATION

Circle One: Warning 1% Citation 2™ Citation 3% Citation 4" Citation
$100 $200 $500 $1,000
Payment of § is due no later than to the City of Lemon Grove.

The City accepts cash, chack or credit card.

If the viclation Is not corrected by the date specified therein andfor payment is not received by the date
above, the next level of citatlon may be Issued, other enforcement actions may occur, and penalties may be
assessed (25% and Interest at the rate of 10% per month). Payment of fine does not excuse or discharge
the fallure to correct violation identifled below.

B) RESPONSIBL.E PARTY INFORMATION

Person Cited:

{Last Nama) (First Name)
Circle One: Property Owner Tenant Business Owner Other

Mailing Address:

Business Name (if applicable):

C) VIOLATION(S) INFORMATION
Date (Violation Observed): Time (Violation Observad):

Localion of Violation:

[Street Address) (APN)

Violation(s) Observed (Code Section and Description):

D) CORRECTION(S) REQUIRED (with date to complete corrections)

Enforcing Officer Name Phone No. Signature Date

Person Cited - Signature Acknowledging Receipt

W(D_atg)
Citation Served (circle one}; In Person By Mai! FPaosted on Property

E) SERVICING CITATION INFORMATION I

This citation may be appealed within thirty (30) days from date of correction identified in Section D. To request an
appeal, a Request an Appeal Hearlng form (available at Clty Hall) should be completed and returned to City Hall.
In the event a Hardship Waiver is requested, the Request for an Appeal Hearing and Hardship Waiver forms are

required within fifteen {15) days from the correction date identified Jn Section D.




Attachment C

EXHIBIT B — Request for Appeal Hearing Form

CITY OF LEMON GROVE
3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA 81845
Telephone (619) 825-3800
Fax (619) 825-3804

REQUEST FOR APPEAL HEARING
FOR AN ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION

Name:

Address of Violation:

Day Phone: Other Phone:
Mailing Address (if difierent):
Violation of Code (see Section C of Citation):

Please state the reason(s) for the request. The Municipal Code allows the recipient of an Administrative
Citation to contest whether a violation(s) exist or whether they are the Responsible Person. If you require
more space, please attach additional sheets. ,

Appellant’s Statement

| | declare under penalty of perjury that the facts stated are true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

Process for Submitting Request for an Appeal Hearing:

1) An individual requesting an appeal hearing must submit this form to the City on or before 30 days from the date
of correction ldentilied in Section D of the Citatlon,

2) The Individual requesting an appeal must deposit with the City the amount of the citation fine along with this
form.

3) If the individual requesling the appeal hearing requests a Hardship Waiver, this form and the Requesl for a
Hardship Walver are due on or before 15 days from the date of correction identified in Section D or the Citation.

4} A Request for Hardship Walver form is available at City Hall.

5) A hearing will be established between 15 and 60 days from receipt of this form with a Hearing Officer appointed
by the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove.

OFFICIAL USE ONLY

Received on: Within Deadline: Compleled Form:
st ;

-26-



Attachment C

EXHIBIT C — Request for Hardship Waiver Form

CITY OF LEMON GROVE
3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945
Telephone (619) 825-3800
Fax (619) 825-3804

REQUEST FOR HARDSHIP WAIVER
FOR ADVANCE DEPOSIT REQUIREMENT

Name:

Address of Violation:

Day Phone: Other Phone:

Mailing Address (if different):

Fine Amount on Citalion: Present Employer:

Social Security #: Driver’s License #

List of Family Members Living with You:
Name Relationship Age Employer

Total Family Income (before 1axes and deductions from ALL sources):

Employment: LS - Child Support:

Spouse Employment: § Spousal Support:

Unemployment: Pension/Retirement. &
Welfare/SSHADC: Other: £

TOTAL INCOME:  §
fMonthly Expenses

Payroll Deductions:
Medical Expenses:

Rent/Mortgage:
Child Care: -
Transporation Costs; §__

5.
B

TOTAL EXPENSES: &

27-



Attachment C

Assets

Savings Account: 5. Checking Account:  §_

Other Cash Assets: § Other Assets: &

TOTAL ASSETS: §
Submit with Request for Hardship Waiver form copies of (if applicable):
B Last year's tax retum (with W-2s or 1099s) b Utility billing with Lifeline rates

B Pay stubs for last 2-week period b Recent Chapter 7 Bankruptcy filing
B Other '

| declare under penalty of perjury that the information contained herein are full and true statements of my
assets and obligation to the best of my knowledge and belief. The undersigned authorizes the City of Lemon
Grove to contact my employer, if any, listed above without further notice. '

| understand that this hardship consideration is for the deferral of the administrative citation fine during the
appeal hearing process. If during the appeal hearing process the citation is found to be valid, the full amount
of the citation fine is due and payable.

Print Name Signature Date

Process for Submitting Request for a Hardship Waiver:

1) Anindividual requesting a Hardship Waiver must submit this torm with the Request for an Appeal
Hearing on or before 15 days from the date of correction identified in Section D of the Citation.

2) The Hardship Waiver will be reviewed by the City Manager, or his or her designee.

3) The City Manager’s determination in granting the Hardship Waiver is final and not subject to appeal or
judiclal review.

4) If the Hardship Waiver is denied, the appellant is required to deposit the fine amount within ten (10)
calendar days of the City Manager's Notice of Denial. Failure to deposit the fine shall cancel the
request for an appeal hearing and will render the fine delinquent.

OFFICIAL USE ONLY

Within Deadline: Complated Form;
Yes or No Yes or No

-28-



Attachment C

EXHIBIT D — Notice of Appeal Hearing

CITY OF LEMON GROVE
3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945
Telephone (619) 825-3800
Fax {619)825-3804

NOTICE OF APPEAL HEARING
FOR ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION

DATE

Requestor: John Doe
1111 Anywhere Street
City, State zipcode

Please be informed that your request for an Appeal Hearing for Administrative Citation shall be heard as
follows:

Date: May xx, 2006
Time: 16:00 A.M.

Location 3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA
City Hall Conference Room

The hearing procedures shall be in accordance with the Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 1.12.012 and
the Administrative Citation Procedures Manual (see attachment).

You may have legal representation at the hearing. However, you must provide written natification to the
Hearing Officer and the City's Enforcement Officer of the attorney’s name, address, and phone number at ieast
seven (7) calendar days prior to the hearing:

Assligned Hearing Officer:  Mr. or Ms. , Hearing Officer
c/o Robert Larkins
3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Failure of the Responsible Person, either personally or through counsel, to appear at the appeal hearing shall
constitute a forfeiture of the fine and will exhaust his or her administrative remedies. As an option, you are
afforded one opportunity to reschedule the hearing, only if the request is made at least five (5) days prior to the
scheduled hearing. Requests for rescheduling within five (5) days of the hearing must be considered for good
cause (illness, death, emergency siluation, etc.) and must be substantiated. The Hearing Officer will consider
whether to reschedule the hearing. The request to reschedule the hearing must be made in writing and
delivered or received at the address above at least five (5) days before the scheaduled hearing.

-29-



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1.H
Mtg. Date __ April 19, 2016
Dept. Development Services

Item Title: Professional Services Agreement Addenda with CityPlace Planning
Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation:

Adopt a resolution (Attachment A) approving an addenda to a Planning Project Agreement
(Attachment A — Exhibit 1) with CityPlace Planning.

Item Summary:

In 2015, the City contracted with Cal Poly San Luis Obispo’s Design Studio (Cal Poly) team to
conduct public outreach and prepare a draft community profile and general plan update.
Thereafter, the City contracted with CityPlace Planning to coordinate two community workshops,
assist in the February 16, 2016 public hearing with City Council and assist in the preparation of the
Draft General Plan Update and in the selection of consultants for a Program Environmental Impact
Report (PEIR) for the General Plan. These services were contracted for under the Purchasing
Ordinance provisions providing authority of the City Manager for contracts for professional services
under $30,000. A request for proposal was not conducted since CityPlace Planning prepared the
City’s 2014 Health & Wellness Element and was a firm exceedingly familiar with the City’s General
Plan. The City Manager may waive the requirements for solicitation of multiple proposals if only
one individual or firm can provide the professional services. A second addenda to the contract is
needed for CityPlace Planning to further assist the City in the review, preparation, and completion
of the General Plan Update and the PEIR and related public hearings and outreach. The
addendum for $26,920 will allow for assistance through the adoption of the General Plan. The total
contract will now be for $56,590. Additional costs anticipated for the General Plan Update include
the contract under consideration with Dudek for the preparation of the PEIR. The attached
(Attachment A — Exhibit 1) includes the full contract with addendas and a budget and a scope of
work for completion by CityPlace.

Fiscal Impact:
$26,920 in additional professional services for the General Plan Update.

Environmental Review:

X Not subject to review [ I Negative Declaration
[] Categorical Exemption, Section [] Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

X None [ ] Newsletter article ] Notice to property owners within 300 ft.
[] Notice published in local newspaper [] Neighborhood meeting
Attachments:

A. Resolution



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING AN ADDENDA TO AN AGREEMENT WITH CITYPLACE PLANNING FOR
PLANNING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE

WHEREAS, The Lemon Grove General Plan was adopted in 1996. Subsequently, the
City has adopted the 2001 Broadway Commercial Project Specific Plan, the 2005 Downtown
Village Specific Plan, the 2006 Bikeways Master Plan, the 2010-2020 Housing Element, and the
2014 Health & Wellness Element; and

WHEREAS, General Plans are encouraged to be updated every 20 to 25 years per 2003
State Guidelines for General Plans; and

WHEREAS, the City Council identified an update to the Lemon Grove General Plan as a
priority goal in FY15-16 and FY16-17 and budgeted funding for the General Plan update; and

WHEREAS, on August 4, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution 2015-3357
approving a sponsored project agreement with Cal Poly San Luis Obispo’s (SLO) Design Studio
Team to conduct public outreach and prepare a draft community profile and general plan
update; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2015 and October 6, 2016, the City Council formed a 14
member adhoc focus group to advise city staff and the SLO Design Studio on its efforts with the
general plan outreach and assist with identifying issues and opportunities; and

WHEREAS, In January 7, 2016, in order to build on the efforts of the SLO Design
Studio, city staff contracted with CityPlace Planning (Circulate San Diego subconsultant) to lead
two community workshops related to the general plan and assist in the review of the SLO
Design Studio’s draft general plan and a subsequent addenda was executed on March 23, 2016
to further assist in the review and preparation of the draft general plan update and the
consultant selection and scope for the preparation of a Program Environmental Impact Report
(PEIR) for the general plan update; and

WHEREAS, extensive public outreach was provided towards the preparation of the draft
general plan and community profile including: 1) SLO Design Studio contact with over 120 youth
and 500 adults through interviews and surveys both online and in person; 2) three focus group
meetings and related assignments; 3) On January 21, 2016, a community workshop was
conducted on community design and economic development by CityPlace Planning; 4) On
January 30, 2016, a community workshop was conducted on street development and circulation
by Circulate San Diego; and 5) On February 16, 2016, a joint community and City Council public
hearing was conducted and the City Council provided feedback related to the draft General Plan
update; and

WHEREAS, public notifications for workshops and hearings were sent via listserve,
newsflash, and updates were posted on social media and the general plan update webpage and
focus group members and community workshop attendees were also notified upcoming events;
and

WHEREAS, CityPlace Planning has special knowledge and expertise regarding the
Lemon Grove General Plan based on their recent experience preparing the City's 2014 Health
and Wellness Element; and



Attachment B

WHEREAS, CityPlace Planning has agreed to the attached professional agreement
terms and scope of work as presented herein (Exhibit 1); and

WHEREAS, staff believes that CityPlace Planning has and will provide adequate
assistance towards the preparation of a successful planning project; and

NOW, TH_EREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby:

1. Approves a second addenda with scope of work to an agreement (Exhibit 1) with
CityPlace Planning; and

2. Authorizes the City Manager or designee to execute and manage all contractual
documents. |

11111
111



Attachment A

AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN
THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE
AND
CITYPLACE PLANNING, INC.

THIS AGREEMENT is approved and effective upon the date of the last
signature, by and between the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, a municipal corporation (the
"CITY”), and CITYPLACE PLANNING, INC., a professional planning firm (the
"CONTRACTOR").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONTRACTOR to provide
professional planning services.

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the CONTRACTOR is a
professional planning firm and is qualified by experience, specific project knowledge,
and ability to perform the Project Manager and supporting planning services desired by
the CITY, and the CONTRACTOR is willing to perform such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE
AS FOLLOWS:

1. ENGAGEMENT OF CONTRACTOR. The CITY hereby agrees to
engage the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR hereby agrees (o perform the
services hereinafter set forth in accordance with all terms and conditions contained
herein.

The CONTRACTOR represents that all services required hereunder will
be performed directly by the CONTRACTOR or under direct supervision of the
CONTRACTOR.

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. The CCNTRACTOR will perform services
for the Genaral Plan Update as further defined in the attached Exhibit *A’" beginning on
page 13.

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing community
outreach and policy document review services towards the completion of the General
Plan Update consistent with the budget and scope of work in Exhibit "A'. The
CONTRACTOR shall not rely on personnel of the CITY for such services, except as
authorized in advance by the CITY and as referenced in Exhibit "A’ The
CONTRACTOR shall appear at meetings cited.

The CITY may unilaterally, or upon request from the CONTRACTOR, from time
to time reduce or increase the Scope of Services to be performed by the

1



Attachment A

CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. Upon doing so, the CITY and the
CONTRACTOR agree to meet in good faith and confer for the purpose of negotiating a
corresponding reduction or increase in the compensation associated with said change
in services.

3. PROJECT COORDINATION AND SUPERVISION.

Dave DeVries, Acting Development Services Director hereby is
designated as the Project Manager for the CITY and will monitor the progress and
execution of this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR shall assign a single professional
planner to act as the Project Director, or Principal in Charge, to provide supervision and
have overall responsibility for the progress and execution of this Agreement for the
CONTRACTOR. Claudia Tedford, Principal thereby is designated as the Project
Director for the CONTRACTOR,

4, COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT. The compensation for the
CONTRACTOR shall be based on monthly billings covering actual work performed.
Billings shall include labor classifications, respective rates, hours worked and also
materials, if any. The total cost for all work described in Exhibit “A" shall not exceed the
base amount of $20,670, without prior written authorization from the City's Project
Manager. Monthly invoices will be processed for payment and remitted within thirty (30)
days from receipt of invoice, provided that work is accomplished consistent with Exhibit
“A" as determined by and in the sole discretion of the CITY.

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all books, documents, papers,
employee time sheets, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to costs
incurred and shall make such materials available at its office at all reasonable times
during the term of this Agreement and for three (3) years from the date of final payment
under this Agreement, for inspection by the CITY and for furnishing of copies to the
CITY, if requested.

5. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT. The duration of this agreement will be
until July 31, 2016 unless an extension is otherwise mutually agreed upon and
approved.

6. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS,  The
Memoranda, Reports, Maps, Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents
prepared by the CONTRACTOR for this Project, whether paper or electronic, shall
become the property of the CITY for use with respect to this Project, and shall be turned
over to the CITY upon completion of the Project, or any phase thereof, as contemplated
by this Agreement. By accepting payment for completion, filing and delivering
documents as called for in this paragraph, the CONTRACTOR discharges the City of all
of the City’s payment obligations and liabilities under this agreement.

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONTRACTOR
hereby assigns to the CITY and CONTRACTOR thereby expressly waives and
disclaims, any copyright in, and the right to reproduce, all written material, drawings,
plans, specifications or other work prepared under this agreement, except upon the
CiTY’s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which authorization shall not be

2



Attachment A

unreasonably withheld. The CONTRACTOR shall, upon request of the CITY, execute
any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and disclaimer.

The CONTRACTOR agrees that the CITY may use, reuse, alter, reproduce, modify,
assign, transfer, or in any other way, medium or method utilize the CONTRACTOR's
written work product for the CITY's purposes, and the CONTRACTOR expressly waives
and disclaims any residual rights granted to it by Civil Code Sections 980 through 989
relating to intellectual property and artistic works.

Any modification or reuse by the CITY of documents, drawings or
specifications prepared by the CONTRACTOR shall relieve the CONTRACTOR from
liability under Section 14 but only with respect to the effect of the modification ar reuse
by the CITY, or for any liability to the CITY should the documents be used by the CITY
for some project other than what was expressly agreed upon within the Scope of this
project, unless otherwise mutually agreed.

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Both parties hereto in the
performance of this Agreement will be acting in an independent capacity and not as
agents, employees, partners or joint venturers with one another Neither the
CONTRACTOR nor the CONTRACTOR'S employees are employees of the CITY and
are not entitled to any of the rights, benefits, or privileges of the CITY's employees,
including but not limited to retirement, medical, unemployment, or workers’
compensation insurance.

This Agreement contemplates the personal services of the
CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR's employees, and it is recognized by the
parties that a substantial inducement to the CITY for entering into this Agreement was,
and is, the professional reputation and competence of the CONTRACTOR and its
employees  Neither this Agreement nor any interest herein may be assigned by the
CONTRACTOR without the prior written consent of the CITY. Nothing herein contained
is intended to prevent the CONTRACTOR from employing or hiring as many
employees, or subcontractors, as the CONTRACTOR may deem necessary for the
proper and efficient performance of this Agreement. All agreements by CONTRACTOR
with its subcontractor(s) shall require the subcontractor to adhere to the applicable
terms of this Agreement.

8, CONTROL. Neither the CITY nor its officers, agents or employees
shall have any control over the conduct of the CONTRACTOR or any of the
CONTRACTOR's employees except as herein set forth, and the CONTRACTOR
expressly agrees not to represent that the CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR's
agents, servants, or employees are in any manner agents, servants or employees of the
CITY, it being understood that the CONTRACTOR, its agents, servants, and employees
are as to the CITY wholly independent contractors and that the CONTRACTOR's

obligations to the CITY are solely such as are prescribed by this Agreement.

9 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW. The CONTRACTOR, in
the performance of the services to be provided herein, shall comply with all applicable
State and Federal statutes and regulations, and all applicable ordinances, rules and

3



Attachment A

regulations of the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, whether now in force or subsequently
enacted. The CONTRACTOR, and each of its subcontractars, shall obtain and maintain
a current CITY OF LEMON GROVE business license prior to and during performance of
any work pursuant to this Agreement.

10.  LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC. The CONTRACTOR represents and
covenants that it has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever
nature that are legally required to practice its profession The CONTRACTOR
represents and covenants that the CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense,
keep in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, any license, permit, or
approval which is legally required for the CONTRACTOR to practice its profession.
Submittals Required with the Agreement. Failure of the CONTRACTOR to provide the
following documentation with the executed agreement will cause delay in the agreement
being executed by the City:

A. Insurance as specified in Section 15 of this agreement;

B. Taxpayer ldentification Number (W-9)
hitp:#www. irs. gov/publ/irs-pdf/fw9. pdf;

C. IRS Letter of Non-Profit 501 (c) (3) (If Applicable);

D. City Business License;

11.  STANDARD OF CARE.

A The CONTRACTOR, in performing any services under this
Agreement, shall perform in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill
ordinarily exercised by members of the CONTRACTOR'S trade or profession currently
practicing under similar conditions and in similar locations. The CONTRACTOR shall
take all special precautions necessary to protect the CONTRACTOR's employees and
members of the public from risk of harm arising out of the nature of the work and/or the
conditions of the work site.

8. Unless disclosed in writing prior to the date of this
agreement, the CONTRACTOR warrants to the CITY that it is not now, nor has it for the
five (5) years preceding, been debarred by a governmental agency or involved in
debarment, arbitration or litigation proceedings concerning the CONTRACTOR's
professional performance or the furnishing of materials or services relating thereto.

C. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for identifying any unigue
products, treatments, processes or materials whose availability is critical to the success
of the project the CONTRACTOR has been retained to perform, within the time
requirements of the CITY, or, when no time is specified, then within a commercially
reasonable time. Accordingly, unless the CONTRACTOR has notified the CITY
otherwise, the CONTRACTOR warrants that all products, materials, processes or
treatments identified in the project documents prepared for the CITY are reascnably
commercially available. Any failure by the CONTRACTOR to use due diligence under
this sub-paragraph will render the CONTRACTOR liable to the CITY for any increased
costs that result from the CITY's later inability to obtain the specified itemns or any
reasonable substitute within a price range that allows for project completion in the time
frame specified or, when not specified, then within a commercially reasonable time.

D. City’s Right to Terminate for Default. If the CONTRACTOR
fails to perform or adequetly perform any obligation required by this agreement, the
CONTRACTOR's failure constitutes a Default If the CONTRACTOR fails to

4



Attachment A

satisfactorily cure a Default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving a written notice
from the City specifying the nature of the Default, the City may immediately cancel
and/or terminate this Agreement, and terminate each and every right of the
CONTRACTOR, and any person claiming any rights by or through the CONTRACTOR
under this Agreement. The rights and remedies of the City enumerated in this
paragraph are cumulative and shall not limit the City's rights under any other provision
of this Agreement, or otherwise waive or deny any right or remedy, at law or in equity,
existing as of the date of this Agreement or enacted or established at a later date, that
may be available to the City against the CONTRACTOR.

12, NON-DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS. The CONTRACTOR shall
not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age,
race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin,
physical handicap, or medical condition. The CONTRACTOR will take positive action to
insure that applicants are employed without regard to their age, race, color, ancestry,
religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or
medical condition. Such action shall include but not be limited to the following:
employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising,
layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for
training, including apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous
places available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by
the CITY setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. The CITY may from time to time
communicate to the CONTRACTOR certain confidential information to enable the
CONTRACTOR to effectively perform the services to be provided herein. The
CONTRACTOR shall treat all such infarmation as confidential and shall not disclose any
part thereof without the prior written consent of the CITY. The CONTRACTOR shall
limit the use and circulation of such information, even within its own organization, to the
extent necessary to perform the services to be provided herein. The foregoing
obligation of this Section 13, however, shall not apply to any part of the information that
(i) has been disclosed in publicly available sources of information; (ii) is, through no fault
of the CONTRACTOR, hereafter disclosed in publicly available sources of information;
(i) is already in the possession of the CONTRACTOR without any obligation of
confidentiality; (iv) has been or is hereafter rightfully disclosed to the CONTRACTOR by
a third party, but only to the extent that the use or disclosure thereof has been or is
rightfully authorized by that third party; or (v) is disclosed according to law or court
order.

The CONTRACTOR shall not disclose any reports, recommendations,
conclusions or other results of the services or the existence of the subject matter of this
Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY  In its performance hereunder,
the CONTRACTOR shall comply with all legal obligations it may now or hereafter have
respecting the information or other property of any other person, firm or corporation.

CONTRACTOR shall be liable to CITY for any damages caused by breach
of this condition, pursuant to the provisions of Section 14.



Attachment A

-10-

14, INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. The CONTRACTOR
shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY, and its officers, officials, agents
and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liability that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of
CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of
services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR's duty to indemnify under this section
shall not include liability for damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to
property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole negligence or willful
misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees.
CONTRACTOR's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance
provisions of this Agreement. The CITY AND CONTRACTOR expressly agree that any
payment, attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY incurs or makes to or on behalf of an
injured employee under the CITY 's self-administered workers' compensation is
included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this
section will survive the expiration or early termination of this Agreement.

15, INSURANCE. The CONTRACTOR, at its sole cost and expense,
shall purchase and maintain, and shall require its subcontractors, when applicable, to
purchase and maintain throughout the term of this agreement, the following insurance
policies:

XA If checked, Professional Liability Insurance (errors and omissions)
with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence.

B. Automobile insurance covering all bodily injury and property
damage incurred during the performance of this Agreement, with a minimum coverage
of $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident. Such automobile insurance shall
include hired and non-owned vehicles.

C. Comprehensive general liability insurance, with minimum limits of
$1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence, covering all personal injury, bodily
injury and property damage arising out of its operation under this Agreement,
Contractual liability shall include coverage of tort liability of another party to pay for
bodily injury or property damage to a third person or organization. Contractual liability
limitation endorsement is not acceptable.

D. Workers' compensation insurance covering all of CONTRACTOR's
employees. The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the provisions of the Worker's
Compensation Insurance and Safety Acts of the State of California, the applicable
provisions of Division 4 and 5 of the California Government Code and all amendments
thereto; and all similar state or Federal acts or laws applicable; and shall indemnify, and
hold harmless the CITY and its officers, and employees from and against all claims,
demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings and judgments of every nature and
description, including reasonable attorney's fees and defense costs presented, brought
of recovered against the CITY or its officers, employees, or volunteers, for or on
account of any liability under any of said acts which may be incurred by reason of any
work to be performed by the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, That policy shall
provide a minimum of $1,000000 of employer's liability coverage, and the
CONTRACTOR shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of
subrogation against the City and its respective elected officials, officers, employees,
agenis and representatives.



Attachment A

E The aforesaid policies shall constitute primary insurance as to the
CITY, its officers, employees, and volunteers, so that any other policies held by the
CITY shall not contribute to any loss under said insurance. Said policies shall provide
for thirty (30) days prior written notice to the CITY of cancellation or material change

F. If any required insurance coverage is provided on a "claims made’
rather than “occurrence” form, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain such insurance
coverage for three years after expiration of the term (and any extensions) of this Agree-
ment.

G. Insurance shall be written with only California admitted companies
which hold a current policy holder's alphabetic and financial size category rating of not
less than A VIl according to the current Best's Key Rating Guide, or a company equal
financial stability that is approved by the CITY.

H. Deductibles. All deductibles on any policy shall be the responsibility
of the CONTRACTOR

I Specific Provisions Required. Each policy required under this
section shall expressly provide, and an endorsement shall be submitted to the City, that:

1. Said policies, except for the professional liability and
worker's compensation policies, shall name the CITY and its officers, agents and
employees as additional insureds. The CITY's Additional Insured status must be
reflected on additional insured endorsement form CG 20 12, or equivalent, which shall
be submitted to the CITY.

2. The Policies cannot be canceled, non renewed or materially
changed except after thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice by the
CONTRACTOR to the CITY by certified mail, as reflected in an endorsement which
shall be submitted to the CITY except for non-payment of premium, in which case ten
(10) days notice will be provided.

3. This Agreement shall not take effect until certificate(s) or other
sufficient proof that these insurance provisions have been complied with, are filed with
and approved by the CITY. If the CONTRACTOR does not keep all of such insurance
policies in full force and effect at all times during the terms of this Agreement, the CITY
may elect to treat the fallure to maintain the requisite insurance as a breach of this
Agreement and terminate the Agreement as provided herein.

4. The CONTRACTOR may obtain additional insurance not
required by this Agreement.

16. LEGAL FEES. If any party brings a suit or action against the other
party arising from any breach of any of the covenants or agreements or any
inaccuracies in any of the representations and warranties on the part of the other party
arising out of this Agreement, then in that event, the prevailing party in such action or
dispute, whether by final judgment or out-of-court settlement, shall be entitled to have
and recover of and from the other party all reasonable costs and expenses of suit,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees

17.  MEDIATION/ARBITRATION. If a dispute arises out of or relates
to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, the parties agree first to try, in good faith, to
settle the dispute by mutual negotiation between the principles, and failing that through
nonbinding mediation in San Diego, California, in accordance with the Commercial

A1-



Attachment A

19-

Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association (the “AAA”). The costs of
mediation shall be borne equally by the parties,

If a third part dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any
way to the services provided under this Agreement, upon the City's request, the
CONTRACTOR, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the
dispute or litigation. The CONTRACTORs assistance includes, but is not limited to,
providing professioal consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials
or any event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation.

18.  TERMINATION. A This Agreement may be terminated with or
without cause by the CITY. Termination without cause shall be effective only upon 30-
day's written notice to the CONTRACTOR. During said 30-day period the
CONTRACTOR shall perform all services in accordance with this Agreement. The
CONTRACTOR may terminate this agreement upon thirty (30) days prior notice in the
event of a continuing and material breach by the City of its obligations under this
Agreement including but not limited to payment of invoices..

B. This Agreement may also be terminated immediately by the CITY
for cause in the event of a material breach of this Agreement that is not cured to the
City's satisfaction within a ten (10) day prior cure period, or material misrepresentation
by the CONTRACTOR in connection with the formation of this Agreement or the
performance of services, or the failure to perform services as directed by the CITY.

C. Termination with or without cause shall be effected by delivery of
written Notice of Termination to the CONTRACTOR as provided for herein.
D. in the event of termination, all finished or unfinished Memoranda

Reports, Maps, Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the
CONTRACTOR, whether paper or electronic, shall immediately become the property of
and be delivered to the CITY, and the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to receive just
and equitable compensation for any work satisfactorily completed on such documents
and other materials up to the effective date of the Notice of Termination, not to exceed
the amounts payable hereunder, and less any damages caused the CITY by the
CONTRACTOR's breach, if any Thereafter, ownership of said written material shall
vest in the CITY all rights set forth in Section 6.

E. The CITY further reserves the right to immediately terminate this
Agreement upon: (1) the filing of a petition in bankruptcy affecting the CONTRACTOR,;
(2) a reorganization of the CONTRACTOR for the benefit of creditors; or (3) a business
reorganjzation, change in business name or change in business status of the
CONTRACTOR.

F The termination of the services shall be effective upon receipt of the
notice by the CONTRACTOR.

18, NOTICES. Al notices or other communications required or
permitted hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered; or sent by
overnight mail (Federal Express or the like); or sent by registered or certified mail,
postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or sent by ordinary mail, postage prepaid; or
telegraphed or cabled; or delivered or sent by telex, telecopy, facsimile or fax; and shall
be deemed received upon the earlier of (i) if personally delivered, the date of delivery to
the address of the person to receive such notice, (ii) if sent by overnight mail, the

8



Attachment A

business day following its deposit in such overnight mail facility, (i) if mailed by
registered, certified or ordinary mail, five (5) days (ten (10) days if the address is outside
the State of California) after the date of deposit in a post office, mailbox, mail chute, or
other like facility regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service, (iv) if given
by telegraph or cable, when delivered to the telegraph company with charges prepaid,
or (v) if given by telex, telecopy, facsimile or fax, when sent. Any notice, request,
demand, direction or other communication delivered or sent as specified above shall be

directed to the following persons:

Tothe CITY: David De Vries, Acting Development Services Director
City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945-1701

To the CONTRACTOR:  Claudia Tedford, Principal
CityPlace Planning, Inc.
501 West Broadway, Suite A-143
San Diego, CA 92101

Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice in the manner
specified in this Section. Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver
because of changed address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to
constitute receipt of the notice, demand, request or communication sent. Any notice,
request, demand, direction or other communication sent by cable, telex, telecopy,
facsimile or fax must be confirmed within forty-eight (48) hours by letter mailed or
delivered as specified in this Section.

20. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND POLITICAL REFORM ACT
OBLIGATIONS. During the term of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall not
perform services of any kind for any person or entity whose interests conflict in any way
with those of the CITY OF LEMON GROVE. The CONTRACTOR also agrees not to
specify any product, treatment, process or material for the project in which the
CONTRACTOR has a material financial interest, either direct or indirect, without first
notifying the CITY of that fact The CONTRACTOR shall at all times comply with the
terms of the Political Reform Act and the Lemon Grove Conflict of Interest Code  The
CONTRACTOR shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official position to
influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONTRACTOR
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. The
CONTRACTOR represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests that would
require it to disqualify itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the

CITY.

If the CONTRAGCTOR violates any conflict of interest laws or any of these
provisions in this section, the violation shall be grounds for immediate termination of this
Agreement. Further, the violation subjects the Contractor to liability to the CITY for
attorney fees and all damages sustained as a result of the violation.

13-



Attachment A

-14-

X If checked, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the reporting
requirements of the Political Reform Act and the CITY OF LEMON GROVE Conflict of
Interest Code. Specifically, the CONTRACTOR shall:

Go to www.fppc.ca.gov

Download the Form 700; Statement of Economic Interests

Completely fill out the form

Submit the form to the Public Works Department with the signed contracts

PN =

The CONTRACTOR shall be strictly liable to the CITY for all damages,
costs or expenses the CITY may suffer by virtue of any violation of this Paragraph 21 by
the CONTRACTOR,

21, MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

A. Computation of Time Periods. |f any date or time period provided
for in this Agreement is or ends on a Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday,
then such date shall automatically be extended until 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time of the next
day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday.

B. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall
constitute but one and the same instrument.

C. Captions.  Any captions to, or headings of the sections or
subsections of this Agreement are solely for the convenience of the parties hereto, are
not a part of this Agreement, and shall not be used for the interpretation or
determination of the validity of this Agreement or any provision hereof.

D. No Obligations to Third Parties. Except as otherwise expressly
provided herein, the execution and delivery of this Agreement shall not be deemed to
confer any rights upon, or obligate any of the parties hereto, to any person or entity
other than the parties hereto.

E Exhibits and Schedules. The Exhibits and Schedules attached
hereto are hereby incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes.

F. Amendment fo this Agreement. The terms of this Agreement may
not be modified or amended except by an instrument in writing executed by each of the
parties hereto.

G. Waiver. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this
Agreement shall not operate as a waiver of any future breach of any such provision or
any other provision hereof.

H. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California

I Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior agree-
ments, negotiations and communications, oral or written, and contains the entire
agreement between the parties as to the subject matter hereof No subsequent
agreement, representation, or promise made by either party hereto, or by or to an
employee, officer, agent or representative of any party hereto shall be of any effect
unless it is in writing and executed by the party to be bound thereby

J. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon
and shall inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

10



Attachment A

K. Construction. The parties acknowledge and agree that (i) each
party is of equal bargaining strength, (i) each party has actively participated in the
drafting, preparation and negotiation of this Agreement, (iii) each such party has
consulted with or has had the opportunity to consult with its own, independent counsel
and such other professional advisors as such party has deemed appropriate, relative to
any and all matters contemplated under this Agreement, (iv) each party and such
party's counsel and advisors have reviewed this Agreement, (v) each party has agreed
to enter into this Agreement following such review and the rendering of such advice,
and (vi) any rule or construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against
the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement, or any portions
hereof, or any amendments hereto.

L. Severability. The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any
provision of this Agreement shall not render any other provision of this Agreement
unenforceable, invalid, or illegal.

11

5.



Attachment A

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this
Agreement on the date and vear first above written.

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

A

. /

// ' /{ /
Ik W,Meu;;’ ;

Acting ¥ty Manager

i

S (Twe) 7

APPROVED AS /‘jm{ FOR @1% e
! ) . / ”/“/W “\/M’,,«/ s

o

i

By, 1 ( /. — ey
s P Loldgh (Name)
S Cily Ablbrnay

S
( S (Titls)

12
-16-



Attachment A

EXHIBIT “A”

Cluote tor Protossions Services

in

4§

W TR TR

Feqpree.

LA,

T, [t ¢ B g

[atms 1204706

% bl

& Prayjast Aubrennisiramticun® e Wi ageme it Clavigia fedfeed, Brincipat % A Lty K] BNk
8 o )
[ LRV i Sl G
Frenvipue oof £l dratt Gerngra) Plan | iemants
e (-t
& P A U A Y e AT P o
Gt
et i PR .
ot 11000 i
Uprssion
Wk S piuhpty eagey i o
. 100 0 i Babalf)
i MBS AT
1800 @ Sin
|
) . . el 20 b iaf Deecgmig s 20 it
& IRk Dutreack Bogris ' s ’ e G110 D b
P b Ty o i1

B

17-




Attachment A

"k
A

Y CIRCULATE

o
WA
Crealing excellent mobiity cholces snd vitwan), ealthy oeighborboods

From:  Ciewets San Diego Quote for Professional Services

Lrtee: 125

To; it Taokord, ACP
P aeesirey

Tieculate

)1
| e

LA A

o Ly £l i

[

i
it ‘W\‘\“ ‘mW“WNWWWWWMWWW

g L
\ ) g b
! 5 L Adialgziatin s ! 1" TS
(ot A !
g b ¥ o b g
_ . o Doyl 203
) nezl R s Co bt iy T L ) e . ¥ B15 ) % %1,000
: A6 ’ o
R T ot v e,
“
% 51125
3 53,125
4 Puishic Cruteesn T Savermts Decatnbe -
& b [gimid
L1k " 51005
Foiliig i
Je b, .
3
" O e nef g ki s L e 1 fnee) g ey slbsr e [BETR:3
L %
Baegbt i shigh ih [RETATE! v
5 L E e g Peimtor, myilenge, obiver cewnlhar W

s

| epefahy 57T 2y ¢

!

i
i

(MU

St
fin (g

) ; ; S
Vetfasi Rt

18-



Attachment A

ADDENDA

Per Section 2 of AGREEMENT, The CONTRACTOR and CITY unilaterally agree to the
following increase in Scope of Services (Exhibit “B") per AGREEMENT for professional
plarnning services related to the City of Lemon Grove General Plan Update.

[
[
:
2

APPROVED AS 10 Ww

/ // i
\ ”',/’ It
Ly | ;o

by
b

James P Loubyh/
SClty Altarney

/ : /

f /

(I

GITYPLACE PLANNING, INC. W{gy let¥icer
(Cormoration - lgnatures of h% corporate officers)
{Partnership — one signature)
{Sole proprietorship — one signetuneg)

()

D Wil g

-19-



Attachment A

EXHIBIT “B”

P B e Bl O 0 0

March 24, 2016 Taralog polley Into pluce

Mir. David De Vries, Development Services Director
City of Lemon Grove

Development Services Departrnent

DR Wain Street

Lesrryeory Ghromens, CA 1545

He: Contract Addendsm 3, Exhibit B8
Dear Mr. De Vries:
This letter proposal describes the added services that make up Contract Addenduem 1, Exhibit 8

to the Agreement between the City of Lemon Grove and CityPlace Menning, Inc. to provide
professional planning services in support of the General Plan Update.

The additional services will include review of the draft General Plan submitted by the San Luis
Obispo graduate students, preparation of the draft General Plan Elernents, coordination with

I it
the EIR consultant team and City staff, and other tasks as requested.

CityPlace Mlanning will bill for time and materials at the same rates provided in Exhibit A, at an
amount not to exceed $9,000.00. CityPlace Planning will only bill for sarvices requested by the
City and provided by CityPlace Planning staff.

Please let me know if you have any comments or questions.

-20-



Attachment A

ADDENDA 2

Per Section 2 of AGREEMENT, The CONTRACTOR and CITY unilaterally agree to the
following increase in Scope of Services (Exhibit “C") per AGREEMENT for professional
planning services related to the City of Lemon Grove General Plan Update.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date
and year first above written.

CITY OF LEMON GROVE CITYPLACE PLANNING, INC. (Corporation —
signatures of two corporate officers)

(Partnership — one signature)

(Sole proprietorship — one signature)

By: By:
Lydia Romero (Name)
City Manager
(Title)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By: By:
James P. Lough (Name)
City Attorney

(Title)

-21-



.20,

Attachment A

EXHIBIT “C”

Mgpeit 7, 2016 @,:r M .m w

Wy, David De Vries, Development Services Director
City of Lemmon Grove

Davelopment Services Department

3232 bhain Street

Lemon Grove, CA B194%

Bg Wy B

Re: Contract Addendum 2, Exhibiz €
Dear My. De Yries:

This letter proposal describes the added services that maks up Contract Addendum 2, Exhibir C
to the Agreement between the City of Lemon Grove and CityPlace Planning, Inc. to provide
professional planning services in support of the General Plan Update.

The addutional services will include the following:

* feview of the draft Program Environmental impact Report [PEIR) for compliance with
CEGA and State of California General Plan [GP] Guidelines, including commants and
revisions,

*  Review of the draft General Plan Update docament for compliance with GP Guidelines
and feedback from the community and City Council, including comments and revisions,

*  Format the draft and final General Plan to match the formatting of the Health &
WWellness Element;

» Arvend and participate in up to four public hearings;

»  Advise City staff on GP issues and opportunities; and

“  Perform other related duties,

CityPlace Planning will bill for time and materials, using the same rates found in Exhibit A at an
amount not 1o exceed 526,920 00, CityPlace Planning will only bill for services requested by the
City and provided by CityPlace Planning or Civculate SanDiego staff. A detailed cost estimate is
attached.

Please let me know if you have any comments or guestions.

Sincerely,

1y 4 Fas. 5 e /{r)
{hm. A g { A {4 o
Claudia Tedford, AICP

Principal

Attachment: Cost proposal

-

AR TR I P TR A R oo by LRVt R A ) L R P AR T N1 1

S R

.

1%

@



ImNI

- S - g SITHIUGNS DUE SHSIA3] DIUCAD3ID ([T S2LUNSSE
000082 g T 07 ‘sxse) wawabeusw pafosd 'sBunssuws vostad ul g 01 dn sawnssy
008°2 ¢ - 8 mm mmm Z 3 ' FA 0 0 wawsBeuer 1sfoid pue wmm%wwww - pyseq

= s 00gs % 114 Dopasi sV
$ - $.100008Z ¢ gz 0 0 selng peieisy J2UI0 - 9 ysel
S oL’y 3 0z i pP3pasu sy
3 - $lopoZiky ¢ a2 4 0 [pamunuoddQ pue senss| 9 uo yelg QD 3SIAPY - § ¥SeL
S 0e'e g ve vonemrdsid 'sanss| o) ¥eads 'shuuesl Jugnd ¢ o) dn puany
$ - $  000%¢ce $ ¥e 0 0 sBuuesy sngnd -  yseL
s ; S L 2 WBlnI0D d9 feuld leulod
g % L 91 SUDISIART 10 5135 Z 0} din "JUSWINIOD JS) UBI( 1BuLo
3 - $ g Z 0 0z HsUWINo0og 49 jruld pue yeig Ieuilog - g'4sE]

- < . z sabuewd wies

- g - z DUE SIUSURUOD 3DIA0id "¥0BGDa3) IDUN0D AlD DUB ARUNULILOD
oooss'c g 0hse Z =1 =1 =1 pue ‘sauliepind 4o Wis sousydwsod 101 SMalkal oM o dn onpuod
0si's $ : $ ogoslt s gt 3t gt urmww ooQ 21epdn ugjd mumnmw HEI( 10 Msinsy - Z2YsEL

- 5 - g , 1) puB YOI Ui Sduenthutn 101 S50USY3 w38 pus

s 009'S $ oy piAcsd SJUAUMOP | A nNpUos
2 Ewﬁwwmm mmm Mmmm wm %mwmmm L ¥seg
$ 3JuejsiIssy [ediuydal yi3d _u:w uejd jeJauss)
jeiod __spugleyy | suny oy | 1D 8d w
1500 SiNOH Buiuueid eoeidAin

V Juswyoepy



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1.1 ‘
Mtg. Date _ April 19, 2016
Dept. Development Services

Item Title: Professional Services Agreement with Dudek for the Preparation of a Program
Environmental Impact Report for the General Plan Update

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director.

Recommendation:

Adopt a resolution (Attachment B) awarding an agreement with Dudek to provide a Program
Environmental Impact Report (PEIR) with related assistance for the General Plan update.

Item Summary:

In support of the General Plan update efforts, the City invited firms to respond to a request for
proposal (RFP) for the preparation of environmental compliance documents for the General Plan
update. The RFP was publically advertised on March 16, 2016. Three firms submitted proposals
and City staff, along with two outside panelists with related experience working with consultants on
environmental documents, conducted interviews with all three firms on April 6, 2016. Staff and the
panelists thoroughly reviewed each proposal. Based upon the proposals provided and interviews
conducted, staff recommends that an agreement (Attachment B) is awarded to Dudek for an
amount not to exceed $142,290. Dudek was viewed as having the most related experience with the
preparation of program environmental impact reports (PEIR) for General Plan updates, had staff
available to expedite processing, provided policy analysis (other firms did not), provided rational
tasks for completion within a tight time frame, made the greatest effort in understanding the
community, and they also presented the lowest cost of the three firms. The project budget includes
a contingency amount of $5,500. Staff spoke with five individuals who have worked with Dudek and
the project managers and four of the five had positive remarks, while one cautioned their practice
with air quality analysis. Staff addressed the concern with Dudek and feels confident in their abilities
to do the work assigned. The attached (Attachment A — Exhibit 1) includes the full contract and a
budget and a scope of work for completion.

Fiscal Impact:
$142,290 in professional services for the General Plan Update.

Environmental Review:
X] Not subject to review [] Negative Declaration
[] Categorical Exemption, Section [ ] Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

X None [ ] Newsletter article [] Notice to property owners within 300 ft.
] Notice published in local newspaper [ ] Neighborhood meeting
Attachments:

A. Resolution with Agreement



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO.-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
AWARDING AN AGREEMENT TO PREPARE A PROGRAM ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
REPORT FOR THE GENERAL PLAN UPDATE

WHEREAS, The General Plan was adopted in 1996. Subsequently, the City has
adopted the 2001 Broadway Commercial Project Specific Plan, the 2005 Downtown Village
Specific Plan, the 2006 Bikeways Master Plan, the 2010-2020 Housing Element, and the 2014
Health & Wellness Element; and

WHEREAS, General Plans are encouraged to be updated every 20 to 25 years per 2003
State Guidelines for General Plans; and

WHEREAS, the City Council identified an update to the Lemon Grove General Plan as a
priority goal in FY15-16 and FY16-17 and budgeted funding for the General Plan update; and

WHEREAS, on August 4, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution 2015-3357
approving a sponsored project agreement with Cal Poly San Luis Obispo’s (SLO) Design Studio
Team to conduct public outreach and prepare a draft community profile and General Plan
update; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2015 and October 6, 2016, the City Council formed a 14
member adhoc focus group to advise city staff and the SLO Design Studio on its efforts with the
General Plan outreach and assist with identifying issues and opportunities; and

WHEREAS, extensive public outreach was provided towards the preparation of the draft
General Plan and community profile including: 1) SLO Design Studio contact with over 120
youth and 500 adults through interviews and surveys both online and in person; 2) three focus
group meetings and related assignments; 3) On January 21, 2016, a community workshop was
conducted on community design and economic development by CityPlace Planning; 4) On
January 30, 2016, a community workshop was conducted on street development and circulation
by Circulate San Diego; and 5) On February 16, 2016, a joint community and City Council public
hearing was conducted and the City Council provided feedback related to the draft General Plan
update; and

WHEREAS, public notifications for workshops and hearings were sent via listserve,
newsflash, and updates were posted on social media and the General Plan update webpage
and focus group members and community workshop attendees were also notified about
upcoming events; and

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2016, a request for proposals was publicly advertised and
three responses were received from Dudek, REC, and Rick Engineering; and

WHEREAS, Dudek has special knowledge and expertise related to General Plan PEIR’s
based on their recent experience; and

WHEREAS, staff concluded that Dudek submitted a responsive and responsible
proposal in the amount of $142,290.00; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the public interest that an agreement for said
services is awarded to Dudek; and

WHEREAS, Dudek has agreed to the attached professional agreement terms and scope
of work as presented herein (Exhibit 1); and



Attachment A

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: |

1. Awards an agreement (Exhibit 1) to Dudek for $142,290.00 (optional items may be
considered by subsequent resolution); and

2. Authorizes the City Manager or designee to execute agreement and manage all
- project-documentation— -—— -

11
11111



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

AGREEMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE DOCUMENTS
RELATED TO THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE GENERAL PLAN UPDATE
BY AND BETWEEN
THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE
AND
DUDEK

THIS AGREEMENT is approved and effective upon the date of the last signature, by
and between the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, a municipal corporation (the “CITY"), and
Dudek, a professional environmental firm (the “CONTRACTOR”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONTRACTOR to provide professional
environmental services.

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the CONTRACTOR is a professional
environmental firm and is qualified by experience, specific project knowledge, and ability to
perform the Project Manager and supporting environmental services desired by the CITY, and
the CONTRACTOR is willing to perform such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS
FOLLOWS:

1. ENGAGEMENT OF CONTRACTOR. The CITY hereby agrees to engage the
CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set
forth in accordance with all terms and conditions contained herein.

The CONTRACTOR represents that all services required hereunder will be
performed directly by the CONTRACTOR or under direct supervision of the CONTRACTOR.

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. The CONTRACTOR will perform services for the
preparation and certification of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Compliance
Documents for the General Plan Update as further defined in the attached Exhibit “A*beginning
on page 11.

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing services for the preparation and
certification of California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Compliance Documents for the
General Plan Update consistent with the budget and scope of work in Exhibit “A”. The
CONTRACTOR shall not rely on personnel of the CITY for such services, except as authorized
in advance by the CITY and as referenced in Exhibit “A”. The CONTRACTOR shall appear at
meetings cited.

The CITY may unilateraily, or upon request from the CONTRACTOR, from time to time
reduce or increase the Scope of Services to be performed by the CONTRACTOR under this
Agreement. Upon doing so, the CITY and the CONTRACTOR agree to meet in good faith and
confer for the purpose of negotiating a corresponding reduction or increase in the compensation
associated with said change in services.

3. PROJECT COORDINATION AND SUPERVISION.
David DeVries, Development Services Director, is hereby designated as the
Project Manager for the CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this Agreement.
The CONTRACTOR shall assign a single professional analyst to act as the Project Director, or
Principal in Charge, to provide supervision and have overall responsibility for the progress and




Attachment A - Exhibit |

execution of this Agreement for the CONTRACTOR. Carey Fernandes thereby is designated as
the Project Director for the CONTRACTOR.

4. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT. The compensation for the CONTRACTOR shall
be based on monthly billings covering actual work performed. Billings shall include labor
classifications, respective rates, hours worked and also materials, if any. The total cost for all
work described in Exhibit “A“shall not exceed the base amount of $142,290.00 (optional tasks
will be considered under a separate agreement), without prior written authorization from the
City's Project Manager. Monthly invoices will be processed for payment and remitted within
thirty (30) days from receipt of invoice, provided that work is accomplished consistent with
Exhibit “A*as determined by and in the sole discretion of the CITY.

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all books, documents, papers, employee time sheets,

accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to costs incurred and shall make such
materials available at its office at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and
for three (3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, for inspection by the

CITY and for furnishing of copies to the CITY, if requested.

5. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT. The duration of this agreement will be until November
30, 2016 unless an extension is otherwise mutually agreed upon and approved.

6. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP_ OF DOCUMENTS. The Memoranda, Reports,
Maps, Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR
for this Project, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property of the CITY for use with
respect to this Project, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon completion of the Project, or
any phase thereof, as contemplated by this Agreement. By accepting payment for completion,
filing and delivering documents as called for in this paragraph, the CONTRACTOR discharges
the City of all of the City’s payment obligations and liabilities under this agreement.

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONTRACTOR hereby
assigns to the CITY and CONTRACTOR thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright
in, and the right to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work
prepared under this agreement, except upon the CITY's prior authorization regarding
reproduction, which authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONTRACTOR
shall, upon request of the CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate
this waiver and disclaimer.

The CONTRACTOR agrees that the CITY may use, reuse, alter, reproduce, modify,
assign, transfer, or in any other way, medium or method utilize the CONTRACTOR's written
work product for the CITY’s purposes, and the CONTRACTOR expressly waives and disclaims
any residual rights granted to it by Civil Code Sections 980 through 989 relating to intellectual
property and artistic works.

Any modification or reuse by the CITY of documents, drawings or specifications
prepared by the CONTRACTOR shall relieve the CONTRACTOR from liability under Section 14
but only with respect to the effect of the modification or reuse by the CITY, or for any liability to
the CITY should the documents be used by the CITY for some project other than what was
expressly agreed upon within the Scope of this project, unless otherwise mutually agreed.



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Both parties hereto in the performance of this
Agreement will be acting in an independent capacity and not as agents, employees, partners or
joint ventures with one another. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the CONTRACTOR'S
employees are employees of the CITY and are not entitled to any of the rights, benefits, or
privileges of the CITY’s employees, including but not limited to retirement, medical, unemploy-
ment, or workers’ compensation insurance.

This Agreement contemplates the personal services of the CONTRACTOR and the
CONTRACTOR’s employees, and it is recognized by the parties that a substantial inducement
to the CITY for entering into this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and
competence of the CONTRACTOR and its employees. Neither this Agreement nor any interest
herein may be assigned by the CONTRACTOR without the prior written consent of the CITY.
Nothing herein contained is intended to prevent the CONTRACTOR from employing or hiring as
many employees, or subcontractors, as the CONTRACTOR may deem necessary for the proper
and efficient performance of this Agreement. All agreements by CONTRACTOR with its
subcontractor(s) shall require the subcontractor to adhere to the applicable terms of this
Agreement.

8. CONTROL. Neither the CITY nor its officers, agents or employees shall have any
control over the conduct of the CONTRACTOR or any of the CONTRACTOR’s employees
except as herein set forth, and the CONTRACTOR expressly agrees not to represent that the
CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR’s agents, servants, or employees are in any manner
agents, servants or employees of the CITY, it being understood that the CONTRACTOR, its
agents, servants, and employees are as to the CITY wholly independent contractors and that
the CONTRACTOR’s obligations to the CITY are solely such as are prescribed by this
Agreement.

9. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW. The CONTRACTOR, in the performance
of the services to be provided herein, shall comply with all applicable State and Federal statutes
and regulations, and all applicable ordinances, rules and regulations of the CITY OF LEMON
GROVE, whether now in force or subsequently enacted. The CONTRACTOR, and each of its
subcontractors, shall obtain and maintain a current CITY OF LEMON GROVE business license
prior to and during performance of any work pursuant to this Agreement.

10. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC. The CONTRACTOR represents and covenants that it
has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally
required to practice its profession. The CONTRACTOR represents and covenants that the
CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of
this Agreement, any license, permit, or approval which is legally required for the CONTRACTOR
to practice its profession. Submittals Required with the Agreement. Failure of the
CONTRACTOR to provide the following documentation with the executed agreement will cause
delay in the agreement being executed by the City:

A. Insurance as specified in Section 15 of this agreement;
B. Taxpayer ldentification Number (W-9)
hittp Awww, irs. gov/publirs-pdi/iwg. pdf;
C. IRS Letter of Non-Profit 501 (c) (3) (If Applicable);
D. City Business License;

11. STANDARD OF CARE.
A. The CONTRACTOR, in performing any services under this Agreement, shall
perform in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members
of the CONTRACTOR’S trade or profession currently practicing under similar conditions and in




Attachment A - Exhibit |

similar locations. The CONTRACTOR shall take all special precautions necessary to protect
the CONTRACTOR's employees and members of the public from risk of harm arising out of the
nature of the work and/or the conditions of the work site.

B. Unless disclosed in writing prior to the date of this agreement, the
CONTRACTOR warrants to the CITY that it is not now, nor has it for the five (5) years
preceding, been debarred by a governmental agency or involved in debarment, arbitration or
litigation proceedings concerning the CONTRACTOR'’s professional performance or the
furnishing of materials or services relating thereto.

C. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for identifying any unique products,
treatments, processes or materials whose availability is critical to the success of the project the
CONTRACTOR has been retained to perform, within the time requirements of the CITY, or,
when no time is specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. Accordingly, unless the
CONTRACTOR has notified the CITY otherwise, the CONTRACTOR warrants that all products,
materials, processes or treatments identified in the project documents prepared for the CITY are
reasonably commercially available. Any failure by the CONTRACTOR to use due diligence
under this sub-paragraph will render the CONTRACTOR liable to the CITY for any increased
costs that result from the CITY's later inability to obtain the specified items or any reasonable
substitute within a price range that allows for project completion in the time frame specified or,
when not specified, then within a commercially reasonable time.

D. City’s Right to Terminate for Default. If the CONTRACTOR fails to perform or
adequately perform any obligation required by this agreement, the CONTRACTOR’s failure
constitutes a Default. If the CONTRACTOR fails to satisfactorily cure a Default within ten (10)
calendar days of receiving a written notice from the City specifying the nature of the Default, the
City may immediately cancel and/or terminate this Agreement, and terminate each and every
right of the CONTRACTOR, and any person claiming any rights by or through the
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. The rights and remedies of the City enumerated in this
paragraph are cumulative and shall not limit the City’s rights under any other provision of this
Agreement, or otherwise waive or deny any right or remedy, at law or in equity, existing as of
the date of this Agreement or enacted or established at a later date, that may be available to the
City against the CONTRACTOR.

12. NON-DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS, The CONTRACTOR shall not
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, color,
ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or
medical condition. The CONTRACTOR will take positive action to insure that applicants are
employed without regard to their age, race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or medical condition. Such action shall include
but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or
recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and
selection for training, including apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in
conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided
by the CITY setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. The CITY may from time to time communicate to
the CONTRACTOR certain confidential information to enable the CONTRACTOR to effectively
perform the services to be provided herein. The CONTRACTOR shall treat all such information
as confidential and shall not disclose any part thereof without the prior written consent of the
CITY. The CONTRACTOR shall limit the use and circulation of such information, even within its
own organization, to the extent necessary to perform the services to be provided herein. The
foregoing obligation of this Section 13, however, shall not apply to any part of the information
that (i) has been disclosed in publicly available sources of information; (ii) is, through no fault of
the CONTRACTOR, hereafter disclosed in publicly available sources of information; (iii) is




Attachment A - Exhibit 1

already in the possession of the CONTRACTOR without any obligation of confidentiality; (iv)
has been or is hereafter rightfully disclosed to the CONTRACTOR by a third party, but only to
the extent that the use or disclosure thereof has been or is rightfully authorized by that third
party; or (v) is disclosed according to law or court order.

The CONTRACTOR shall not disclose any reports, recommendations, conclusions or
other results of the services or the existence of the subject matter of this Agreement without the
prior written consent of the CITY. In its performance hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall
comply with all legal obligations it may now or hereafter have respecting the information or other
property of any other person, firm or corporation.

CONTRACTOR shall be liable to CITY for any damages caused by breach of this
condition, pursuant to the provisions of Section 14.

14. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the CITY, and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any
and all claims, demands, costs or liability that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence,
recklessness, or williful misconduct of CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents, and
subcontractors in the performance of services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR’s duty to
indemnify under this section shall not include liability for damages for death or bodily injury to
persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole negligence
or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees.
CONTRACTOR's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of
this Agreement. The CITY AND CONTRACTOR expressly agree that any payment, attorney's
fees, costs or expense CITY incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the
CITY’s self-administered workers' compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the
purposes of this section, and that this section will survive the expiration or early termination of
this Agreement.

15. INSURANCE. The CONTRACTOR, at its sole cost and expense, shall purchase
and maintain, and shall require its subcontractors, when applicable, to purchase and maintain
throughout the term of this agreement, the following insurance policies:

X A. If checked, Professional Liability Insurance (errors and omissions) with minimum
limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence.

B. Automobile insurance covering all bodily injury and property damage incurred during
the performance of this Agreement, with a minimum coverage of $1,000,000 combined single
limit per accident. Such automobile insurance shall include hired and non-owned vehicles.

C. Comprehensive general liability insurance, with minimum limits of $1,000,000
combined single limit per occurrence, covering all personal injury, bodily injury and property
damage arising out of its operation under this Agreement. Contractual liability shall include
coverage of tort liability of another party to pay for bodily injury or property damage to a third
person or organization. Contractual liability limitation endorsement is not acceptable.

D. Workers’ compensation insurance covering all of CONTRACTOR's employees. The
CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the provisions of the Worker's Compensation Insurance
and Safety Acts of the State of California, the applicable provisions of Division 4 and 5 of the
California Government Code and all amendments thereto; and all similar state or Federal acts
or laws applicable; and shall indemnify, and hold harmless the CITY and its officers, and
employees from and against all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings and
judgments of every nature and description, including reasonable attorney’s fees and defense
costs presented, brought or recovered against the CITY or its officers, employees, or
volunteers, for or on account of any liability under any of said acts which may be incurred by
reason of any work to be performed by the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. That policy



Attachment A - Exhibit |

shall provide a minimum of $1,000,000 of employer’s liability coverage, and the CONTRACTOR
shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against the City
and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives.

E. The aforesaid policies shall constitute primary insurance as to the CITY, its officers,
employees, and volunteers, so that any other policies held by the CITY shall not contribute to
any loss under said insurance. Said policies shall provide for thirty (30) days prior written notice
to the CITY of cancellation or material change.

F. If any required insurance coverage is provided on a “claims made”" rather than
“occurrence” form, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain such insurance coverage for three years
after expiration of the term (and any extensions) of this Agreement.

G. Insurance shall be written with only California admitted companies which hold a
current policy holder’'s alphabetic and financial size category rating of not less than A VIII
according to the current Best's Key Rating Guide, or a company equal financial stability that is
approved by the CITY.

H. Deductibles. All deductibles on any policy shall be the responsibility of the
CONTRACTOR

|. Specific Provisions Required. Each policy required under this section shall
expressly provide, and an endorsement shall be submitted to the City, that:

1. Said policies, except for the professional liability and worker's compensation
policies, shall name the CITY and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds. The
CITY's Additional Insured status must be reflected on additional insured endorsement form CG
2012, or equivalent, which shall be submitted to the CITY.

2. The Policies cannot be canceled, non-renewed or materially changed except
after thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice by the CONTRACTOR to the CITY by certified
mail, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY except for non-
payment of premium, in which case ten (10) days’ notice will be provided.

3. This Agreement shall not take effect until certificate(s) or other sufficient proof that
these insurance provisions have been complied with, are filed with and approved by the CITY.
If the CONTRACTOR does not keep all of such insurance policies in full force and effect at all
times during the terms of this Agreement, the CITY may elect to treat the failure to maintain the
requisite insurance as a breach of this Agreement and terminate the Agreement as provided
herein.

4. The CONTRACTOR may obtain additional insurance not required by this
Agreement.

16. LEGAL FEES. If any party brings a suit or action against the other party arising
from any breach of any of the covenants or agreements or any inaccuracies in any of the
representations and warranties on the part of the other party arising out of this Agreement, then
in that event, the prevailing party in such action or dispute, whether by final judgment or out-of-
court settlement, shall be entitled to have and recover of and from the other party all reasonable
costs and expenses of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

17. MEDIATION/ARBITRATION. If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement,
or the breach thereof, the parties agree first to try, in good faith, to settle the dispute by mutual
negotiation between the principles, and failing that through nonbinding mediation in San Diego,
California, in accordance with the Commercial Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration
Association (the “AAA”). The costs of mediation shall be borne equally by the parties.

If a third part dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any way to the
services provided under this Agreement, upon the City’s request, the CONTRACTOR, its
agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the dispute or litigation. The
CONTRACTORSs assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing professional consuitations,

-10-



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any event related to the dispute
resolution and/or litigation.

18. TERMINATION. A. This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by
the CITY. Termination without cause shall be effective only upon 30-day’s written notice to the
CONTRACTOR. During said 30-day period the CONTRACTOR shall perform all services in
accordance with this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR may terminate this agreement upon thirty
(30) days prior notice in the event of a continuing and material breach by the City of its
obligations under this Agreement including but not limited to payment of invoices.

B. This Agreement may also be terminated immediately by the CITY for cause in the
event of a material breach of this Agreement that is not cured to the City’s satisfaction within a
ten (10) day prior cure period, or material misrepresentation by the CONTRACTOR in
connection with the formation of this Agreement or the performance of services, or the failure to
perform services as directed by the CITY.

C. Termination with or without cause shall be effected by delivery of written Notice of
Termination to the CONTRACTOR as provided for herein.

D. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished Memoranda Reports, Maps,
Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR, whether
paper or electronic, shall immediately become the property of and be delivered to the CITY, and
the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work
satisfactorily completed on such documents and other materials up to the effective date of the
Notice of Termination, not to exceed the amounts payable hereunder, and less any damages
caused the CITY by the CONTRACTOR's breach, if any. Thereafter, ownership of said written
material shall vest in the CITY all rights set forth in Section 6.

E. The CITY further reserves the right to immediately terminate this Agreement upon:
(1) the filing of a petition in bankruptcy affecting the CONTRACTOR; (2) a reorganization of the
CONTRACTOR for the benefit of creditors; or (3) a business reorganization, change in business
name or change in business status of the CONTRACTOR.

F. The termination of the services shall be effective upon receipt of the notice by the
CONTRACTOR.

19. NOTICES. All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder
shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered; or sent by overnight mail (Federal Express
or the like); or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or
sent by ordinary mail, postage prepaid; or telegraphed or cabled; or delivered or sent by telex,
telecopy, facsimile or fax; and shall be deemed received upon the earlier of (i) if personally
delivered, the date of delivery to the address of the person to receive such notice, (ii) if sent by
overnight mail, the business day following its deposit in such overnight mail facility, (iii) if mailed
by registered, certified or ordinary mail, five (5) days (ten (10) days if the address is outside the
State of California) after the date of deposit in a post office, mailbox, mail chute, or other like
facility regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service, (iv) if given by telegraph or
cable, when delivered to the telegraph company with charges prepaid, or (v) if given by telex,
telecopy, facsimile or fax, when sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other
communication delivered or sent as specified above shall be directed to the following persons:

11-



Attachment A - Exhibit |

To the CITY: David De Vries, Development Services Director
City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945-1701

To the CONTRACTOR: Carey Fernandes, Principal
Dudek
605 Third St.
Encinitas, CA 92024

Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice in the manner specified in
this Section. Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed
address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to constitute receipt of the notice,
demand, request or communication sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other
communication sent by cable, telex, telecopy, facsimile or fax must be confirmed within forty-
eight (48) hours by letter mailed or delivered as specified in this Section.

20. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND POLITICAL REFORM ACT OBLIGATIONS.
During the term of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall not perform services of any kind for
any person or entity whose interests conflict in any way with those of the CITY OF LEMON
GROVE. The CONTRACTOR also agrees not to specify any product, treatment, process or
material for the project in which the CONTRACTOR has a material financial interest, either
direct or indirect, without first notifying the CITY of that fact. The CONTRACTOR shall at all
times comply with the terms of the Political Reform Act and the Lemon Grove Conflict of Interest
Code. The CONTRACTOR shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the
CONTRACTOR has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. The
CONTRACTOR represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests that would require
it to disqualify itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY.

If the CONTRACTOR violates any conflict of interest laws or any of these provisions
in this section, the violation shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement.
Further, the violation subjects the Contractor to liability to the CITY for attorney fees and all
damages sustained as a result of the violation.

X If checked, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the reporting
requirements of the Political Reform Act and the CITY OF LEMON GROVE Conflict of Interest
Code. Specifically, the CONTRACTOR shall:

Go to www.fppc.ca.qov

Download the Form 700: Statement of Economic Interests

Completely fill out the form

Submit the form to the Public Works Department with the signed contracts.

The CONTRACTOR shall be strictly liable to the CITY for all damages, costs or
expenses the CITY may suffer by virtue of any violation of this Paragraph 21 by the
CONTRACTOR.

21. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

A. Computation of Time Periods. If any date or time period provided for in this
Agreement is or ends on a Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday, then such date
shall automatically be extended until 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time of the next day which is not a
Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday.

HPON =

-12-



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

B. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in muitiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute but one and the
same instrument.

C. Captions. Any captions to, or headings of, the sections or subsections of this
Agreement are solely for the convenience of the parties hereto, are not a part of this Agreement,
and shall not be used for the interpretation or determination of the validity of this Agreement or
any provision hereof.

D. No Obligations to Third Parties. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the
execution and delivery of this Agreement shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon, or
obligate any of the parties hereto, to any person or entity other than the parties hereto.

E. Exhibits and Schedules. The Exhibits and Schedules attached hereto are hereby
incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes.

F. Amendment to this Agreement. The terms of this Agreement may not be modified or
amended except by an instrument in writing executed by each of the parties hereto.

G. Waiver. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not
operate as a waiver of any future breach of any such provision or any other provision hereof.

H. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of California.

l. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations
and communications, oral or written, and contains the entire agreement between the parties as
to the subject matter hereof. No subsequent agreement, representation, or promise made by
either party hereto, or by or to an employee, officer, agent or representative of any party hereto
shall be of any effect unless it is in writing and executed by the party to be bound thereby.

J. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to
the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

K. Construction. The parties acknowledge and agree that (i) each party is of equal
bargaining strength, (ii) each party has actively participated in the drafting, preparation and
negotiation of this Agreement, (iii) each such party has consulted with or has had the
opportunity to consult with its own, independent counsel and such other professional advisors
as such party has deemed appropriate, relative to any and all matters contemplated under this
Agreement, (iv) each party and such party’s counsel and advisors have reviewed this
Agreement, (v) each party has agreed to enter into this Agreement following such review and
the rendering of such advice, and (vi) any rule or construction to the effect that ambiguities are
to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement,
or any portions hereof, or any amendments hereto.

L. Severability. The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this
Agreement shall not render any other provision of this Agreement unenforceable, invalid, or
illegal.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date
and year first above written.

13-



Attachment A - Exhibit |

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

Date:

By:

Lydia Romero
City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Date:

By:

James P. Lough
City Attorney

-14-

DUDEK

(Corporation — signatures of two corporate officers)
(Partnership — one signature)

(Sole proprietorship — one signature)

Date:

By:
(Name)

(Title)

Date:

By:

(Name)

(Title)



EXHIBIT A

L “\Hﬂ\\\HH\\\\\\\\‘u}u}}}}}lmulm\\\\\\\\w

”‘“‘“‘“““““““““““““‘““““““‘“‘“‘““““““““““““‘“““““““‘”””””””‘”“““‘HMU A

e i

g

ﬁHHHHHH M \

L i H
s T o
"“\uummmuuummmHHHHHHH\HHHHHHW |
"““WWWWWWWWWWWWW\H\HH\\\HH\\\HH\\\HH\\\HH\\\H\\\HH\\\HH\\\HH\\\HH\\‘\‘\W\‘\HHHHHWWHW

R




EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A

Table of Cont

SECTIONS

1 CZOVET LEHLET 1o oovee et ekt 00 k£ b 1
i PIOJEEE PEISOIINEL...oovorssseseeceoeesi s et 1110 0 1
3 Dscussion Of SIMIEr PrOJECS. i i oo i oo sisrsis vt ssscesessesss s cnscssssocces 9
4 Rate Sheet. ..,
5 Scope of Work and Project Strategy ...
6 Additional Funding....... oo

/ INSLITANCE v,

TABLE
1 Proposed EIR SCHEUIE . ... o oo st s ottt st b et 4

FIGURE
1 Dudek Team Organizational CHarT..... ... oo+ et

DWDEK ER for General Plan Update x



EXHIBIT A

INTENTIONALLY L

" BLANK

(st

DUDE

EIR for General Plan Upcate il




i

w /?
Y

EXHIBIT A

P

1  Cover Letter

April 12, 2016

David DeVries

City of l....emrw Grove
Development Services Director
3232 Mdlﬂ slreet

Lermon Grove, California 91945

Subject: City of Lemon Grove General Plan Update EIR
Dear Mr. DeVries:

Dudek is excited for the opportt mil"y o support the City of Lemon Grove (City's) goal to poﬂa e its General Plan.
Dudek planners are committed to helping California’s cities create, plan, and im \pﬂwmw unigue community
vision. As a midsized firm, we not only offer a depth and variety Qﬁ services, but our project managers are
nimble problem solvers who stay involved in clients’ projects from start to finish

The Right Experience We understand that the City will be updating its General Plan with a focus on
implementing complete streets and multimodal a(..,.”»mh ity. An important component of the general plan
pro in California is preparation of an environmental document that reviews and evaluates proposed new
land uses and infrastructure, as well as goals, policies, and implementation programs. A program environmental
impact report (EIR) that is designed to facilitate future tiering of projects consistent with the General Plan Update
can serve City staff well in streamlining future environmental rw ew. As plarning and California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) experts, Dudek understands how to get the most out of a program-level env mnmmt r
analysis. Recently, our team has successfully completed similar program-level environmental documents f@{
Cities of La Mesa, Carlsbad, Escondido, Santee, Upland, and Sierra Madre as well as County of Imperial. T
experience and our depth of planning and environmental knowledge in Southern California will help us pomrm
the requested work in a timely, thorough, and cost-effective manner.

3

R@fp@m“w and Experienced Project Team (.'f}ur e:?xp@ri@m;@d and available project management team will
manage all aspects of the project. Carey Fernandes, AICP, will serve as principal in charge. Ms. Fernandes has over 19
years' experience in planning al m environmental mpa( ar akyfw Ms. Fernandes has prepared specific plang,
ordinances, and Ck QA documentation for cities and public (ﬂwms hrot sghout Southern California, including Lemon
Grove and nearby La Mesa Asha Rmow p oject manager and main point of contact, will make this contract a top
p ority. Ms Bleier has prepared numerous program-level C E’QA documents for the San Diego region She is well
ersed in mplomwr ing mmph@ﬂ:m stre sard is ac '\fﬁ[y 'r'wm[ved in Ci m [d te %an U" gm as a \Acwav A\\Uudmm rmern [b@r

55 1S & Umque* d@m dﬂdl mq of mw ﬁwsﬁ 1[0 {mm; ol m vho Ci I.‘y’b ob eclives W t\ 1S UJ O_JQ(, :

gi

udek is willing to enter imto a mutual e‘xgr@e" nent and final scope of work with the City of Lernon Grove, We
look forward to this opportunity to work with your staff. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact
Carey Fernandes at cfernandes@dudek.com or Asha Bleier at ableier@dudek.com.

Sincerely,
e o .
) /¢
b /o ‘ {0
Frar wk Dudek,. Carey Feridir
: rf-.-.%md ent Principal

)

K EIR for Gene

an Update i

e



EXHIBIT A

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

EYLIDER Rk

"/



EXHIBIT A

Dudek has assermbled a highly qualified team with extensive experience in the San Diego region to undertake
this project. We will utilize our in-house environmental specialists to meet the needs of the project. Dudek staff
members have recent experience as consulting planners on general plans, specific plans, and large planned
developments. We have also included traffic consultant, Linscott, Law & Greenspan, Engineers (LLG), on our
tearn. LLG has successfully completed tre '“c:t impact reports and complete streels assessm @u'W for general plan
updates throughout the San Diego region. Dudek and LLG have a long history working toget

Under the careful direction of our project manager and task leaders, our team will provide the City with the
environmental expertise necessary to efficiently complete a program-level EIR for the City's General Plan
Update. The team organizational structure is shown in Figure 1. Brief team member biographies are
provided below,

| in Charge

Carey Fernandes, AICP
Carey Fernandes is a senior project manager with 19 years’ WWCATION
professional - planning-related  experience specializing in the | San Diego State UWVOV’SW
planning, environmental, and development industries. Her diverse | MA, Public Administration, 1998
background of education and experience Inc ,udm permit | University of California, Santa Barbara
processing with local jurisdictions, coordination with public agency | BA, English, 1993

staff, preparation of CEQA and National Erwironmenta Po[ icy Act | CERTIFICATION

(NEPA) documents, project management, due diligence, and | American Institute of Certified Planners
feasibility analysis. {AICP), Certificate No. 016067

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

As a senior project manager, she has worked on a number of | American Planning Association, Board of

planning documents, such as specific plans, comprehensive | Directors, 20002002, 2005-Present

plans, and general plan updates. In addition, she has served as | Association of Environmental Professionals

on-call planning staff for several public agencies. She has also

served as project manager and primary author of many environmental review documerm throughout San

Dmg@ and Imperial counties. She also works with several Native American tribes in the western United States
1 the preparation of tribal environmental documents. Through this experience, E»Eh@ has developed a broad

U nd@r.s anding of policy, planning, and environmental issues.

1

A

EIR for General D[(m pz ate

T,

DUD




Project Manager

Asha Bleier, AICP
Asha Bleier is a project manager with more than 10 years
experience in environmental p[ann“nq and land development. Ms,
Bleier has experience preparing planning reports, such as specific
plans and general plans, as well as project-specfi f C
recommendations concerning land use, zoning, design, and
environmental issues. She has managed several projects including
master-planned residential communities, mixed-use, commercial,
active recreation, large-scale solar 'farms and public service
facilities, each requiring extensive environmental analysis, and
compliance with CEQA or NEPA,

Ms. Bleier currently serves as the professional development office
for the San Diego Section of the American Planning /xff'umihor
She is also a member of San Diego's Complete Street Task Force
and co-author of the white paper, From Policy to Pavement -
mplementing Complete Streets in the San Diego  Region,
published in Spring 2012. The white paper equips local
governments with a roadmap to successfully implement complete
streets and, 0 turn, achieve an interconnected  multi-modal
network throughout
Alliance, which endorses early stage development proj

CEQA Analyst

Shannon Wages, AICP
Shannon Wages, AICP is an environmental planner with over 13
years' experience specializing in managing long-range planning
documents as well as complex land use entitlernent projects. Ms
Wages has m.,;f.;(;e;}sfu[y managed the preparation of multiple
general plans, specific plans, zoning ordinances, housing
elements, downtown plans, visioning plans, corridor studies and
economic feasibility studies, receiving several awards from the
American Planning Association for her planning projects Ms
Wages also helps cities implement their plans
and ﬂne}mf"ir'\q W'Whar ISrs
community outreach to achieve desired project
planning and conce
facilitating positive growth and change in the communitie

that realize t

i // IR

""" EIR for General Plan

Update

the region. Her expertise also led her to serve as a panelist
s in the San [
commitment to transit-oriented development and smart growth principles,

....... EDUCATION

Umwu’c“ ity of California, Santa Barbara
BA. Environmental Studies,
Geography/Urban Planning
Emphasis, 2005
CERTIFICATIONS
AICF {issued 2012)
American Institute of Arct
No. 30528635
Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Deﬂ”qm (LEED} Accredited Professional
{AP) Building Dmgm and Canstruction
(\BDMI.)

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
American Planning Association
American Institute of Architects

U8, Green Buiiding Council

Women in Architecture

nitects Associate,

on Move San Diego's Move
>go region that demonstrate a

VCATION

University of Southern California
MA, Urban Planning/Design, 2003

B m um Young University

BA, Humanities/Spanish, 2000
CERTIFICATIONS
AICK

through entitling development projects or assisting with funding
She combines her m’ erience in planning,
the comrmun
ptual design, to certificates ..f occupancy, Ms. Wages is involved throughout
s she represents,

urban design, development, and
ity's goals and objectives. From
the process,




Cultural/Historic Resources

Micah Hale, PhD

Micah Hale has over 16 years’ experience as a field director, | EDUCATION

ground stone analyst, flaked stone analyst, invertebrate analyst, University of California, Davis
and author. Dr. Hale currently functions as a principal investigator | PhD, Anthropology, 2009

in project oversight  including  proposals, ms&amh designs, | California State University, Sacramento
fieldwork, -rtmm '}'wuw and report authorship. He has | MA, Anthropology, 2001
experience conducting both academic and prow'"ahorwﬂ research | University of California, Davis
in archaeology at .h@ supervisory level in California, Arizona, | BS. Anthropology, 1996
Nevada, and Oregon, including work for Naval Facilities | CERTIFICATIONS
gineering Command Southwest, California Department of | Register of Professional
Transportation, Western Area Power Administration, California Archaeologists, 2001

State Parks, and various city and county agencies, and has worked

directly for Native American groups.

'

Dr. Hale has supervised numerous large-scale surveys, test excavations, and data recovery programs. He has
authored research designs, proposals, preliminary and final reports, historic preservation technical procedures,
and stone tool analyses. Dr. Hale has integrated his personal research interests into projects and participated in
professional symposia at local and national venues, including the Society for American Archaeology and the
Sodiety for California Archaeology.

Air Qual

Jennifer Reed

Jennifer Reed is an ervironmental planner with over 8 years' | EDUCATION

myper‘mm She has been responsible for the management, University of California, Santa Barbara
research, and analysis of projects subject to compliance with the | BA, Environmental Studies, 2007

CEQA and NEPA Ms Reed has completed numerous | BA, Geography, 2007

environmental documents in support of a diverse range of public | PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

and private developments. She specializes in air quality and | Association of Environmental Professionais
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions technical analyses, and | Arand Waste Management Association

contirues to be on the forefront of evolving science, emissions

modeling computer programs, and regulatory framework. Ms. Reed has prepared air quality and GHG
assessments for a wide variety of dww*[a;m@r projects throughout California, including large residential
projects, commercial and retail projects, industrial projects, mixed-use d{:v@lupm ents, colleges and universities,
healthcare facilities, energy projects, water and wastewater infrastructure, and transportation improvements,
gle Jdi'q Caltrans air quality analyses. Additionally, Ms. Reed has mmud@mbﬂ@ experience in project planning
and regulatory compliance pursuant to the California Coastal Act and has experience in land-use permit
processing, constraints analysis, development feasibility studies, due diligence investigations, and various other
land-use planning projects

I

DUDEK fRfor General Plan Update



EXHIBIT A

Noise

Mike Greene, INCE Bd. Cert.

Mike Greene is an environmental specialist/acoustician with more | EDUCATION

than 23 years' professional experience in acoustical analysis and University of California, San Diego
noise control engineering. Mr. Greene has conducted and | BS. Applied Mechanics, 1985
participated in noise and vibration analyses for hundreds of | CERTIFICATIONS
transportation,  commerdial,  industrial,  and  residential | INCE Bd. Cert.

developments throughout California and the United States. County of San Diego Approved

As a project or task manager, Mr. Greene has conducted noise studies for industrial and commercial facilities
ranging from hospitals to manufacturing plants to super-speedway facilities. He is experienced in the modeling
of existing and future roadway noise impacts using the Federal Highway Administration Traffic Noise Model
(TNM®) and Is experienced with the use of bath Sol m(M AN and Cadnas, computer software programs tor
prediction and assessment of noise levels in the vicinity of industrial facilities and other noise sources such as
roadways, railways, and airports.

Hydrology/Geology
Dylan Duvergé
Dylan Duvergé is an environmental analyst and hydrogeologist ‘ EDUCATION
with 7 years’ experience in the environmental i mduaw cmd > years' | San Francisco State University
experience providing technical analysis, geographic information | MS, Geosciences, 2011

systems (GI5) support, and project management wppom for | University of California, Santa Cruz
renewable energy, water/wastewater, and resource management | BA, Environmental Studies, 2005

projects throughout California. He specializes in the environmental

analysis of geologic and seismic hazards; soil, mineral, and paleontological resources; hydrology and
groundwater; and visual resources. Mr. Duvergé's diverse experience includes supporting CEQA and NEPA
projects with geospatial analysis and figure production in GIS, comrd'ﬂatimq public notice and outreach,
providing technical review, and providing field support for environmental site assessments, sampling, and
lithologic logging.

Plan Update



Biology
Brock O M:@qa

biologist. He \bmgs extensive experlise to hﬁ._' pmy@ct teams in
many areas, including mitigation monitoring, permitting issues
related to wetland resources and hmdt@r ed or endangered
species, wildlife biology and management, ecological assessment,
environmental  irnpact ment and mitigation,  habitat
remediation, endangered species management plan authorship,
and project management. Mr. Ortega has conducted over 20,000
hours of focused and general wildlife surveys during his
professional career.

aAsSSESs

Mir. Ortega is a recognized qualified surveyor for a number of
listed and rare amphibian and mammal @;pec'% and has federal
permits for favmus[ species. He is U.S. Fish and wildlife Service

(USFWSy-authorized  as an arr:..)w toad  (Bufo caf/foxrm/s)
emerger cy har dhwr USFWS and (.'.'.'La[ifmrr\ha D@pamm@m of Fish

inornats) throwgh@uh_ their range.

Traffic

John Keating

Mr. Keating has 30 years of professional traffic engineering
experience. He has personally prepared, participated in or
directed the preparation of about 1000 traffic impact studies,
parking studies, and roadway projects

Mr. Keating has worked closely with other professionals in the
preparation and presentation of environmental documentation
to ditizens groups, local government engineers and p[aﬂmm,
Transporiation Commissions, Planning Commissions, and Cit

Councils

Mr. Keating has managed
Qualcomm Stadium Expansion, San Diego F

Convention Center Expansion, San Diego Zoo Master Plan, SeaWorld Master Plan, the N
Visionary Plan, the [
(under construction), t
Coronado, and the

Downtown Federal Courthouse (ur
the South Embarcadero Urban €

Del Mar Fairgrounds Master Plan

...... K FIR for General Plan Update

(w1V])

traffic studies for many of the highest profile ¢
Padres Ballpark, San qum Alrport

wder construction), t
Design Plan, and the Naval Air

EXHIBIT A

ERDUCATION

Hum bolcﬂt State University
8BS, Wildlife Biology and
»fﬂanag,@ ent, 1991
c E"ﬂ" \I’Wﬂ F \I CATI O NE

American Qmmhoﬂwumgs U\rwm
Association of Field Ornithologists

Cooper Ormithological Society

Wilson Omithological Society

The Wildlife Society

Southern California Chapter of The Wildlife
Society, Board Member

k" W Wfffp@a? f’m(mz’;fg muticdy throughout its range; and

ad, California red-legged frog (Fana

Univeral t[/ of Wisconsi “n, Madison
BS, Civil Engineerin
CERTIFICA HONS

C‘ il ‘Fmﬂn@@r Cwi”fmrrvba {C43545)

M/M En g‘«nrwn’ A fizona (27067}

Professional Traffic Operalions Engineer

He has also made presentations to the California f'rw al Commission

in San Diego including the

Master Plan, San Diego
lorth Embarcadero
the San Ysidro Border Crossing
Station Morth Island in

projects i




Support Services

Dudek's team for the General Plan Update EIR will also be
supported by our in-house GIS and technical editing and
publications tearn.

GIS

Qur GIS professionals  provide services, from  Global
Positioning Systern (GPS)/mobile Pad data capture in the
field and high-end analysis and modeling, to complex web-
based application development with legacy integration to
assist public agencies and private clients in achieving their
goals. With an average of 1,200 GIS tasks completed
annually for over 200 California-based clients, our staff is

Technical Editing and Publications

Once the technical review is completed, Dudek editors will
conduct an editorial review of each deliverable, following

each document will be formatted by Dudek’s publications
staff. Dudek's publications production team verifies the
quality of each formatted docurment before publication.
Dudek's editorial team, in  collaboration  with  the
publications and information technology staff, will produce
and publish the web versions of project deliverables.

DUDEK  ER for Generd

L

0

an Update

EXHIBIT A




##

DUL

PROJECT

FIGURE 1. DUDEK TEAM ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

CEQA ANALYST
Shannon Wages

CULTURAL/HISTORICAL RESOURCES
Micah Hale, PhD

AIR QUALITY/GREENHOUSE GAS
Jennifer Reed

NOISE
Mike Greene, INCE Bd. Cert

HYDROLOGY/GEOLOGY
Dylan Duvergé

BIOLOGY
Brock Ortega, PhD

TRAFFIC
John Keating, Linscott, Law & Greenspan

PUBLICATIONS

TECHNICAL EDITING AND
|




EXHIBIT A

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

S

DD

EWC EIR for General Plan Update 8




EXHIBIT A

2
2

Lemon Grove Downtown Special Treatment Area Plan

Client: City of Lemon Grove
Contact: Carol Dick, Principal Planner, 619.825.3800, cdick@lemongrove.ca.gov
Project Completion Date: 2005
Budget: $150,000

rincipal Carey Fernandes, as a planner formerly at Mooney Planning Collaborative, was the primary author of
the specific plan and associated environmental documentation for the revitalization of downtown Lemaon Grove.
The Downtown Special Treatment Area Plan includes an approximately 10-block portion of Lemon Grove that

contains a San Diego Trolley station, City Hall and other municipal buildings, and the original business district,
oriented around the intersection of Lemon Grove Avenue and Broadway. Responsibilities included coordination
of subcommittee meetings and two evening public outreach workshops, application of transit-oriented
development policies to the specific plan, preparation of design guidelines and form-based zoning code
standards, and preparation of environmental documentation to analyze and inform the specific plan.

La Mesa Mixed-Use Overlay Zone EIR
Client: City of La Mesa
Contact: Bill Chopyk, Planning and Development Services Director, 619.667.1187,

bchopyk@cila-mesa.ca.us
Project Completion Date;
Budget:

..... Dudek assisted the City of La Mesa (City) in preparing an EIR o allow for — “The EIR for the M-U plan was
adoption of the City's Mixed-Use Urban Ovc’*r'ia\/ Zone (MUUOZ), which o controversial project. You
would add regulations and standards to the zoning code to implement  steered it through the
the objm' ives o? the (|y3 General Plan. New development is then  minefield with great skill
standards of the MUUOZ, involving residential
. ation, building height, parking, and open
Sp{;ﬂaﬁf. The mb;w tive of the MUUOZ encourages smart growth land-use
patterns, by orienting mare density around existing public transit routes, such as the trolley line. Impacts

analyzed in the FIR include traffic, air quality/climate change, and cumulative impacts.

i

and grace.,

Slanre

Patricia Rulledoe,

R T,

=l EIR for General | W y \‘_J(,“Jkﬂ'(ﬁ 9

DUD




Carlsbad General Plan Update EIR

Client; Dyett & Bhatia

Contact: Rajeev Bhatia, President, 415.956.4300, rajeev@dyettandbhatia.com
Project Completion Date:  Ongoing

Budget: $175,000

Dudek subcontracted to Dyett & Bhatia (Planners) to assist the process of the General Plan Update for the City

of Carlsbad. Dudek's involvement in the update process included the following:

e Working Papers —~ Dudek prepared working papers that served as a foundation for updating the
goals, policies, and programs in the open space and natural environment, history, arts, and cultural
resources elements. Dudek also prepared the background and regulatory setting, and assisted with

e Plan and Policy Alternatives — Dudek was part of the consultant team that provided direction
regarding potential environmental constraints for the formulation of land use alternatives, in
accordance with CEQA requirements.

e Draft General Plan — Dudek worked closely with Dyett & Bhatia during the policy development of the
Draft General Plan, including development of the Preferred Plan.

e Environmental Review (Draft and Final Program EIR) ~ Dudek is responsible for the following
elements of the associated Program EIR: biological resources; hydrology and flooding; air quality;

eismicity; energy, GHGs, and dimate change; public utilities and infrastructure -

geology, soils, and se
wastewater; historical, archaeological, and paleontological resources; noise; and hazardous materials.

Upland General Plan Update and EIR
Client: City of Upland
Contact: Jeff Zwack, Development Services Director, 909.931.4148

Project Completion Date: 2015
Budget: $350,000 (GP Update and EIR)

Shannon Wages, while with her former firm PlaceWorks, prepared the General Plan Update and EIR The
0N
and implementation of the General Plan Update and associated plans. Key issues included air quality, GHG
emissions, historic resources, noise, and transportation and traffic. The EIR will help streamiine future
development projects that align with the General Plan,

»

\

JEW.  FIR for General Plan Upda



EXHIBIT A

Sierra Madre General Plan Update and |

Client; City of Sierra Madre

Contact: Leticia Cardoso, Senior Planner, 626.355.7135
Project Completion Date: 2014

Budget; $150,000

Shannon Wages, while with her former firm PlaceWorks, was the project manager for the City of Sierra Madre’s
General Plan Update project. The General Plan Update focused on maintaining the City's small-town feel and
preserving the character of existing neighborhoods, while i rwpmvmq the neighborhoods and commercial
districts and enhancing aging structures to meet current building standards and contemporary market needs,
Some issues that were important to the City's residents and business owners that were specifically addressed in
the upc amd General Plan and EIR were conserving open space and rural character, preserving and enhancing
the City's historic fabric and resources, and ensuring adequate services and community/cultural activities

continued to be provided,

Chula Vista Bayfront Master Plan EIR

Client: San Diego UM"!F'@UI Port District

Contact: Lesiey Mishihirl, Senior Redevelopment Planner, 619.686.6469,
Inishihi@portofsandiego.org

Project Completion Date: 2010

Budget: $1,300,000

The San Diego Unified Port District hired Dudek to assist with the revision and recirculation of a complex and
high-profile EIR for the Chula Vista Bayfront Master Plan, a large-scale master plan redeveloping 550 acres of
bayfront property, including state tidelands and uplands under the District's jurisdiction, as well as uplands

under the City of Chula Vista's (City'sy jurisdiction

25

FIR issues amended and/or addressed for this project review include the following CEQA  sections:
aesthetics/visual quality, air quality, biclogy, cultural and paleontological resources, seismic/geologic hazards,
hazards and hazardous materials/public safety, hydrology/drainage/water quality, land use, planning and
zoning, noise, public services and energy, traffic/transportation/parking, population and housing, global
Warming, curmt ﬂd" ve impacts, growth inducement, and other CEQA-mandated sections. The initial Draft EIR for
the project was released for public review in Sepl ombc* /ﬂ% with the review period extended to January 2007,
A discretionary action also included a land trade with the State Lands Commission, as well as coordination with
the California Coastal Commission and joint lead agam:ﬂ@fs of the District and City. Resource permitting and
coordination on the project continues.

Issues facing the project included significant biological impacts, which involved intricate communications and
negotiations with wildlife agencies and local community groups. Most recently, the Port Compnission and Chula
Vista City Council approved the Chula Vista Bayfront Master Plan and a final EIR, which clears the path for
developrnent of waterfront property that has stood in limbo for more than 30 years.




ﬁmm stency \Imurmgmm
Client: City of Calexico

Contact; Armando G. Villa, Director of Planning & Community Development,
760.768.2105

Project Completion Date:  Ongoing

Budget: $100,000

The City of Calexico (City) contracted Dudek, in association with the Mooney Planni ing Collaborative (Mooney),
Lo inven o!de of the zoning designations fmj dm 15 identified in the exist mq zoning ordinance, as well as the
land use designations and associated policies identified in the general plan. Dudek and Mooney also conducted
ntcwmwa with key City staff to determine the effectiveness and/or consistency of the planning tools offered in
both documents, and they also conducted a public workshop to identify the community's concerns. Further,
both zoning and general plan maps were reviewed to determine inconsistencies between the long-range vision
and the implementation program, and Dudek and Mooney reviewed legislative and judicial changes in zoning
that occurred during the past 10 years to assure compliance. Finally, the planning team identified a variety of
zoning ordinance framework approaches to documents, with special focus on issues relating to the
development of mixed-use zones in the downtown area, overlapping industrial zones with commercial uses,
and state-mandated bonus densities and second unit program inclusion.

ity Council
tion

C als” confirr
on direction, including changes to the City's zorw g map usi ng (Jl S wﬁ tware and in mom nation with the: Cit

mapping staff, and i 'nc:("wpom ting approved subdivision and land use approvals. Finally, the Dude k/Moulw
team developed a public outreach program in cooperation with City staff that ensured maximum stakeholder
participation and effectiveness.

Escondido General Plan Update

Client: City of Escondido

Contact Jay Petrek, City of Escondido, 760.839.4556
Project Completion Date: 2011

Budget: $142,600

LLG prepared the Mobility Element portion of the City's General Plan Update. L.
inventory of existing conditions, future year traffic model calibrations, preparing a traffic me

G was responsible for an
f@r‘ the 2035

e
horizon year, focused model runs to selected areas of the City, and analyses of numerous scenarios A
Complete St W("l‘f mi[“y assessment, vehicle miles traveled analysis and a technical report m |n(;c:u’p(;>r'auom

into the ed. The Traffic study for this project won LLG the Association of Environmenta
Professionals OU[.?E.’(S‘;’?O/J!U E’edmfmf Report of the Yearin 2013

DUD




XH
S0 k Lhs
Santee General Plan Update
Client: City of Santee
Contact: Doug Williford (former Santee Planning Director), City of Irvine,
949.724.6308
Project Completion Date: 2001
Budget: $108,000

LLG completed the Circulation Element of the City of Santee General Plan. Future traffic volumes were
determined using the approriate SANDAG Traffic Forecast Model. Several alternative network scenarios were
accessed. The analysis of over 50 intersections and 50 street segments was conducted for both the existing and
future time frames. All modes of transportation were addressed. Recommendations were made to ensure that
the proposed roadway network could accommodate the forecasted volumes.

County of Imperial General Plan Update

Client: City of Calexico

Contact: Jurg Heuberger, County of Imperial, 760.482.4236
Froject Completion Date: 2005

Budget: $49,000

LLG completed the Circulation Element for the Imperial County General Plan update. Traffic volumes were
forecasted for over 100 roadways in the County. A detailed existing conditions analysis was completed and an
analysis at build-out was conducted. Street classifications were recommended to accommodate build-out
traffic. Level of Service capacities and cross sections were recommended for each classification. A full traffic
report was completed addressing all aspects of transportation in the County. LLG attended the Planning
Commission and Board of Supervisors Hearing to discuss the project.

4.



INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

i
EIR Ton Generat Plan Update

EXHIBIT A




D

oy

I

EXHIBIT A

DUDEK

2016 STANDARD SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

ING SERVICES
pelor.,

JEws)
Project Dis

I Mﬂ:naqel
tior Project Manager

LR COMBE MY L SRER
cipal

Senior Projec
Senior Project Mar
vireamental Sp
ironnental Sp
vironmental
vironmental
vvuwmmclnml Specialist/
nental Specialist /P

Aurﬂy" |
Analyst |
Plarn

I R W)

ES

ologist 1)

eologist |

amloglsﬂ Wh
st

HRCHBEDLOGICAL B

ironmentsl Spt i
vironmental &

Faleontaogist |
cian 1M
i 1L
i cigrr |
¢ a0 [l
Mpcheeclogis! Technioian |

ok B
vl e qu
St

bR ERTERT

T E

R, FIR for Ger

ral Plan

Update

. 5265 00Mmr

.. B85 GOMmr

L B150 00Mmr
L B35 00mr
... $120 60mr

. 95 00Mr

L 5240.00me
. %225 00

Lo B185.008
. M/’J o0y

" F170 00mr

. $215 00mr

. $180 00Mr

. $150 00hr

Fommmwzsc %

Compliance FJerM (,mr[‘ima?or .
Cornpliance Monior

MY RROGEOLOGICAL SERVIC
Principal ..
Pringipal Hytjm
Sr Hydragedolor
Sr Hydrogealogls
ml Hydmgmbrygv

195 00/Mmr

00Mme
$16E OOmr

85 00Mmr

l-iyd)‘oge&)lo@tﬁh‘ !
Technigian ...

g TricT Mama ATIONS
Dishri ral e
Distric L1
Operalions Manager

District Secrelary/fccountant .
Collections Systern Manager .,

Grade V Operator

Grade IV Omuaﬂw

Grade 11 O
Grade 1l O
&:Fju O0mr Grace | Oper

75 00mr Cperalor in Training

Colleclion Maintenance Werher |1
Catleclion Meintenance Worker |

215 Q0

Qomr
a0mr
$200 00mr
$1680.00Mmr

ft,)r FICE BERVICES
Z @J"F’h’rg/CA DU Services

B1EC 00Mmr
F150 Ohr
G140 OOmr

$205 00mr

14 VOO/ﬁl‘ Technical
ng QG Technical £
&f{ QOdmr rackmml

3;7&3 aomr
B35 00Mr

(,!cmwl Adirninistration |

. 85

5205 0tir
G145 00Mmr
108 00

85 00mr

F260 00Mmr
F240 /e
225 00Mmr
210 00y
5195 00Mr

. B180 00

160 G0hr
F150 00hr

Lo 140 O0Mr
L 5130 00/

120 00/hr

L $110 00Mr

$100.00/nr

F185 00Mmr
§175 00
150 00mr

L F100 00k
. 5100 00/

$100 O0mhr

$90 00hr
Qo
$63.00Mr
$55 Q0mr
$40 00Mmr
$60.00Mmr
45 Ol

5156 00Mr
$148 O0hw
$135 00Me
$130.00m¢

. MZ’}C} GWM

513 Oﬂfhn
§125 00mr
125 00Mr
$120 GOmr
8105 00hr

555 00mr

85 00mr

B145 Q0Mr
5130 00Mr

4 00Mhr
80 00Mr

195 Qe

. and e

galories o5

argic B trigy it

wiltss wil e billeu ot 2.00 imex nmmal v,
Ernmergency and Holldays -
Uimes e porral rabe

160 00Mhr

3’:140 Oi?lhl' Miaterinl s Quiside Servces ~ Subceniraclors ventist of
140 00/ spocial reproductions and bluspritiing outside dala proce
& Ol sendees efc, arg ch, o b 115 lires (he direct cost

a Trawel penses ~ WMisags ol curent RS
120 aomr VR iy B volved 15 chiarged ot cost
Irwple

ared payable upon recel
Ihe diate of (e Irvate
merth of the oulshanding balance undil pald I full
Armaal (nergases -
Bl ity

Winimum charge of wo hows will be bilted al 174

ciat wauiproent
ek copty

altowable rates Per diem where

5 wiflh e bitled 1o Cliant monihly and shal be due
ices are delinguent i nol patd wilkin 3O days from
la piy & monibly lale charge equat to 1% per

Unless idenbfied olhervdse lhese slandard rddes will incease

cllve Janwary 1, 2016

Wi




EXHIBIT A

i
| LINSCOTT
LAW &

' GREENSPAN

FEE SCHEDULE

Effective November 1, 2008

Engineers & Plonners

Traflic
PERHOUR Transporiation
Pgriting
Principals
Principal Engineer.... 252,00 Linsoott, Law &
Associate Principal Engineer 216.00 Graonspen, Enginsers
Planning/Desighn Manamer . oo i s evvess s oo veserns w28 201.00 4542 Ruftner Streat
Suite 10
Transportation Engineers San Blage , LA 92111
Senior Transportation Engineer, N 178.00 8 300,800 v
Transporiation Enginger 111 .. e 158.00 B58.300.8610 ¢
Transportation Engineer 17 ... 133.00 Wi igenginaers.cam
Trausportation Engineer L. oo v 114.00
Pasadena
Transportation Flanners Irvine
Senior Transportation Planner , 158.00 San Diego
Transportation Planner ¥ . 133.00 Whoodland Hills
Transportation Plaoner IL.. . 114.00
Transportation Panner . ... oo v vevsienn 102.00
Fechnicul Support
Engincering Associate ... Y 3.00
Engineering Associate L., o 109.00
Engineering Computer ﬂ\nal»st .. $ 108.00
Engineering Computor Analyst ..., o 85.00
Senior CADD Drafter v 108.00
CADD Dralter T .. N % 102,00
CADD Drafier 1Y (GI‘J bp;.cm]m I) 90.00
CADD Drafter 1., T
Senior Engineering Technician .. 109.00
Engineering Technician 11.... 102.00
Engingering Technician | 77.00
Administrative/Marketing Assistant T2.00
Engineering Aide Lo v 55.00

Pobslic Hewring and litigation suppert mmy be charged at 125% of the base rote  Consultation in connestion with

litigation and Court appearances will be quoted separately

ailing standard i
raes will be hilled ot

vale as cetermined by 1he IRS
plus 5%

Project-relatsd mileage will be billed al the pre
Subcontractors and other project-related expes

aight time. Overtime will be clarged at 1,50 thmes the standard hourly rles.
iments will be presented for completed work. Thase will be due and payable upon
wngements are made A Gnanee sharge o | 5% ooy be charged ewch montly on e

Th M)wmu\w ule s fo
Tt or oy s

pres 'umunw 1 wiless prior av
witpaid balanes

v

Plan Update 16

DUD

E I

R for General




EXHIBIT A

5 Scope of Work and Project Strategy

This scope of work is based on our understanding of the project given the information provided in the RFQ, as well as
our conversations with David DeVries and Miranda Evans at the City. Dudek understands the City is updating their
General Plan with a focus on complete streets. The City aims to provide: all residences with access to neighborhood
parks and bike, pedestrian and/or equestrian pathways within 0.25 mile. The City plans to rezone certain properties to
park and commercial uses in order to achieve this goal. The City also wishes to create a pedestrian and bike master
plan, as well as an equestrian and trails master plan as a part of the General Plan Update.

The {o[ﬂowng scope of work for preparation of the General Plan Update EIR adwnd@d into five major tasks: Task
1 Scoping, Task 2 Technical Studies, Task 3: Draft EIR, Task 4: Final EIR, MMRP and Findings, and Task 5: Project
Managem em, fMeetings and Hearings.

The following assumptions were made in preparation of this scope of work:

» A cear description of the General Plan Update will be provided to Dudek by the project team,
o The General Plan Updew@ does not propose substantial changes in land use or increases in density.

e The General Plar Update is anticipated Lo have a low level of public controversy.
s The General Plan's Housing Flement was recently updated in 2010 and therefore, no changes are
proposed to the Housing Element.

o Inorder to keep costs to a minimun, the General Plary Update EIR will build off of the 1596 General
Plan Master EIR to the greatest extent possible. Dudek staff will work with the project team to obtain
updated information, where necessary, for areas such as existing conditions and setting,

» The City has a separate contract with Rick Engineering to prepare an expanded Downtown Village
Specific Plan, including traffic and land use analyses. The Downtown Village area will be a placeholder
as a Special Treatment Area (STA) in the General Plan Update EIR, and will not be analyzed as part of
this contract,

»  Schedule extensions may trigger additional scope of work and cost.

Task 1: Scoping

1.1 Project Initiation

Dudek will coordinate a project kickoff meeting with City staff to initiate the EIR process, The purpose of the
meeting is to identify points of contact, establish protocols for requesting information from the City or project
tearn, discuss coordination with responsible agencies, identify available project data and environmental reports,
and review the project schedule.

Dudek (wds this task as a key component of the wark effort, and we lock forward to discussing key
environmental and project processing issues. Understanding of the project at this stage will facilitate
(:(“}mrmmécatﬂ@n far the entire project team and effective and efficient completion of the work program.




EXHIBIT A

N

1.2 Project Description

Following project initiation, Dudek will prepare a written project description that defines the whole of the action
to be evaluated in the EIR. This document will be based on the Draft General Plan prepared by the City and
project team. The d(-}*f"airuphom will include a list of permits and other approvals required for project
implementation and will identify the agencies expected to rely upon the EIR

1.3 Public Scoping and Notice of Preparation

udek will prepare an initial study (IS) and assist City staff in drafting the Notice of Preparation (NOP), The IS will
evaluate potentially significant environmental @ﬂm ts {using Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines), and will be
used to focus out any environmental issues that can be clearly demonstrated to have a less-than-significant
impact, based on existing information.

Included in this IS will be a comparison of the proposed General Plan goals and policies (if available) compared
to the currently adopted plan. Differences in the goals and policies are not necessarily significant environmental
effects, but they should be considered in the EIR analysis (particularly the alternatives analysis).

Dudek will assist the City in posting and circulating the NOP. During the 30-day public review period for the
NO Dudek will coordinate with the City to conduct a public scoping meeting to receive comments from
responsible agencies and the public regarding the scope and caontent of the EIR. l..,) udek will assist the (."..|:3/ in
preparing public scoping meeting materials. Court transcription services are not included in this scope of work,
but can be arranged at the request of City staff,

Dudek will deliver 15 copies of the NOP/S 1o the State Clearinghouse for state agency review. Dudek will maintain
the EIR notification mailing list for local and W"ed@ ral agencies and the pubdlic, and will coordinate mailings (the cost

of reproduction and postage will be determined separately, and is not included in our cost estimate).

Task 2: Technical Work

Dudek determined that several technical studies listed in the RFQ — Scope of Work cover topics that can be
adequately analyzed within the context of he.-zn spective EIR sections without stand-alone reports. These topics
include geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, and hydrology and water quality. Through a robust
regulatory setting and analysis of potential impacts with respect to the thresholds of significance pursuant to CEQA
Guidelines, these topics can be fully evaluated in a manner sufficient to provide a legally defensible EIR. Our team
includes key technical staff who will act as the primary authors of the EIR sections. A brief description of the

technical approach to these topics is F.’)ﬁ"O\!ud@d below, This approach will save the City valuable time and maoney.

For the topics air quality/GHG emissions, biological resources, cultural resources, noise, and traffic, stand-alone
lechnical studies will be prepared. Each technical study will be included in the EIR as an appendix, and will be
used to inform preparation of the EIR. A description of the technical studies is also ermj@d below.

s

I i i s i

\

13

7




EXHIBITA

2.1 Air Quality/GHG Report

The Dudek will prepare a technical report assessing the air quality and GHG emissions impacts of the proposed
project u [/mq the significance thresholds in Appendix G of the CEQA bwdnhncﬁ;, the San Di@qo Air Pollution
Control District's (SDAPCD) emissions-based thresholds, and the City's quidance. It is our standing that
the City hafs not adopted numeric thresholds or provided formal guidance to @w[., ate polent :1[ air quality (md
GHG emissions impacts under CEQA. As such, we will work with the City to determine the appropriate
thresholds to apply in the project analysis. Potential options include using the City of San Diego or the County
of San Di @qo guidance. However, hoth the City of San D| QO and the nty of San Diego are currently
revising their GHG emissions thresholds in light of a recent Supreme (.o t decision, so we will discuss
alternative methodologies will City staff.

=

Because the General Plan Master EIR was prepared in 1996, many cormponents of the air quality analysis are
outdated;, however, Dudek will incorporate relevant information to the extent app |fdb[@ to the actions
proposed in the General Plan Update. As GHG emissions and climate change impacts were previously not
evaluated, the technical report will include a comprehensive GHG emissions environmental and regulatory
setting discussion to provide a solid background for the impact assessment. The analysis will reference the
SDAPCDY's rules and requlations, as appropriate.

After reviewing all avai ab[@ pw + materials, Dudek will prepare a request for any outstanding data needed tc
conduct the analysis. ise information on a particular factor is not available from the City and/or its
represertatives, [ dek will m:skw every effort to quantify these items using the best available information for
comparable data sources, but in all cases will consult first with the City regarding the information needed. Details
of the analysis (e.g, daily criteria air pollutant emission calculations and annual GHG emission calculations) will be
included in ar appendix to the technical repart. Contents of the analysis are briefly discussed below.

Alr
Local and regional climate, meteorology, and topography as they affect the accumulation or dispersal of air
poliutants will be presented in the air quality assessment. Current air quality conditions and recent trends in the
San Diego Air Basin and project area will be described on the basis of California Air Resources Board and U'S.
Fnvironmental Protection Aq@my annval air quality monitoring data summaries Federal, state, and local
regulatory agencies responsible for air quality management will be identified, and applicable fedwm[ tate, and
local air quality policies, regulations, and standards will be summarized

Construction Impacts. Dudek will estimate emissions associated with construction of the project using the
California Emissions Hrmra tor Model (CalEEMod) land use and air emissions model, An analysis of horﬁ-»ﬁerrw
construction emissions for the General Plan Update will be prepared to the exient that information is available
regarding construction schedules of the future phases. Dudek will work with Lemon Grove General Plan Update
leam to obtain an anticipated schedule (e.q, overall construction duration, phas wq and phase timing), and
construction activities (e.q., construction equipment type and quantity, workers, and haul trucks). We will refine

approach based on anticipated construction scheduling, considering if multiple construction phases would
occur concurrently or q uentially. If construction details are too ypw lative to determine, CalFEMod default
values will be app hwd ased on the type of land uses (e.g, single- and multi-family residential, commercial,
retail, parks, and afhm[g) and amount of development (e g, total residential dwelling unils, square Tootage,
acres, and students) As discussed previol nf"[y, we will work with ﬂty staff to determine the appropriate
construction emissions numeric thres h(}[{ utilize for the analysis which may include emission-based
thresholds established by the City of San Diego or the County of San Diego

lan Jp{ ate 19

JUDE

r Cﬁ:wemﬂ




Operational Impacts. The long-term operational analysis will quantify mobile source emissions created by
project-generated traffic, and energy and area source emissions caused by the operation of the pr@pogm
projec .umg CalkEMod. Operational emissions will be estimated for the first year of full operation after buildout
of the General Plan Update. Estimated m c;»bﬂ@ emissions will be based on trip generation rates presented in the
traffic study prepared for the project. Energy and area source emissions (e.g, natural gas combustion and
consumer products) will be estimated using the default values in CalEEMod. In addition to the operational
emissions estimated from buildout of the General Plan Update, Dudek will aUso estimate the emissions from
operation of the existing land use parcels, which will be used to calculate the net change in criteria pollutants
associated with the proposed rezoning associated with the General Plan Update. As explained under the
construction analysis methodology, if project-specific assum ptiuom are not available, CaltEMod default values
will be applied to estimate operational emissions based on the type of land uses and amount of development,
Dudek will then compare estimated project-generated emissions to the thresholds selected by City staff

Based on the traffic study prepared for the proposed project, Dudek will evaluate whether traffic associated with
the General Plan Update could lead to potential exposure of sensitive receptors 1o subﬁiam tial localized
concentrations of air pollutant emissions, specifically carbon monoxide (CO) "hot spots”. Dudek proposes to
address CO hotspots in a quaV tive manner because increases in traffic associated WW the project area
expected to be minor Dudek will base its evaluation of the potential for project traffic to cause a CO hotspot on
the screening criteria recormmended by the California Department of Transportation; alternatively, the City of
san Diego or the County of San Diego CO hotspot screening criteria could be applied if preferable. For
budgetary purposes, it is assumed that the study intersections would not exceed the screening criteria and a
refined CO hotspots analysis would not be required.

The air quality analysis will discuss the project’s consistency with plans and strategies to mwt ambient air quality
standards for ozone and particulate ratter, both of which are nonattainment pwﬂ ants in the San Diego Air
Basin, Growth associated with the project wa[U be cornpared to the regional population fc:bmm ts upon which the

SDAPCD air quality plans are based. An eval aﬁ'im of the project’s cumulative ew guality impacts would also be
included in the air quality technical study. This evaluation will be based on the project-level impacts as a
measure of whether the project would result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to the San Diego Air
Basin's ozone and particulate matter nonattainment status, as well as the project’s consistency with underlying
growth forecasts for the SDAPCD's air quality plans. Lastly, the air quality analysis will discuss the potential for
project-related operational emissions to adversely affect nearby sensitive receptors, to cause objectionable
odors, or to impede attainment.

G ’--’*@\I’M\[’W]OL ise Gas Emissions I\I"Tt’&paﬂ?‘ Analysis

The GHG emissions assessment will include a setting and background discussion consisting of a summary of the
gr’oﬂrmo,! se effect and global climate change, potential changes to the Hmbd[([u mate systern and to California,
and emission inventories at the national, state, and local levels, Tt will also include a summa ry of the key federal,
e, and local regulatory actions and programs to reduce GHG emissions. Dudek will estimate the GHG
emissions associated with construction and operation of the project using (va Mod. Dudek will estimate
construction GHG emissions based on the same construction scenario utilized in the air quality arw[yfia Project-
generated operational GHG ermissions that will be estimated for the completed buildout of the General Plan
Update will include those associated with motor vehicles, natural gas usage, electrical generation, water supply,
wastewater, and solid waste disposal. Dudek will also estimate operational GHG emissions that would result
from rezoning of existing land uses parcels al 'd will calculate the net change in GHG emissions associated with
the General Plan L pddru When project details are not available, CalbEMod default values will be used ¢
calculate direct and indirect source GHG emissions

Vil

DUDEK  ER for General Ple ,pdat,ei




Dudek will assess the significance of the project with respect to the Appendix G thresholds; specifically, whether
the implementation of the project would generate GHG emissions that may have a siqmiﬁraﬂ impact or the
environment or would conflict with an applicable plan, palicy or requlation adopted for the purpose of reduc mg
the emissions of GHGs. Both the City and County have previously provided guidance to prepare a business-:
usual (BAU) analysis to ensure the project’s consistency vmr[ the goa ﬂf of Assembly Bill 32, The BAU apps'f_‘)arh
has recently been addressed by the Supreme Court in the Center for Biological )avomty v, California
Department of Fish and Wildlife decision on the ‘ulew["\all Ranch pw@at, which indicated that substantial
evidence is needed to demonstrate that a project-level reduction of 29 percent for new projects would be
consistent with the statewide goal of 29 percent reduction from BAU. Accordingly, the use of City of San
Diego's previous guidance target of 28.3 percent reduction and the County's guidance tc if 16 percent
reduction in GHG emissions from the BAU scenario may not be the preferred approach. Other
p@r‘formarw@--i’)r&:swji thresholds, such as an efficiency metric (or service population) threshold, is potentially an
option the City would use; mwwvm rformation mwqu the Cit yﬂ GHG emissions mwmmy and population
projections (both res sed on these
considerations, we will work with ﬂty st af to dw termine rﬂ | ppmpuaﬁw W Wll o[d ﬁon e&va[ E}_nxg the project’s
GHG emissions. A qualitative analysis of the project’s potential to conflict with an applicable plan, policy or
regulation wil he provided in the technical report.

2.2 Biological Resources Assessment

The City of Lemon Grove encompasses approximately 2,483 acres, almost all of which is urban with little native
esources, The evaluation of potertial impacts to biclogical resources as a result o me project will be reported
wil .h the FIR Riclogical Resources section. No stand-alone biological technical report will be provided. A
reconnaissance-level review of the area will occur, but no focused surveys or wetland delineation will be
performed due to the area’s primarily developed nature. Vegetation communities will be mapped using the
best available existing da”‘r with limited ground-truthing to confirm. Additional resources will be use
the resources present the project area including: background information (e, soils, aerial photos,
topographic maps, ot hm natural resource documentation, and available data from the project area); California
Natural i.'f)iwfrs;iﬁ,y Database report; California Native Plant Society database for rare plants; and species data
from USFWS and California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Vegetation communities and special-status species
will be df‘m bed in terms of their regional significance and presence on site, including an estimate of observed
special-status species” population size and condition. A brief descript |<>!mf each vegetation community mapped
within the project area will include information found in a literature review, a brief description of location, and
any notes pertaining to habitat quality or level of disturbance. A table surmmarizing the special-status plant and
Wi d|l‘ff‘ fpmw that have potm tial to occur in the project vicinity will be incuded in an appendix to the EIR.
"""" > that show the extent of each vegetation community determined through

lﬂmr}t ure review. I"hf R section vwﬂﬂ include an impacts analysis based on the project area, an assessment of
the potential significance of the impacts that may result from implementation of future projects under the

rezone, and applicable and feasible mitigation measures

2.3 Cultural Resources Assessment
In order to inform on the df‘w‘lm pment of the cultural resources element of the proposed Gereral Plan Update,
and to obtain CEQA compliance, Dudek has identified the following cultural resources tasks:

I

M EIR for General Plan U

P

DUD/




Records Searches
Dudek will begin by conducting a California Historical Resources Information Systems records search of the
ral Plan area at the South Coastal Information Center, which houses cultural resource records for San
Diego County. The purpose of the records search is to identify any previously recorded cultural resources
(including both archaeological and built-environment resources) that may be located within the General Plan
area. In addition to a review of previously prepared site records and reports, the records search will also review
hsmn(a rmpa of [w‘ pwm area, ethnographies, the National Register of Historic Places, the California
. the California H [uf toric Property Data File, and the lists of California State
ﬂ""{ﬂf.» loric ./c'f&[ \L.d[ﬂdmdrk;, C._,dl fmrr E F- oints of Historical Interest, and Archaeological Determinations of Eligibility.

Dudek will also request a paleontological resources records search from the Vertebrate Paleontology Section of
the San Diego Natural History Museum. The purpose of HW records search is to determine whether there are
any krnown fossil U@mh ties in or near to the General Plan area and to identify the geologic units present. This
information will be used to determine paleontological sensitivity. Geologic maps and reports will also be
reviewed to identify geologic units and establish the area’s stratigraphy.

Native American Group Coordination

Because the project md ides a General Plan Update, the City has a responsibility to initiate consultation with
trik .x/’qu 1ps listed on the California Native American Heritage Commiission's official Senate Bill (SB) 18 contact
list for adoption of a -ué-*n@r’au Plan Amendment While '18 consultation is a government-to-government

process, Dudek will assist the City with requesting an updated SB 18 consultation list from the Native American
Heritage Commission dm will provide the City with text for < uﬂjmucn t tribal outreach efforts.

The pmwy@c"ﬂ pr’oj@r tis also su Lﬁwt to com p['ar‘ cewi '\h Afsseembﬂy Bill (ABY 52, which requires lead agencies to

re*qum @d consultation t,c:,) mfom .hm g )_A process ww% 1 respect 1o tribal cultural resources. While AB 52 is a
government-to-government process between the CEQA lead agency and California Native American Tribes,
Dudek will assist the City with the notification process. No in-person meetings or follow-up phone calls with
Native American groups are included in this scope of work.

Cultural Resources Constraints Analysis

Dudek will prepare a cultural and paleontological resources constraints analysis that will summarize the results
of the records searches, and Native American coordination. As part of this task, Dudek will conduct limitec
archival research to update and enhance the existing prehistoric, historic, and ethnographic contexts for the
General Plan area. This m cyy include visiting local libraries, archives, and repositories as warranted. The goal of
the constraints analysis is to inform the City on the existing conditions of cultural and paleontological resources,
constraints, and levels olf sensitivity throu qhut the General Plan area. This analysis does not include a cultural or
paleontological resource impacts analysis in consideration of a specific project under CEQA or any other
regulatory setting, nor does it include recordation or evaluation of new resources, or updates to previously
recorded resources.

2.4 Geology and Soils

All buildings in California are subject to the strict requirements of the California Buildi wg Code to reduce risks
from seismic activity and other q@mfoq ¢ hazards Dudek will briefly describe the existing geology, geologic
hazards, and rrwmaﬂ resources in the City based on existing information available from the existing General
Plan, the State Division of Mining and Geology, and other existing published reports. We will assess the
potential impacts on population, development, and infrastructure from geologic hazards.

N

R

Plan Update g

DUDEK  [R for e




2.5 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Dudek will identify any known hazards through literature review and using readily available information
provided by the City. Dudek will provide a map using GIS to indicate location of known hazards. No stand-
alone hazards report will be provided. The information will be reported within the hazards section of the EIR
The section will indude an impacts ana[ysig based on the project area, an assessment of the potential
%!qwﬁmnc‘cﬁ of the impacts that may result from implementation of future projects under the rezone, and
applicable and feasible rmitigation measures,

2.6 Hydrology and Water Quality
Dudek will address hydrology and hydraulics within the hydrology section of the EIR through a thorough review
of receiving waters, r’f-'-vgimna[ water quality improvement plans, regional watershed and water q uality assessment
studies, and the requlatory setting, Dudek will also perform a comprehensive review of permitting requirerments
r@ﬂe-'-wam to hydrology and wfﬂm quality fhat would be necessary to carry out individual projects. No stand-
alone hydrology report will be provided. Future projects developed under lm proposed project would be
subject to water quality design standards dﬂﬂ\d requlations such as the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control
Act, Streambed Alternation Agreement, and local regulations such as the Stormwater Management and
Discharge Control provisions of the City's Municipal Code. The EIR hydrology section will include an impacts
ar‘alyf“ 5, an assessm mr‘r m the potential Sit‘ nificance f;}f' the irr pa(’ ts that m ay result from implementation of

2.7 Noise Assessment

Dudek will prepare the technical noise study in support of the City's General Plan Update. We will use the results
of the General Plan Update’s traffic dua[w along with available information about existing and future noise
sources in the General Plan area to model potential noise impacts.

Existing ambient daytime noise levels will be measured at up six short-term (+/-15 minute) locations in the
blish current baseline noise levels, These locations will be selected in consultation with City
- The daytime noise levels will be measured using a sound level meter that satisfies the
Institute standards for a Type 1 or Type 2 sound level meter.

rezone areas to es
Planning Division ¢

Armerican ﬁ\lahomaﬂ Standards

%

Existing and future horizon year 24-hour noise levels will be calculated for representative roadway segments in
the rezone areas using the Federal Highway Administration Traffic Noise Model (TNM 2.5) and traffic volumes
from the traffic report prepared for the General Plan Update. The model will calculate the average noise levels
at specific locations based on traffic volumes, average speeds, which will be used to estimate the existing and
future noise contours for noise contours ranging from 60 to 70 A-weighted decibels Community Noise
Fquivalent Level (dBA CNEL). Noise levels from the San Diego Trolley line as well as non-transportation related
sources such as construction noise and commercial/industrial noise wilt also be addressed.

Dudek will establish thresholds based on the current Noise Element, the Municipal Noise Ordinance, and i
consideration of federal and state quidance For any potential ||m’3a("’f that could exceed ident fwj
significance thresholds, after application of noise policies, feasible mitigation measures will be identified,

which may include guidelines on construction techniques or hours, changes, provision of temporary or long-
term barriers to noise transmission, or limitations on outdoor nighttime activities. The results of the noise level
impacts analyses will be summarized in a background technical report to the City and alao included as part of
the General Plan Update EIR




-XHIE

2.8 Traffic Study

A Inventory/Existing Conditio
1 fnew the current General wu,m major development traffic studies, and other applicable
traffic related documents.
2. Visit the
lanes,

LA

Obtain the m O%M recent avai Udb[o Exist ;ir‘ng ADT and peak hour traffic c.:«f:)urm:z ‘f n City re_}c,.oxd' and
the Draft Downtown Village Specific Plan.

4. Supplement City data with new counts (intersections and street segments), which will be
conducted for major City thoroughfares. New traffic count data will be collec ted at up to a total of
up to eight (8) intersections and ten (10) street segments ifc.:?xif;t;hmg data is unavailable,

5. Determine the existing daily Levels of Service for intersectic
City's current and proposed (if applicable) roadway clas

6. Prepare the existing conditions section of the report.

ons and for street segments using the
sific d‘non table

B. MH ic Volume Forecast
L. Utilize the existing data collection per Task A as the baseline traffic volumes for all Mobility Element
mddwayz, Supplement the existing data wit h mfowm() tion fr@er the SANDAG model baseline traffic
volumes and/or data from other traffic studies in the City to arrive at an existing baseline to

forecast future volumes,
2. Review the SANDAG traffic model land use and network i npu s for the existing and forecast “off-
hwhm ﬂod@[ runs ldm use dﬂ m m% [l 3/ net wwk np Is are assumec ve provided by the

3 Since it is not recommen dmﬁ Vnat a bd%tﬁ year wodol (_Jhbm tion effort be conducted, the future-
year |o(,xdvmy volumes will be developed by applying the growth between the base year and
future year models to t h@ existing count data, Mo traffic mode! runs are budgeted

4. Prepare colored graphics showing the forecast daily traffic volumes on all Mobility Element
roadways for the proposed General Plan.

1 mrduu an A """ l@vol «:ommmtw@ dﬂdlym of all M()& ilit y [cwwt roadways within the City for
both the existing conditions and the Proposed General Plan to determine potential significant
impadcts associated with the proposed changes. Eight (8) Intersections and ten (10) individual
segments are anticipated 1o require analysis.

2. Make geometric recommendations to achieve LOS C or better operations using the Volume-to-
Capacity method, consistent with current General Plan on each Mobility Element roadway. It is
assumed LOS Cis the target although LOS D is considered the minimum acceptable LOS,

Using Synchro 9 (or latest edition/updates) for the study intersections (8 intersections budgeted),
the City's Synchro model sk sall Mludo the skeleton of all the prime and major OddeyS
intersecting as shown on the existing Mobil rty Elernent map for future as-needed analysis. Make
recommendations for intersection treatments or geometrics to maintain a General Plan goal for
LOS C Make recommendations to address any environmental constraints and for the iocation of
traffic signals and ultimate intersection improverments.

Traffic analysis will include the following scenarios which shall be shown in a table;

e [asting (’.’fomditmm am

e Forecast Proposed  Mobility Element Improvements Conditions (Mo
alternatives  are 5w,wd to be analyzed quantitatively, a qualitative discussion of
alternatives is included in Task 3, Draft EIR)

DUDE (IR for General Plan Update o




4. Update the Mobility Elernent Map indicating the recommended classification of all roadways.
5. Prepare color graphics illustrating the recommended intersection treatments for all impacted
intersections

D. Prepare & Process EIR Mobility Element Transportation Study

1. Prepare Draft Transportation Study for Ci y review.

2. R t

K.

(10 hours budgeted) and prepare a
No additional analysis or revisions (o

[

evise the traffic U(y once based on Cily commen
Final Transpor dfl(}ﬂ tudy for inclusion in the Draft El
the analysis are budgeted,

Assist in responding to public comments received on the Drafit EIR (up to 10 hours).

4. Attendance at one (1) meeting with the client/City alf (three hours per meeting). Attendance at
one (1) public hearing (up to four %m s). Participation in up to three (3) one-hour conference calls.

Our approach to preparing the FIR will be to prepare a programmatic analysis of the whole project with the goal
of establishing performance standards that will streamiine future environmental review and application processing
for subsequent projects within the General Plan area, More specifically, future streamiining opportunities may
occur pursuant to the following: (1) Section 15183 of the (’"FQA Guidelines for projects that are consistent with the
densities established by existing zoning, community plan, or general plan for which an EIR was certified; (2) Section
151833 of the CEQA Guidelines, streamlining for infill ex @mpﬂ:nom pursuant to SB226 for transit priority projects
identified by SANDAG; and (3) Section 15332, categorical exemptions for in-fill development projects. Based on
our understanding of the project, the following issues will be addressed in the EIR. Each technical section of the
Draft EIR will describe the existing physical conditions at the project site based on planning documents (including
the background report) and completed technical studies. Relevant federal, state, and local laws and regulations,

including City General Plan Update goals and policies, will be surnmarized in the regulatory setting discussion. The

methods of analysis and standards of significance used for determining impacts of the projec > clearly and
explicitly described in each technical section of the EIR, induding any assumptions necessary to understand the
conclusions of the analysis Additionally, the EIR will discuss the afore-mentioned CEQA streamlining opportunities
(Section 15183 for projects consistent with the GP, Section 15183.3 for SB 226 transit priority projects identified by
SANDAG and Section 15332 for in-fill projects) as part of the requlatory setting and will include the procedural
framework as part of the analysis Included in this effort, Dudek will evaluate the pmpow amd use map
changes, and identify areas where future streamlining will be appropriate as it relates to these CEQA
streamlining opportunities,

The standards for determining impact significance will be developed in coordination with City staff based on
commonly accepted practice and prior standards used by the City.

Dudek will use input received during the NOP public comment period to prepare the screencheck draft EIR. The
Draft EIR will be prepared in conformance with the criteria, standards, and provisions of CEQA of 1970,
California Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seqr, and the CEQA guidelines.

Discussion in the EIR will indude environmental setting, project impacts, level of significance, and mitigation
measures, if requ uu'@i The degree of reduction of impacts due to mitigation will be qualitatively anc _J, where
possible, quantitatively identified. A clear description of the intent and the means by which the mitigation measure

will be implemented, the timing and technical requirements, and identification of the party or parties who will be

N
N
.

T




responsible for assuring effective implementation will be provided. Dudek will work closely with the City in the
process of dew; op ng mitigation measures, which may also include the dewprmm t of puﬂ ies for the General
Plan Update in an effort to create a self-miti “ga‘t" q EIR. The EIR will also include as assessment of a reasonable
range of project alternatives (up to three (3), including t V “No Project” alternat w‘) ﬂf‘)" all identified issue area
topics, and will evaluate these alternatives mm.ﬁ m@ project objectives. The alternatives assessment wﬂl include
coordination with LLG for a qualitative look at the traffic impacts in comparison to the proposed project.

The most recently approved state guidance on significance thresholds (Appendix G to the CEQA Guidelines) will
be applied to determine if changes are potentially significant or less than significant. The EIR will aim to disclose
and mitigate all potentially significant impacts, and provide a legally defensible document from which future
individual projects can successfully tier. Tiering will allow subsequent environmental review to rely on the EIR for
a discussion of general background and setting information for environmental topic areas, overall growth-
rff‘[d ed is issues that were @axaﬂuat@d in sufficient detail in the EIR and for which there is no significant new
iomwhwr ) Of chdmge 1 drcumstances that would require further analysis, arwd long-term cumulative impacts
W IR will also include an d[yf s of conformance to the Sustainable Communities Strategy for SANDAG's 2050

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP),

The Draft EIR will include the issue areas that the IS determined could be potentially significant either with or
without mitigation. Based on our understanding of the project so Mn we anticipate that the EIR would address
al least M following issue areas:

o Agsthetics s Land Use/Planning

s Al guality o Noise

e Biological Resources »  Population/Housing

e Cultural resources o Public Services

o Hazards/Hazardous Materials s Recreation

@ Lnergy conservation s Traffic/Transportation

o Geology/Soils o [lilities

o GHG Emissions e Cumulative Impacts

e Hazards and Hazardous Materials ® Aﬂv;emativcs; (up to three)

»  Hydrology/Water Quality/Hydraulics s Growth-inducing/Irreversible Impacts
Qur scope includes two (2) rounds of City review and revisions to the Screencheck Draft EIR. The final, second

round of s f’@ﬂ(h(‘(k review is assumed to be the final approval of the proof copy; no s Jb‘atdﬂ jal changes will
be made Screencheck st Mn als will be delivered elecironically.

Upon approval of the Draft EIR to be released for p ublic review, Dudek will prepare and provide the notice of
(;omp[etimn and executive summary to accompany the Draft | For review and signature. Dudek will distribute
the Draft EIR for public review, including the 15 electronic copies (Cﬂ 5) 10 the State Cle ﬁrnqhw use, and 15 hard
copies ¢ 'H‘h@ executive summary. Our budget assumes electronic copies of the Draft EIR and appendices only
for the public review documents. Dudek will complete the Notice of Completion on behalf of the Cit ity It is
assumed the City will be responsible for posting the notice of completion at the County Clerk’s Office as WQH as
distributing the notice to all public review distribution list recipients. The Notice of Availability will include t
website where documents can be reviewed. Our scope assumes that the City will notify the public, pursuant m
CEQA Section 21092, in a newspaper of local circulation

IR,

K EIR for General Plan Update

DUDE

_



EXHIBIT A

Task 4: Final EIR, Responses to Comments, MMRP and Findings

In preparing the Final EIR, Dudek will review and prepare a matrix of the comments received on the Draft EIR
amd will pmpa e responses to each cornment. If requ vested, and depending on the number of comments
received, Dudek will at wm a meeling with t"\ﬂry staff 1o review substantive comments prior to s waml of the
dmrma.ratnw inal EIR 1t is assumed that Dudek will respond to up to 20 substantive public comments on the
draft EIR (note that a smq[e comment letter may contain muw.. [‘ cormments), Dudek will also as wmku text
changes to the Final EIR, as appropriate In order to meet the project timeline, 1 ':h|5 task assumes one round of
revisions to the Final FIR based on City comments, It is assumed that no changes to technical reports would be
required at this stage of EIR processing.

The Final EIR will contair an introduction chapter that reviews the CEQA process for the project and surmmarizes
any draft EIR text edits made in response to cormnments. The Final EIR will also contain each cormment letter with
individual comments in each letter bracketed and labeled. Each comment letter will be followed by the
responses 1o those comments. Finally, the Final EIR will present the pages of the Draft EIR on which revisions
were made in response to comments.

As a part of this task, Dudek will p wmr@ an MMRP to document the program for implementation of the
miligation measures | @miﬁi@d in the E£If [hﬂ MMRP WIH be in tabular form, with each mitigation measure
identified, including timing, ywmorwb[@ for implementation, and method of verifying compliance.

udek will also prepare the CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations (if requested).
Tl 1e Findings will provide a project averview, document the project’s procedural history (e.q., dates of document
circulation), describe the legal requirements under C M"QA for the Findings, provide definitions of key terms used
i the and ings, identify the documents in the record of proceedings, and provide the location and custodian of
those documents The Findings will list impacts determined to be less than significant, will reach specific
conclusions rmqarcirq impacts found to be significant, and will include the effect of the mitigation measures
assaciated with those significant impacts. These conclusions will be consistent with the required Findings in
CEQA Guﬂd@mes‘, Section 15091(z), and shall reference the specific substantial evidence in the record to
support each conclusion

Dudek will prepare the Findings for review and comment to the project team and City staff prior to EIR
certification. Two rounds of City review of the findings are included in this scope of work.

Task 5: Project Management, Meetings and Hearings

Dudek views this task with im p@'taw@ and we believe that a focused, well --maraqm effort on the part
@f Dudek, the project applicant, and the project team will be a key to achieving your pmrmw g goals

this project. We have assl Jmed a 6-month work effort for the EIR process, with up to four team
mee ,umgs during the course of the work effort.

This task includes participation in monthly conference calls and W‘)mqesa reports 1o be submitted with our

monthly invoice A key elerment of Dudek’s progress report procedures is identification uf key Upmnr g issues

and obstacles, as well as a restatement of tasks completed during the previous morith, We believe this helps in
identitying issues as ear éy rn the process as possible and maintaining project momentum

eral Plan Update



For this task, Dudek will assist City staff in presenting the Draft mwd Final EIR to the planning comrission and city
council. Up to three hmrnq are assumed. Dudek will assist with the preparation of presentation materials and
will assist with the staff presentation

Deliverables Summary

The following products will be submitted to the City in fulfillment of our proposed scope of work:

w

w

w

NOP/AS (15 Hard Cﬂp“@f mailed to State Clearinghouse and 1 Electronic Copy for City)
Administrative Draft EIR (1 Electronic Copy)
Screencheck Draft EIR (1 Electronic Copy)

Public Review Draft EIR (15 Hard Copies of the Executive Summary and 15 Electronic Copies (CDs)
mailed to State Clearinghouse; 1 Electronic Copy and 1 Hard Copy for City)

A web-friendly digital version of the Public Review Draft EIR

Screencheck Final EIR, including the Screencheck Response to Comments and Findings (1 Electronic Copy)
MMRP (]\ Electronic Copy)

F lﬂcﬂ H" ludmc %mpomm to Comments, Findings, and MMRP (30 Hard Copies with technical reports
Master Fir g,-[ EEEE[R, inc udmg Technical Studies, Response to Comments, Findings, and MMRP (1
Reproducible Copy)

A web-friendly digital version of the Final EIR will also be provided to the City. The electronic version of
the EIR will include a hyperlinked table of contents and will be suitable for uploading to the City website.

The following maps prepared by Dudek’s GIS staff (for inclusion in the General Plan and EIR):
Regional Location
Existing Land Use
Airport In fﬂwnfe Area (if applicable)
Regional Transit and Bikeways (City to provide bikeways)

c G O ¢

o Transportation Accident Map (City to provide data)
o Truck routes and emergency evacuation routes (City to provide routes)
Regional Hydrology
Biological Resources
Parks and Open Space (Cily to provide data)
o Noise Measurement Locations
Existirig MNoise Contours (City to provide data)
Future Noise Contours
Geologic Setting
Slope Analysis
o Seismic Hazards (City to provide data)
o Fire Hazard Severity Zones
o Flood Hazard Map
o Dam Failure Hazard Map (City to provide data)
o Regional Active Faults (City to provide data)

S

eral Plan Upda ©

\




o Soiltypes and Iocations (City to provide data)
o School locations

Dudek recommends plarning for a contingency fund Qtwum\w 5% to 1 % of the overall budget) to cover any
unforeseen out-of-scope work that might be necessary for the praject. This is built into the cost summary.

Cost Summary

Task 1: Scoping ... T OO | ¢ %40
Task 2: Technical erk
Task 2.1: Air Quality and GHG Emissions REMOM...ooirecreonccssonsccrneconnns e e $15,500
Task 2.2: Biological Resources ASSESSMEN .........co.c.oeeeeccoevisrene oot ovsinrvosisior e s 94,200

Task 2.3 Cultural ReSOUICES ASSESSITIENT ..o sesa st s e $9,770
Task 2.4: Geology and SOUS..ssmm s {cost included in Task 3)
Task 2.5; Hazards and Hazardous Materials . s e ACOSE INcluded in Task 3)

Task 2.6: Hydrology and Water Quality.... eitmk \rm.‘ﬂude(.) in Task 3}
Task 2.7: Noise Adsessmuﬁ ..... $10,500
Task 2.8: Traffic Study... $28,000
Task 3: Draft EIR... TS, % o (e 0
Task 4: Final EIR, Responses to Comments MMRP and Fmdlngs ORI o X ALY
Task 5: Project Management, Meetings and Hearings ..o e .. $8,500
CONEINGENCY FUND . ..o seresees e eessssesssesssesreseses s 93,500

As summarized above, a total labor cost of $139,790 will be necessary to complete the outlined scope of work
Al work will be billed in accordance with our 2016 Standard Schedule of Charges, a copy of which is attached
to this proposal For this assignment, direct costs will include such iterms as volurme reproduction, photographs,
mileage, and deliveries, and are not expected to exceed $2,500, for a grand estimated total of 142,290,

Optional Additional Tasks

Complete Streets Assessment

This proposal outlines and defines the following five (5) components that are required to complete a Complete
Streets assessment:

A Complete Streets Vision Statement and Goals
B Existing Cor wn ions An‘,»ztrwmrmu

L Complete s Policies

. Strategic Imp Hc rmentation Plan

k. \muut e Streets Concepts Plans

LUIDEK

Plan Upda



XH

RS A VLI A AN S I B R BLAL YR B S

The tasks that are proposed lo be completed within each of the above components are included in this
proposal. The following Scope of Work was developed based on information provided, review of the Complete
Streets guidelines, wmploﬂw Streets Implementation experiences from other jurisdictions and our recent
experiences within the City, bwm the above, and our overall sense and dp tanding of the issues, we
propose the following t JS\K‘ lo complete the required assessment for the init ﬂ ibmittal to the City

A Complete Streets Vision Statement and Goals
Complete Streets Vision provides the basis and foundation for the Camplete Streets Initiative for Lemon Grove.
We propose the following tasks to establish & Complete Streets Vision.

1. Discuss the City's vision on elements related to Complete Streets, Active/Healthy Living and Child
Obesity preventive measures.

2. Development of the Complete Streets Vision will also include a review and assessment of other City of
Lernon Grove planning efforts such as the completed Main Street Promenade extension, bike and
pedestrian master plans.

3. The Complete Streets Vision Statement and Goals development will include an assessment of the
existing roadway network and the challenges of providing complete streets Revising existing policies
and standards will be discussed.

4. Establish a vision and policy 'Fr@ﬂwwwrk for development of complete streets policies and assessments.
5 Submit a draft white paper with Vision Staterment and Goals
6. Prepare a final Complete Streets W; ion S'tat@men’ tha' 'fﬂ >slab ﬂmh a Iorq mﬂqo pu r‘y direction amd

basis for future roadway des
into the General Plan and other su dhu cﬂocw Ten ﬂ.b.

B onditions Assessment
Conduct Ex sting (ﬁrcﬂ tions Assessments for the colored street segments in the attached map

1. Document the existing roadway's morw---mmomwd transportation’s routes and facilities, traffic control
measures, trails, classifications and other pertinent non-motorized transportation features

2. Conduct field analysis and data collection cfﬂo . Feld-data collection efforts will document physical

opportunities and challenges along the identified streets, with the goal of identifying the types of

improvernents that would be needed to ensure the comfort, safety and appeal of the route to an

average bicyclist and pedestrian.

Conduct pedestrian/bike valume counts at up to five (5) critical locations, if suitable counts are not

ava![ab[a} at the study locations. This data will be utilized in analysis for the project.

4. Assess existing street design features to evaluate their effectiveness in providing safe, efficient and
aesthel m[ﬂy pleasing access to all modes of transportation  Evaluate the following key principles in the

T area.

{ad

»  Build for Everyone

«  Scale For People

o Create Many ﬂ....mkaqes

o Streets have Multiple Uses

e Sidewalks Must b@ _,.ommlf”cmabﬂc

v Streets Must be Crossed with Ease

o Keep Urban Traffic Dispersed and Low Speed

i

=1 EIR for General Plan Update 30




4

)

o  Build Bike Lanes

o Build Compact Intersections

e Provide ADA Access

o Build Public Space

o Build With Proper Size and Scale

5. Review all transportation and land use planning studies and plans which may be relevant to pedestrian
and bicycling circulation in the Lemon Grove. A tharough understanding of p revious recommendations
and studies, as well as upcoming public and private development projects is essential to determine
opportunities and ch dﬂﬂ@ﬂ@)f s associated with the Plan's future rec (_}mwwndd"im 1i< will give our Team
a full picture of upcoming changes that could impact the proposed routes, as well as previous data that
may have already been collected along each route (such as pedestrian and bicyc a}comﬁ)

C Complete Streets Policies

Complete Streets Policies provide a dlear and consistent guidance for its residents, decision makers, planners,
engineers and designers to ensure that mult moddﬂ elements are incorporated into all projects. We propose
the following tasks, which is entirely included withiri the scope of work, to establish Complete Streets Polices

1. Review Existing Circulation/transportation polices

2. Coordinate with other planning efforts and review other completed plans in the jurisdiction

3 Based on the Complete Streets Vision Statement, establish policies to enable context sensitive solutions
based on the general plan land uses. This will also enable future transportation and land use projects
to consistently evaluate the (')WBOWL inities to provide complete streets.  These policies will comply with
AB 1358 (California’s Complete Streets Act).

4. I required, provide added policies to enable additional 'ﬂ@veﬂopmerﬂt

5. Submit a draft white paper with Complete Streets Polici

6. Prepare final Complete Streets Policies that will estab la% 1 a long-range policy direction and basis for
future roadway design and operation an d mmﬂwly intended o be effectively integrated into the
General Plan and other suitable documents.  The paper will also define context-sensitive policies
associated with these facility types to guide transportation operation and land development decisions
regarding the use of public mﬂ Wt-Cf-way.

D Strategic Implementation Plan

Strategic Implementation Plan will articulate a clear strateqgy for implermentation of the Complete Streets Vision
through an approach that includes an increrental cormbination of short-term and long-term actions such as
regulatory changes, administrative <htzrg@a, and capital improvements. We propose the following tasks to
establish Complete Streets Strategic Implementation Plan.

o5

Y

1. Propose a strategic plan for implementing the Complete Streets Vision info reality  The Strategic
Implementation Plan will define and recommend regulatory and procedural/administrative changes
needed to facilitate implementation of the complele streels vision, including cost estimates for
recommendations. This will give particular consideration 1o a phased or incremental approach t
implementation in order to manage transition. The Strategic [w plementation Plan will identify anc
prioritize road way improvement projects in coordination with the Pedestrian Master Plan, Bicycle Master
Plan, current capital improvement and other relevant projects

R

Update

mwm M( EIR for Gene J[P




EXHIBIT A

2. Develop a funding program that would help develop and maintain the prioritized roadway projects
through a combination of the Capital Improvement Program, State and Federal funds. Formulate a
process to apply for grants to get additional funds for these programs.

3. The Strategic Implementation Plan will also recommend a monitoring program that would measure the
impacts and effectiveness of the Complete Streets Initiative  This will be designed to inform and
improve the street planning, design and operation process over time

4. Strategy for phased or incremental implementation of the mmplct@ Streets Vision, Design Principles,
Guidelines and standards into the current regulatory, administrative and procedural frarmmework.

5. Prigritize schedule of short-term and long-term projects and programs for implementation of the
Complete Streets Vision. This will define brief scopes, schedules, implementation roles and
responsibilities, and rough costs,

E Complete Streets Conce 30% design plans)

Based on the Strategic Implementation \Pldr\ ud@m iify a preferred project and prepare a Concept Plan for the
project.  Complete Streets Concept Plan will provide dear, consistent and context-sensitive quidance for the
project corridor. 30% design plans are also critical for future grant opportunities. We propose the following tasks.

1. Based on the previous tasks, recommend cross-sections at several locations along the identified study
area in the project vicinity.

£ Prepare conceptual schematic plan for the preferred priowiﬁy project.  The plans will include a
depiction of existing conditions and the recommended proposed improverments,  These plans will be
designed to complement, integrate or replace as djpiopria e the existing regulatory framework
quiding roadway dmiqm Plans will be reflective of contextual land development patterns (existing and
envisioned) and will balance the needs of all users, The plans will provide sufficient flexibility and

guidance to enable detailed design to mapomd 0 f~;|tw specific constraints and 1o deal with challenging

u ansitions from existing conditions to desired future development pattern

3. Assess the impact of the improverments on other elements such as t(ave[ fime, emergency response
times, noise, street diversion etc.

4, Provide a planning level cost estimate for the proposed alternative

5. ldentify appropriate grants for the project.

6. Provide a project description that can utihzed for the grants

Optional Complete Streets Task. $26,000

Vehicle Miles Traveled and SB 743

SB 743 Compliance

On September 27, 2013, Senate Bill (S ( 3) 743 was signed and adopted. SB /43 wreates a process to Charge the
way transportation impacts Md@r he California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) are assessed. Currently,
environmental review of transportation impacts focuses on the delay that vehicles experience at intersections
and on roadway segments. That delay is usually measured using a metric known as “level of service,” or LOS.
Mitigation for increased d@[ay often involves i 'n(rmsimq mpa(’it’y (ie the width of a roadway or size of an
intersection), which may increase auto use and emissions and discourage alternative forms of transportation,
Under 5B 743, the focus of CEQA-prepared transportation analyses will shift from driver delay to reduction of
greenhouse gas emissions, creation of multimodal networks and promotion of a mix of land uses that reduces
the incentive to drive.

s

EIR fo

i General Plan Upd




SB 743 does allow local agencies to utilize LOS in their General Plans as the metric for which transportation
irpact fcw" and/m capital improvement projects are implemented However, Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) will
be the primary means of measuring significant transportation-related environmental impacts for new
de‘vwimpmo it projects under CEQA.

Draft guidelines have been published by the Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and will be effective by late
2016 early 2017 and will be optional for at least a two-year period. Agencies are being encouraged to establish
VMT policies, however, the information available describing this process is not yet ([G%MW defined In preparation
of the opt-in period for SB 743, the following scope has been prepared based on our understanding of SB 743
and its planned implementation:

ement and

1. Utilize the City's General Plan, &pmmw Bicycle/Pedestrian Master Plan, 2014 Health

LLG-prepared Complete Streets Assessment to develop VMT-reducing object e, and goals
consistent with 5B 743 1 "au'qm«"
2. Research and review other agency guidelin ng VMT 1 f,wmrmc:on analysis threshiolds as means of

determining a project’s Ummﬂ oﬁ impact on m transportation system (local agencies that have adopted
the draft SB 743 guidelir vy of San Francisco, City of Pa:c;e:fﬂzc::iema),,

3. Suggest measures of effectiveness for all proposed mitigation measures, eg. SB 743 recommends
meast Jr'irmq \/M [ per capita, per emplayee, or per person-trip.

4. Based on the reviewed information, suggest a City-wide YMT reduction target for future development

com phanw with the City's Environmental Policy Guidelines. (Current B 375 Sustainable Communities
Strategies achieverment level set at 15% reduction over rwqw;mﬂ" VIMT)

5. Research creative mitigation measures Lo reduce VMT and rec omncnj the implementation of multi-
modal plans and Transportation Demand M anaqmmwmr (TDM) plans reflective of the City's Mobility
Element, Cornplete Streets Assessment, and SANDAG's Sustainable Communities Strategy

6. Surnmarize the recommended VMT thresholds and mitigation measures, and make recormmendations
for furthering the "|:y5 goeﬂf‘ n reducing VMT through to use of other planning documents (e g.
Standards and Practices, Transportation Impact Fee Prograrm, elc)

Optional Vehicle Miles Traveled Task $16,000

s

")
i

.
|

it ’/// Dttt




|
i

m ‘ |
| f B

£
i

([

Wy 0
i

e g
il i

i

et
h specific
1

‘H_B

=

me
|
i ; i il |
o i : bl i 5 e i i i
i b = & Al il i 3l i o
" i 5 ‘m 0 i T I T :
1 )
‘ ] sl g
2 E e R e N S R S s | <
i e il i b ! ‘m i
I 1 iy i i = i i "
!l il i i i i L il i 1 o
W y 0 i o i o |-
g ml““ﬂh o i e, i i fo 0 i 1 f{ =
! o 0 =
.......... i i s i L T o | N
e e ! i 1 1 ﬁ
m il ! W (s 1 n
%:. g : i s ! i E ,;f%
W‘"‘"‘"‘“ il 0
&
e i {

lllllll




EXHIBIT A

6 Additional Funding

The California Strategic Growth Council and Sustainable Communities's programs have funding for planning
projects that support the sustainable communties goal. The program aims to implement the vision of the
People of California to foster the development of sustainable communities throughout California. It is designed
to help local governments meet the challenges of adopting land use plans and integrating strategies in order to
transform communities and create long term prosperity. Sustainable communities promotes equity, strengthen
the economy, protect the environment and promote healthy, safe communities.,

Website: https:/Awvwiw.sge.ca.gov/

LU



EXHIBIT A

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

DUDEK  ER o General Plan Update %6

N




7/ Insurance

ALCIREY
ﬁn., s

CERTIFICATE OF

LIABILITY

EXHIBIT A

DATE (MM DIYYY VY

Oer02013

INSURANCE

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRCAMK

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
EH, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMCHRTARLT, BF whe eartiliontw hoabdar e an AEIHTICMYL

IHELIBED), the policy(ies) must be endorsed, If SUBROGATION IS WAIWELD, sibijsst to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such eguthisrs b Ls].

L b Pt (RGN0 TO00 b s (Ao} ¥ b Kiera Maciel
MICHAEL J. HALL & COMPANY i - ,,
! i) 598 3700 i 360) 5963703
AJE INSURANCE SERVICES bl If”w”. e Vil 260)
19660 10TH AVENUE N.E. mac'eh,@ alandcompany com :
POULSBO WA 98370 W TS AFFORDING € OVERAGE NAIC #
) Rgency Lick 0702445 | msurer » - American Automobile Insurance Co. WAL
i Wgﬂdek msurer s Greenwich Insurance Company 22322
606 3Rd Street WA 4,
Encinitas, CA 92024-3613 SHRER §
TSR ER [
[

BENED

REVISION Hl 3

BV Tii T T

A AT

Th NAMED ABOVE | THE P CLICY PERIOD

WATHETANDING ! e CICUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICKH TS
SLIED) SLRANCE AF 1 HEREIN 15 SURJECT TO ALL THE TERME,
PSR Y 14
TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER [Tt Anaka e LIMITS
A Al LRBLITY MZ (80950804 0812813 08/28/14 FACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LILBLITY (}‘; ey $ 100,000
CLMM S ADE “ X u QCCUR WED EXP (hny ong parson) 5 10,000
ICR, XCL, BEPD PERSONAL & ADY INJURY [ § 1,000,000
GENERAL RGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
PRODLCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 2,000,000
) §
A | AUTOMOBILE  LIABIITY MZG80960804 082813 | 08/2814 {g’,’,"ﬁif{i‘;;r,ﬁ”w"“”"‘ 3 1,000,000
Ry ALTC BOLILY [NJURY (Fer persad) | §
| f:ll‘rmeWFD ‘ OB TR (er acodent | 5
X |HiRED AUTOS k3 PR 5
x|t ] &
A UMERELLA  LIAB X | 0CeuUR CGU32044109 082813 08/26/14 | EACH OCCURRENCE ¥ 1,000,000
Nexcess Lme LA S ADE MG GREGATE $ 1,000,000
DED V X METENTION § %
A | VORKERS CoMPENSATION | WZC81014322 0828013 | 08/28/14 | X |\t s L
AN PREFRIET DRAPEITIE wwwuww i E L EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
TN | Jurs B EMPLOYEE |3 1,000,000
gmmw'r::ﬁ:& @?‘gr‘munw@ below SEAGE-FOLICY LMIT | § 1,000,000
B |Pelessonsl bisbity Claims Made F orm PEC002403106 08728413 08/28/14 | $1,000,000 Per Claim Retro Date:
Conlraslors Pallufion Liskilite: Ceeurenge $2,000 000 Per Aggregate Jan. 01, 1970

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS /LOCATIONS JVEHICLES {Atach ACORD 101, Additivnal Remarks Schedule. if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE M,

CANCELLATION

For Information Only

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

BLTHIEIZED  RERRESEIT 6T
/,J,Wf’ 7 7Ll
Attention:
Kiera Macie!
ACORD 25 (2010/05) R SR T T CORPTRATION AT e vezaryed,

R

DUDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

-
-
-

37



EXHIBIT A

INTENTIONALLY LEFT B

LANK

7

_




DUDEK
2016 STANDARD SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

EXHIBIT A

Prolect Director......
Principal Englneer II|
Principal Engineer 11 ..
Principal Engineer | ...
Program Manager ...,
Senior Project Manager . .
Project Manager................
Senior Engineer l11.,
Senior Engineer 1l .
Senior Engineer | .....
Project Engineer IV/Technlman IV,.
Project Engineer Il/Technician 1 .
Project Engineer l/Technician Il ..., ...

Project Engineer /Technician |...........

Project Coordinator........ .. TR
Engineering Assistant. ...

Prln(:|pal " e e
Senior PrOJect Manager/Spemahst II

Senior Project Manager/Specialist 1 ...
Environmental Specialist/Planner Vi,
Environmental Specialist/Planner V........
Environmental Specialist/Planner IV .,
Environmental Specialist/Planner 11l ...
Environmental Specialist/Planner I ...

Environmental Specialist/Planner |

Analyst I ..
Analyst I ..
Analyst I .,
Planning Assmtant II
Planning Assistant 1.,

CoasTal PLANNING/POLICY SERVICES

Senior Project Manager/Coastal Planner ... ...
. $210.00/hr
... $200.00/nr
.. $180.00/hr
. $170.00/hr
... $160.00/hr

Senior Project Manager/Coastal Planner |
Environmental Specialist/Coastal Ptanner VI PRSI
Environmental Specialist/Coastal PlannerV......................
Environmental Specialist/Coastal Planner IV ...
Environmental Specialist/Coastal Planner 11l ....
Environmental Specialist/Coastal Planner 11 ... s
Environmental Specialist/Coastal Planner | .....................

ARCHAEOLOGICAL SERVICES
Senior Project Manager/Archaeologist Il. .

Senior Project Manager/Archaeologist |, ... e .
.. $185 00/hr

Environmental SpecialistArchaeologist VI ...,

Environmental Specialist/Archaeologist V............... ... ..
... $155.00/hr
. $145 00/hr
... $135 00/hr

.- $125 00/hr

Environmental Specialist/Archaeologist IV... .. ... . .
Environmental Specialist/Archaeologist I, ... ..., ...
Environmental Specialist/Archaeologist Il ...
Environmental Specialist/Archaeologist 1.

Environmental Specialist/Paleontologist th ... ... ... .. ...
Environmental Specialist/Paleontologist Il ..........................
... $125.00/hr

. 585.00/Mr

Environmental Specialist/Paleontologist | ..
Paleontological Technician Il ...................
Paleontological Technician 11.. .. ... ...

Paleontological Technicianl.. ... ... .. .. .
.. $75.00/Mr
.. $55 00/hr

Archaeoclogist Technician Il.................... .
Archaeologist Technician |,

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Principal/iManager ... Ceees e e
Senior Construction Manager e
Senior Project Manager ., P
Construclion Manager ... ... v oo o
Project Manager. ... oo e s
Resident Engineer.

Construction Engineer ... .

On-site Owner's Representanve

Construction Inspector 1.

Construction Inspector |1

Construction Inspector L. ... i
Prevailing Wage Inspector.. ... oo i i

| 4

DUDE

$265.00/hr

... $235.00/mr
... $225.00/0r
o $215.00/0r
... 5205 00/hr
... $205.00/hr
.. $195.00/hr
... 5195 00/hr

... $185 00/hw

$175.00/hr

.. $165.00/hr
... $150 00/hr
. $135 00/hr

$120 00/Mr

.. $95.00/hr
..$85.00/mr

. $240.00/0r
... $225.00/nr
.. $215.00/hr

$195.00/hr

.. $175 00/hr

$165.00/hr

... $155.00/hr
... $135.00/hr

$125 00/hr

. $115.00/hr
.. $106 00/hr

$95.00/hr

. $85.00/Mr
. $75 00/hr

$220,00/hr

$150.00/hr

... $140.00/hr

$215.00/hr
$205.00/hr

$165.00/hr

$165.00/hr

$145 00/hr

$75 00/hr
$55 00/hr

. 5195 00/Mr
... $180.00/hr
... $160.00/hr
... $150.00/hr
... 5140 00/mr
.....$140.00/hr

.- $135.00/nr

$130.00/hr

5125 00/hr

$115.00/hr

. . $105.00/hr

$135.00/hr

COMPLIANCE SERVICES

Compliance Director... ... $205 00/mr
Compliance Manager ... .. $145.00/hr
Compliance Project Coordlnator ... $105.00/mr
Compliance Monitor.............ccvu.... S R $85.00/Mr
HYDROGEOLOGIC AL SERVICES

Principal ... . veeer $260.00/hr
Principal Hydrogeologlst/Engmeer ... $240.00/hr
Sr, Hydrogeologist IV/Engineer IV .. . $225.00/hr

. $210.00/Mr
. $195.00/hr

Sr. Hydrogeologist HI/Engineer Il
Sr. Hydrogeologist W/Engineer 1., ..

Sr. Hydrogeologist VEngineer L................cc.cceevrr v, $180.00/00
Hydrogeologist VIIEngineer VI ...........coecoeinioninnnrero 516000701
Hydrogeologist VIEngineer V .. .. $150.00/hr
Hydrogeologist IV/Engineer IV ..., .. $140.00/hr
Hydrogeologist II/Engineer I .............ccocern. ... $130.00/0r
Hydrogeologist IVEngineer Il ............ .. $120.,00/hr
Hydrogeologist VEngineer | . $110.00/hr
TechniCian ... e e s $100.00/hr

DISTRICT MANAGEMENT & OPERATIONS
District General Manager ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, $185.00/Mr

District Engineer... .. $175,00/hr
Operations Manager ... $150.00/hr
District Secretary/Accountant ... $100.00/nr
Collections System Manager .. $100.00/hr

. $100.00/hr
... $90.00/hr
... $85.00/hr
... $63.00/hr
$55,00/hr
... $40.00/hr
... $60.00/hr

Grade V Operator ................
Grade IV Operator ...............
Grade I Operator. ... i
Grade Il Operator....
Grade | Operator .,

Operator in Tralnmg .
Collection Malntenance Worker II..

Collection Maintenance Worker | $45.00/hr
OFFICE SERVICES

Technical/Drafting/CADD Services

3D Graphic Artist.. ... et . $165.00/mr

.. $145.00/hr
. $135.00/0r
o $130.00/0r

.. $180.00/hr
.. $155.00/hr
............... $145.00/hr
. $135.00/hr

. $125.00/hr
$125,00/hr
... $120,00/r

Senior Designer
Designer ..o
Assistant Designer .,
GIS Programmer |,
GIS Specialist IV ..
GIS Specialist Il ..
GIS Specialist Il ...
GIS Speciatist | .....
CADD Operator lll...
CADD Operator ll.............

CADD Operatord.................. .- $105.00/hr
CADD Drafter ......... o i v $95.00/r
CADD TechniCian .........o...oocvvvcviniiiivinie i ivsciieivsiiinennnen, 585.00/r
SUPPORT SERVICES

Technical EAItOr 11,...........ooooeii e ivit coeineiceneen. $145.00/07
Technical Editor Il., ..... $130.00/hr
Technical Editor | .. L $115.00/Mr
Publications Spemallst III .. $105,00/mr
Publications Specialist i}, ... $95,00/hr
Publications Specialist 1. i e ... $85.00/hr
Clerical Administration 1l.............occeir o oo $85.00/r
Clerical Administration 1o i oo H80.00/MT

Forensic Engineering ~ Courl appearances, depositions, and interrogalories as
expert witness will be billed at 2 00 limes normal rates

Emergency and Holidays - Minimum charge of two hours will be billed al 1.75
imes the normal rate

Material and Cutside Services ~ Subconlraciors, rental of special equipment,
special reproductions and blueprinling, oulside dala processing and cormputer
services, elc , are charged at 1.15 limes lhe direcl cosl

Travel Expenses — Mileage at current IRS allowable rates Per diem where
overnight slay is involved is charged at cosl

Invoices,bate Charges — All fees will be billed to Client monthly and shall be due
and payable upon receipt Invoices are delinguent if nol paid wilhin 30 days from
the dale of the invoice Client agrees to pay a monthly lale charge equal lo 1% per
month of the outstanding balance unlil paid in full

Annual Increases - Urless identified olherwise, these slandard rates will increase
3% annually

Effective January 1, 2016



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A

CNLINE




LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 2)
Mtg. Date _ April 16, 2016
Dept. Development Services Department

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP150-0003,
Tentative Map TM0-000-0062, General Plan Amendment GPA-150-0003, and
Zoning Amendment ZA1-500-0004 Authorizing a 25-Lot Subdivision and
Construction of 22 Dwelling Units on 2.064 Acres at the Southwest Corner of
Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas. :

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation:

1} Conduct the public hearing;

2) Adopt a resolution (Attachment B) approving General Plan Amendment GPA-150-0003
and certifying Mitigated Negative Declaration ND16-02;

3) Introduce and conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 440 (Attachment C) approving
Zoning Amendment (ZA1-500-0004);

4) Adopt a resolution (Attachment D) approving Tentative Map TM0-000-0062; and

5) Adopt a resolution (Attachment E) approving Planned Development Permit PDP-150-
0003.

Item Summary:

The proposed project is located on the southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las
Palmas on a 2.064 acre vacant site in the Residential Low and Residential Low/Medium Zones.
The request is to: 1) amend the General Plan Land use designation from Transportation to
Medium Density Residential (up to 14 dwelling units per acre); 2) amend the Zoning District
from Residential Low (RL) and Residential Low/Medium (RL/M) to Residential Medium (RM); 3)
approve a Tentative Subdivision Map to authorize a 25-lot subdivision, including 22 residential
lots, one private street lot (0.310 acres), and two common area lots; and approve a Planned
Development Permit for development of the site. The attached staff report (Attachment A)
describes the project in detail. The project, as proposed and conditioned in the resolutions
(Attachments D & E), complies with the Municipal Code.

Fiscal Impact:

No fiscal impact.
Environmental Review:

[ ] Not subject to review [] Negative Declaration
[] Categorically Exempt Xl Mitigated Negative Declaration




Public Information:

[J None
X Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments:

A.

moOOow

Staff Report

Resolution (GPA-150-0003)
Ordinance 440 (ZA1-500-0004)
Resolution (TM0-000-0062)
Resolution (PDP-150-0003)

] Newsletter article

X Notice to property owners within 500 ft.
Neighborhood meeting

Mitigated Negative Declaration ND16-02
Vicinity Map

General Plan Tables CD-1 & 2

Letter from the Applicant

Exhibit “A”—Project Plans |



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT
Item No. 2

Mtg. Date April 19, 2016

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP-150-0003,
Tentative Map TM0-000-0062, General Plan Amendment GPA-150-0003, and
Zoning Amendment ZA1-500-0004 Authorizing a 25-Lot Subdivision and
Construction of 22 Dwelling Units on 2.064 Acres at the Southwest Corner of
Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas.

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Application Summary:

Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, 8109 Santaluz Village Green South,

APPLICANT/IOWNER: | {0 CA 92127

PROPERTY The site is located on the southwest corner of Paim Street and
LOCATION: Camino De Las Palmas (APN: 503-252-42-00).
PROJECT AREA: 2.064 acres (89,908 square feet) gross and 1.757 acres (76,542

square feet) net

EXISTING ZONE: Residential Low (RL) & Residential Low/Medium (RL/M)

GENERAL PLAN Transportation (Special Treatment Area VII, Troy Street/SR-125

LAND USE Planning Area)
DESIGNATION: g
North: Single-family residential
SURROUNDING South: Single-family residential
PROPERTIES: East: Vacant Caltrans property and State Route 125

West: Liberty Charter High School and single-family residential

A Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) of Environmental Impact will
be filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the
proposed project by the City Council. The Initial Environmental Study
prepared for this project identified potential impacts with appropriate
mitigations associated with: Cultural Resources, Hydrology & Water
Quality, and Noise. A draft MND was filed with the County Clerk prior
to the City Council public hearing.

ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT:




Attachment A

Discussion:
Site and Project Description
Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC filed a complete application on February 10, 2016.

The property is a vacant 89,908 square foot (2.064 gross acre) parcel, which is a former
Caltrans right-of-way that remained after construction of State Route (SR) 125. The proposed
project is a request to: 1) amend the General Plan Land Use Designation from Transportation to
Medium Density Residential (up to 14 dwelling units per acre); 2) amend the Zoning District
from Residential Low (RL) and Residential Low/Medium (RL/M) to Residential Medium (RM); 3)
approve a Tentative Subdivision Map to authorize a 25-lot subdivision, including 22 residential
lots, one private street lot, and two common area lots; and 4) approve an associated Planned
Development Permit. This staff report provides a description of the existing site, the proposed
project and the conformance to the regulatory framework.

The project proposes six single-family units and eight twin-homes (two attached single-family
units on separate legal lots) for a total of 22 dwelling units. It is designed to provide three
detached single-family residences along the Palm Street cul-de-sac and three additional
detached single-family residences at the northwest end of the project site on Palm Street
adjacent to Liberty Charter High School. The remaining 16 dwelling units are composed of eight
twin-homes, which are located along the remainder of the site that is adjacent to Palm Street,
along Camino De Las Palmas, and in the center of the site. The subdivision proposes 22
residential lots ranging in size from 1,351 square feet to 9,674 square feet and three additional
lots, including a lot for the private street, a lot providing open space (Lot B), and a common
private parking lot (Lot C). The open space lot will provide 2,268 square feet of common usable
open space directly accessible from the private street, including a toddler play structure, turf,
picnic table, bench, and a barbeque. The open space lot will also include a public art element,
up-lighting, and enhanced landscaping at the intersection of Palm Street and Camino De Las
Palmas. Additionally, each unit has private open space ranging from 156 to 336 square feet, or
a total of 5,425 square feet. Total net area of the development (excluding the private street) is
1.754 acres. The maximum density for the proposed Medium Residential land use designation
is 14 dwelling units per acre, or a maximum of 24 dwelling units. The proposed density is 12.5
dwelling units per acre, 22 total dwelling units.

The proposed private street will take access from the cul-de-sac portion of Palm Street at two
locations. The private street provides sidewalks on both sides and rolled curb and gutters with
increased widths in various areas to provide an enhanced pedestrian environment. Required
guest parking will be provided by one on-street parallel parking space and a common parking
area with five parking spaces and a bike rack. Other improvements for the project include a
project monument sign on the cul-de-sac portion of Palm Street, hardscape, landscaping and
irrigation, lighting, a detention basin at the southeast corner of the site, a six-foot high sound
wall behind the proposed units on Lots 1 through 9 and the open space area, and stairs and a
walkway that provide access from the project to Palm Street to the north.

The State has established Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) targets for each city in
order to ensure adequate housing stock. The RHNA targets create a threshold for cities in order
to obtain grant and transportation funding. This project works towards the City’s goals of
meeting its RHNA figures. Staff projects that these homes will be available to households of
above-moderate income level. The project also meets housing policies of the Housing Element
as it relates to promoting a mix of housing types and encouraging a balanced mix of housing.



Attachment A

Land Use Designation

The existing General Plan land use designation is Transportation, which provides for
transportation facilities and associated rights-of-way. The proposed project includes a General
Plan Amendment to redesignate the site from Transportation to Medium Density Residential (up
to 14 dwelling units per acre). The General Plan Special Treatment Area overlay acknowledged
that a future general plan amendment would be required after Caltrans sold excess right-of-way
subsequent to construction of SR-125, and anticipated the same designation as the designation
of adjacent properties. The residential properties directly across the Palm Street cul-de-sac to
the south of the project are designated Low/Medium Density Residential (up to 7 du/ac). The
properties across Palm Street to the north have a Transportation land use designation and
further north and northwest have a Low Density Residential designation (up to 4 du/ac). The
site is conducive to a higher density due to its location, which is on a high trafficked collector
street, it is directly adjacent to a school on the west, and it is within a quarter mile of a bus stop
which is located at Sweetwater Road and Troy Street. There is vacant Caltrans right-of-way
across Camino De Las Palmas to the east.

Zoning District Amendment and Regulations

The property is currently zoned Residential Low and Residential Low-Medium (up to 7 du/ac).
The project proposes a Zoning Amendment to Residential Medium (up to 14 du/ac).

The Lemon Grove Municipal Code allows applicants to request deviations from development
standards through the Planned Development Permit process where it can be found that the
project provides equivalent benefits and/or achieves efficiencies in use, structures,
transportation and/or utility systems. The applicant proposes a pedestrian-oriented infill
development with a mix of housing types (single-family homes and twin-homes); large setbacks
from Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas; bicycle racks for each residence and sited
throughout the development; an enhanced common open space that provides a recreational
area for the project: enhanced landscaping throughout the site; a public art feature; and
residences that exceed energy efficiency standards. In order to accomplish this project design,
the applicant requests various deviations from the Zoning and Subdivision Codes, including
deviations to the building envelope, setbacks, lot size and dimensions, open space, building
height, and public street requirements.

The following table describes the development standards of the Residential Medium Zone

Criteria Residential Medium (RM) | Proposed Development
Zone Development Standard | Standard and Deviations
Open Space 12,000 sg. ft. total common | 2,268 sq. ft. common usable |
usable open space open space, plus 5,425 sq. ft.
private open space
Min. Lot Area 6,000 SF (allows multi-family | Lot size ranges from 1,351
units on one lot) square feet to 9,674 square feet
Min. Lot Width/Depth 60-feet by 90-feet 24-feet by 45-feet minimum
provided
Setbacks 25-feet (front) 3-feet (front)”
5-feet (side) O-feet (side)*
20-feet (rear) 5-feet (rear)*

*Minimum provided.




Attachment A

Building Height 25-feet  maximum;  height | 33’-8" maximum: two and three
extensions up to 10 feet high | stories. Increased setbacks are
allowed if all setback are | notproposed.

increased 5 feet.

Max. Building Coverage | None established. Approximately 22%

Bicycle Parking Five required. Bike racks provided in the
common parking area and the
common open space.

Each unit provides a ceiling-
mounted bike rack within the
garage.

Building Design

A total of six detached single-family residences are proposed. The single-family residences are
positioned along the Palm Street cul-de-sac and adjacent to the school providing a density
transition buffer between the existing single-family neighborhoods to the south and west
(transitions from single-family residences to twin homes). Five different floor plans are provided
for the single-family dwellings, which range in size from 1,753 to 2,226 square feet of living
area. Two units are two-story and the remaining units are three stories. All the single-family
units have four bedrooms and between two and one-half to four bathrooms. The remaining 16
dwelling units consist of eight twin-homes. Two different floor plans are provided for the
twinhomes, which range in size from 1,803 to 1,834 square feet of living area. All the twinhomes
have three bedrooms and three bathrooms and are three stories.

In total, there are seven different floor plans for the 22 units. The elevations show each floor
plan varies in roof and siding materials, window treatments, doors, garage doors, decks, pop
outs, and covered patio areas, as well building massing. The neighboring properties to the south
are single-family residences with varying forms and sizes and largely have stucco siding with
asphalt shingle roofing with varying window treatments and siding accents consisting of stone or
vertical or horizontal wood siding. All of the proposed plans have varying earth tone colors. The
project proposes roof and siding and window treatments as follows:

Plan Type (# of units) | Description

1A (1 unit) Two-story single-family residence with concrete Spanish style tile roof,
stucco siding, and shutter window treatments.

1B and 1X-B (2 units) | Two (1B) and three (1X-B) story single-family residences with concrete
flat style tile roof, stucco and board and batten siding, and an
alternative shutter window treatment.

1X-C (1 unit) Three story single-family residence with an alternative concrete flat
style tile roof, stucco and horizontal wood siding, and a planter style
window treatment.

2A (2 units) Three story single-family residence with concrete Spanish style tile
roof, stucco siding, and shutter window treatments.

3A (8 units) Three story twin homes with concrete Spanish style tile roof, stucco
siding, and shutter window treatments.




Attachment A

3B (8 units) Three story twin homes with concrete flat style tile roof, stucco and
shingle siding, and an alternative shutter window treatment.

All the units have attached two-car garages with varying styles and colors,
Grading

The site is vacant and consists of a relatively flat pad bounded almost entirely by descending
slopes that allows for view lots to be created. The slopes vary in gradient from 2:1 (horizontal to
vertical) above Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, to gentler slopes at gradients of
approximately 3:1 to 4:1 above the southernmost frontage of Camino De Las Palmas and along
the Palm Street cul-de-sac. Existing slope heights vary up to approximately 30 feet, with the
tallest slopes near the intersection of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas. The entire site is
proposed to be graded to provide lots that step down gradually along Palm Street from west to
east and along Camino De Las Palmas from north to south. Three- to six-foot retaining walls
will be provided to accomplish the changes in grade (approximately 13.4 feet change in finished
pad elevations).

Landscaping/Screening

Projects located in residential zones are required to landscape 15 percent of the total lot area.
The project proposes a total of 42,123 square feet of landscaping or approximately 47 percent
of the gross lot area. Proposed landscaping includes 33 street trees on Palm Street, Camino De
Las Palmas, and the cul-de-sac portion of Palm Street. The 17 existing palm trees along the
public streets will be retained, with 16 new street trees installed along the three adjoining public
streets. An additional 78 trees will be planted on the property including five citrus and plum trees
as required by the new landscape provisions. All landscaping along the street and on-site will be
maintained by a private Home Owners Association (HOA).

Traffic

The Trip Generation Analysis that was prepared for this project estimates the project will
generate approximately 220 average daily trips (ADT) per day. Based on the San Diego Traffic
Engineers’ Council (SANTEC) and the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) document
SANTEC/ITE Guidelines for Traffic Impact Studies in the San Diego Region, a traffic impact
study is not required because the project’s trip generation is calculated to be less than 1,000
ADT and less than 100 peak hour trips. Additionally, the Trip Generation Analysis determined
that the ADT and number of peak hour trips generated by the proposed project does not trigger
Caltrans’ threshold for a requirement to analyze State highway facilities.

Approximately 90 percent of the trips generated by the proposed project are expected to be
distributed onto Palm Street Street, with approximately 50 percent heading west into Lemon
Grove and 40 percent heading east toward Spring Valley (County of San Diego). Palm Street is
designated as a Class Il Collector in the Mobility Element of the General Plan, and the addition
of approximately 220 vehicle trips is not expected to have any significant traffic impacts.

Off-Street Parking

The off-street parking requirements for projects in the Residential Medium zone are noted in
the table below. The project proposes a mix of six detached single-family residences and eight
twin-homes (duplexes, for the purpose of the City's parking requirements). Single-family
residences require two parking spaces per dwelling unit, with the spaces required to be
garaged. Duplexes of one bedroom or more require two parking spaces per unit, one of which
must be covered. Duplexes also require guest parking at the rate of one space per four dwelling
units.



Attachment A

PARKING REQUIREMENTS

Use (RM Zone Proposed) Number of Units Parking Spaces
Ratio Required

Single-Family Residential Six Single-Family 2/Unit, 12

Residences Garaged

Duplex (1+ Bedrooms) 16 Units 2/Unit, One of | 32 (16 must
which must be covered)
be Covered

Guest Parking (Duplex) 16 Units 1/Four Units 4

Total Required 48

Parking Provided On-site 22 Units 2.27/Unit 50

The project proposes two-car garages for all units, plus a total of six guest parking spaces,
including one parallel space on the private street and five spaces within the private parking area
located on the north side of the property. A celling-mounted bicycle parking space is provided
within each garage, and bike racks will be provided in the common open space area and the
private parking area.

Noise

State Route 125 and Palm Street are the primary noise sources within close proximity of the
project. A noise study was conducted for this project. It shows that predicted exterior noise
levels at the proposed building fagades and outdoor of the several lots generally along Camino
De Las Palmas would all exceed the maximum 65 dB CNEL. As a mitigation measure, a six-foot
sound wall will be constructed adjacent to these lots. In addition, the noise study showed that a
‘windows open” condition will not provide adequate interior noise mitigations at all units.
Therefore, a “closed window” condition is required for all units subject to noise levels above 60
dBA CNEL to reduce interior noise levels to comply with the City of Lemon Grove requirements.
The “windows closed” condition requires that mechanical ventilation be installed to move air
within the structure. As a mitigation measure, specific construction assemblies and mechanical
ventilation are required to ensure that the interior levels are reduced below 45 dBA CNEL.
These mitigation measures have been included as conditions in the Draft Resolution of
Approval.

Public Street Dedication and Improvement Requirements

There is existing curb, gutter, and sidewalk along the frontages of Palm Street, Camino De Las
Palmas and the Palm Street cul-de-sac. Additional street trees and landscape are proposed
within the four to five foot wide landscape parkway behind the sidewalk.

Appropriate street dedication is already provided on Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas.
There is an existing 52 foot right-of-way width on the Palm Street cul-de-sac where a 56 foot
right-of-way width could be required. Staff felt the existing street width was adequate to provide
on-street parking, sufficient vehicle travel lanes, and sidewalk and landscape parkway to not
warrant additional right-of-way dedication.

Appropriate requirements have been included in the Draft Resolution of Approval.
Undergrounding of Overhead Utility Lines

Existing overhead utility lines located within the boundaries of the property or within the one-half
right-of-way abutting the subject property are required to be placed underground. There is

.8-



Attachment A

existing power poles located on the property. The service on these poles is to be placed
underground, as well as any new services to the project. A condition has been included in the
Draft Resolution of Approval requiring the undergrounding of all new services to the proposed
project.

Drainage/Water Quality

The applicant prepared a Hydrology Report, a Hydro Modification Plan (HMP), and a Major
Stormwater Management Plan (Major SWMP) for this project. Low impact design, including
permeable pavers in driveways and a detention basin will be used to minimize new stormwater
created from this project. According to the Hydrology Report prepared for this project, the
increase in flow is not anticipated to have significant impacts on the downstream storm drain
facilities. The Hydromodification Plan prepared for this project determined that the post-
construction hydrologic characteristics of the project simulate the pre-development hydrologic
characteristics at the point of compliance, and the project is not required to manage
Hydromodification impacts.

The implementation, construction and on-going maintenance of the project components
recommended in these reports are included as conditions in the Draft Resolution of Approval.

Expiration Date of the Planned Development Permit

The Tentative Map and Planned Development Permits will expire within two (2) years if the final
map has not been recorded. This requirement has been included in the Resolution of Approval.
The General Plan Amendment will be effective after approval and Zoning Amendment will be
effective upon second reading of the zoning amendment ordinance.

Public Information:

The Notice of Public Hearing was published in the March 24, 2016 edition of the East County
Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject property.

A Native American Tribal Government Consultation was conducted pursuant to Government
Code Sections 6540.2, 65092, 65351, 65352.3, 65352.4, 65562.5 et. seq.

Additionally, the applicant did conduct a neighborhood meeting to answer questions of nearby
property owners.

The City received no comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing and Environmental
Analysis at the time this staff report was prepared. Staff will provide the Council at the time of
the public hearing with any comments that may come in past the distribution of the staff report.

Conclusion:

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct the public hearing, introduce and conduct first
reading of the Ordinance (Attachment C) and approve the resolutions (Attachments B, D, and
E).



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO.:

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT GPA-150-003 AMENDING THE GENERAL
PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM TRANSPORTATION TO MEDIUM DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF PALM
STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMS, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA :

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for approval of a General Plan Amendment (GPA-150-0003) and a Zoning Amendment (ZA1-
500-0004) on February 10, 2016 to amend the General Plan from Transportation to Medium
Density Residential (up to 14 dwelling units per acre) and to amend the Zoning District from
Residential Low and Residential Low/Medium to Residential Medium as part of a request for
approval of a Tentative Map (TM0062) and Planned Development Permit (PDP150-0003) to
authorize the subdivision of 2.064 acres of land into 25 parcels, including 22 residential lots with
22 dwelling units, a lot for a private street, a lot for common parking, and a lot for common open
space; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) of Environmental Impact will be
filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council.
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts
associated with Cultural Resources, Hydrology & Water Quality, and Noise will be mitigated to
below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a mitigated negative declaration was
filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2016, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove City Council, and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the General Plan Amendment is in accordance
with Government Code Sections 65350 to 65359 and is consistent with the goals and policies of
the General Plan and Chapter 18.40 (General Plan Conformity) of the Municipal Code:

The existing General Plan land use designation is Transportation, which provides for
transportation facilities and associated rights-of-way. This site was formerly Caltrans
right-of-way which was sold after completion of SR-125. The proposed project includes a
General Plan Amendment to redesignate the site from Transportation to Medium Density
Residential. The General Plan acknowledged that a future general plan amendment
would be required after Caltrans sold excess right-of-way subsequent to construction of
SR-125. The site is conducive to a higher density due to its location, which is on a high
trafficked collector street, it is directly adjacent to a school on the west, and it is within a
guarter mile of a bus stop; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby:

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Certifies the adequacy of the Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental
Impact ND16-02; and

“11-



Attachment B

SECTION 3. Approves General Plan Amendment GPA-150-0003 amending the General Plan
Land Use Designation from Transportation to Medium Density Residential (up to 14 dwelling units
per net acre) for property located at the southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las
Palmas (APN No. 503-252-42-00).

Iy
Iy

12-



Attachment C

ORDINANCE NO. 440

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING ZONING AMENDMENT ZA1-500-0004 AMENDING THE ZONING DISTRICT
FROM RESIDENTIAL LOW (RL) AND RESIDENTIAL LOW/MEDIUM (RL/M) TO
RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM (RM) FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF PALM STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMAS, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for approval of a General Plan Amendment (GPA-150-0003) and a Zoning Amendment (ZA1-
500-0004) on February 10, 2016 to amend the General Plan from Transportation to Medium
Density Residential and to amend the Zoning District from Residential Low and Residential
Low/Medium to Residential Medium as part of a request for approval of a Tentative Map
(TM0062) and Planned Development Permit (PDP150-0003) to authorize the subdivision of
2.064 acres of land into 25 parcels, including 22 residential lots with 22 dwelling units, a lot for a
private street, a lot for common parking, and a lot for common open space; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) of Environmental Impact will be
filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council.
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts
associated with Cultural Resources, Hydrology & Water Quality, and Noise will be mitigated to
below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a mitigated negative deciaration was
filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2016, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the following findings required to approve a
Zoning Amendment can be made in accordance with Section 17.28.080(B) of the Municipal
Code:

1. That the proposed amendment is consistent with the General Plan, in accordance
with Government Code Section 65860, as amended.

The existing General Plan land use designation is Transportation, which provides for
transportation facilities and associated rights-of-way. This site was formerly Caltrans
right-of-way which was sold after completion of SR-125. The proposed project
includes a General Plan Amendment to redesignate the site from Transportation to
Medium Density Residential. As a part of the Special Treatment Area overlay, the
General Plan acknowledged that a future general plan amendment would be
required after Caltrans sold excess right-of-way subsequent to construction of SR-
125.

2. That the public health, safety, and general welfare benefit from the adoption of the
proposed amendment.

The site is conducive to a higher density due to its location, which is on a high
trafficked collector street, it is directly adjacent to a school on the west, and it is
within a quarter mile of a bus stop.

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA DOES ORDAIN AS
FOLLOWS:

13-



Attachment D

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Ordinance are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Approve Zoning Amendment ZA1-500-0004 amending the Zoning District from
Residential Low and Residential Low/Medium to Residential Medium for property located at the
southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas (APN No. 503-252-42-00).

11171
Iy

-14-



Attachment D

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING TENTATIVE
SUBDIVISION MAP TMO0-000-062 (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT) AUTHORIZING THE
SUBDIVISION OF A 2.064 ACRE PARCEL INTO TWENTY-TWO RESIDENTIAL LOTS, ONE
COMMON LOT FOR A PRIVATE STREET, ONE COMMON LOT FOR PARKING, AND ONE
COMMON LOT FOR OPEN SPACE ON AN UNDEVELOPED SITE AT THE SOUTHWEST
CORNER OF PALM STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMAS, LEMON GROVE,
CALIFORNIA.

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for a Tentative Map (TM0-000-062) on February 10, 2016 to authorize the subdivision of 2.064
acres of land into 22 residential lots, a lot for a private street, a lot for common parking, and a lot
for common open space as part of an application for a Planned Development Permit (PDP150-
0003), a General Plan Amendment (GPA-150-0003) and a Zoning Amendment (ZA1-500-0004);
and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) of Environmental Impact will be
filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council.
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts
associated with Cultural Resources, Hydrology & Water Quality, and Noise will be mitigated to
below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a mitigated negative declaration was
filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on April 19, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the tentative map is consistent with the Lemon
Grove General Plan because it proposes lots for 22 dwelling units at a density of 12.5 dwelling
units per acre on a 1.757 net acre parcel of land in the Medium Density Residential land use
designation of the Lemon Grove General Plan which allows a maximum of 14 dwelling units per
net acre; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the tentative map complies with the findings of
fact required to approve this project pursuant to Municipal Code Section 16.16.400 because the
project complies with the time limitations of the State Subdivision Map Act; the existing lot is a
legal lot; the proposed subdivision creates more than five lots; the proposed subdivision
complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance; the map and design or
improvements are consistent with applicable general and specific plans; the site is physically
suitable for the type of development; and the site is physically suitable for the proposed density
of development; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered said Tentative Map and recommendations
of the Planning Department, City Engineer, and the Lemon Grove Fire Department with respect
thereto and has determined that the conditions hereinafter enumerated are necessary to insure
that the subdivision and the improvements thereof will conform to all ordinances, plans, rules,
and improvement and design standards of the City of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered said Tentative Map and recommendations
of the Planning, Engineering, and Stormwater Divisions, and the Heartland Fire District with
respect thereto and has determined that the conditions hereinafter enumerated are necessary to

A5



Attachment D

ensure that the subdivision and the improvements thereof will conform to all ordinances, plans,
rules, and improvement and design standards of the City of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered Planned Development Permit PDP-150-
0003 including site, architectural, and landscape plans dated received February 10, 2016
associated with Tentative Map TM0-000-0062; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 16.12.280, the City Council finds that it is
impractical in this particular case for this subdivision to conform fully to the Design Standards of
the Subdivision Ordinance because the Subdivision Ordinance does not account for lots sized
for planned developments and waivers granted as part of the approval of this project are found
to conform to the spirit and purpose of the Subdivision Map Act and of the Subdivision
Ordinance of the Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby makes the following findings:

1. The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause
substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife
or their habitat because the property has no environmentally protected resources as
discussed in the Mitigated Negative Declaration; and

2. The proposed Tentative Subdivision Map (TM0-000-0062) is consistent with the
Medium Density Residential land use designation (up to 14-dwelling units per net
acre) of the General Plan; and

3. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development because
public and private utilities will be available to serve the proposed density; and

4. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not cause serious
public health problems because public services (e.g., sewer, water, gas, and
electricity) will be provided to the subdivision; and

5. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements do not conflict with
easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through, or use of property
within the proposed subdivision as defined under Section 66474 of the Government
Code, State of California; and

6. The design and improvements of the proposed subdivision map comply with the
requirements of the State Subdivision Map Act and the Subdivision Ordinance
except as specifically waived or modified for the requested deviations in accordance
with Section 16.12.280 and pursuant to the Planned Development Permit process;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby:

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Waives or modifies the following Design Standards in accordance with Section
16.12.280:

1. Section 16.12.220B (Minimum Lot Area of 6,000 sq. ft.) to allow 22 planned
development lots with areas ranging from 1,351 square feet to 9,674 square feet.

2. Section 16.12.220C (Lots Shall Front on Dedicated Street) to allow 22 planned
development lots to not front on a dedicated street.

-16-



Attachment D

3. Section 16.12.220D (Minimum Lot Width and Depth of 60 feet by 90 feet) to allow 22
planned development lots with minimum dimensions of less than sixty feet by ninety feet.

4. Section 16.12.220H (The side lines of all lots shall be at right angles or radial to the
street upon which the lots front with a maximum deviation of up to ten degrees allowed)
to allow planned development lots accommodating for garage access and enhanced
pedestrian paths.

5. Section 16.12.220I (Lot depth shall be no greater than three times the average width) to
allow slope and open space behind proposed residences to be a part of individual
residential lots, but maintained by the Homeowner’'s Association.

SECTION 3. Conditionally approves Tentative Map TM-000-0062 in association with Planned
Development Permit PDP-150-0003 and the grading, site, landscape, and architectural plans
dated received February 10, 2016 (incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit “A”) pursuant to
the City of Lemon Grove Subdivision Ordinance (Title 16 of the Municipal Code) and contingent
upon the second reading and final approval of an ordinance approving Zoning Amendment ZA1-
500-0004. The approval conditionally authorizes the development of a vacant site with a 22 unit
planned development with an associated private street and common area located on the
southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, Lemon Grove, California (APN
No. 503-252-42-00). The subdivider shall comply with all applicable provisions of the
Subdivision Map Act, the City of Lemon Grove Subdivision Ordinance, and the following
conditions of approval:

NO PARCEL SHOWN ON THIS APPROVED TENTATIVE SUBDIVITION MAP SHALL BE
LEASED, SOLD, CONVEYED, OR TRANSFERRED, UNLESS AND UNTIL A SUBDIVISION
MAP APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER HAS BEEN FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
COUNTY RECORDER.

A. WITHIN FIVE DAYS OF APPROVAL, THE SUBDIVIDER/APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY
WITH THE FOLLOWING:

1. Submit the appropriate payment for the CEQA filing fee (Department of Fish and
Game MND and County Clerk Processing Fee).

2. Pay all outstanding fees for City permits related to this project.

B. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A GRADING OR IMPROVEMENT PERMIT AND/OR
DURING GRADING ACTIVITY, THE SUBDIVIER/APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH
THE FOLLOWING:

1. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated
February 10, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they
are shown and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City
Codes to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

2. Obtain a grading permit from the City prior to any grading activities. The grading
permit shall constitute an authorization to do only that work which is described or
illustrated on the application for the permit, or in the plans and specifications
approved by the City Engineer.

3. All grading permit fees and deposits shall be paid and all actions necessary
preceding the issuance of the grading permit shall be completed.

4. Coordinate with Helix Water District for the installation of water facilities and ensure
that all of the appropriate permits are obtained.

17-



Attachment D

-18-

10.

11.

12.

13.
14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

Obtain an encroachment permit for the installation of private facilities and/or for
grading work in/or adjacent to the public right-of-way.

Building permits shall be submitted with the grading plans for retaining and
freestanding walls where required. Except as noted in this condition, building permits
shall be termed building permits for post-grading activities in the resolutions
approving this project.

Safety fencing shall be required at the top of retaining walls and slopes and shall be
shown on all Grading Plans where appropriate.

A private Storm Water Facility and Best Management Practice maintenance
agreement shall be recorded for the future repair and rehabilitation of the proposed
private drainage and storm water treatment. The City will provide the template for the
agreement.

As a part of the grading permit submittal, a private improvement, grading, and
drainage plan shall be submitted showing all of the proposed and existing on-site
improvements. The plan shall be prepared in accordance with the City’s standard
requirements by a Registered Civil Engineer. All necessary measures for prevention
of storm water pollution and hazardous material run-off to the public storm drain
system from the proposed development shall be implemented with the design of the
grading.

A public improvement plan as a part of an improvement plan check, shall be
submitted with applicable deposit showing all of the proposed and existing
improvements within the public right-of-way. The plan shall be prepared in
accordance with the City's standard requirements by a Registered Civil Engineer.

As-built drawings shall be submitted to SDG&E to energize all of the required street
lights.

Submit the street improvement and grading plans to Helix Water for review and
sighature.

All utilities shall be shown on the grading plans.

Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, a deposit shall be paid to cover the City’s
expenses, costs, and overhead for the field inspection, office engineering, and
administration of the work performed, including landscape and irrigation work. The
amount of the deposit shall be as determined by the City Engineer.

All existing survey monuments shall be shown on the grading plan.

Evidence indicating that arrangements have been made for the preservation and/or
relocation of existing monuments shall be submitted to the City Engineer prior to the
issuance of a grading permit.

Grading plans shall be prepared and submitted with the grading permit application in
accordance with the city engineering standards and the requirements of the City
Engineer.

All grading plans shall be signed by a registered civil engineer and by the soil
engineer.

Conditions imposed by the city engineer shall be shown on the grading plans under
the heading “General Notes.”



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Attachment D

The subdivider shall execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and a
Subdivision Improvement Security in accordance with Section 16.12.200. A cost
estimate for all of the proposed grading, drainage, street improvements, landscaping,
and retaining and freestanding walls work proposed shall be submitted with the
grading and improvement plans. A separate cost estimate shall be submitted for
work proposed within the public right-of-way. Templates for these agreements are
available from the City. The applicant shall post a security with the City comprised of
a cash deposit of a combination of cash deposit and corporate surety bond of a
surety authorized to do business in the state. An instrument of credit or other security
pledging the performance of the work, may be submitted in lieu of the surety bond to
insure installation of required structures, drains, landscaping, irrigation and other
improvements shown on the grading plan. Such funds are trust funds for the
purposes of satisfying the cost of correcting any deficiency, hazard or injury created
by the work or lack of maintenance thereof. An irrevocable standby letter of credit
issued by a financial institution subject to the regulation by the state or federal
government may be posted in lieu of the surety bond, instrument of credit or other
security. The estimated cost of the work shall be determined by the City Engineer
after reviewing the civil engineer’s estimate. The total amount of the security shall be
equal to one hundred fifty percent of the estimated cost of the grading work
authorized by the permit plus an additional sum equal to one hundred percent of the
estimated cost for the construction of drainage structures or facilities, including
standard terrace drains, slope planting, irrigation system, erosion control devices,
retaining walls and similar facilities authorized by the permit.

Submit improvement plans and enter into a secured agreement for public street
improvements to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

Three copies of a preliminary soils engineering report shall be submitted with the
application of a grading permit. Each report shall be prepared by a soil engineer and
contain all information applicable to the project in accordance with generally
accepted geotechnical engineering practice. The preliminary soil engineering report
shall include, but not be limited to, the requirements outlined within 18.08.120 A. All
recommendations outlined in the soils report shall be imbedded into the grading
plans. The grading plans shall include site monitoring and inspections to ensure
recommendations of the Geotechnical Evaluation are adhered to. The Evaluation
recommends that undocumented fill, colluvium and bedrock be removed. Removal
depths are estimated at two to seven feet with variation. Properly designed site
drainage is required to reduce erosion damage to the planned improvements. Typical
erosion control measures will be required during site grading.

The soil engineer and engineering geologist should refer to the geologic conditions
element of the Lemon Grove General Plan in preparing the reports required in
18.08.120.

Recommendations contained within approved reports and technical analyses shall
be incorporated into the grading plan and specifications and shall become conditions
of the grading permit.

Submit a truck hauling route with diagram showing streets. This should include the
source of borrow and/or disposal and any BMPs tied to the imported material.

Obtain written letter of conditional approval from FEMA for development within Flood
Plan ‘X"

-19-



Attachment D

-20-

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Submit a final Hydrology Report and Storm Water Quality Management Plan
(SWQMP) to determine and analyze the increased volume of storm water runoff as a
result of the proposed design. Analysis of the downstream onsite detention basin
must be based on hydrology calculations. Any modifications must be reflected on
the plans. This report should contain calculations and diagrams of pre and post-
development conditions. The SWQMP shall be completed and approved prior to the
issuance of any other permits. Grading and site improvements shall be in
accordance with the SWQMP for the proposed project. The SWQMP shall specify
implementation of BMPs required in 8.48 and 18.08 of Municipal Code and the BMP
Design Manual. Provide evidence that treatment Best Management Practices
(BMPs) are adequately sized for the increase in impervious surfaces.

Plans for an erosion control system shall be prepared and submitted for the review
and approval of the City Engineer and Water Quality Coordinator as a part of any
application for a construction permit. The erosion control system shall comply with
the requirements of the latest state general construction stormwater permit and any
amendments thereto, the MS4 Permit, Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter 8.48,
and 18.08.170.

A private Stormwater Facilities and Best Management Practices maintenance
agreement shall be submitted for the future repair and rehabilitation of the proposed
private drainage and stormwater treatment facilities prior to the issuance of a grading
or improvement permit.

An agreement not-to-oppose the formation of a future utility undergrounding district
will be required to be submitted prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits.

An agreement not-to-oppose the formation of a future street improvement district will
be required to be submitted prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits.

The developer shall submit erosion and sediment control plans with construction
Best Management Practices (BMPs) and an irrigation plan for review and approval
by the Water Quality Coordinator, which will be required to be abided by during
grading activities.

The applicant shall submit sewer lateral plans with the improvement plans. These
sewer lateral plans shall be submitted to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

The structural pavement section for the private access located on the subject
property shall be based on the soils report prepared by a Geotechnical Engineer to
the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

Parking spaces shall be of the dimensions outlined in Chapter 17.24.010 of the
Lemon Grove Municipal Code unless specified otherwise by the Development
Services Director.

Improvements, where applicable, shall conform to the San Diego Regional Standard
Drawings unless otherwise specified by the City Engineer.

The subdivider shall provide proof satisfactory to the Director of Public Health that
there exists an adequate potable water supply available to each lot or parcel, and
that the subdivider install or agree to install water supply pipes of a minimum six
inches in diameter, provided that the City Engineer may required such other diameter
of water supply pipe as may be recommended by Helix Water District.



38.

39.

40.

41.
42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

Attachment D

Sight distance requirements along streets and at all intersections shall conform to the
intersectional sight distance criteria as provided by the Caltrans Highway Design
Manual.

The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with letters from the serving utility
companies stating that arrangements satisfactory to the utility have been made to
serve all parcels created. No letter will be required from the Pacific Bell Telephone
Company.

A private Sewer Maintenance Agreement shall be submitted for the future repair and
rehabilitation of the proposed private sewer prior to the issuance of grading or
improvement permits. The City will provide the template for the agreement.

The Sewer main for this project shall be designated as private, not public.

Each dwelling unit of the proposed subdivision shall be connected to a sewer of the
Lemon Grove Sanitation District.

Provide the City with a final drainage/hydrology report indicating that the site design
is in accordance with the report and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NDPES) permit. On-site drainage shall be in compliance with the NDPES
permit.

Submit a maintenance agreement for the on-going maintenance of the private street
and access improvements, parking and other proposed paved areas, fencing,
landscape and irrigation (private and within the public right-of-way along the
property’s frontage), drainage and water quality facilities required by the SWQMP,
and recreational and other facilities as specified to be reviewed and approved by the
City Engineer and Director of Development Services. This maintenance agreement
shall be adhered to by the HOA and incorporated into the CC&Rs to the satisfaction
of the Director of Development Services and City Engineer.

All plans and technical studies required to be submitted to the Engineering
Department for review and approval shall be prepared by a California Registered
Professional Engineer or applicable utility provider.

The permittee shall be responsible to maintain in an obvious and accessible location
on the site, a copy of the grading and improvement permit and grading plans bearing
the approval of the City Engineer.

After grading permit issuance, but prior to any land development work involving
grading, brushing or clearing, there shall be a pre-grading meeting. Prior to pouring
curbs and gutters or placement of base materials, there shall be a pre-paving
meeting held on the site. The permittee, or his or her agent, shall notify the City
Engineer at least two working days prior to the meeting and shall be responsible for
notifying all principals responsible for grading and paving related operations. The
Storm Water Coordinator shall be a part of the meeting.

All land development work shall be performed by a contractor licensed by the state to
perform the types of work required by the permit.

The property owner shall pay the City for all costs of placing, repairing, replacing or
maintaining a city-owned facility within the public right-of-way when the city facility
has been damaged or has failed as a result of the construction or existence of the
owner's land development work during the progress of such work. The costs of
placing, replacing or maintaining the city-owned facility shall include the cost of

21-



Attachment D

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

obtaining an alternate easement if necessary. The City may withhold certification of
the completion of a building or other work where a notice has been issued.

The subdivider shall submit record drawings (as-builts) and engineering
documentation with applicable fees for all public improvements to the City to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

In accordance with Municipal Code Sections 12.10.080 and 16.12.240, the property
owner(s) shall underground all existing utility distribution facilities, including
telecommunication lines, on and along the frontage of the subject property as
required by the City Engineer. The property owner(s) shall make the necessary
arrangements with each of the serving utilities, including licensed communication
operators for the installation or relocation of such facilities. No new overhead poles
shall result from undergrounding activities.

Submit street improvement plans with roadway cross-sections with rolled curb
configuration to the Fire Marshal for review and approval. Minimum 20 foot fire lane
for emergency access required.

Prior to combustibles being brought to the site, the developer shall provide written
certification from the Water Purveyor, dated within the last thirty days, that:

a. All public fire hydrants required of the project have been installed, tested, and
approved by the Water Purveyor; and

b. Are permanently connected to the public water main system; and

c. Are capable of supplying the required fire flow as required by Heartland Fire &
Rescue.

Group R-3 and U Occupancies: An approved water supply capable of supplying the
required fire flow for fire protection shall be provided to all premises upon which
facilities, buildings, or portions of buildings are hereafter constructed or moved into or
within the jurisdiction. When any portion of the facility or building protected is in
excess of 400 feet (122 mm) from a water supply on a public street, as measured by
an approved route around the exterior of the facility or building, on-site fire hydrants
and mains capable of supplying the required flow shall be provided when required by
the Fire Code official. The size of fire hydrant outlets shall be a minimum of one 4
inch and one 2-%2 inch NST outlet or greater as required by the Fire Code official.

In order to mitigate any impacts that grading may cause to paleontological and
archaeological resources the following conditions shall be complied with:

a. The subdivider/applicant shall conduct a cultural resources records search and a
Sacred Lands File search of the project area to determine if there is likelihood for
on-site Native American cultural resources. A copy of a letter regarding the
records search shall be provided to the Development Services Department prior
to issuance of grading or improvement permits. The report shall provide
recommendations for further analysis and those recommendations shall be
implemented as a part of the mitigation measures.

b. A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American
with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at the pre-grading meeting to
consult with the grading and excavation contractors. A qualified paleontologist is
defined as an individual with a Bachelor's or higher degree in paleontology or
geology experienced in pale ontological techniques and procedures.



56.

57.

58.

59.

Attachment D

c. A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American
with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at all times during the original
cutting of previously undisturbed sediments of the Mission Valley Formation.
These monitors shall inspect an excavation which exposes sediments of the
Mission Valley Formation. Said monitors shall salvage remains as they are
uncovered.

d. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall be allowed to temporarily direct, divert or halt
grading to allow recovery of fossil and artifact remains. If cultural resources are
discovered during site preparation and/or grading, then any further work shall
cease and programs and procedures shall be initiated as outlined in CEQA
guidelines 15064.5.

e. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall document the stratigraphic and geologic
context of salvaged fossil and artifact remains.

f. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall clean, repair and sort salvaged fossils and
artifacts for eventual donation.

g. Prior to final inspection, a report shall be prepared summarizing the results of the
mitigation program and submitted to the Development Services Director. This
report will include a discussion of methods employed, fossils and artifacts
recovered, geologic context of fossil and artifact remains and the significance of
the mitigation program.

h. Donate all curated fossil and artifact specimens to an institution with a proven
history of professional, long term care and storage of paleontological and
archaeological collections, such as the San Diego Natural History Museum.

One temporary on-site sign legible from the major vehicle travel lanes adjacent to the
project shall be shall be posted on the property for the duration of all construction on-
site. The sign shall be a minimum of six feet high, six feet wide, and not to exceed 64
square feet total for two sides or 32 square feet for one side. Such sign shall include
the permit numbers, property location and APN number, a site plan and description
of the project, project name, and the developer's name, address and telephone
number. Such sign shall be removed prior to grading permit final. Signs shall be
maintained in good condition at all times.

Private residential, public residential, commercial and industrial fire access roads
shall provide an access roadway with a minimum unobstructed width of 20-feet wide
and a minimum 13'6” vertical clearance. All fire apparatus access roadways must be
maintained unobstructed and drivable by fire apparatus throughout the construction
process. Access roadways shall be capable of holding an imposed load of 75,000
pounds including in adverse weather conditions.

Grades for driveway and fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 10 percent.
Fire Department approval and additional conditions are required for grades up to 20
percent maximum. Angle of approach and departure for driveways shall not exceed
five (5) percent.

Fire lane designations shall be required for all fire access roadways as determined
by Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs shall be required for all fire access



Attachment D

24-

60.

61.

62.

63.

roadways as determined by Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs which state
‘FIRE LANE, NO PARKING” shall be installed every 50 feet. Curbs shall be painted
red and stenciled with white letters indicating the same on the face and top of any
curb as directed by Heartland Fire & Rescue. All fire lanes shall be marked and
identified prior to Certificate of Occupancy. Fire lane maintenance must be
addressed in the CC&R'’s for the project.

All required fire apparatus access roads, fire lanes, fire department turn-around and
entry/exit drives shall have a minimum 28-foot turning radius for fire apparatus
depending on size, location, and type of project. Site plans shall provide a fire
department turning radius template along the access roadway or within a detail
confirming that the radius meets Heartland Fire & Rescue requirements.

Fire apparatus access roads (all roads in the project) shall be paved, accessible and
fire hydrants shall be capable of flowing required GPM and shall be tested and
accepted by the Fire Department prior to dropping any lumber for construction.

Roadway design features (speed humps, bumps, speed control dips, etc.) which may
interfere or delay emergency apparatus responses shall not be installed or allowed to
remain on the emergency access roadways.

Any gate or barrier across a fire access roadway, whether manual or automatic, must
meet the Heartland Fire & Rescue requirements and have specific plans and permits
approved prior to installation. Knox brand key-operated electric key switch keyed to
Heartland Fire & Rescue specification are required. The Knox switch shall override
all gate functions and open the gate. Other access control systems such as Opticom,
siren, etc. shall be permitted with the approval of Heartland Fire & Rescue.

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT, THE SUBDIVIDER/APPLICANT
SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

1.

All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated
February 10, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they
are shown and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City
Codes to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

Pay all outstanding fees prior to issuance of a building permit(s) for new dwelling
units authorized by this tentative map.

Per Ordinance 372 a Uniform Transportation Mitigation Fee for each unit must be
paid at the time of building permit issuance. The fee is subject to annual increase
and the actual fee will be calculated at the time of payment.

Obtain sewer permits and pay capacity fees for 22 dwelling units or as modified by
the Lemon Grove Sanitation District prior to the issuance of a building permit. The
permit requires a capacity fee plus prorated sewer service fees be paid at the time of
permit issuance.

Pay appropriate school, parkland, diversion deposit, and other fees as applicable.

Submit for Development Services Director approval, a detailed landscape and
irrigation plan. Provide reference sheets for the grading and landscape erosion
control plans. The plan shall indicate all surface improvements including, but not
limited to, the design and locations of all walls, fences, driveways, walkways,
botanical and common names of all plant materials, number, size and location of all
plantings; all irrigation lines including valves and back-flow devices; and soil
amendments. Said landscape plan shall comply with the requirements of Section



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Attachment D

17.24.050(B) and Chapter 18.44 of the Municipal Code. The landscape plan shall be
in substantial conformance to the approved landscape concept plan.

Water supply, access, and fire protection system requirements shall meet City of
Lemon Grove Fire Department standards.

An 18 foot wide by 19 foot clear space is required within all required two-car
garages. Driveways shall be a minimum of 18 feet wide by 19 feet deep if used for
parking.

Future development shall comply with all applicable California Building Codes.

. The project shall comply with applicable provisions of the current California Building

and Fire Codes.

All new utility distribution facilities, including cable television lines, within the
boundaries of any new subdivision or within any half street abutting a new
subdivision shall be placed underground. The subdivider shall coordinate with the
necessary cable television operators for the installation of such facilities.
Transformers, terminal boxes, meter cabinets, pedestals, concealed ducts, and other
facilities necessarily appurtenant to such underground utilities and street lighting
systems may be placed above ground unless directed otherwise by the City
Engineer. All proposed structures on the subject property shall connect to the utility
system via underground system.

Submit a written statement signed by the civil engineer reporting that the site is
rough graded in conformance with the approved grading plan, as modified or
amended by any construction changes approved by the city engineer, and which
specifically states the items which were performed under his/her supervision, and are
shown correctly on the as-graded drawings.

Prior to issuance of building permits, incorporate best management practices
including site design, source control and treatment control, construction and on-going
maintenance identified in the SWQMP and Drainage Report into the Building Plans.

Provide the City with, upon completion of the grading, a compaction report from the
geotechnical firm and a letter from a licensed civil engineer that the grading and
elevations of the pad were done in accordance with the approved grading plans and
prior to the issuance of building plans.

Provide plans on Auto CAD (any release) for pre-fire planning use by the Fire
Department. Information shall include locations of all exits, stairwells, and roof
access. Also, gas, electrical, water, fire sprinkler, and standpipe valves and shutoffs,
and elevator and electrical equipment rooms, fire alarm panels, remote annunciators,
and RTU/HVAC detectors.

DURING GRADING ACTIVITY AND PRIOR TO GRADING PERMIT FINAL APPROVAL,
THE SUBDIVIDER/APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

1.

All physical elements of the project shown on the approved grading, improvement
and related plans shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be
constructed in accordance with appropriate Lemon Grove City Codes.

All trash, debris, and waste materials should be disposed of offsite, in accordance
with current local, state, and federal disposal regulations. Any materials containing
petroleum residues encountered during property improvements should be evaluated
prior to removal and disposal, following proper procedures. Any buried trash/debris

5.



Attachment D

-06-

10.

11.

12.

13.

encountered should be evaluated by an experienced environmental consultant prior
to removal.

Soil sampling and analysis for the presence of organochlorine pesticides in soil shall
be performed.

Soil sampling and analysis for the presence of lead in soil shall be performed.

For any work within the public right-of-way, the subdivider shall secure an
encroachment permit to work within the City right-of-way and place a special deposit
with the City to ensure that any damage to the existing roadway or other public
improvements is repaired in a timely manner. The subdivider shall be responsible for
all unforeseen costs related to work performed in the right-of-way.

The development and preparation of the site shall conform to all recommendations of
the approved geotechnical reports submitted to the City.

The drainage structures, bioretention areas, underground storage pipes, and outlet
structures identified in the Standard Water Quality Management Plan (SWQMP) shall
be installed. Any modifications to the bioretention areas shall require modifications to
the SWQMP and review and approval by the City Engineer.

Provide the City with a final drainage/hydrology report/letter indicating that the site
design is in accordance with the report and the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) permit.

The fire hydrant system shall be tested to ensure adequate fire flow. The required
fire hydrant flow shall be 1,500 GPM for a 2-hour duration at 20 PSI residual
operating pressure. Documentation is required from the Water Purveyor verifying
that the system is capable of meeting the required fire flow prior to building permit
issuance. If the system is not capable of meeting the required fire flow
documentation shall be provided showing financial arrangements have been made
and water system improvement plans have been submitted and approved by
Heartland Fire & Rescue and the Water Purveyor to upgrade the existing system
prior to release of building permits. The terms and conditions of the Tentative
Subdivision Map shall be binding upon the permittee and all persons, firms, and
corporations having an interest in the property subject to this Planned Development
Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of each of
them, including municipal corporations, public agencies, and districts. Fire hydrants
shall be painted per Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local Water Purveyor
standards and be maintained free of obstructions. Blue reflective raised pavement
markers shall be installed on the pavement at approved locations marking each fire
hydrant.

Public and private water utility mains must provide the level of reliability/redundancy
determined necessary by Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local Water Purveyor
Engineer.

The subdivider shall construct or shall cause to be constructed, at his/her own cost, a
street lighting system conforming to the City standards.

Street signs for private and public streets meeting the requirements of the City
Engineer standards shall be installed at all intersections prior to final occupancy
approval.

A street naming request application shall be completed to rename the Palm Street
cul-de-sac to Paim Court or another mutually agreed upon name by the effected



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Attachment D

property owners. An additional request shall be completed for the proposed private
street. Appropriate signage shall be required to be installed.

The installation of gas, electric, sewer, and water lines and any other below surface
utilities is required to take place before the installation of any concrete curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, and surfacing of the streets (including repair or replacement). Sewer and
water lines shall not be laid in the same trench in any part of this subdivision.

Metallic identification tape shall be placed between the bottom layer of the finished
surface and the top of all irrigation lines in the public right-of-way.

The contractor/permittee conducting any earth moving operation shall be responsible
for controlling dust created by its grading operation or activities at all times.

Reporting for earthwork, asphalt, and concrete testing shall be required and
prepared in accordance with the latest version of the “Greenbook” Standard
Specifications for Public Works Construction. Reports shall be submitted to the City
for review and approval prior to the applicant’s request for final inspection on the
grading or improvement permits. The reports shall be signed and stamped by a
California registered engineer.

All flammable vegetation shall be removed from each building site with slopes less
than 15% at a minimum distance of thirty (30) feet from all structures or to the
property line, whichever is less to the satisfaction of the Deputy Fire Marshal and
Development Services Director.

A pad certification and compaction report shall be submitted to the City for review
and approval prior to the applicant’s request for final inspection on the grading
permit.

Submit a certification letter stating that the grading was done per the approved plan
or an as-graded version of the grading plan (as-graded drawings) prepared, signed
and dated by the responsible civil engineer which shall include original and “as-
graded” ground surface elevations, pad elevations, slope ratios, and elevations and
locations of all surface and subsurface drainage facilities, location and scaled
sections of all buttress/stabilization and fills, subdrains and general location and
depth of all areas or removal of unusable soil.

Submit a final soils engineering report prepared by a soil engineer, including type of
field testing performed, compaction reports, final pad elevations, suitability of utility
trench and retaining wall backfill, the maximum allowable soil bearing pressure and
the required pavement structural sections, summaries of field laboratory tests and
other substantiating data, and comments on any changes made during grading and
their effect on the recommendations made in the preliminary soils engineering report.
Each field density test shall be identified, located on a plan or map, the elevation of
the test, and the test method of obtaining the in-place density described.

Final approval shall not be given until all work, including installation of all drainage
facilities and their protective devices, required irrigation system installed protective
devices, required planting, and all erosion control measures have been completed in
accordance with the final approved grading plan and the as-graded drawing, required
reports and statements of compliance consistent with section 18.08.030 and Chapter
18.44 of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code have been submitted.

The Developer and Current and Future Property Owners shall adhere to the
recommendations of the requirements of the Storm Water Quality Management Plan

27-



Attachment D

08

(SWQMP) prepared for this project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program
Coordinator.

24. The exterior boundary of the subdivision and all lot corners shall be monumented

with permanent monuments in accordance with Section 16.12.250 to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer.

PRIOR TO BUILDING FINAL, THE SUBDIVIDER/APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH
THE FOLLOWING:

1.

All physical elements of the project, including public street improvements, shown on
the approved building, landscape, grading, improvement and related plans shall be
located substantially where they are shown and shall be constructed in accordance
with appropriate City Codes.

Permanent residential three-dimensional street numbers, minimum 4 inches in
height, shall be provided on the address side of the building at the highest point and
furthest projection of the structure. The address shall be visible form the street and
shall not be obstructed in any manner.

Comply with the new “solar ready” requirements in Title 24 (Section 110.10). This
includes reserved solar zones on the roof, conduit installation, 200 amp service, etc.

Prior to Fire Department clearance for occupancy, an automatic fire sprinkler system
shall be installed. The system shall comply with NFPA #13-D Standard for Automatic
Fire Sprinkler Systems-Single Family Dwelling. Three (3) sets of plans, hydraulic
calculations, and material specifications sheets for all equipment used in the system
shall be submitted by a State of California Licensed C-16 Contractor for review,
approval, and permits issued prior to commencing work.

Demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director that the
required noise barriers/sound walls as shown on Exhibit “A” have been installed and
provide noise mitigation at or below the City of Lemon Grove 65 dBA CNEL exterior
noise level standards for the outdoor areas as described in the Noise Evaluation
Report (dated November 10, 2015) prepared for this project.

All dwelling units shall comply with the interior noise level requirements of California
Code Title 24. Exterior walls and roof assemblies shall have a STC rating of 46 or
better in accordance with the acoustical analysis. Exterior doors shall have a
minimum STC rating of 28 in accordance with the acoustical analysis. The glass
assemblies (windows, fixed windows, and glass doors) of the perimeter units having
direct line of sight to State Route 125 shall require a Sound Transmission Class
(STC) rating of 31 to reduce the interior noise levels below 45 dBA CNEL in
accordance with the acoustical analysis. Other glass assemblies shall be dual-
paned with acoustical sealant around the exterior edges to have an STC rating of 26
or higher in accordance with the acoustical analysis.

. A closed window condition is required with mechanical ventilation installed to move

air within the structure in accordance with the acoustical analysis.

The developer/owner shall be required to repair and/or replace any damaged public
improvements fronting the project and within 100 feet to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer.



Attachment D

PRIOR TO RECORDATION OF A FINAL MAP, THE SUBDIVIDER/APPLICANT SHALL
COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

1.

10.

All physical elements of the project, excepting improvements for buildings, including
public street improvements, shown on the approved building, landscape, grading,
improvement and related plans shall have obtained final approval or appropriate
securities associated with such improvements shall be provided for in accordance
with appropriate City Codes.

Submit a copy of the Preliminary Title Report, Subdivision Guarantee and Tax
Clearance Certificate no more than 60 days in advance of the recordation of the
Final Map to the City Engineer for review.

The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with one reproducible Mytar copy of
the final map for recordation.

Each parcel shall be subject to inclusion into the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting
District which includes an annual assessment.

A formal written request to add street lights to the Lemon Grove Lighting District shall
be submitted to the City of Lemon Grove Lighting District prior to permanently
energizing. If required, a deposit for the initial operation costs expended by the
Lighting District for the subject property shall be submitted until the units are placed
on the Tax Assessor’s yearly statement.

Water improvement plans shall be approved by Heartland Fire & Rescue prior to
recordation. The developer shall furnish Heartland Fire & Rescue with three (3)
copies of the water improvement plans designed by a Registered Engineer and/or
Licensed Contractor. On-site fire service mains shall have a minimum of eight (8)
inch water mains with six (6) inch laterals and risers. Larger pipes may be required to
meet required fire flow requirements. Fire hydrants shall provide one 4-inch port and
2- 2 Y4 ports and must be an approved fire hydrant type.

Backflow prevention devices for private building sewers shall be required pursuant to
Section 710.0 of the CBC (2000 UPC).

Pay $85 for the preparation and recordation of each document as required for the
subject permit.

The subdivider shall comply with Section 66436 of the Government Code by
furnishing to the City Engineer a certification from each public utility and each public
entity owning easements within the proposed subdivision stating that: a) they have
received from the developer a copy of the proposed final map; b) they object to/do
not object to the filing of the map without their signature. In addition, the subdivider
shall furnish proof to the satisfaction of the City Engineer that no new encumbrances
have been created that would subordinate the City's interest over areas to be
dedicated for public road purposes since submittal of the tentative map.

The protection of the public interest requires that the subdivider, contractors,
builders, lot or parcel owners, and other persons, firms, and corporations concerned
with the development of said subdivision conform to the following standards, and all
permits required by the City of Lemon Grove will be issued pursuant to such
standards:

a. All domestic water supplied for this subdivision shall come from Helix Water
District.

-20.



Attachment D

-30-

11

12.

a.

All buildings constructed for this subdivision shall be connected to the public
sewer system of the Lemon Grove Sanitation District.

The project shall comply with applicable provisions of Title 15 (Buildings and
Construction.

Sewer and water lines shall not be laid in the same trench in any part of this
subdivision.

Proper drainage shall be maintained throughout this subdivision as to prevent
ponding and/or storage of surface water and shall be in compliance with the
NPDES permit to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Coordinator and the City
Engineer.

. The final map shall show or provide for the following:

The design and area of all lots and the design of the final map shall be in
substantial conformance to that shown on the approved tentative map to the
satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

The final map shall indicate that this project is a planned development for twenty-
two (22) dwelling units.

The final map shall include the signature of the Development Services Director
prior to recording.

The final map shall identify any easements indicated within the Title Report,
proposed on the approved Tentative Map, and as required by the Lemon Grove
Fire Department or City Engineer.

The Final Map shall include all easements as shown on Tentative Subdivision
Map TM0-000-0062, including but not limited to private sewer, drainage, utility
and open space, and public access and emergency access easements. The
subdivider shall provide a public access easement for the proposed pedestrian
access way through the site from the Paim Street Cul-de-sac to Palm Street.

A note shall be placed on the final map indicating that domestic water supplied
for this project shall come from Helix Water District.

Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) shall be submitted to the City for
review and shall be written to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director
and the City Engineer. The CC&Rs shall include the conditions herein to the
satisfaction of the Fire Marshal, Water Quality Program Coordinator, City Engineer,
and Development Services Director and shall be recorded prior to or concurrent with
the final map and shall include but not be limited to the following:

a.

C.

The Developer, Current and Future Property Owners shall adhere to the CC&Rs
approved for this project.

The formation of a home owner’'s association (HOA) with maintenance
responsibilities is required.

A Best Management Practices (BMP’s) and a Private Driveway and Drainage
Maintenance Agreement to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The
maintenance and the preservation of drainage and BMP facilities shall be
included.

The CC&Rs shall identify and implement the BMP's identified in the SWQMP
prepared for this project and state that the Developer, Current and Future



Attachment D

Property Owners shall comply with the recommendations of the SWQMP
prepared for this project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program
Coordinator and the City Engineer. Funding of the long term maintenance of all
facilities required by the SWQMP shall be included in the annual HOA budget.

. A long-term operation and maintenance program (OMP) will be a requirement
and the responsibility of HOA to maintain. Funding for the program is required to
be accounted for in the annual budget of the HOA.

The CC&Rs shall include on-going maintenance of landscaping and irrigation
(private and within public right-of-way) of slopes, parkways, open space and park
areas as illustrated on approved landscape and irrigation plans (Exhibit A). This
Exhibit A shall be included in the CC&Rs. All landscaping shall be well
maintained in a healthy growing condition at all times in substantially the same
condition as approved in accordance with the approved landscape and irrigation
plans. Sprinkler heads shall be adjusted so as to prevent overspray upon the
public sidewalk or the street. The proposed sprinkler heads shall be installed
behind the sidewalk, and the irrigation mainline upon private property only, as
required by the City. The HOA or, its successors or assigns, shall remove and
relocate all irrigation items from the public right-of-way at no cost to the City, and
within a reasonable time frame upon a written notification by the City Engineer.
An Encroachment, Maintenance, and Removal Agreement shall be signed and
recorded prior to recordation of the final map or building permitting. The City will
provide the template for the agreement.

Immediate removal of graffiti and any other type of offensive debris is required.

. All garage doors shall be automatic roll-up type doors and equipped with remote
control devices.

All garages shall be available for required off-street parking (18 foot wide by 19
foot deep interior clear space) at all times.

No parking is permitted within the private street, pedestrian pathways, or
designated fire lane area at any time. Parking on-site is only permitted within
designated parking spaces and within the dwelling units’ garages.

Maintain the drainage facilities and any access easements (where they occur) on
the property.

All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light
downward, away from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises.

. The property shall comply with all performance standards relating to the
generation of noise, glare, dust, and odor.

If any fire hydrant is taken “OUT OF SERVICE,” Heartland Fire & Rescue shall
be notified immediately and the hydrant marked, bagged, or otherwise identified
as “OUT OF SERVICE” as directed by the Fire Marshal.

Designated fire apparatus streets and turn-arounds shall be maintained
accessible and usable by emergency vehicles. Usable conditions include but are
not limited to the following:

i.  An all-weather road surface shall be maintained.
i.  Road shall support imposed loads of fire apparatus at 75,000 pounds.

-31-



Attachment D

-39-

i.  No parking-fire lane signs shall be repaired or replaced as needed.

iv.  Fire lanes shall remain free at all times of any obstruction including but
not limited to: vehicles, storage, debris, etc.

v, Fire lane or hammerhead turn-around shall maintain an unobstructed
width of 20 feet and a minimum 13’ 6” vertical clearance.

Trees shall not grow within five feet of any proposed chimneys.

Safety features including fire sprinklers, ignition resistant construction, smoke
and carbon monoxide detectors and fire resistive landscaping shall be
maintained in accordance with California Fire Code, California Building Code,
California Vehicle Code (fire lanes), City Municipal Code and any other
applicable codes.

r. All trash and recycling receptacles are required to be within the individual
residences of the proposed planned development at all times, except that one
recycling container and one refuse container per dwelling unit is permitted
directly outside of the individual dwelling unit’s garage within ten hours of the
trash pick-up times specified by EDCO waste and recycling company.

s. Rooftop mechanical equipment, including but not limited to heating, air
conditioning and ventilating equipment, shall be screened so that it may not be
seen from the level of adjacent streets and sidewalks.

t. The use of barbed wire or razor ribbon on any fences, gates, or walls is
prohibited.

u. Ongoing maintenance of the onsite private sewer is required.

v. The CC&Rs shall clearly establish the responsibilities of the individual home
owners and the HOA with regard to the continuing maintenance and preservation
of the project.

w. The CC&Rs shall specifically limit the number of dwelling units to twenty-two (22)
on the site.

x. The CC&Rs shall give the City the right but not the duty to enter the premises to
do maintenance and levy assessments if the home owners fail or refuse to
maintain said facilities, and shall forbid amendments to the CC&Rs without
express written consent of the City.

y. Common open space areas shall be well maintained at all times (e.g., bike racks,
barbeques, tables, landscape, signage, and public art features).

z. Street trees along the roadway shall not obstruct the ability of fire apparatus
access and fire department aerial operations. Tree height and type should be
considered in the ultimate landscape design.

The terms and conditions of the Tentative Subdivision Map shall be binding upon the
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property
subject to Planned Development Permit PDP-150-0003 and the heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal
corporations, public agencies, and districts.

This Tentative Subdivision Map approval expires on April 19, 2018 or such longer period
as may be extended by State Law or through time extensions approved by the
Development Services Director or City Council. A Final Map must be recorded within



111
1111

Attachment D

two (2) years (excluding extensions granted by State Law) from the date of approval
unless time extension is granted.

The subdivider shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the City and any
agency thereof, and/or any of its officers, employees, and agents from any and all
claims, actions, or proceedings against the City, or any agency or instrumentality
thereof, or any of its officers, employees, or agents to attack, set aside, void, or annul,
an approval of the City, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, advisory agency,
appeal board, or legislative body, including actions approved by the voters of the City,
concerning the project. City shall promptly notify the applicant/subdivider of any claim,
action, or proceeding brought within this time period, and City shall further cooperate
fully.

-33-



Attachment E

RESOLUTION NO.:

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP-150-0003 AUTHORIZING THE DEVELOPMENT OF A
TWENTY-TWO UNIT PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ON A 2.064 ACRE UNDEVELOPED SITE
AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF PALM STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMAS,
LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA.

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for a Planned Development Permit (PDP-150-0003) and a Tentative Subdivision Map (TM0062)
on February 10, 2016 to authorize the subdivision of 2.064 acres of land into 25 parcels,
including 22 residential lots, a lot for a private street, a lot for common parking, and a lot for
common open space, and construction of 22 dwelling units, as part of a request for approval of
a General Plan Amendment (GPA-150-0003) and a Zoning Amendment (ZA1-500-0004) to
amend the General Plan Land Use Designation from Transportation to Medium Density
Residential and to amend the Zoning District from Residential Low and Residential Low/Medium
to Residential Medium; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) of Environmental Impact will be
filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council.
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts
associated with Cultural Resources, Hydrology & Water Quality, and Noise will be mitigated to
below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a mitigated negative declaration was
filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on April 19, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following Planned Development
Permit findings of fact, as required by Section 17.28.030(C), can be made as follows:

1. That the development is not detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, or general
welfare.

a. The City Council finds that the design of the proposed project complies, or will be
made to comply with all of the applicable requirements of the City Zoning Ordinance
relating to public safety and no such detriment should occur.

2. That the development complies with applicable provision of the Zoning Ordinance (Title
17) and/or deviations that comply with applicable provisions in subsection D of the
Planned Development Permit regulations (Section 17.28.030).

a. The City Council finds that the proposed project complies with, or conditions have
been included for this project to require it comply with the Zoning Ordinance
requirements relating to off-street parking, screening, and landscaping and waivers
or modifications to the minimum lot area, width, and depth, setbacks, usable open
space, and landscape requirements are offset by the provision of enhanced
pedestrian and bicycle improvements and recreational/outdoor amenities.

3. That the development is consistent with general plan policies and standards and other
applicable plans or policies adopted by the City Council.

-35.



Attachment E

a. The City Council finds that the Planned Development is consistent with the General
Plan policies and standards because the project includes a General Plan
Amendment to Residential Medium which allows the residential development at the
form and scale proposed; and

That the development density or intensity does not exceed general plan limitations.

a. The City Council finds that the Planned Development is consistent with the Lemon
Grove General Plan because it proposes 22 dwelling units at a density of 12.5
dwelling units per acre on a 1.757 net acre parcel of land in the Medium Density
Residential land use designation of the Lemon Grove General Plan which allows a
residential development with a maximum of 14 dwelling units per net acre; and

That the existing infrastructure such as utilities, transportation systems, and
communications networks adequately serve the development or will be upgraded to
efficiently accommodate the additional burdens imposed.

a. The City council finds that appropriate public services (e.g., sewer, water, gas, and
electricity) exist to the subject property and that improvements proposed for the
project allow for safe circulation of pedestrian, bicyclists, and motor vehicles and
improve the general welfare of the community; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following deviations as permitted

by the Planned Development Permit regulations (Section 17.28.030D) are adequately offset by
equivalent benefits associated with enhanced pedestrian, landscape, bicycle, and public art
improvements and recreational/outdoor amenities:

1.

.36~

A deviation of Section 16.16.291A (Residential Lot Design Standards) to allow the
reduction of the minimum building envelope (minimum 28’ wide by 50’ deep is required,
25-11" wide by 35’-6” is provided); and

A deviation of Section 17.16.030D3 (Minimum Yards) to allow reduced setbacks
(minimum 25’ front, 3’ side, and 20’ rear is required, minimum 3’ front, 0’ side, 5' rear is
provided); and

A deviation of Section 17.16.030D1 (Minimum Site Area) to allow reduced lot size
(minimum 6,000 sq. ft. required, minimum 1,367 sq. ft. provided); and

A deviation of 17.16.030D2 (Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced lot
dimensions (minimum 60’ wide by 90’ deep required, minimum 25’ wide by 45’ deep
provided); and

Deviations of Section 16.12.220 related to all units fronting on a dedicated public street,
where instead a private street is provided with pedestrian paths on both sides as follows:

a. Minimum 56 wide public street right-of-way required; 29.5' private street lot width
provided; and

b. Minimum 5’ landscaped parkways required; no landscaped parkways provided; and

¢. Parking on both sides of street required; no parking on private street provided except
one parallel space; and

A deviation of Section 17.16.030D5 (Minimum Usable Open Space) to allow reduced
open space (12,000 common usable open space required, 2,268 sq. ft. provided); and

A deviation of Section 17.16030D4a (Maximum Building Height) to allow increase in
building height (maximum 25’ allowed, maximum 33'-8” provided): and



10.

Attachment E

A deviation of Section 16.12.230E to allow reduced street entrance separation (200’
required, 190 provided); and

A deviation of Section 16.12.220I to exceed the maximum depth to width lot ratio (3:1
maximum required, 5.2:1 provided); and

A deviation of Section 17.24.010F to allow a reduced parking aisle (24’ required, 22.5'
provided); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered Tentative Subdivision Map TM-000-0062,

associated with Planned Development Permit (PDP150-0003); and |

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby:

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Approves the following deviations of Development Standards in accordance with
Section 17.28.030D (Deviations):

1.

10.

A deviation of Section 16.16.291A (Residential Lot Design Standards) to allow the
reduction of the minimum building envelope (minimum 28’ wide by 50’ deep is required,
25’-11" wide by 35'-6” is provided); and

A deviation of Section 17.16.030D3 (Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced
setbacks (minimum 25’ front, 3’ side, and 20’ rear is required, minimum 3’ front, O’ side,
5' rear is provided); and

A deviation of Section 17.16.030D1 (Minimum Site Area) to allow reduced lot size
(minimum 6,000 sq. ft. required, minimum 1,367 sq. ft. provided); and

A deviation of 17.16.030D2 (Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced lot
dimensions (minimum 60’ wide by 90’ deep required, minimum 25 wide by 45’ deep
provided); and

Deviations of Section 16.220 related to all units fronting on a dedicated public street,
where instead a private street is provided with pedestrian paths on both sides as follows:

a. Minimum 56’ wide public street right-of-way required; 29.5" private street lot width
provided; and

b. Minimum 5’ landscaped parkways required; no landscaped parkways provided; and

c. Parking on both sides of street required; no parking on private street provided except
on parallel space; and

A deviation of Section 17.16.030D5 (Minimum Usable Open Space) to allow reduced
open space (12,000 common usable open space required, 2,268 sq. ft. provided); and

A deviation of Section 17.16030D4a (Maximum Building Height) to allow increase in
building height (maximum 25’ allowed, maximum 33'-8” provided); and

A deviation of Section 16.12.230E to allow reduced street entrance separation (200’
required, 190" provided); and

A deviation of Section 16.12.2201 to exceed the maximum depth to width lot ratio (3:1
maximum required, 5.2:1 provided); and

A deviation of Section 17.24.010F to allow a reduced parking aisle (24’ required, 22.5’
provided); and

-57-



Attachment E

SECTION 3. Conditionally approves Planned Development Permit PDP-150-0003 in conjunction
with Tentative Map TM-000-0062 and the grading, site, landscape, and architectural plans dated
received February 10, 2016 (incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A), except as noted
herein. This approval authorizes the development of a 2.064 acre parcel into 22 dwelling units
with associated common area improvements and a private street on an undeveloped site at the
southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, Lemon Grove, California (APN No.
503-252-42-00). Except as amended, the approval of this project shall be subject to the
following conditions:

A.

-38-

10.

11.

12.

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION
AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP-150-0003:

All physical elements shown on the approved plans shall be located substantially where
they are shown and shall be constructed in accordance with the Municipal Code. The
Development Services Director has the authority to allow modifications to the approved
plans when the modifications are found to be in substantial conformance (minor
deviations in colors, roof and siding material acceptable) and in compliance with the
Municipal Code and General Plan.

Pay parkland fees, school fees, Helix Water District Capacity fees, Regional
Transportation Congestion Improvement Program (RTCIP) fees, sewer connection fees,
and other applicable development fees.

Record the Final Map for TM-000-0062 unless otherwise determined by the
Development Services Director.

4. Atwo-car garage is required for each single-family residence with appropriate access.
5. An 18 foot wide by 19 foot clear space is required within all required two-car garages.

6. All garage doors shall be equipped with an automatic roll-up garage door and remote

control.
Show the location, height, and materials of all fencing.

Submit a landscape documentation package for landscape on-site and within the public
right-of-way. The documentation package shall include a detailed landscape and
irrigation plan for the entire project. Provide reference sheets for the grading and
landscape erosion control plans. The plan shall indicate all surface improvements
including but not limited to the design and locations of all walls, fences, driveways,
walkways, botanical and common names of all plant materials, number, size and
location of all plantings; all irrigation lines including valves and back-flow devices; and
soil amendments. Said landscape plan shall comply with the requirements of Section
17.24.050(B) and Chapter 18.44 of the Municipal Code. The landscape plan shall be in
substantial conformance to the approved landscape concept plan.

The building plans for the proposed residential units shall include a color and materials
board to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away
from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises.

Vehicular sight distance of all driveway entrances shall be to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer.

Each dwelling unit in the development shall be protected with an approved automatic fire
suppression sprinkler system to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal.



13.

14.

15.

16.

Attachment E

The private driveway is to be designated as a Fire Lane. Fire lanes (20-foot clear with
no parking) and fire lane markings shall be provided to the satisfaction of the Lemon
Grove Fire Department along the private vehicular driveway within the project. The fire
lane will be designated per City Fire Department standards and shall be marked and
posted “No Parking-Fire Lane” and the curb shall be painted red to the satisfaction of the
City of Lemon Grove Fire District. A final inspection by the Fire Department shall be
required to confirm compliance with this requirement prior to the construction with
combustible materials and final occupancy.

All access roadways and driveways shall maintain a minimum vertical clearance of 13-
6" to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal.

Install only high efficiency appliances, use only high-efficiency watering technologies,
and landscape using low-water-use plants as follows:

a. Install the following indoor fixtures:
i. High-efficiency toilets (1.28 gallons or less per flush);
ii. High-efficiency dishwashers (Energy Star, WaterSense or equivalent);
iii. High-efficiency clothes washers (3.7 water factor or lower), and
iv. Low-flow shower heads (2.0 gallons per minute or less).

b. Install dedicated meters for common area outdoor water use. Enroll all new irrigation
meters (except those at single-family residences) in the Helix Water Budget Program
and provide documentation of irrigated landscape area at the time of meter
purchase.

c. Install automatic irrigation controllers with a rain sensor that utilize either
evapotranspiration (weather-based) or soil moisture data and install high-efficiency,
matched-precipitation rate sprinkler nozzles at all residential landscapes and
common areas.

The project shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Fire Code and the
California Building Code.

PRIOR TO FINAL APPROVAL OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION
AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP-150-0003:

All physical elements of the project shown on the approved building, landscape, and
related plans shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be
constructed in accordance with appropriate Lemon Grove City Codes to the satisfaction
of the Development Services Director.

The color palette shall be consistent with the conceptual drawing on the approved plans
dated February 10, 2016 and the color and materials board to the satisfaction of the
Development Services Director.

Schedule a Helix Water District inspection for compliance with water efficiency
requirements.

E-file FAA Form 7460-2 to the Federal Aviation Administration, Notice of Actual
Construction or Alteration within five days after the construction reaches its greatest
height.

UPON ESTABLISHMENT OF USE IN RELIANCE WITH TENTATIVE MAP REVISION:

Comply with all of the Conditions of this resolution and the requirements of Tentative

-39-



Attachment E

10.

11111
11171

-40-

Map TM-000-0062, as applicable.

All physical elements of the project shown on the approved grading, improvement,
building, landscape, and related plans shall be maintained and located substantially
where they are in accordance with appropriate City Codes.

The City approved CC&Rs shall be abided by at all times.

All landscaping shall be well maintained and adequately watered at all times. The
landscaping located on the subject property shall be maintained in a healthy and
growing condition at all times. All on-site & off-site landscaped areas shall be planted
and irrigated by a permanent irrigation system.

The proposed facility shall fully comply with the requirements of the California Fire Code
to the satisfaction of the Fire Chief.

All screening fences/walls and retaining and sound walls on the subject property shall be
maintained in good condition at all times.

All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away
from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises.

All graffiti shall be removed or painted over with a paint that closely matches the color of
the exterior of the building within 48 hours of the discovery of the graffiti.

Provide water-use efficiency data upon request to the Helix Water District for six years
following installation/development.

Any deviations proposed from the approved plans relating to the construction of facilities
and maintenance of improvements shall substantially conform to the approved plans
dated February 10, 2016 to the satisfaction of the Development Services Department.

This approval of this Planned Development Permit will expire two (2) years from the date
of approval or such longer period as may be extended by State Law (the Planned
Development Permit will be extended automatically with any extensions required of
Tentative Map TM-000-0062 in accordance with State Law).

The terms and conditions of the Planned Development Permit shall be binding upon the
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property
subject to this Planned Development Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal corporations, public
agencies, and districts.



Attachment F

ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM
CITY OF LEMON GROVE
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. ND16-02

N

Project Title: PDP-150-0003, TM0-000-0062, GPA-150-0003, ZA1-500-004

Lead Agency Name and Address: City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Contact Person and Phone Number: David De Vries, Development Services
Director
(619) 825-3812

Project Location: Southwest corner of Camino De Las Palmas and Palm Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 503-252-42-00

Project Sponsor’'s Name and Address: Christopher Dahrling, Vista Azul LLC, 8109
Santaluz Village Green South, San Diego, CA 92127

General Plan Designation: The subject property is located in the Transportation Land
Use Designation in the Community Development Element of the General Plan. It is also
located within the Special Treatment Area (STA) VII, Palm Street/SR-125 Planning Area.

Zoning: The subject property is located in the Residential Low (RL) and Residential
Low/Medium (RL/M) zones. It is also located within the Special Treatment Area (STA)
VII, Palm Street/SR-125 Planning Area.

Description of the Project: The project site is former Caltrans right-of-way from
the State Route (SR) 125. The proposed project is a request to amend the General Plan
Land Use Designation from Transportation to Medium Density Residential; to amend the
Zoning District from Residential Low (RL) and Residential Low-Medium (RLM) to
Residential Medium (RM); a Tentative Subdivision Map to authorize a 25-lot subdivision
on an 89,908 square foot (2.064 gross acre) parcel, including 22 residential lots, one
private street lot (0.310 acres), and two common area lots; and a Planned Development
Permit. Total net area excluding the private street is 1.754 acres. The maximum density
for the Medium Residential land use designation is 14 dwelling units per acre, or a
maximum of 24 dwelling units for this 1.754 net acre site. The project proposes a total of
22 dwelling units, including six single-family units and eight twin-homes, and common
open space with a play structure and benches. The proposed private street would take
access from the cul-de-sac portion of Palm Street at two locations. Required guest
parking will be provided by on-street parallel parking and a common parking area.
Private street improvements include sidewalks on both sides of the street, rolled curb
and gutter, and decorative street lights. A detention basin is proposed at the southeast
corner of the site. A total of 13,620 cubic yard of grading is proposed, including 3,850
cubic yards of fill and 9,770 cubic yards of export. Proposed landscaping includes street
trees on Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas; landscaping on the project's

-44-




10.

-42-

perimeter  slope areas, and internal landscaping on all private
Home Owners Association areas. A public art feature with enhanced landscaping is
proposed on the corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas.

Surrounding Land Uses and Setting: The project site is in a developed urban
residential area. It is a roughly triangular shaped undeveloped lot located on the
southwest corner of the intersection of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, west of
State Route 125 (SR-125). Properties to the south and north are developed with single-
family residences; property to the east is vacant Caltrans right-of-way; and property
southwest of the site is a school (Liberty Charter High School).

Other public agencies whose approval is required (e.g. permits, financing
approval, or participation agreement): None known.



ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED:

Attachment F

The environmental factors highlighted below would be potentially affected by this project,
involving at least one impact that is a “Potentially Significant Impact” as indicated by the

checklist on the following pages.

Aesthetics

Hazards & Hazardous
Materials

Public Services

Agricultural Resources

Hydrology/Water Quality

Recreation

Air Quality

Land Use/Planning

Transportation/Traffic

Biological Resources

Mineral Resources

Utilities/Service Systems

X i Cultural Resources

Noise

Mandatory Findings of
Significance

X | Geology/Soils

Population/Housing

DETERMINATION: (To be completed by the Lead Agency)

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

| find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the
environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

XX | find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the
environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the
project have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED

NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

| find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

| find that the proposed project MAY have a "potential significant impact” or “ potentially

significant unless mitigated” impact on the environment, but a least one effect (1) has
been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards,
and (2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as
described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required,
but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addresses.

| find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the
environment, because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed in and
earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards and (b) have
been avoided or mitigated to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including
revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing
further is required.

David De Vries, Development Services Director, City of Lemon Grove

March 23, 2016

Printed Name

Date

-43-



EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

1.

A brief explanation is required for all answers except “No Impact” answers that are
adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses
following each question. A “No Impact” answer is adequately supported if the
referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects
like the one involved (e.g. the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A “No Impact”
answer should be explained where it is based on the project-specific factors as well as
general standards (e.g. the project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants,
based on a project.

All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as
on-site, cumulative as well as project level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as
well as operational impacts.

Once the lead agency has determined that a particularly physical impact may occur,
then the checklist answers must indicated whether the impact is potentially significant,
less than significant with mitigation, or less than significant. “Potentially Significant
Impact” is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If
there are one or more “Potentially Significant Impact” entries when the determination is
made, an EIR is required.

“Negative Declaration: Potentially Significant Unless Mitigation Incorporated” applies
where the incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from “Potentially
Significant Impact” to a “Less Significant Impact”. The lead agency must describe the
mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than
significant level (mitigation measures from Section 17, “Earlier Analysis,” may be cross-
referenced).

Earlier analysis may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR or other CEQA
process, and effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative
declaration. Section 15063 (c) (3) (d). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the
following:

a. Earlier Analysis used. Identify and state where they are available for review.

b. Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were
within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to
applicable legal standards, and state whether such effect were addressed by
mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis.

C. Mitigation Measures. For effects that are “Less than Significant with Mitigation
Measures Incorporated” describe the mitigation measures which were
incorporated or refined from the earlier document and extent to which they
address site-specific conditions for the project.

Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information
sources for potential impacts (e.g. general plans, zoning ordinances, etc.). Reference
to a previously prepared or outside document should where appropriate, include a
reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated.

Supporting Information Sources: a source list should be attached and other sources use
d or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion.



Attachment F

8. This is only a suggested form and lead agencies are free to use different formats:
however, lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that
relevant to the project’s environmental effects in whatever format is selected.

9. The analysis of each issue should identify: (a) the significance criteria or threshold used

to evaluate each question; and (b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the
impact to less than significance.

ISSUES AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1. AESTHETICS. Would the Project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to trees, rock
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic?

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its
surroundings?

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare, which would adversely affect day or

nighttime views in the area?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X __Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The site is located in a developed urbanized area. The subject property is not located in or near
a scenic vista or scenic highway. It is undeveloped and previously graded, with a few shrubs on
a portion of the south property line that will be removed. Landscaping is proposed on the
project's perimeter slope areas, and internal landscaping will be provided on all private
Home Owners Association areas. A public art feature with enhanced landscaping is proposed
on the corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas. The project will be required to comply
with the City’s landscape requirements. The two existing overhead utility distribution lines are
required to be placed undergrounded prior to approval of the final map. The project proposes
construction of 22 two- and three-stories residences, which, since the site is currently vacant,
will change the look of the property. Night time lighting of new residences may occur as a result
of this project. Glare onto adjacent public-rights-of-ways is required to be reduced to a level of
no impacts. Aesthetic impacts are expected to be less than significant.

Source: 1,2, 3,10

N

AGRICULTURE RESOURCES: In determining whether impacts to agricultural

resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California

Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the

California Department of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts

on agriculture and farmland. Would the project:

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland or Farmland of Statewide Importance
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency to non-agricultural use?

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public

Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code

-45-



section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government
Code section 51104(g))?

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

c) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature,
could result in conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X _No Impact

Discussion:

The project is located within a developed urban residential area. The property is not located in
an area used for agricultural purposes and no such impacts will occur.

Source: 1, 2

el

AIR QUALITY: Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable
air quality management or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the
following determinations. Would the project:

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air
quality violation?

) Results in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the
project region is non-attainment under any applicable federal or state ambient air quality
standard (including releasing emissions, which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone
precursors?

d} Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people?

Potentially significant Impact
... lLess than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X _Less Than Significant Impact
No Impact
Discussion:

The project may result in a slight increase in traffic and no significant impact on air resources is
likely to occur. While the proposed project may result in a slight increase in vehicular traffic and
a slight increase in air quality impacts to the region, the Master Environmental Impact Report
(MEIR) for the City of Lemon Grove’s General Plan anticipates air quality impacts associated
with the build out of Lemon Grove but not to a level of significance. The cumulative air quality
impacts will remain significant and unmitigated. However, this project is not considered to result
in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant. Standard conditions of
project approval will require the control of dust during site grading and construction.

Source: 1, 2,10

4, BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect either directly or through habitat modifications on any
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional
plans, policies or regulations, or by the California Department of fish and Game or U.S.
Fish and Wildlife service?

-46-



Attachment F

O
~—

Have a substantially adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural
community identified in local or regional plan, policies, regulations or by the California
Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Wildlife service?

Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section

404 of the Clean Water Act (including but not limited to march vernal pool, coastal, etc.)

through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?

) Interfere substantially with the movement of any resident, migratory wildlife species or
with established native resident migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native
wildlife nursery sites?

) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a

tree preservation policy or ordinance?

Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural

Conservation Community Plan and other approved local, regional, or state habitat

conservation plan?

(¢
~—

o

D

—
=

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X ___No Impact

Discussion:

The subject is located in a developed urban area with surrounding single-family residential and
school land uses. This site is a former Caltrans right-of-way and the entire site was previously
graded as part of construction of SR-125. The MEIR for the City of Lemon Grove’s General Plan
confirms there are no known sensitive biological resources, riparian habitat, or wetlands on the
subject property. No impact is expected.

Source: 1, 2

i

CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as
defined in Section 15064.57

) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource
pursuant to Section 15064.57

Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic
feature?

) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries?

g O ()
S S

o

Potentially significant Impact

X __Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The subject property is currently vacant. There are no known cultural resources located on the
property. There are no known human remains or those interred outside of formal cemeteries on
the subject property or in the surrounding area. Two prehistoric sites were recorded by Caltrans
within STA VII during the evaluation of the “Area of Potential Effect” for the proposed SR-125.
Neither site was determined to be eligible for inclusion on the National Register of Historic
Places. The presence of prehistoric resources within a portion of this STA indicates there may
be the potential for additional resources. In addition, the site is underlain by Tertiary (Eocene)-
age sedimentary bedrock, belonging to the Mission Valley formation, which has a medium to

47-



high potential to contain paleontologic resources. This formation typically contains a rich middle
Eocene molluscan fauna. The geotechnical investigation prepared for this project determined
that grading and trenching of the project site is expected to impact the Mission Valley formation.
In order to mitigate any impacts that grading may cause to paleontologic and archaeological
resources the following conditions will be included in the project approval requiring: 1) The
project proponent shall conduct a cultural resources records search and a Sacred Lands File
search of the project area to determine if there is likelihood for on-site Native American cultural
resources. A copy of a letter regarding the records search shall be provided to the Development
Services Department prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits. The report shall
provide recommendations for further analysis and those recommendations shall be
implemented as a part of the mitigation measures. 2) A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist,
and culturally affiliated Native American with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at the
pre-grading meeting to consult with the grading and excavation contractors. A qualified
paleontologist is defined as an individual with a Bachelor’s or higher degree in paleontology or
geology experienced in pale ontological techniques and procedures. 3) A qualified
paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with cultural resource
knowledge shall be present at all times during the original cutting of previously undisturbed
sediments of the Mission Valley Formation. These monitors shall inspect an excavation which
exposes sediments of the Mission Valley Formation. Said monitors shall salvage remains as
they are uncovered. 4) The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native
American with cultural resource knowledge shall be allowed to temporarily direct, divert or halt
grading to allow recovery of fossil and artifact remains. 5) The paleontologist, archaeologist,
and culturally affiliated Native American with cultural resource knowledge shall document the
stratigraphic and geologic context of salvaged fossil and artifact remains. 6) The paleontologist,
archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with cultural resource knowledge shall
clean, repair and sort salvaged fossils and artifacts for eventual donation. 7) Prior to final
inspection a report shall be prepared summarizing the results of the mitigation program and
submitted to the City of Lemon Grove Development Services Director. This report will include a
discussion of methods employed, fossils and artifacts recovered, geologic context of fossil and
artifact remains and the significance of the mitigation program. 8) Donate all curated fossil and
artifact specimens to an institution with a proven history of professional, long term care and
storage of paleontological and archaeological collections, such as the San Diego Natural History
Museum. With implementation of the mitigation measures specified above, potential impacts to
cultural resources would be less than significant.

Source: 1,2, 5,10

6. GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project:

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of
loss, injury or death involving: (i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on
the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State
Geologist for the area based on the other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer
to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42. (i} Strong seismic ground
shaking? (iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction? (iv) Landslides?

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

C) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a
result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading,
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?

d) Locate on the expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-I-b of the Uniform Building Code
(1997), creating substantial risks to life or property?

-48-



Attachment F

Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative
waste water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste
water?

L

Potentially significant Impact

X __Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

New structures on the subject property will be required to comply with the current seismic
requirements of the California Building Code. Like most urban areas in Southern California,
Lemon Grove is subject to earthquakes. The project site is not located in an Earthquake Fault
Zone according to the Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act and no active faults or ground
ruptures have been mapped underlying the site or within the City of Lemon Grove. Active
regional faults may cause ground shaking in Lemon Grove.

There are no known unstable soils in the area of the subject property. According to the
Geotechnical Evaluation, the site appears to be underlain with Eocene-age sedimentary
bedrock, consisting of interbedded sandstone and claystone belonging to the Mission Valley
Formation. Thin, surficial deposits of colluvium and undocumented fill overlie bedrock locally,
within the southern and southwestern portions of the site. Due to the relatively compressible
nature of undocumented fill, colluvium, and weathered bedrock, these materials are considered
unsuitable for the support of the settlement-sensitive improvements (i.e., residential foundations,
concrete slab-on-grade floors, site walls, exterior hardscape, etc.) and/or engineered fill in their
existing state. As such, the Geotechnical Evaluation recommends that these materials be
removed (removal depths are estimated at two to seven feet, with variation), moisture
conditioned, and recompacted prior to foundation and improvements.

According to the Geotechnical Evaluation, site soils are considered erosive. Thus, properly
designed site drainage is necessary in reducing erosion damage to the planned improvements.
Typical erosion control measures will be required during site grading.

The subject project will be required to be connected to the Lemon Grove municipal sewer
system.

Incorporation of the recommendations presented in the Geotechnical Evaluation into the design
and construction considerations of the project would reduce the mitigation to below a level of
significance.

Source: 1,2, 5,10

7. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project:

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a
significant impact on the environment?

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing

the emissions of greenhouse gases?

Potentially Significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X___Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact




Discussion:

The City of Lemon Grove is located within the San Diego County Air Basin. The six greenhouse
gases are carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and
sulfur hexafluoride. The project will not generate significant GHG emissions. During grading
and project construction, a temporary increase in operational emissions may occur. Operational
emissions include mobile source emissions and building emissions. The San Diego Air
Pollution Control District Rule 55 requires compliance with standard fugitive dust control best
management practices which will be required as a part of normal practices. The impact is
expected to be less than significant.

Source: 1,2, 3,10

8. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project:

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine
transport, use or disposal of hazardous materials?
b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably

foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the likely release of hazardous
materials into the environment?

C) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials,
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?
d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous material sites complied

pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and , as a result would it create a
significant hazard to the public or the environment?

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan, or where such a plan has not been
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result
in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the area?

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip would the project result in a safety
hazard for people resident or working in the project area?

Q) Impair implementation of, or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response
plan or emergency evacuation plan?

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland

fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas, or where residences
are intermixed with wildlands?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X__No Impact

Discussion:

The site is to be developed as a residential project and will not create a hazardous environment
through the use or transport of hazardous materials. There are no known hazardous material
sites within the City.

The site is not located within an airport land use plan or within two miles of a public airport or
public use airport and no such detriment should occur.

The proposed project will not impair implementation of or physically interfere with any

emergency response plan or evacuation plan because the project design and access has been
reviewed and approved by the Fire Department.

50-



Attachment F

The project is located within an urbanized area and there are no wildlands located within the
vicinity of the subject property.
Source: 1, 2,10

9. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the project:

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements?

b) Substantially degrade groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater
recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the
groundwater table level ((e.g. the production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop
to a level which would not support existing land uses or planned uses for which permits
have been granted)?

c) Substantially alter existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the
alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would resulting a
substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site?

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate of surface
runoff in a manner which would resulting flooding on- or off-site.

e) Create or contribute runoff which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned
stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted
runoff?

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?

g) Place housing within a 100-year floodplain on a Federal Flood Hazard Boundary or
Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which would impede or redirect
flood flows?

i) Expose people or structures to significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding,
including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?

i) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X ___Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The project does not substantially degrade groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with
groundwater recharge. Low impact design, including permeable pavers in driveways and a
detention basin will be used to minimize new stormwater created from this project by proposed
impervious roof surfaces. According to the Hydrology Report prepared for this project, under
conditions proposed by the project, the increase in flow is not anticipated to have significant
impacts on the downstream storm drain facilities. The design of the project has been reviewed
by the City of Lemon Grove Engineering Department in order to assess the need for drainage
improvements, which have been included into the design of the project. The subject property is
not located within a flood zone and is not subject to flooding.

The Major Stormwater Management Plan (Major SWMP) concluded that the project does not
pose an “exceptional threat to water quality” and is not required to use Advanced Treatment
BMPs. The Hydromodification Plan prepared for this project determined that the post-
construction hydrologic characteristics of the project simulate the pre-development hydrologic
characteristics at the point of compliance, and the project is not required to manage

-5



Hydromodification impacts. The Major SWMP determined that it is a “priority development
project” and requires a standard urban storm water mitigation plan (SUSMP). Standard best
management practices will be adhered to.

Drainage patterns will be altered as a result of the project, but not to a level of significance, and
the project to be designed and constructed consistent with the conceptual grading plan and
drainage study.

Source: 1,2,4,5,6,7,8,10

10. LAND USE PLANNING. Would the project:

a) Physically divide an established community?

b) Conflict with an applicable land use plan, policy or regulation of agency with jurisdiction
over the project (including, but not limited to the general plan, specific plan, local coastal
program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating
environmental effect?

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural communities’
conservation plan?
Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X Less Than Significant Impact
No Impact
Discussion:

The project is proposed to be constructed on an existing parcel and will not divide the
community. The surrounding land uses include single-family residential across Palm Street to
the north and across Palm Street (cul-de-sac) to the south of the site, vacant property and SR-
125 to the east, and a high school to the southwest of the site, with driveway access off the
Palm Street cul-de-sac. The existing General Plan designation for this property is
Transportation, which provides for rights-of-way for transportation facilities. This site was
formerly Caltrans right-of-way which was sold after completion of SR-125. The proposed project
includes a General Plan Amendment to redesignate the site from Transportation to Medium
Density Residential. The General Plan acknowledged that a future general plan amendment
would be required after Caltrans sold excess right-of-way subsequent to construction of SR-125,
and anticipated the same designation as the designation of adjacent properties. The project
proposes a residential land use designation of Residential Medium (up to 14 du/ac). The
residential propetrties directly across Palm Street to the south of the project are designated
Residential Low-Medium (up to 7 du/ac). The properties across Palm Street have a
Transportation land use designation and Residential Low designation (up to 4 du/ac). The
project is adjacent to a school, within a quarter mile of a bus stop and is adjacent to a high
trafficked collector street; factors which are more conducive to higher density residential
development. The project is designed to provide detached single-family residences along Palm
Street cul-de-sac across from the existing single-family residences to the south, and three
additional detached single-family residences at the northwest end of the project site across from
the single-family residences on the north side of Palm Street. The remaining 16 dwelling units
are composed of eight twin-homes, which are located along the remainder of Palm Street, along
Camino De Las Palmas, and in the center of the site. Impact is expected to be less than
significant.

Source: 1, 2,10

-52.



Attachment F

1. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the
region and the residents of the state?
b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery site

delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?

Potentially significant Impact
l.ess than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
‘ Less Than Significant Impact

X _No Impact

Discussion:
There are no known mineral resources of value located within the City of Lemon Grove. No
impact to mineral resources is expected.

Source: 1,2,5

12. NOISE. Would the project:

a) Expose persons to or generate noise levels in excess of standards established in the
local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

b) Expose persons to or generate excessive ground borne vibration or ground borne noise
levels?

c) Result in a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity
above levels existing without the project?

d) Result in a substantially temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the
project vicinity above levels existing without the project?

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or where such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a public use airport, would the project expose people
residing or working in the area to excessive noise levels?

) For a project within vicinity of a private airstrip would the project expose people residing
or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

—

Potentially significant Impact

X __Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The proposed project which is single-family residential in nature will not introduce significant
noise sources in the vicinity that are inconsistent with the existing residential development of the
area. State Route 125 and Palm Street are the primary noise sources within close proximity of
the project. Figure N-2 (2015 Noise Contours) in the General Plan indicates that the subject
property is located within an area of 70 dB CNEL or less noise levels. The MEIR for the General
Plan states that projects with existing noise levels below 60 dB CNEL are normally acceptable
or satisfactory for the area and no conditions are required, but that noise studies are required for
projects exceeding 60 dB CNEL. A noise study was conducted for this project. It shows that
predicted exterior noise levels at the proposed building fagades and outdoor of the units
adjacent to Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas would be between 64 and 68 dB CNEL.
Proposed lots 1 through 7, which are adjacent to Camino De Las Palmas and directly parallel to
Sr-125, Lot B, which is the open/recreation space, and Lots 8 and 9, which are on Palm Street
just west of the intersection of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, all exceed the
maximum 65 dB CNEL. As a mitigation measure, a six-foot sound wall will be constructed

-53-



adjacent to these lots. The noise study showed that a “windows open” condition will not provide
adequate interior noise mitigations at all units. Therefore, a “closed window” condition is
required for all units above 60 dBA CNEL to reduce interior noise levels to comply with CCR
Title 24 and the City of Lemon Grove requirements. The “windows closed” condition requires
that mechanical ventilation be installed to move air within the structure. As a mitigation
measure, the noise study determined that a Sound Transmission Class (STC) rating of 31 will
be needed for the glass assemblies (windows, fixed windows, and glass doors) of the perimeter
units having direct line of sight to SR 125 to reduce the interior noise levels below 45 dBA
CNEL. The remainder of the proposed units will have noise levels that are 5 dBA CNEL lower
and STC ratings of 28 for those glass assemblies would reduce the noise levels below the 45
dBA CNEL threshold. Conformance with the City’'s Noise Abatement and Control ordinance
(Chapter 9.24 of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code) is required for operation of any single or
combination of powered construction equipment at any construction site. With implementation of
the mitigation measures specified above, potential noise impacts would be less than significant.

The subject property is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or public airport.
Source: 1, 2,9,10

13. POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the project:

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by
proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of
roads or other infrastructure)?

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing units, necessitating the construction of
replacement housing units elsewhere?

C) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement
housing elsewhere?
Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X __Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The project is considered in a minor increase in potential population that will not induce
substantial population growth. The site is undeveloped and the project does not displace
existing housing units or numbers of people. The population and housing impact would be less
than significant.
Source: 1, 2, 8

14, PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts
associated with the provision of new or physically altered government facilities, need for
new or physically altered government facilities, and the construction which could cause
significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios,
response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services:

a) Fire protection?

b) Police protection?

c) Schools?

d) Parks?

e) Other public facilities?

Potentially significant Impact

-54.



Attachment F

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X __Less Than Significant Impact
No Impact

Discussion:

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in the demand for public services
and facilities. The Fire Department, San Diego Gas & Electric, EDCO disposal service, Helix
Water District, the Lemon Grove Sanitation District, School Districts, and the Sheriff's
Department have reviewed the proposed project and determined that existing services are
adequate to serve the increase in households proposed by the project.

Source: 1, 2,10

15. RECREATION. Would the project:

a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood or regional parks or other
recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would
occur or be accelerated?

) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of
recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

(=

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X __Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The proposed project will not likely cause a significant increase in the demand on recreational
services in the community. Standard conditions of approval require the developer to pay a
Parkland dedication in lieu fee for each proposed dwelling unit. In addition, the project proposes
an on-site common open space with play equipment and seating areas.

Source: 1, 2,10

16. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC. Would the project:

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of
effectiveness for the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all
modes of transportation including mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant
components of the circulation system, including but not limited to intersections, streets,
highways and freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass transit?

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not limited to
level of service standards and travel demand measures, or other standards established
by the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways?

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a
change in location that result in substantial safety risks?

d) Substantially increase hazards to a design feature (e.g. sharp curves or dangerous
intersection) or incompatible uses (e.g. farm equipment)?

e) Result in inadequate emergency access?

f) Conflict with adopted policies plans, or programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or

pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance or safety of such facilities?

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X __Less Than Significant Impact



No Impact

Discussion:

The Trip Generation Analysis that was prepared for this project estimates it would generate
approximately 220 average daily trips (ADT) per day. Based on the San Diego Traffic
Engineers’ Council (SANTEC) and the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) document
SANTEC/ITE Guidelines for Traffic Impact Studies in the San Diego Region, a Traffic Impact
Study is not required because the project’s trip generation is calculated to be less than 1,000
ADT and less than 100 peak hour trips. Additionally, the Trip Generation Analysis determined
that the ADT and number of peak hour trips generated by the proposed project does not trigger
Caltrans’ threshold for a requirement to analyze State highway facilities.

Approximately 90 percent of the trips generated by the proposed project are expected to be
distributed onto Palm Street/Troy Street, with approximately 50 percent heading west on Palm
Street into Lemon Grove and 40 percent heading east on Troy Street toward Spring Valley
(County of San Diego). Palm Street/Troy Street is designated as a Class Il Collector in the
Mobility Element of the General Plan and is forecasted to carry 9,000-10,000 trips per day. The
addition of approximately 220 vehicle trips is found to not have an impact on adjacent roadway
segments and intersections.

Project access is proposed from two private driveways on the southerly cul-de-sac segment of
Palm Street. The Fire Department and Engineering Department have determined that access is
adequate for emergency vehicles. The proposed project meets the City’'s parking requirements.
The project as designed complies with standard private street design requirements as it relates
to the travel lanes. A sight distance analysis was provided and indicates there are no potential
sight distance issues that will result from project improvements. The subject property is not
located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or public airport. Transportation and traffic impacts
are expected to be less than significant.

Source: 1, 2,10

17. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project:

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality
Control Board?
b) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or

expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant
environmental effects?

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm drainage facilities or expansion of
existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental
effects?

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements
and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed?

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment facilities which services or may

serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in
addition to the provider’s existing commitments?

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project’s
solid waste disposal needs?
g) Comply with the federal, state, and local statues and regulations related to solid waste?

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X Less Than Significant Impact



Attachment F

No Impact

Discussion:

The subject property is served by the City of Lemon Grove Sanitation District. The proposed
project will not result in a substantial increase in the demand for sanitary services. Standard
conditions of project approval will require that the project obtain sewer permits, pay sewer
service and connection fees, and connect to the Sanitation District.

The existing site is a dirt pad with steep areas sloping down toward the existing streets. A larger
pad will be graded to construct the proposed project which will require retaining walls in various
locations within the project site. The proposed dwelling units will drain onto the proposed
permeable paver driveway (the private internal street), where the runoff will be conveyed via
curb and gutter on both sides of the street and will enter an on-site storm drain system. The
storm drain will discharge into the proposed on-site detention basin with an outlet structure,
which is connected via storm drain to the existing curb inlet on the corner of Palm Street and
Camino De Las Palmas where it enters the existing storm drain system. Runoff from the
rooftops will be directed to the landscaped areas before being conveyed onto the permeable
paver driveway. The graded siopes will be planted and irrigated and flat areas will be
landscaped to help reduce runoff from the site. The Major SWMP prepared for this project
determined that it is a “priority development project” and requires a standard urban storm water
mitigation plan (SUSMP). The project is not within the environmentally sensitive areas as
defined on the maps in Appendix A of the County of San Diego Standard Urban Storm Water
Mitigation Plan for Land Development and Public Improvement Projects. Temporary
construction Best Management Practices (BMPs) will be implemented during construction of the
project. Standard conditions of approval will require that the project constructs improvements
consistent with City Engineering requirements.

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in demand for domestic water
supplies. Standard conditions of project approval will require that the project obtain water
service permits, pay the water service and connection fees, and connect to the Helix Water
District.

The proposed project will not result in a substantial increase in the generation of solid waste.
The project will be required to comply with all federal, state, and local statutes and regulations
regarding solid waste. Impacts to utilities and service systems are expected to be less than
significant.

Source: 1,2,5,6,7,8,10

18. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE.

a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment,
substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife
population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal
community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or
animal, or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or
prehistory?

Potentially significant Impact
l.ess than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X _No Impact

57-



Discussion:

The site was previously disturbed as a part of the State Route-125 construction. The proposed
project will not degrade the quality of the environment because it is located in an area that is
developed with single-family residential land uses in an urban community. The development of
the site does not support or influence critical habitat or sensitive vegetation or wildlife and there
is no evidence of California history or prehistory on-site.

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively
considerable? (Cumulatively Considerable” means that the incremental effects of a
project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of the past projects,
the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X__Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:
The project will result in a slight increase in the number of residents located within an urban
community, but will not have significant impacts that are cumulatively considerable.

O

) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects
on human beings, either directly or indirectly?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X __No Impact

Discussion:
The proposed project will not cause a substantial adverse effect on human beings.
Source: 1, 2,10

-58-



Attachment F

In view of the above analysis, it is determined that the project will not have a significant
impact on the environment and an environmental impact report is not required.

EARLIER ANALYSIS

Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process,
one or more effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration.
Section 15063 (c}3)(D).

Earlier Documents prepared and utilized in this analysis are listed below. All of the documents
are available at the City of Lemon Grove, Development Services Department, 3232 Main Street,
Lemon Grove.

Reference # Document Title

1. City of Lemon Grove General Plan

2. Master Environmental Impact Report for the Lemon Grove General
Plan

3. City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code

4. Firm Insurance Rate Map Community Panel No. 06073C1910G
May 16, 2012

5. Geotechnical Evaluation, by GeoSoils, Inc. (10/2/2015)

6. Hydrology Report, by Landmark Consulting (09/23/2015)

7. Major Stormwater Management Plan, prepared by Landmark
Consulting (02/04/2015)

8. Hydro Modification Plan (HMP), prepared by Landmark Consulting
(09/18/2015)

9. Exterior and Interior Noise Evaluation, by LDn Consulting, Inc.
(11/10/2015)

10. PDP-150-0003/TM0-000-0062/GPA-150-0003/ZA1-500-004

Application Packet

Individuals and Organizations Consulted

David De Vries, Development Services Director, City of Lemon Grove
Jeremiah Harrington, Assistant Engineer, City of Lemon Grove

Chris Jensen, Fire Marshal, Heartland Fire and Rescue

Kurt Culver, President and CEO, Esgil

Patricia Bluman, City Place Planning

5.



Attachment G

VICINITY MAP AND AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

Legend

E Subject Parced
D Parcels

R
0 BO100 0 200 300

-61-




Attachment H

TRBLE 0.1
PROFCSED LAKD USE CATECCRIES AR QENRE1YILS P TENSITIES

s

L L) v
ot b

Mol i eviging,

Dierwabisporany

Par Har Ko
tm tr, o

Expodiag
D A T
Pann Plaey anicrss

i

s ——— )

laon® s dratpgnry Taesoipr

AT

“”’“‘rm \(W‘ 1y

A Db gerw

bl e ciBsE s i
LEGRES By CRe, et
IEET S el o e
frvw w g reding

pel b s,
ey w‘wwwwwww .
Vi s D s,

Che

iz
smmes, bl

b

[ N TR
Dot g
Bapsa g erpr 1 bal

3P b sy

i el gkl il
rrie il eyt sl
Dhmbarnet howsms. Ty ki wies

‘NLWMMW A Dy v, vl S, vy Gt B, dein
i MWW Ve Bagsinsasies bl anhmes
vl Bebvn o0 Lo vty wm;‘imww

3

fkin
s

ary bimpm ey
wyr ik

A Dlsistre

Tl RSB

“"wgg wﬁiwmmﬂlmwmﬁ% aned

[P T
SESAT TR
M'«EWMWWP‘ clwpdbrig et i
sprae, pikdls
wi i by mr i v
et ke binid .

i gl
Ehapytsiineg
Feridonn gl

ELE NINES

il

)
DIiss vy

DEligy, Ly
v g somay A o FeigY s
P el g

e, Iham )
e oweh v

u”wm@\ o ‘Mmmm

1ol et Ch%m

RN IF TN T
s &

¥

Y RO TIPT E L DT T | Tt e TR T
ol gl gl s sl e sacvo b

vl g TEESRRIL S Y,
Bk ey,
v, by A Bynane af seanibng i poakeRly A

i

ceriivine i gy e St proliey sspkora. e
Pz achme e e R i s wee by Pie it - Suticw vt
i W o memv@ AT r Wl M T) v il (TS

Frant it Uovermomestepnd

LU

B R

Cenrpabkl estnd BaSinesses Wt v Jute-deieid

et o ]
el s, cdingide ey
sl g, LA

By
LT bl by o
RO W, Sy B, [ g

I

Garergl Duysrass

LY EAR

ol i b ey

shemiali B nmivsusbopon . o s e
G DRy, e
vel wutura Ervel st s s

s 4 s, vl
e
(ST T s YR T

Pyl i i

A
L

63-



T
LT TS Ew el
L) Ll Evawsibopmamnt | Loy |
CLiatongpes b e Moy Ay | Pos Bar S 3
ve vl 1
B HE T 0.7 ) FAR G Fbly o
il i e
R P, Py e vk o v
baws o bae spes by v silenes sewd o
it attueeral |1 FAR [T T Py sisms ard sardot 0 B Geraeme Ty Ay
Fac litigs s, apvnel Awaligim, pusteli s, pogy
S P Bk by W“WM EEYTRTE m™ ke,
EEC I I iR v |
FrianseaniFwee wiski o 0.5:% Fak Dot Fak mmmmwwww 5 mr o WWW;‘,‘”‘WWM b, s saeimwtinn
1A L Bl ¢l By G S%alie,
N M wrl vwww «“M | el e e i
by el MR
L e mmeyy e
N el S DEean By Ik
Wwﬂw«m HW% i M»wwmm ; .
Wkl Coeyevieeail, o F il o o
( shw v eler - wmee dealpeatine 5 e
i TR D e e R
il 5 Wummmr
4 PRI e i b |
i Mﬂm Een ) it o ol i B b
W jrah iyl Sahea 10050
"l il 00 v
W ey
Wl i Bk oo

AU e gl bigm ind by iesily it mrymileg . v Lo logem ET T e T T

o At 1y o el
0w rwhaer Gl

[T g Tl bndoyra e 0f Mg
Y T T I T (R R dimwg By womg O The bl

Trow lainsbys o0b Pl ah bavii prvming i
v et bl e o ] b et e e s
[T TN

Thew semscirmarn covmdiurea o5, Dooggioes i e i) el sl g v s g et Bl s woe
bang

T v ymasuioen vy whireb Loy v EE Ry 0 Vi DGR T T i I o s el Ty
AT sk d wikls B sl eby e s o Seckanr S5 gl ore
Vb w0l st wens oy o e Do Bl 6 s Mot B0 b vies o8 e ettt b

BT L A b e i o

gz e wwheh vy oD Des st an b Bezas i ey
kT i G saaiviveginl
o s i) o oSt e veand pusing femd £
v T it e e 0 I i
praveridadd eedwiivrne,  Thiw oo uezbed i wl ol praadw wonee s e adagi paaigel o0 Fories g ploet g e
Whvwe buwee et sian oyt o % Wweonhobio wivand I progwel popelnlame. oms s i dars,

U= gwerimead, v i e o) sl e s e itk e ek alnsey pggphenesehosmemes, oo b rospprn e ¢ ainly Db
sharenbzgieomnl vy s b Fre e SE ST Wi v oghilossowom, remir e S-S54 trmmnm ey, Sanrd ol ppr et
worlt lae wuzqmst 2n Corkraea e VG Reeone s, aitd 500t T eoainlee ) aalh B Lamn Semaen Guenel 1 an

¢ vy,




Attachment H

b

I l e ek Wy

i o 13 % e
oy Tt P . [ |
o o

FOPLULATION |

™o e
e R

w“; i

] £ p
[ wa

A8D
FEET

ARE

THIRE

g r
0 o

R S i,
. T i ﬁ
& L

iF

1 ] L e e Wy

2 ®m = X F X 4 & z . &

el o el bt ™ (1% Bl i il [ o

i k= s o - o . - - . K% -

i e Py ul v o Y : . o I

%y ,‘M p et :M i [ jﬂl uumfi [ i i ‘A;W* Wy

I (S = S N Y R L

) . iy i
I " Wy,
f E 5 &

Tl oo
ey

o

el ﬁumw‘{ﬂ' o ; s i ‘:“ [

bhe

ER T

s LS |
a 'l @ » o p i s i % o
£ o . o P g o e a S B o
s s A pa o i P e ] m‘; % ?‘v&;
S o o ; : S
i o o e [ . i & v
iy wy T . h
Gl i P P Uy
ey
e i
Lo
g e
i w i) i ] fim, ¥ i i i
[ ‘ . . f . i . [
kg [ P ol o, e ] [
wih E ok e i [ L -y ] %zb P ‘/“;%
¥ o P w 4 5 i
! e F ]

"~ &
#T

i
3%

TN R
T

&

Wt

L
o
Y
o :;:%E w}”‘m

3

2

i
=

S

4

S

s &

= 4
e
Tas

et Jevaly Rax
Gaoer Seshess

Dccesty Hnei

sty Ma=idany

a0 mom

& t b9

3 i . = a
. } T
2 g 3 @ 1 EE

s,

&

%

7

T2 TAs

o] %
L " W i 3
3 : F W 4 1 0oy
0y




Attachment |

VISTA AZUL PROJECT
LETTER TO CITY COUNCIL
FEBRUARY 17, 2016

Our development group, Vista Azul, LLC, has been working closely with the City Staff
over the past year to develop our praposed Vista Azul project located at the intersection
of Palm Street and Camino de las Palmas. Vista Azul is a pedestrian oriented
community clustering a total of 22 homes with beautiful views of Mt. Miguel and the hills
of South Bay. This project will promote resident interaction within the community as
well as resident connectivity outside the community. The combination of single family
detached homes and twin-homes will be designed with front porches, covered stoops,
patios, balconies and decks. A pleasant and expanded sidewalk will be sweep along
both sides of the internal road connecting the homes along that roadway. In the center
of the neighborhood will be a common area greenspace with benches and tot lot
equipment. Bike racks will be located in the common greenspace as well.

The community will have broader setbacks from the public streets with enhanced
landscaping. The setbacks will vary to create a more interesting building edge along
the public streets including over thirty street trees and landscaped slope areas. There
will be an elaborate public art feature cascading down the landscaped slope at the
intersection of Palm Street and Camino de las Palmas. In addition, there will be a
public sidewalk that connects the current Palm Street cul de sac to Palm Street along
the western boundary of the Liberty Charter School.

The homes will have articulated elevations with appropriate and consistent details that
reflect the varied design styles of the elevations on all sides of the homes. These
details include shutters, siding, out-lookers, knee braces and glass balcony guardrails.

The homes will have three (3) different elevation styles including Spanish Revival,
Craftsman and light Contemporary each with varying materials and five (5) distinct color
schemes. The roofs are varied with both flat and barrel tile. The intent is to have our
new community blend into the existing fabric of the surrounding neighborhood yet with a
fresh and updated appeal.

The building elevations also have varying heights from two stories at 24 feet and three
stories at 33 feet. These heights are in concert with the expanded streel setbacks and
are offset from many of the building planes. In addition, the homes have an abundance
of covered front porches, patios, covered and uncovered decks and balconies that
create additional outdoor living space for the homeowners to enjoy.

To accommodate additional bicycle storage, each home will be equipped with bicycle
racks or hooks in the private two car garages. To keep the neighborhood common area
free from large, unsightly trash dumpsters, all of the trash and recycling bins will have a
storage space within the confines of each garage.



The homes will exceed the minimum green standards with energy efficient materials
such as windows, roof materials and insulation. The heating and air-conditioning units
will be high efficiency meeting or exceeding the Title 24 requirements. High efficiency
plumbing fixtures and fittings, Energy Star appliances and lighting fixtures wili be
included as standard features for resource conservation.

The landscape is designed with drought tolerant plants and trees with efficient irrigation
systems. The streetscape will be enhanced along the three (3) public streets abutting
the community with a significant number of tree canopies.

There are a total of five (5) Equivalent Benefits per Code 17.28.030 and four (4)
Additional and Enhanced Benefits included with in our project submittal. Most of these
benefits have been ariculated in this narmrative. A complete list is located on the front
page of the Tentative Map.

in addition, three (3) significant power poles and approximately 400 feet of overhead
electric lines will be undergrounded as a part of the overall project design enhancing the
view for all the residents in this area of the City.

We look forward to the Vista Azul project being approved by the Lemon Grove City
Council and becoming a beautiful addition to the Palm Street and Camino de las
Palmas neighborhoods. Thank you.

A
Z V4 '3 A
Mt N A,

Chris Dahdling -
Vista Azul, LLC - Member

-B8-



Attachment J

EXHIBIT “A” — PROJECT PLANS

-69-



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ftemNo. _ 3
Mtg. Date _ April 19, 2016
Dept. Development Services Department

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP-150-0002 and
Tentative Map TM0-000-0061 to Authorize a 14-lot Subdivision with 12 Single-
Family Homes on a 1.59-Acre Parcel at 6800 Mallard Street. |

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation:

1) Conduct the public hearing; and

2) Adopt a resolution (Attachment B) approving Tentative Map TM-000-0061 and certifying
Negative Declaration ND16-03; and

3) Adopt a resolution (Attachment C) approving Planned Development Permit
PDP150-0002.

Item Summary:

The proposed project is located at 6800 Mallard Street on a 1.59 acre vacant lot. The project is
requesting a Tentative Subdivision Map and a Planned Development Permit to authorize a 14-
lot subdivision on a 1.59 acre parcel, including 12 residential lots, one private street lot and one
common area lot, with a total of 12 detached single-family dwelling units (four restricted to
moderate-income households as a part of a density bonus request), common open space,
pedestrian paths, all-ages play equipment, lighting, landscaping, and other improvements. The
attached staff report (Attachment A) describes the project in detail. The project, as proposed
and conditioned in the resolutions (Attachment B & C), complies with the Municipal Code..

Fiscal Impact:
No fiscal impact.
Environmental Review:

[] Not subject to review X Negative Declaration

[] Categorically Exempt [] Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

] None ["] Newsletter article
X Notice published in local newspaper
Attachments:

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution (TM0-000-0061)

C. Resolution (PDP-150-0002)
D

. Negative Declaration (ND16-03)

X Notice to property owners within 500 ft.
1 Neighborhood meeting

E. Vicinity Map
F. Applicant Letter
G. Exhibit “A” — Project Plans



Item No. 3

Mtg. Date April 19, 2016

Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP150-0002 and
Tentative Map TM-000-0061 Authorizing Construction of a 14-lot subdivision
with 12 Single Family Homes on 1.59 Acres at 6800 Mallard Street.

Staff Contact: David D

Application Summary:

e Vries, Development Services Director

APPLICANT/OWNER:

Lorraine Weiland, Infil Development Company, 771 Jamacha Rd.,
# 516, El Cajon, CA 92019

PROPERTY The site is located at 6800 Mallard Street, north of Mallard Street and
LOCATION: west of 69" Street (APN: 479-402-23-00)
PROJECT AREA: 1.59 acres (69,438 square feet) gross and 1.24 acres (53,794 square

feet) net

EXISTING ZONE:

Residential Low/Medium (RL/M)

GENERAL PLAN
LAND USE
DESIGNATION:

Low/Medium Density Residential (up to 7 dwelling units per net acre)

SURROUNDING
PROPERTIES:

North: Single-family residential (City of San Diego)
South: Single-family residential (City of San Diego)
East: Single-family residential (City of Lemon Grove)
West: Single-family residential (City of San Diego)

ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT:

A Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact will be filed
subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project
by the City Council. The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this
project found that the proposed project could not have a significant
impact on the environment. A draft Negative Declaration was filed
with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public hearing.




Attachment A

Background:

The property is a 69,438 square foot vacant parcel (1.59 gross acre) located on the north side of
Mallard Street directly across from the intersection of Springfield Street and Mallard Street,
approximately 140 feet west of 69" Street. To the north, south, east and west are detached
single-family residential land uses. The site is rectangular, with the exception of a 140-foot long,
seven-foot wide strip to the east that connects the main portion of the site to 69" Street.

In 2008, the City Council approved a request from a different applicant to authorize the
subdivision of the property into nine condominiums and a common lot to include a club house,
off-street parking, and associated improvements (Tentative Map TMO0057 and Planned
Development Permit PDPQ7-005). After the project’s approval by City Council, the project was
never pursued.

In June 2015, Infill Development Company purchased the proposed project and thereafter
applied for a new tentative subdivision map and planned development that would allow 12
single-family detached homes. Since the project did not substantially conform to previous
approvals, new applications were required.

This staff report provides a description of the existing site, the proposed project and the
conformance to the regulatory framework.

Discussion:
Project Description
Lorraine Weiland, Infill Development Company, filed a complete application on March 17, 2016.

The proposed project is a request for approval of a Tentative Subdivision Map and a Planned
Development Permit to authorize a 14-lot subdivision, including 12 lots with 12 detached single-
family homes, one private street lot, and one common area lot.

The subdivision proposes 12 residential lots ranging in size from 2,715 to 4,307 square feet, a
lot for a private street, and a lot providing common open space and storm water detention
facilities. The proposed project consists of 12 detached single-family dwelling units, four of
which will be restricted to moderate-income households as a part of a density bonus request. All
the proposed dwelling units are two-story and have an attached two-car garage and a two-car
driveway (allowing for four cars per lot) consistent with the surrounding single-family homes in
the area.

The 15,254 square foot open space lot is located along the east side of the site and includes
three bio-retention areas, decomposed granite (dirt trail style) walking paths around the
detention area and out to 69" Street, site furnishings, natural climbing structures allowing for all-
ages passive and active recreational uses, benches, site lighting, and gathering spaces. The
common open space area is accessed from the development via a walkway along the southern
property line of Lot 12 or via 69" Street along the seven foot wide property strip. Additionally,
each unit has private open space (back yard) ranging from 759 to 2,248 square feet, providing
an additional 13,132 square feet of private usable open space.

The proposed private street will be accessed from Mallard Street. Along the main entry portion,
the private street provides four-foot wide sidewalks and a four-foot wide planted parkway with
enhanced street lighting, parking is not allowed on either side of the private street. The project
requires a 30-foot dedication along the Mallard Street frontage and a three-foot dedication along
69" Street.

The State has established Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) targets for each City in
order to ensure adequate housing stock. This project works towards the City’s goals of meeting

4-



Attachment A

its RHNA figures by providing four housing units to moderate income households (restricted
covenant required) and eight units affordable to above-moderate income households (market
rate).

Land Use Designation and Density Bonus

The General Plan Land Use designation for this site is Low/Medium Density Residential which
allows detached single-family homes (up to seven (7) dwelling units per net acre). The property
is a 69,438 square foot vacant parcel (1.59 gross acre). After subtracting the required street
dedication along Mallard Street to allow for a 60 foot right-of-way width and the area of the
private street and adjoining sidewalks and landscape parkways, the net area of the site is 1.24
acres. Based on the maximum allowable density of the Land Use designation, a maximum of
8.68 units would be allowed. With the proposed density bonus allowed through the City's
Density Bonus Ordinance and required by State Density Bonus Law, 12 units are allowed, four
of which will be required to be restricted to moderate income households as a part of the density
bonus provisions. The proposed density for this project is 9.7 dwelling units per acre, which
includes the proposed density bonus. This project is consistent with the City’s General Plan
because it works toward the Housing Element goals of providing detached single-family homes
and provides housing towards the City's Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) goals.

Zoning District Regulations and Equivalent Benefits

The property is zoned Residential Low/Medium which allows single-family homes, parks,
schools, and related uses. Generally, lots in this zone are required to be larger with homes
setback from the streets and related provisions for back yards, fencing, and landscape. The
Municipal Code allows applicants to request deviations from development standards through the
Planned Development Permit process where it can be found that the project provides equivalent
benefits and/or achieves efficiencies in use, structures, transportation and/or utility systems. The
applicant proposes a pedestrian-oriented single-family residential development with an
enhanced common open space area that provides open space, gathering and recreational
opportunities into a needed storm water retention area. The common open space area includes
enhanced drought-tolerant landscaping that exceeds minimum requirements, as well as five
citrus trees, decomposed granite walking paths, benches with dog bag waste stations, play
equipment, an all-ages natural climbing and seating area consisting of large boulders and logs;
and homes that exceed energy efficiency standards. In addition, a community library kiosk will
be provided adjacent to the private street. In order to accomplish this project design, the
applicant requests various deviations from the Zoning and Subdivision Codes, including
deviations to the private usable open space (back yard), building envelope, setbacks, lot area,
lot dimensions, and public street requirements. The following table describes the development
standards of the Residential Low/Medium Zone and the project’s proposal.

Criteria Residential Low/Medium Mallard Court
(RL/M) Zone
Open Space 1,500 sq. ft. of private usable | 15,254 sq. ft. provided as
open space per unit common open space, plus a
18,000 sq. ft. total usable open LOtZIan ;2; 32 sq. ft. of private
space P P
Min. Lot Area 6,000 SF 2,715t0 4,307 SF

(3,212 SF average)




Attachment A

Min. Lot Width/Depth 60-feet x 90-feet 34-feet minimum width
67-feet minimum depth
Setbacks 25-feet (front) 17- to 20-feet (front)
5-feet (side) 4-feet (interior side)
20-feet (rear) 10-feet (exterior side along

Mallard Street)
15- to 35-feet (rear)

Building Height 25-feet maximum Plan 1: 24'-2”
Plan 2: 24°-11”
Bicycle Parking Two required. One ceiling mounted bike rack

within the garage (per PDP
condition of approval for
‘Equivalent Benefit”)

Building Design

A total of 12 detached single-family residences are proposed, with two different floor plans, both
of which are two-story. Floor Plan 1 provides 1,430 square feet of living area, including three
bedrooms and two-and-one-half bathrooms, and a 479 square foot two-car garage/laundry area.
Floor Plan 2 provides 1,619 square feet of living area with either three bedrooms plus a loft area
or four bedrooms and two-and-one-half bathrooms, and a 446 square foot two-car
garage/laundry area. Both plans are Mission style and the materials are a combination of
stucco, painted wood siding, plaster columns with stone bases, and asphalt composition shingle
roofing. Plan 1 is designed with a gable roof style, while Plan 2 is designed with a hipped roof
style on the front and side elevations, and a gable roof viewed from the rear elevation.

The majority of the residences that abut the site on the west and north (on Madroncillo Street)
are two stories, while those to the south (across Mallard Street) and the east (on 69" Street) are
one story. The majority of the surrounding structures have exterior stucco siding and asphalt
shingte roofing materials.

Grading

The site is vacant and generally slopes to the east and north, with a shallow valley on the east
side. Elevations range from 442 feet above Mean Sea Level (MSL) in the northeast portion of
the site to 466 feet above MSL at the south end of the site. Proposed earthwork includes 1,000
cubic yards of cut, and 5,000 cubic yards of fill, requiring 4,000 cubic yards to be imported. The
site will be graded to provide building pads that gently slope down the lots towards the private
street, with an overall change in finished pad elevation of 3.5 feet. Storm water will flow from
the private street and Mallard Street into the storm water retention common open space area to
the east. Retaining walls are proposed along portions of Mallard Street, along the west and
south property lines of the site, between the rear property lines of proposed Lots 8 through 11
and the open space area, and within the common open space just west of the middle storm
water retention area.

Landscaping and HOA

Projects located in residential zones are required to landscape a minimum of 15 percent of the
total lot area. The landscaping proposed for the 12 residential lots ranges from 16.9 to 44.4
percent per lot. The total amount of landscaping proposed for the entire project, excluding the
area to be dedicated, is 29,762 square feet, or approximately 48 percent. Landscaping will be

6.



Attachment A

provided and maintained by the Home Owners Association (HOA) for the parkway of the private
street and along Mallard Street at the property’s frontage, within the front yards of the residential
lots, and throughout the common area. All private street and open space facilities will also be
maintained by an HOA. Seventeen trees are proposed on the 12 residential lots; eight street
trees are proposed in the landscaped parkway of the private street; 10 street trees are proposed
in the landscaped parkway of Mailard Street; and 22 trees are proposed within the common
open space areas including five citrus trees as required by the new landscape ordinance. All
existing on-site trees will be removed to accommodate the change in grade (11 total).

Fencing and Screening

The project proposes five-foot high wood fences on top of the retaining walls along the west and
south property lines and between each proposed residential lot. Five-foot “view” fences are
proposed along the rear lot lines of proposed Lots 8 through 12 to provide views from the
residences onto the common open space area to allow for Crime Prevention Through
Environmental Design (CPTED).

Traffic

The project is located on the north side of Mallard Street on the westerly boundary of the City of
Lemon Grove. Areas directly south, west, and north of the project area are located in the
Community of Encanto in the City of San Diego. The project includes a private street which will
provide access to the residential lots. The project will generate approximately 120 average daily
trips (ADT) based on a trip generation rate of 10 ADT for a single-family residence, or 120 trips
for 12 single-family residences. Based on the San Diego Traffic Engineers’ Council (SANTEC)
and the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) document SANTEC/ITE Guidelines for
Traffic Impact Studies in the San Diego Region, a Traffic Impact Study is not required because
the project’s trip generation is calculated to be less than 1,000 ADT and less than 100 peak
hour trips. The project does not increase the volume-to-capacity ratio by more than 0.02 per the
significance threshold of both the jurisdictions and therefore would not have an impact on
adjacent roadway segments. The 69" Street/Mallard Street intersection is projected to operate
at Level of Service (LOS) C or better with and without project conditions; therefore, the
proposed project would not have a significant traffic impact under future conditions.

Parking and Bicycle Storage

Single-family residences require two parking spaces per dwelling unit, with the spaces required
to be garaged. The project proposes two-car garages for all units, which meets Code
requirements. In addition, each unit is designed with an 18-foot wide by 20-foot long driveway
capable of providing off-street parking for two additional vehicles (4 spaces per unit). There will
also be eight additional on-street parking spaces provided along Mallard Street.

One rack or other secure device for at least one bicycle is required for every 10 parking spaces,
or two for this project. A condition of approval has been included in the Planned Development
Permit resolution to require a minimum of one ceiling-mounted bike rack within each garage.
This condition is considered an additional equivalent benefit toward providing a pedestrian- and
bicycle-friendly infill development.

Public Street Dedication and Improvement Requirements

The subject property has approximately 246 feet of frontage along Mallard Street and
approximately 14 feet of frontage along 69" Street. Mallard Street is located within the City of
San Diego. The City of San Diego designates Mallard Street as requiring a 30-foot one-half
right-of-way width, similar to Lemon Grove’s Class |l Collector Street with a required 30-foot
one-half right-of-way width. The Mallard Street frontage of the subject property is currently not



Attachment A

dedicated to the required City of San Diego standard of 30-foot one-half right-of-way width. The
Mallard Street frontage is proposed to be dedicated with the required 30-foot one-half right-of-
way width and improved with new curb, gutter, sidewalk, a five foot wide landscaped parkway,
10 street trees, paving improvements, and the undergrounding of public utilities. A street light
exists at the southeast corner of Springfield Street and Mallard Street and no additional street
lights are required by the San Diego Lighting District. Current public improvements along the
Mallard Street frontage of the subject property include street paving improvements and utility
poles only. There is no existing curb, gutter, or sidewalk.

The City of Lemon Grove Engineering Department is requiring a three-foot dedication along the
69" Street frontage of the subject property. The Engineering Department is not requesting
public street improvements within the 14 feet fronting on 69" Street because the improvements
may create a safety hazard installed in such a small area.

Undergrounding of Overhead Utility Lines

The Municipal Code requires that all of the overhead utility distribution facilities located within
the boundaries of the subdivision or within any half-street width abutting the subdivision be
placed underground. There is one overhead utility pole located within the half-street width of
Mallard Street abutting the property. A condition has been included in the Resolution which
requires that the overhead utilities along Mallard Street and 69" Street abutting the subject
property be placed underground. A condition has also been included requiring that the utility
connections to the proposed single family dwellings be placed underground.

Sanitation District

The existing project site is within the Lemon Grove Sanitation District, but is not connected to
the City's sewer system. The City requires that all new dwelling units of the proposed
subdivision be connected to a sanitary sewer system. Since the site is surrounded by the City
of San Diego on three sides and by Lemon Grove along the 69" Street frontage, the project
could either connect to the City of Lemon Grove's or the City of San Diego’s sewer system. The
applicant opted to connect to San Diego’s sewer system. Conditions in the Resolution require
that the subdivider obtain a sewer permit prior to the issuance of a building permit for the new
residences. The onsite sewer main is required to be private.

Drainage/Water Quality

The applicant prepared a Drainage Study and a Stormwater Management Plan for this project.
The site runoff will be collected within the private street and conveyed to storm water retention
areas within the open space area along the east side of the site. According to the Drainage
Study prepared for the project, there are no major diversions of drainage that will create
nuisances downstream. The project will detain the proposed runoff so that the amount leaving
the site will be equal to or less than the amount leaving the site in the existing condition. This
will be accomplished by the proposed storm water retention areas on the east side of the project
site. The implementation, construction and on-going maintenance of the project components
recommended in these reports are included as conditions in the Draft Resolution of Approval.

Expiration Date of the Planned Development Permit

The Tentative Map and Planned Development Permits will expire within two (2) years if the
tentative map is not recorded. This requirement has been included in the Resolution of
Approval.



Attachment A

Public Information:

The Notice of Public Hearing was published in the March 24, 2016 edition of the East County
Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject property.

The City received no comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing and Environmental
Analysis at the time this staff report was prepared. Staff will provide the Council at the time of
the public hearing with any comments that may come in past the distribution of the staff report.

Conclusion:

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct the public hearing and approve the resolutions
(Attachments B & C).



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING TENTATIVE MAP
TM0-000-0061 AUTHORIZING THE SUBDIVISION OF A 1.59 ACRE PARCEL INTO TWELVE
RESIDENTIAL LOTS, ONE COMMON LOT FOR A PRIVATE STREET, AND ONE COMMON
OPEN SPACE LOT ON AN UNDEVELOPED SITE AT 6800 MALLARD STREET, LEMON
GROVE, CALIFORNIA.

WHEREAS, the applicant, Lorraine Weiland of Infill Development Company, filed a
complete application for a Tentative Map (TM0-000-0061) on March 17, 2016 to authorize the
subdivision of 1.59 acres of land into 12 single-family residential lots, a lot for a private street,
and a lot for common open space as part of an application for a Planned Development Permit
(PDP-150-0002; and

WHEREAS, a Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact (ND16-03) will be filed
subsequent to its adoption and the approval of the proposed project. The Initial Environmental
Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no significant effect on the
environment. A notice of intent to adopt a negative declaration was filed with the County Clerk
prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on April 19, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the project qualifies for a 35 percent density
bonus in exchange for four of the 12 units restricted to Moderate Income households in
accordance with the Density Bonus Ordinance and Government Code Section 65915 (Density
Bonus Law) and therefore the Subdivision and Planned Development are consistent with the
Lemon Grove General Plan (density calculations round up as a part of bonus calculations). The
proposed density for this project is 9.7 dwelling units per acre, which includes the proposed
density bonus. The maximum density in the Low/Medium Residential Land Use Designation is 7
dwelling units per net acre absent a density bonus. This project assists the City in meeting
Housing Element goals of providing detached single-family homes and provides housing
towards the City's Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) goals; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has requested no incentives in accordance with the Density
Bonus Ordinance or the State Density Bonus Law, only modifications and deviations in
accordance with the Subdivision Ordinance and Planned Development Permit provisions; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the tentative map complies with the findings of
fact required to approve this project pursuant to Municipal Code Section 16.16.400 because the
project complies with the time limitations of the State Subdivision Map Act; the existing lot is a
legal lot; the proposed subdivision creates more than 5 lots; the proposed subdivision complies
with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance; the map and design or improvements are
consistent with applicable general and specific plans or as allowed to be modified; the site is
physically suitable for the type of development; and the site is physically suitable for the
proposed density of development; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered said Tentative Map and recommendations
of the Planning Department, City Engineer, and the Lemon Grove Fire Department with respect
thereto and has determined that the conditions hereinafter enumerated are necessary to insure
that the subdivision and the improvements thereof will conform to all ordinances, plans, rules,
and improvement and design standards of the City of Lemon Grove; and

A1



Attachment B

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered Planned Development Permit PDP-150-
002 including site, architectural, and landscape plans dated received March 17, 2016
associated with Tentative Map TM0-000-061; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 16.12.280, the City Council finds that it is
impractical in this particular case for this subdivision to conform fully to the Design Standards of
the Subdivision Ordinance because the Subdivision Ordinance does not account for lots sized
for planned developments and waivers granted as part of the approval of this project are found
to conform to the spirit and purpose of the Subdivision Map Act and of the Subdivision
Ordinance of the Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby makes the following findings:

1. The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause
substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or
their habitat because the property has no environmentally protected resources as
discussed in the Negative Declaration; and

2. The proposed Tentative Subdivision Map (TMO0-000-0061) is consistent with the
Low/Medium Density Residential (up to seven (7) dwelling units per net acre) Land Use
Designation of the General Plan because of density bonuses allowable through the
Density Bonus Ordinance and State Density Bonus Law: and

3. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development because public
utilities will be available to serve the proposed density; and

4. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not cause serious public
health problems because public services (e.g., sewer, water, gas, and electricity) will be
provided to the subdivision; and

5. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements do not conflict with easements,
acquired by the public at large, for access through, or use of property within the
proposed subdivision as defined under Section 66474 of the Government Code, State of
California; and

6. The design and improvements of the proposed subdivision map complies with the
requirements of the State Subdivision Map Act and the Subdivision Ordinance except as
specifically waived or modified for the requested deviations in accordance with Section
16.12.280 and pursuant to the Planned Development Permit process; and -

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California:

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Certifies the adequacy of the Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact ND16-
03; and

SECTION 3. Waives or modifies the following Design Standards in accordance with Section
16.12.280:

1. Section 16.12.220B (Minimum Lot Area of 6,000 sqg. ft.) to allow 12 single-family
residential lots with areas ranging from 2,715 sq. ft. to 4,307 sq. ft.

2. Section 16.12.220C (Lots Shall Front on Dedicated Street) to allow 12 single-family
residential lots to not front on a dedicated street.

-12-



Attachment B

3. Section 16.12.220D (Minimum Lot Width and Depth of 60 feet by 90 feet) to allow 12 lots
with minimum dimensions of less than sixty feet by ninety feet.

SECTION 4. Approves Tentative Map TM0-000-0061 in association with Planned Development
Permit PDP-150-0002 and the grading, site, landscape, and architectural plans dated received
March 17, 2016 (incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A) pursuant to the City of Lemon
Grove Subdivision Ordinance (Title 16 of the Municipal Code). The approval conditionally
authorizes the development of a vacant site with a 12 unit planned development with an
associated private street and common area located at 6800 Mallard St., Lemon Grove,
California (APN: 479-402-23-00). The subdivider shall comply with all applicable provisions of
the Subdivision Map Act, the City of Lemon Grove Subdivision Ordinance, and the following
conditions of approval:

NO PARCEL SHOWN ON THIS APPROVED TENTATIVE SUBDIVITION MAP SHALL BE
LEASED, SOLD, CONVEYED, OR TRANSFERRED, UNLESS AND UNTIL A SUBDIVISION
MAP APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER HAS BEEN FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
COUNTY RECORDER.

A WITHIN FIVE DAYS OF APPROVAL, THE SUBDIVIDER/APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY
WITH THE FOLLOWING:

1. Submit the appropriate payment for the CEQA filing fee (Department of Fish and
Game ND and County Clerk Processing Fee).

2. Pay all outstanding fees for City permits related to this project.

B. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A GRADING OR IMPROVEMENT PERMIT AND/OR
DURING GRADING ACTIVITY, THE SUBDIVIER/APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH
THE FOLLOWING:

1. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated
March 17, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they are
shown and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City
Codes to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

2. Obtain a grading permit from the City prior to any grading activities. The grading
permit shall constitute an authorization to do only that work which is described or
illustrated on the application for the permit, or in the plans and specifications
approved by the City Engineer.

3. All grading permit fees and deposits shall be paid and all actions necessary
preceding the issuance of the grading permit shall be completed.

4. Coordinate with Helix Water District for the installation of water facilities and ensure
that all of the appropriate permits are obtained.

5. Obtain an encroachment permit for the installation of private facilities and/or for
grading work in/or adjacent to the public right-of-way.

6. Building permits shall be submitted with the grading plans for retaining and
freestanding walls where required. Except as noted in this condition, building permits
shall be termed building permits for post-grading activities in the resolutions
approving this project.

7. Safety fencing shall be required at the top of retaining walls and slopes and shall be
shown on all Grading Plans where appropriate.

13-



Attachment B

-14-

8.

10.

1.

12.

13.
14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

A private Storm Water Facility and Best Management Practice maintenance
agreement shall be recorded for the future repair and rehabilitation of the proposed
private drainage and storm water treatment. The City will provide the template for the
agreement.

As a part of the grading permit submittal, a private improvement, grading, and
drainage plan shall be submitted showing all of the proposed and existing on-site
improvements. The plan shall be prepared in accordance with the City’s standard
requirements by a Registered Civil Engineer. All necessary measures for prevention
of storm water pollution and hazardous material run-off to the public storm drain
system from the proposed development shall be implemented with the design of the
grading.

A public improvement plan as a part of an improvement plan check, shall be
submitted with applicable deposit showing all of the proposed and existing
improvements within the public right-of-way. The plan shall be prepared in
accordance with the City’s standard requirements by a Registered Civil Engineer.

As-built drawings shall be submitted to SDG&E to energize all of the required street
lights.

Submit the street improvement and grading plans to Helix Water for review and
signature.

All utilities shall be shown on the grading plans.

Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, a deposit shall be paid to cover the City’s
expenses, costs, and overhead for the field inspection, office engineering, and
administration of the work performed, including landscape and irrigation work. The
amount of the deposit shall be as determined by the City Engineer.

All existing survey monuments shall be shown on the grading plan.

Evidence indicating that arrangements have been made for the preservation and/or
relocation of existing monuments shall be submitted to the City Engineer prior to the
issuance of a grading permit.

Grading plans shall be prepared and submitted with the grading permit application in
accordance with the city engineering standards and the requirements of the City
Engineer.

All grading plans shall be signed by a registered civil engineer and by the soil
engineer.

Conditions imposed by the city engineer shall be shown on the grading plans under
the heading “General Notes.”

The subdivider shall execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and a
Subdivision Improvement Security in accordance with Section 16.12.200. A cost
estimate for all of the proposed grading, drainage, street improvements, landscaping,
and retaining and freestanding walls work proposed shall be submitted with the
grading and improvement plans. A separate cost estimate shall be submitted for
work proposed within the public right-of-way. Templates for these agreements are
available from the City. The applicant shall post a security with the City comprised of
a cash deposit of a combination of cash deposit and corporate surety bond of a
surety authorized to do business in the state. An instrument of credit or other security
pledging the performance of the work, may be submitted in lieu of the surety bond to



21,

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

Attachment B

insure installation of required structures, drains, landscaping, irrigation and other
improvements shown on the grading plan. Such funds are trust funds for the
purposes of satisfying the cost of correcting any deficiency, hazard or injury created
by the work or lack of maintenance thereof. An irrevocable standby letter of credit
issued by a financial institution subject to the regulation by the state or federal
government may be posted in lieu of the surety bond, instrument of credit or other
security. The estimated cost of the work shall be determined by the City Engineer
after reviewing the civil engineer’s estimate. The total amount of the security shall be
equal to one hundred fifty percent of the estimated cost of the grading work
authorized by the permit plus an additional sum equal to one hundred percent of the
estimated cost for the construction of drainage structures or facilities, including
standard terrace drains, slope planting, irrigation system, erosion control devices,
retaining walls and similar facilities authorized by the permit.

Submit improvement plans and enter into a secured agreement for public street
improvements to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

Three copies of a preliminary soils engineering report shall be submitted with the
application of a grading permit. Each report shall be prepared by a soil engineer and
contain all information applicable to the project in accordance with generally
accepted geotechnical engineering practice. The preliminary soil engineering report
shall include, but not be limited to, the requirements outlined within 18.08.120 A. All
recommendations outlined in the soils report shall be imbedded into the grading
plans. The grading plans shall include site monitoring and inspections to ensure
recommendations of the Geotechnical Evaluation are adhered to. The Evaluation
recommends that undocumented fill, colluvium and bedrock be removed. Removal
depths are estimated at two to seven feet with variation. Properly designed site
drainage is required to reduce erosion damage to the planned improvements. Typical
erosion control measures will be required during site grading.

The soil engineer and engineering geologist should refer to the geologic conditions
element of the Lemon Grove General Plan in preparing the reports required in
18.08.120.

Recommendations contained within approved reports and technical analyses shall
be incorporated into the grading plan and specifications and shall become conditions
of the grading permit.

Submit a truck hauling route with diagram showing streets. This should include the
source of borrow and/or disposal and any BMPs tied to the imported material.

Submit a final Hydrology Report and Storm Water Quality Management Plan
(SWQMP) to determine and analyze the increased volume of storm water runoff as a
result of the proposed design. The SWQMP must be revised to incorporate all
comments presented within the March 25, 2016 letter from DMax Engineering.
Analysis of the downstream onsite detention basin must be based on hydrology
calculations. Any modifications must be reflected on the plans. This report should
contain calculations and diagrams of pre and post-development conditions. The
SWQMP shall be completed and approved prior to the issuance of any other permits.
Grading and site improvements shall be in accordance with the SWQMP for the
proposed project. The SWQMP shall specify implementation of BMPs required in
8.48 and 18.08 of Municipal Code and the BMP Design Manual. Provide evidence
that treatment Best Management Practices (BMPs) are adequately sized for the
increase in impervious surfaces.

-15-



Attachment B

-16-

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.
40.

Plans for an erosion control system shall be prepared and submitted for the review
and approval of the City Engineer and Water Quality Coordinator as a part of any
application for a construction permit. The erosion control system shall comply with
the requirements of the latest state general construction stormwater permit and any
amendments thereto, the MS4 Permit, Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter 8.48,
and 18.08.170.

A private Stormwater Facilities and Best Management Practices maintenance
agreement shall be submitted for the future repair and rehabilitation of the proposed
private drainage and stormwater treatment facilities prior to the issuance of a grading
or improvement permit.

An agreement not-to-oppose the formation of a future utility undergrounding district
will be required to be submitted prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits
(frontages on 69" Street and Mallard Street will be considered to be a part).

An agreement not-to-oppose the formation of a future street improvement district will
be required to be submitted prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits
(frontages on 69" Street and Mallard Street will be considered to be a part).

The developer shall submit erosion and sediment control plans with construction
Best Management Practices (BMPs) and an irrigation plan for review and approval
by the Water Quality Coordinator, which will be required to be abided by during
grading activities.

The applicant shall submit sewer lateral plans with the improvement plans. These
sewer lateral plans shall be submitted to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

The structural pavement section for the private access located on the subject
property shall be based on the soils report prepared by a Geotechnical Engineer to
the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

Improvements, where applicable, shall conform to the San Diego Regional Standard
Drawings unless otherwise specified by the City Engineer.

The subdivider shall provide proof satisfactory to the Director of Public Health that
there exists an adequate potable water supply available to each lot or parcel, and
that the subdivider install or agree to install water supply pipes of a minimum six
inches in diameter, provided that the City Engineer may required such other diameter
of water supply pipe as may be recommended by Helix Water District.

Sight distance requirements along streets and at all intersections shall conform to the
intersectional sight distance criteria as provided by the Caltrans Highway Design
Manual.

The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with letters from the serving utility
companies stating that arrangements satisfactory to the utility have been made to
serve all parcels created. No letter will be required from the Pacific Bell Telephone
Company.

A private Sewer Maintenance Agreement shall be submitted for the future repair and
rehabilitation of the proposed private sewer prior to the issuance of grading or
improvement permits. The City will provide the template for the agreement.

The Sewer main for this project shall be designated as private, not public.

Provide the City with a final drainage/hydrology report indicating that the site design
is in accordance with the report and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination



41,

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47,

48.

49.

Attachment B

System (NDPES) permit. On-site drainage shall be in compliance with the NDPES
permit.

Submit a maintenance agreement for the on-going maintenance of the private street
and access improvements, parking and other proposed paved areas, fencing,
landscape and irrigation (private and within the public right-of-way along the
property’s frontage), drainage and water quality facilities required by the SWQMP,
and recreational and other facilities as specified to be reviewed and approved by the
City Engineer and Director of Development Services. This maintenance agreement
shall be adhered to by the HOA and incorporated into the CC&Rs to the satisfaction
of the Director of Development Services and City Engineer.

All plans and technical studies required to be submitted to the Engineering
Department for review and approval shall be prepared by a California Registered
Professional Engineer or applicable utility provider.

The permittee shall be responsible to maintain in an obvious and accessible location
on the site, a copy of the grading and improvement permit and grading plans bearing
the approval of the City Engineer.

After grading permit issuance, but prior to any land development work involving
grading, brushing or clearing, there shall be a pre-grading meeting. Prior to pouring
curbs and gutters or placement of base materials, there shall be a pre-paving
meeting held on the site. The permittee, or his or her agent, shall notify the City
Engineer at least two working days prior to the meeting and shall be responsible for
notifying all principals responsible for grading and paving related operations. The
Storm Water Coordinator shall be a part of the meeting.

All land development work shall be performed by a contractor licensed by the state to
perform the types of work required by the permit.

The property owner shall pay the City for all costs of placing, repairing, replacing or
maintaining a city-owned facility within the public right-of-way when the city facility
has been damaged or has failed as a result of the construction or existence of the
owner's land development work during the progress of such work. The costs of
placing, replacing or maintaining the city-owned facility shall include the cost of
obtaining an alternate easement if necessary. The City may withhold certification of
the completion of a building or other work where a notice has been issued.

The subdivider shall submit record drawings (as-builts) and engineering
documentation with applicable fees for all public improvements to the City to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

In accordance with Municipal Code Sections 12.10.080 and 16.12.240, the property
owner(s) shall underground all existing utility distribution facilities, including
telecommunication lines, on and along the frontage of the subject property as
required by the City Engineer. The property owner(s) shall make the necessary
arrangements with each of the serving utilities, including licensed communication
operators for the installation or relocation of such facilities. No new overhead poles
shall result from undergrounding activities.

Submit street improvement plans with roadway cross-sections with rolled curb
configuration to the Fire Marshal for review and approval. Minimum 20 foot fire lane
for emergency access required.

17-



Attachment B

-18-

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

Prior to combustibles being brought to the site, the developer shall provide written
certification from the Water Purveyor, dated within the last thirty days, that:

a. All public fire hydrants required of the project have been installed, tested, and
approved by the Water Purveyor; and

b. Are permanently connected to the public water main system; and

c. Are capable of supplying the required fire flow as required by Heartland Fire &
Rescue.

Group R-3 and U Occupancies: An approved water supply capable of supplying the
required fire flow for fire protection shall be provided to all premises upon which
facilities, buildings, or portions of buildings are hereafter constructed or moved into or
within the jurisdiction. When any portion of the facility or building protected is in
excess of 400 feet (122 mm) from a water supply on a public street, as measured by
an approved route around the exterior of the facility or building, on-site fire hydrants
and mains capable of supplying the required flow shall be provided when required by
the Fire Code official. The size of fire hydrant outlets shall be a minimum of one 4
inch and one 2-%2 inch NST outlet or greater as required by the Fire Code official.

The subdivider/applicant shall conduct a Sacred Lands File search of the project
area to determine if there is likelihood for on-site Native American cultural resources.
A copy of a letter regarding the records search shall be provided to the Development
Services Department prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits. Additional
mitigation measures may be required as a result.

If cultural resources are discovered during site preparation and/or grading, then any
further work shall cease and programs and procedures shall be initiated as outlined
in CEQA guidelines 15064.5.

The geotechnical engineer shall monitor and inspect cuts into the soil. If cuts are
found to impact the Mission Valley Formation (currently not anticipated), then, in
order to mitigate any impacts that grading may cause to paleontological and
archaeological resources, the following conditions shall be complied with:

a. A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American
with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at the pre-grading meeting to
consult with the grading and excavation contractors. A qualified paleontologist is
defined as an individual with a Bachelor's or higher degree in paleontology or
geology experienced in pale ontological techniques and procedures.

b. A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American
with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at all times during the original
cutting of previously undisturbed sediments of the Mission Valley Formation.
These monitors shall inspect an excavation which exposes sediments of the
Mission Valley Formation. Said monitors shall salvage remains as they are
uncovered.

c. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall be allowed to temporarily direct, divert or halt
grading to allow recovery of fossil and artifact remains.

d. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall document the stratigraphic and geologic
context of salvaged fossil and artifact remains.



55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

Attachment B

e. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall clean, repair and sort salvaged fossils and
artifacts for eventual donation.

f.  Prior to final inspection, a report shall be prepared summarizing the results of the
mitigation program and submitted to the Development Services Director. This
report will include a discussion of methods employed, fossils and artifacts
recovered, geologic context of fossil and artifact remains and the significance of
the mitigation program.

g. Donate all curated fossil and artifact specimens to an institution with a proven
history of professional, long term care and storage of paleontological and
archaeological collections, such as the San Diego Natural History Museum.

One temporary on-site sign legible from the major vehicle travel lanes adjacent to the
project shall be posted on the property for the duration of all construction on-site. The
sign shall be a minimum of six feet high, six feet wide, and not to exceed 64 square
feet total for two sides or 32 square feet for one side. Such sign shall include the
permit numbers, property location and APN number, a site plan and description of
the project, project name, and the developer's name, address and telephone
number. Such sign shall be removed prior to grading permit final. Signs shall be
maintained in good condition at all times.

Private residential, public residential, commercial and industrial fire access roads
shall provide an access roadway with a minimum unobstructed width of 20-feet wide
and a minimum 13'6” vertical clearance. All fire apparatus access roadways must be
maintained unobstructed and drivable by fire apparatus throughout the construction
process. Access roadways shall be capable of holding an imposed load of 75,000
pounds including in adverse weather conditions.

Grades for driveway and fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 10 percent.
Fire Department approval and additional conditions are required for grades up to 20
percent maximum. Angle of approach and departure for driveways shall not exceed
five (5) percent.

Fire lane designations shall be required for all fire access roadways as determined
by Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs shall be required for all fire access
roadways as determined by Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs which state
“FIRE LANE, NO PARKING” shall be installed every 50 feet. Curbs shall be painted
red and stenciled with white letters indicating the same on the face and top of any
curb as directed by Heartland Fire & Rescue. All fire lanes shall be marked and
identified prior to Certificate of Occupancy. Fire lane maintenance must be
addressed in the CC&R’s for the project.

All required fire apparatus access roads, fire lanes, fire department turn-around and
entry/exit drives shall have a minimum 28-foot turning radius for fire apparatus
depending on size, location, and type of project. Site plans shall provide a fire
department turning radius template along the access roadway or within a detail
confirming that the radius meets Heartland Fire & Rescue requirements.

Fire apparatus access roads (all roads in the project) shall be paved, accessible and
fire hydrants shall be capable of flowing required GPM and shall be tested and
accepted by the Fire Department prior to dropping any lumber for construction.

-19-



Attachment B

-20-

61.

62.

Roadway design features (speed humps, bumps, speed control dips, etc.) which may
interfere or delay emergency apparatus responses shall not be installed or allowed to
remain on the emergency access roadways.

Any gate or barrier across a fire access roadway, whether manual or automatic, must
meet the Heartland Fire & Rescue requirements and have specific plans and permits
approved prior to installation. Knox brand key-operated electric key switch keyed to
Heartland Fire & Rescue specification are required. The Knox switch shall override
all gate functions and open the gate. Other access control systems such as Opticom,
siren, etc. shall be permitted with the approval of Heartland Fire & Rescue.

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT, THE SUBDIVIDER/APPLICANT
SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

1.

10.

All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated
March 17, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they are
shown and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City
Codes to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

Pay all outstanding fees prior to issuance of a building permit(s) for new dwelling
units authorized by this tentative map.

Per Ordinance 372 a Uniform Transportation Mitigation Fee for each unit must be
paid at the time of building permit issuance. The fee is subject to annual increase
and the actual fee will be calculated at the time of payment.

Pay appropriate school, parkland, diversion deposit, and other fees as applicable.

Submit for Development Services Director approval, a detailed landscape and
irrigation plan. Provide reference sheets for the grading and landscape erosion
control plans. The plan shall indicate all surface improvements including, but not
limited to, the design and locations of all walls, fences, driveways, walkways,
botanical and common names of all plant materials, number, size and location of all
plantings; all irrigation lines including valves and back-flow devices; and soil
amendments. Said landscape plan shall comply with the requirements of Section
17.24.050(B) and Chapter 18.44 of the Municipal Code. The landscape plan shall be
in substantial conformance to the approved landscape concept plan.

Water supply, access, and fire protection system requirements shall meet City of
Lemon Grove Fire Department standards.

An 18 foot wide by 19 foot clear space is required within all required two-car
garages. Driveways shall be a minimum of 18 feet wide by 19 feet deep.

Future development shall comply with all applicable California Building Codes.

The project shall comply with applicable provisions of the current California Building
and Fire Codes.

All new utility distribution facilities, including cable television lines, within the
boundaries of any new subdivision or within any half street abutting a new
subdivision shall be placed underground. The subdivider shall coordinate with the
necessary cable television operators for the installation of such facilities.
Transformers, terminal boxes, meter cabinets, pedestals, concealed ducts, and other
facilities necessarily appurtenant to such underground utilities and street lighting
systems may be placed above ground unless directed otherwise by the City



11.

12.

13.

14.

Attachment B

Engineer. All proposed structures on the subject property shall connect to the utility
system via underground system.

Submit a written statement signed by the civil engineer reporting that the site is
rough graded in conformance with the approved grading plan, as modified or
amended by any construction changes approved by the city engineer, and which
specifically states the items which were performed under his/her supervision, and are
shown correctly on the as-graded drawings.

Prior to issuance of building permits, incorporate best management practices
including site design, source control and treatment control, construction and on-going
maintenance identified in the SWQMP and Drainage Report into the Building Plans.

Provide the City with, upon completion of the grading, a compaction report from the
geotechnical firm and a letter from a licensed civil engineer that the grading and
elevations of the pad were done in accordance with the approved grading plans and
prior to the issuance of building plans.

Provide plans on Auto CAD (any release) for pre-fire planning use by the Fire
Department. Information shall include locations of all exits, stairwells, and roof
access. Also, gas, electrical, water, fire sprinkler, and standpipe valves and shutoffs,
and elevator and electrical equipment rooms, fire alarm panels, remote annunciators,
and RTU/HVAC detectors.

DURING GRADING ACTIVITY AND PRIOR TO GRADING PERMIT FINAL APPROVAL,
THE SUBDIVIDER/APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

1.

All physical elements of the project shown on the approved grading, improvement
and related plans shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be
constructed in accordance with appropriate Lemon Grove City Codes.

All trash, debris, and waste materials should be disposed of offsite, in accordance
with current local, state, and federal disposal regulations. Any materials containing
petroleum residues encountered during property improvements should be evaluated
prior to removal and disposal, following proper procedures. Any buried trash/debris
encountered should be evaluated by an experienced environmental consultant prior
to removal.

Soil sampling and analysis for the presence of organochlorine pesticides in soil shall
be performed.

Soil sampling and analysis for the presence of lead in soil shall be performed.

For any work within the public right-of-way, the subdivider shall secure an
encroachment permit to work within the City right-of-way and place a special deposit
with the City to ensure that any damage to the existing roadway or other public
improvements is repaired in a timely manner. The subdivider shall be responsible for
all unforeseen costs related to work performed in the right-of-way.

The development and preparation of the site shall conform to all recommendations of
the approved geotechnical reports submitted to the City.

The drainage structures, bioretention areas, underground storage pipes, and outlet
structures identified in the Standard Water Quality Management Plan (SWQMP) shall
be installed. Any modifications to the bioretention areas shall require modifications to
the SWQMP and review and approval by the City Engineer.

9.



Attachment B

22-

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Provide the City with a final drainage/hydrology report/letter indicating that the site
design is in accordance with the report and the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) permit.

The fire hydrant system shall be tested to ensure adequate fire flow. The required
fire hydrant flow shall be 1,000 GPM for a 2-hour duration at 20 PSI residual
operating pressure. Documentation is required from the Water Purveyor verifying
that the system is capable of meeting the required fire flow prior to building permit
issuance. If the system is not capable of meeting the required fire flow
documentation shall be provided showing financial arrangements have been made
and water system improvement plans have been submitted and approved by
Heartland Fire & Rescue and the Water Purveyor to upgrade the existing system
prior to release of building permits. The terms and conditions of the Tentative
Subdivision Map shall be binding upon the permittee and all persons, firms, and
corporations having an interest in the property subject to this Planned Development
Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of each of
them, including municipal corporations, public agencies, and districts. Fire hydrants
shall be painted per Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local Water Purveyor
standards and be maintained free of obstructions. Blue reflective raised pavement
markers shall be installed on the pavement at approved locations marking each fire
hydrant.

Public and private water utility mains must provide the level of reliability/redundancy
determined necessary by Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local Water Purveyor
Engineer.

The subdivider shall construct or shall cause to be constructed, at his/her own cost, a
street lighting system conforming to the City standards.

Street signs for private and public streets meeting the requirements of the City
Engineer standards shall be installed at all intersections prior to final occupancy
approval.

A street naming request application shall be completed for the proposed private
street. Appropriate signage shall be required to be installed.

The installation of gas, electric, sewer, and water lines and any other below surface
utilities is required to take place before the installation of any concrete curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, and surfacing of the streets (including repair or replacement). Sewer and
water lines shall not be laid in the same trench in any part of this subdivision.

Metallic identification tape shall be placed between the bottom layer of the finished
surface and the top of all irrigation lines in the public right-of-way.

The contractor/permittee conducting any earth moving operation shall be responsible
for controlling dust created by its grading operation or activities at all times.

Reporting for earthwork, asphalt, and concrete testing shall be required and
prepared in accordance with the latest version of the “Greenbook” Standard
Specifications for Public Works Construction. Reports shall be submitted to the City
for review and approval prior to the applicant’'s request for final inspection on the
grading or improvement permits. The reports shall be signed and stamped by a
California registered engineer.

All flammable vegetation shall be removed from each building site with slopes less
than 15% at a minimum distance of thirty (30) feet from all structures or to the



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24

Attachment B

property line, whichever is less to the satisfaction of the Deputy Fire Marshal and
Development Services Director.

A pad certification and compaction report shall be submitted to the City for review
and approval prior to the applicant’'s request for final inspection on the grading
permit.

Submit a certification letter stating that the grading was done per the approved plan
or an as-graded version of the grading plan (as-graded drawings) prepared, signed
and dated by the responsible civil engineer which shall include original and “as-
graded” ground surface elevations, pad elevations, slope ratios, and elevations and
locations of all surface and subsurface drainage facilities, location and scaled
sections of all buttress/stabilization and fills, subdrains and general location and
depth of all areas or removal of unusable soil.

Submit a final soils engineering report prepared by a soil engineer, including type of
field testing performed, compaction reports, final pad elevations, suitability of utility
trench and retaining wall backfill, the maximum allowable soil bearing pressure and
the required pavement structural sections, summaries of field laboratory tests and
other substantiating data, and comments on any changes made during grading and
their effect on the recommendations made in the preliminary soils engineering report.
Each field density test shall be identified, located on a plan or map, the elevation of
the test, and the test method of obtaining the in-place density described.

Final approval shall not be given until all work, including installation of all drainage
facilities and their protective devices, required irrigation system installed protective
devices, required planting, and all erosion control measures have been completed in
accordance with the final approved grading plan and the as-graded drawing, required
reports and statements of compliance consistent with section 18.08.030 and Chapter
18.44 of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code have been submitted.

The Developer and Current and Future Property Owners shall adhere to the
recommendations of the requirements of the Storm Water Quality Management Plan
(SWQMP) prepared for this project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program
Coordinator.

The exterior boundary of the subdivision and all lot corners shall be monumented
with permanent monuments in accordance with Section 16.12.250 to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer.

PRIOR TO BUILDING FINAL, THE SUBDIVIDER/APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH
THE FOLLOWING:

1.

All physical elements of the project, including public street improvements, shown on
the approved building, landscape, grading, improvement and related plans shall be
located substantially where they are shown and shall be constructed in accordance
with appropriate City Codes.

Permanent residential three-dimensional street numbers, minimum 4 inches in
height, shall be provided on the address side of the building at the highest point and
furthest projection of the structure. The address shall be visible form the street and
shall not be obstructed in any manner.

Comply with the new “solar ready” requirements in Title 24 (Section 110.10). This
includes reserved solar zones on the roof, conduit installation, 200 amp service, etc.

23-



Attachment B

F.

.24

4.

5.

Prior to Fire Department clearance for occupancy, an automatic fire sprinkler system
shall be installed. The system shall comply with NFPA #13-D Standard for Automatic
Fire Sprinkler Systems-Single Family Dwelling. Three (3) sets of plans, hydraulic
calculations, and material specifications sheets for all equipment used in the system
shall be submitted by a State of California Licensed C-16 Contractor for review,
approval, and permits issued prior to commencing work.

All dwelling units shall comply with the interior noise level requirements of California
Code Title 24.

The developer/owner shall be required to repair and/or replace any damaged public
improvements fronting the project and within 100 feet to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer.

PRIOR TO RECORDATION OF A FINAL MAP, THE SUBDIVIDER/APPLICANT SHALL
COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING:

1.

All physical elements of the project, excepting improvements for buildings, including
public street improvements, shown on the approved building, landscape, grading,
improvement and related plans shall have obtained final approval or appropriate
securities associated with such improvements shall be provided for in accordance
with appropriate City Codes.

The property owner shall execute an agreement imposing restrictions on real
property within the development in which the Owner agrees to reserve four (4)
parcels with dwelling units as provided in Tentative Map TM0-000-0061 in association
with Planned Development Permit PDP-150-0002 (hereafter called the “affordable
units”) in the Project exclusively for sale and/or occupancy by moderate-income
households whose annual income does not exceed 80 to 120 percent of the San
Diego area median income (AMI) as determined by the California Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD). The affordable units shall be
maintained for 45 years for owner-occupied dwelling units and 55 years for rentals.
The moderate income households occupying the affordable units shall expend no
more than 30 percent of the gross household income on all housing costs related to
their designated affordable unit as determined by the Development Services
Department. These covenants or restrictions shall be recorded in the office of the
County Recorder for each unit of real property subject to this subdivision in a form
acceptable to the City Attorney. Notwithstanding any other provision of the law, these
covenants or restrictions shall run with the land and shall be enforceable against the
original owner and successors in interest by the City or the community. The
affordable units shall be dispersed so that no two affordable units are directly
adjacent to one another. Certification of household income shall be established by
the Director.

Street right-of-way shall be dedicated to the City prior to recordation of the final map.
Specifically, the dedication shall include the 30-foot frontage along Mallard Street
and the 3-foot frontage on 69™ Street. The City will prepare the dedication
documents for signature.

Submit a copy of the Preliminary Title Report, Subdivision Guarantee and Tax
Clearance Certificate no more than 60 days in advance of the recordation of the
Final Map to the City Engineer for review,

The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with one reproducible Mylar copy of
the final map for recordation.



6.

10.

11.

12.

Attachment B

Each parcel shall be subject to inclusion into the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting
District which includes an annual assessment.

A formal written request to add street lights to the Lemon Grove Lighting District shall
be submitted to the City of Lemon Grove Lighting District prior to permanently
energizing. If required, a deposit for the initial operation costs expended by the
Lighting District for the subject property shall be submitted until the units are placed
on the Tax Assessor’s yearly statement.

Water improvement plans shall be approved by Heartland Fire & Rescue prior to
recordation. The developer shall furnish Heartland Fire & Rescue with three (3)
copies of the water improvement plans designed by a Registered Engineer and/or
Licensed Contractor. On-site fire service mains shall have a minimum of eight (8)
inch water mains with six (6) inch laterals and risers. Larger pipes may be required to
meet required fire flow requirements. Fire hydrants shall provide one 4-inch port and
2- 2 % ports and must be an approved fire hydrant type.

Backflow prevention devices for private building sewers shall be required pursuant to
Section 710.0 of the CBC (2000 UPC).

Pay $85 for the preparation and recordation of each document as required for the
subject permit.

The subdivider shall comply with Section 66436 of the Government Code by
furnishing to the City Engineer a certification from each public utility and each public
entity owning easements within the proposed subdivision stating that: a) they have
received from the developer a copy of the proposed final map; b) they object to/do
not object to the filing of the map without their signature. In addition, the subdivider
shall furnish proof to the satisfaction of the City Engineer that no new encumbrances
have been created that would subordinate the City's interest over areas to be
dedicated for public road purposes since submittal of the tentative map.

The protection of the public interest requires that the subdivider, contractors,
builders, lot or parcel owners, and other persons, firms, and corporations concerned
with the development of said subdivision conform to the following standards, and all
permits required by the City of Lemon Grove will be issued pursuant to such
standards:

a. All domestic water supplied for this subdivision shall come from Helix Water
District.

b. All buildings constructed for this subdivision shall be connected to the public
sewer system (proposed to connect to City of San Diego sewer system).
Appropriate sewer permits shall be obtained with payment of capacity and
related fees.

c. The project shall comply with applicable provisions of Title 15 (Buildings and
Construction.

d. Sewer and water lines shall not be laid in the same trench in any part of this
subdivision.

e. Proper drainage shall be maintained throughout this subdivision as to prevent
ponding and/or storage of surface water and shall be in compliance with the
NPDES permit to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Coordinator and the City
Engineer.

-25-



Attachment B

-06-

13. The final map shall show or provide for the following:

14.

a.

The design and area of all lots and the design of the final map shall be in
substantial conformance to that shown on the approved tentative map to the
satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

The final map shall indicate that this project is a planned development for twelve
(12) dwelling units.

The final map shall include the signature of the Development Services Director
prior to recording.

The final map shall identify any easements indicated within the Title Report,
proposed on the approved Tentative Map, and as required by the Lemon Grove
Fire Department or City Engineer.

The Final Map shall include all easements as shown on Tentative Subdivision
Map TMO0-000-0061 in association with Planned Development Permit PDP-150-
0002, including but not limited to private sewer, utility, drainage, and open space,
and public access and emergency access easements.

A note shall be placed on the final map indicating that domestic water supplied
for this project shall come from Helix Water District.

Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) shall be submitted to the City for
review and shall be written to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director
and the City Engineer. The CC&Rs shall include the conditions herein to the
satisfaction of the Fire Marshal, Water Quality Program Coordinator, City Engineer,
and Development Services Director and shall be recorded prior to or concurrent with
the final map and shall include but not be limited to the following:

a.

The Developer, Current and Future Property Owners shall adhere to the CC&Rs
approved for this project.

The formation of a home owner's association (HOA) with maintenance
responsibilities is required.

A Best Management Practices (BMP’s) and a Private Driveway and Drainage
Maintenance Agreement to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The
maintenance and the preservation of drainage and BMP facilities shall be
included.

The CC&Rs shall identify and implement the BMP’s identified in the SWQMP
prepared for this project and state that the Developer, Current and Future
Property Owners shall comply with the recommendations of the SWQMP
prepared for this project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program
Coordinator and the City Engineer. Funding of the long term maintenance of all
facilities required by the SWQMP shall be included in the annual HOA budget.

A long-term operation and maintenance program (OMP) will be a requirement
and the responsibility of HOA to maintain. Funding for the program is required to
be accounted for in the annual budget of the HOA.

The CC&Rs shall include on-going maintenance of landscaping and irrigation
(private and within public right-of-way fronting the property) of slopes, parkways,
open space and park areas as illustrated on approved landscape and irrigation
plans (Exhibit A). This Exhibit A shall be included in the CC&Rs. All landscaping
shall be well maintained in a healthy growing condition at all times in substantially



p.

Attachment B

the same condition as approved in accordance with the approved landscape and
irrigation plans. Sprinkler heads shall be adjusted so as to prevent overspray
upon the public sidewalk or the street. The proposed sprinkler heads shall be
installed behind the sidewalk, and the irrigation mainline upon private property
only, as required by the City. The HOA or, its successors or assigns, shall
remove and relocate all irrigation items from the public right-of-way at no cost to
the City, and within a reasonable time frame upon a written notification by the
City Engineer. An Encroachment, Maintenance, and Removal Agreement shall
be signed and recorded prior to recordation of the final map or building
permitting. The City will provide the template for the agreement.

Immediate removal of graffiti and any other type of offensive debris is required.

All garage doors shall be automatic roll-up type doors and equipped with remote
control devices.

All garages shall be available for required off-street parking (18 foot wide by 19
foot deep interior clear space) at all times.

No parking is permitted within the private street, pedestrian pathways, or
designated fire lane area at any time. Parking on-site is only permitted within
designated parking spaces and within the dwelling units’ garages.

Maintain the drainage facilities and any access easements (where they occur) on
the property.

All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light
downward, away from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises.

The property shall comply with all performance standards relating to the
generation of noise, glare, dust, and odor.

If any fire hydrant is taken “OUT OF SERVICE,” Heartland Fire & Rescue shall
be notified immediately and the hydrant marked, bagged, or otherwise identified
as “OUT OF SERVICE" as directed by the Fire Marshal.

Designated fire apparatus streets and turn-arounds shall be maintained
accessible and usable by emergency vehicles. Usable conditions include but are
not limited to the following:

i.  An all-weather road surface shall be maintained.
ii. Road shall support imposed loads of fire apparatus at 75,000 pounds.
ii.  No parking-fire lane signs shall be repaired or replaced as needed.

iv.  Fire lanes shall remain free at all times of any obstruction including but
not limited to: vehicles, storage, debris, etc.

V. Fire lane or hammerhead turn-around shall maintain an unobstructed
width of 20 feet and a minimum 13’ 6” vertical clearance.

Trees shall not grow within five feet of any proposed chimneys.

Safety features including fire sprinklers, ignition resistant construction, smoke
and carbon monoxide detectors and fire resistive landscaping shall be
maintained in accordance with California Fire Code, California Building Code,
California Vehicle Code (fire lanes), City Municipal Code and any other
applicable codes.

27-



Attachment B

8-

r. All trash and recycling receptacles are required to be within the individual
residences of the proposed planned development at all times, except that one
recycling container and one refuse container per dwelling unit is permitted
directly outside of the individual dwelling unit's garage within ten hours of the
trash pick-up times specified by EDCO waste and recycling company.

s. Rooftop mechanical equipment, including but not limited to heating, air
conditioning and ventilating equipment, shall be screened so that it may not be
seen from the level of adjacent streets and sidewalks.

t. The use of barbed wire or razor ribbon on any fences, gates, or walls is
prohibited.

u. Ongoing maintenance of the onsite private sewer is required.

v. The CC&Rs shall clearly establish the responsibilities of the individual home
owners and the HOA with regard to the continuing maintenance and preservation
of the project.

w. The CC&Rs shall specifically limit the number of dwelling units to twelve (12) on
the site.

X. The CC&Rs shall give the City the right but not the duty to enter the premises to
do maintenance and levy assessments if the home owners fail or refuse to
maintain said facilities, and shall forbid amendments to the CC&Rs without
express written consent of the City.

y. Common open space areas shall be well maintained at all times (e.g., bike racks,
barbeques, tables, landscape, signage, and public art features).

z. Street trees along the roadway shall not obstruct the ability of fire apparatus
access and fire department aerial operations. Tree height and type should be
considered in the ultimate landscape design.

The terms and conditions of the Tentative Subdivision Map shall be binding upon the
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property
subject to Planned Development Permit PDP-150-0002 and the heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal
corporations, public agencies, and districts.

This Tentative Subdivision Map approval expires on April 19, 2018 or such longer period
as may be extended by State Law or through time extensions approved by the
Development Services Director or City Council. A Final Map must be recorded within
two (2) years (excluding extensions granted by State Law) from the date of approval
unless time extension is granted.

The subdivider shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmiess, the City and any
agency thereof, and/or any of its officers, employees, and agents from any and all
claims, actions, or proceedings against the City, or any agency or instrumentality
thereof, or any of its officers, employees, or agents to attack, set aside, void, or annul,
an approval of the City, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, advisory agency,
appeal board, or legislative body, including actions approved by the voters of the City,
concerning the project. City shall promptly notify the applicant/subdivider of any claim,
action, or proceeding brought within this time period, and City shall further cooperate
fully



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO.:

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP-150-0002 AUTHORIZING THE DEVELOPMENT OF A
TWELVE UNIT SINGLE-FAMILY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PROJECT ON A 1.59-ACRE
UNDEVELOPED SITE AT 6800 MALLARD STREET, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA.

WHEREAS, the applicant, Lorraine Weiland of Infill Development Company, filed a
complete application for a Planned Development Permit Modification PDP-150-0002 in
association with and a Tentative Map TMO0-000-0061 on March 17, 2016 to authorize
development of a 12 unit single-family planned development in association with the subdivision
of 1.59 acres of land into 12 residential lots, a lot for a private street, and an open space lot on
an undeveloped site located at the 6800 Mallard Street, Lemon Grove, California; and

WHEREAS, a Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact (ND16-03) will be filed
subsequent to its adoption and the approval of the proposed project. The Initial Environmental
Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no significant effect on the
environment. A notice of intent to adopt a negative declaration was filed with the County Clerk
prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on April 19, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following Planned Development
Permit findings of fact, as required by Section 17.28.030(C), can be made as follows:

1. That the development is not detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, or general
welfare.

a. The City Council finds that the design of the proposed project complies, or will be
made to comply with all of the applicable requirements of the City Zoning Ordinance
relating to public safety and no such detriment should occur.

2. That the development complies with applicable provision of the Zoning Ordinance (Title
17) and/or deviations that comply with applicable provisions in subsection D of the
Planned Development Permit regulations (Section 17.28.030).

a. The City Council finds that the proposed project complies with, or conditions have
been included for this project to require it comply with the Zoning Ordinance
requirements relating to off-street parking, screening, and landscaping and waivers
or modifications to the minimum lot area, width, and depth, setbacks, and usable
open space requirements are offset by the provision of enhanced pedestrian oriented
design and a direct pedestrian connection to 69" Street, open space and
recreational/outdoor amenities, and the provision of four affordable housing units..

3. That the development is consistent with general plan policies and standards and other
applicable plans or policies adopted by the City Council.

a. The City Council finds that the planned development is consistent with the General
Plan policies and standards because the General Plan allows residential
development at the form and scale proposed; and

4. That the development density or intensity does not exceed general plan limitations.

-29-



Attachment C

a. The City Council finds that the planned development of 12 single-family dwelling
units at a density of 9.7 dwelling units per acre in the Low/Medium Density
Residential land use designation of the General Plan, including the requested density
bonus to allow four affordable dwelling units pursuant to California State law, is
consistent with the General Plan because it complies with density bonus regulations
and provides affordable housing pursuant to the goals of the City's Housing Element;
and

That the existing infrastructure such as utilities, transportation systems, and
communications networks adequately serve the development or will be upgraded to
efficiently accommodate the additional burdens imposed.

a. This Commission finds that public improvements proposed on Mallard Street allow
for safe circulation of pedestrian, bicyclists, and motor vehicles and improves the
general welfare of the community; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following deviations as permitted

by the Planned Development Permit regulations (Section 17.28.020D) are adequately offset by
equivalent benefits associated with enhanced pedestrian and bicycle improvements, landscape,
open space and recreational/outdoor amenities:

1.

A deviation of Section 17.16.020D3 (Minimum Yards) to allow reduced front setbacks
(minimum 25’ is required, 17’ to 20’ is proposed); the side setback (minimum 5’ is
required, 4' is proposed); and the rear setback (minimum 20’ is required, 17’ to 35’ is
proposed); and

A deviation of Section 17.16.020D1 (Minimum Site Area) to allow reduced lot size
(minimum 6,000 sq. ft. is required, minimum 2,715 sq. ft. is proposed); and

A deviation of 17.16.020D2 (Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced lot
dimensions (minimum 60’ wide by 90’ deep required, minimum 34’ wide by minimum 67
feet deep provided); and

A deviation of Section 17.16.020D5 (Minimum Usable Open Space) to allow reduced
open space (minimum 1,500 sq. ft. per dwelling unit or 18,000 common usable open
space required, 12,771 sq. ft. of common usable open space for the project or an
average of 1,064 sq. ft. per lot provided); and

A deviation of Section 16.16.291A (Residential Lot Design Standards) to allow the
reduction of the minimum building envelope (minimum 28’ wide by 50’ deep is required,
minimum 26’ wide by 37’ deep provided); and

Deviations of Section 16.12.220 related to all units fronting on a dedicated public street,
where instead a private street is provided with pedestrian paths on both sides as follows:

a. Minimum 56’ wide public street right-of-way required; 20’ and 36’ private street lot
width provided; and

b. Minimum & wide landscaped parkways required; 4’ wide landscaped parkways
provided:; and

c. Parking on both sides of street required; no parking on private street provided except
one parallel space; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered Tentative Map TM0-000-0061 associated

with Planned Development Permit PDP-150-0002; and

-30-



Attachment C

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby:

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Modifies the following Development Standards in accordance with Section
17.28.020D (Deviations):

1. A deviation of Section 17.16.020D3 (Minimum Yards) to allow reduced front setbacks
(minimum 25’ is required, 17’ to 20’ is proposed); the side setback (minimum 5' is
required, 4’ is proposed); and the rear setback (minimum 20’ is required, 17" to 35’ is
proposed); and

2. A deviation of Section 17.16.020D1 (Minimum Site Area) to allow reduced lot size
(minimum 6,000 sq. ft. is required, minimum 2,715 sq. ft. is proposed); and

3. A deviation of 17.16.020D2 (Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced lot
dimensions (minimum 60’ wide by 90’ deep required, minimum 34’ wide by minimum 67
feet deep provided); and

4. A deviation of Section 17.16.020D5 (Minimum Usable Open Space) to allow reduced
open space (minimum 1,500 sq. ft. per dwelling unit or 18,000 common usable open
space required, 12,771 sq. ft. of common usable open space for the project or an
average of 1,064 sq. ft. per lot provided); and

5. A deviation of Section 16.16.291A (Residential Lot Design Standards) to allow the
reduction of the minimum building envelope (minimum 28’ wide by 50’ deep is required,
minimum 26’ wide by 37’ deep provided); and

6. Deviations of Section 16.12.220 related to all units fronting on a dedicated public street,
where instead a private street is provided with pedestrian paths on both sides as follows:

a. Minimum 56’ wide public street right-of-way required; 20’ and 36’ private street lot
width provided; and

b. Minimum 5 wide landscaped parkways required; 4 wide landscaped parkways
provided; and

c. Parking on both sides of street required; no parking on private street provided except
one parallel space; and

SECTION 3. Conditionally Approves Planned Development Permit PDP-150-0002 in conjunction
with Tentative Map TMO0-000-0061 and the grading, site, landscape, and architectural plans
dated received March 17, 2016 (incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A), except as noted
herein. This approval authorizes the development of a 1.59 acre parcel into 12 single-family
residential units with associated common area improvements on an undeveloped site at 6800
Mallard Street, Lemon Grove, California. Except as amended, the approval of this project shall
be subject to the following conditions:

A. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION
AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP-150-0002:

1. All physical elements shown on the approved plans dated March 17, 2016 shall be
located substantially where they are shown, except as noted herein, and shall be
constructed in accordance with the Municipal Code. The Development Services Director
has the authority to allow modifications to the approved plans when the modifications are

-31-



Attachment C

232

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

found to be in substantial conformance (minor deviations in colors, roof and siding
material acceptable) and in compliance with the Municipal Code and General Plan.

Pay parkland fees, school fees, Helix Water District Capacity fees, Regional
Transportation Congestion Improvement Program (RTCIP) fees, and other applicable
development fees.

Record the Final Map for TMO0-000-0061 unless otherwise determined by the
Development Services Director.

A two-car garage is required for each single-family residence with appropriate access.

5. An 18 foot wide by 19 foot clear space is required within all required two-car garages.

All garage doors shall be equipped with an automatic roll-up garage door and remote
control.

Note a minimum of one ceiling-mounted bike rack shall be provided within each garage.
Show the location, height, and materials of all fencing.

Submit a landscape documentation package in compliance with Chapter 18.44. The
documentation package shall include a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the
entire project. Provide reference sheets for the grading and landscape erosion control
plans. The plan shall indicate all surface improvements inciuding but not limited to the
design and locations of all walls, fences, driveways, walkways, botanical and common
names of all plant materials, number, size and location of all plantings; all irrigation lines
including valves and back-flow devices; and soil amendments. Said landscape plan
shall comply with the requirements of Section 17.24.050(B) and Chapter 18.44 of the
Municipal Code. The landscape plan shall be in substantial conformance to the
approved landscape concept plan.

The building plans for the proposed condominium units shall include a color and
materials board to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. A minimum of
four color schemes shall be provided for proposed wood siding, lower roofs, and
composite shingle roofing; three schemes shall be provided for stone columns; and two
color schemes shall be provided for garage doors and wood trims.

All dwelling units shall comply with the interior noise level requirements of California
Code Title 24.

All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away
from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises.

Vehicular sight distance of all driveway entrances shall be to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer.

Each dwelling unit in the development shall be protected with an approved automatic fire
suppression sprinkler system to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal.

The private driveway is to be designated as a Fire Lane. Fire lanes (20-foot clear with
no parking) and fire lane markings shall be provided to the satisfaction of the Lemon
Grove Fire Department along the private vehicular driveway within the project. The fire
lane will be designated per City Fire Department standards and shall be marked and
posted “No Parking-Fire Lane” and the curb shall be painted red to the satisfaction of the
City of Lemon Grove Fire District. A final inspection by the Fire Department shall be
required to confirm compliance with this requirement prior to the construction with
combustible materials and final occupancy.



16.

17.

18.

Attachment C

All access roadways and driveways shall maintain a minimum vertical clearance of 13'-
6" to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal.

Install only high efficiency appliances, use only high-efficiency watering technologies,
and landscape using low-water-use plants as follows:

a. Install the following indoor fixtures:
i. High-efficiency toilets (1.28 gallons or less per flush);
i. High-efficiency dishwashers (Energy Star, WaterSense or equivalent);
ii. High-efficiency clothes washers (3.7 water factor or lower); and
iv. Low-flow shower heads (2.0 gallons per minute or less).

b. Install dedicated meters for common area outdoor water use. Enroll all new irrigation
meters (except those at single-family residences) in the Helix Water Budget Program
and provide documentation of irrigated landscape area at the time of meter
purchase.

c. Install automatic irrigation controllers with a rain sensor that utilize either
evapotranspiration (weather-based) or soil moisture data and install high-efficiency,
matched-precipitation rate sprinkler nozzles at all residential landscapes and
common areas.

The project shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Fire Code and the
California Building Code.

PRIOR TO FINAL APPROVAL OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION
AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT MODIFICATION PDP-150-
0002:

. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated March

17, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they are shown
and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City Codes to the
satisfaction of the Development Services Director.

The color palette shall be consistent with the conceptual drawing on the approved plans
dated March 17, 2016 and the color and materials board to the satisfaction of the
Development Services Director.

A minimum of one ceiling-mounted bike rack shall be provided within each garage.

Schedule a Helix Water District inspection for compliance with water efficiency
requirements.

E-fle FAA Form 7460-2 to the Federal Aviation Administration, Notice of Actual
Construction or Alteration within five days after the construction reaches its greatest
height.

UPON ESTABLISHMENT OF USE IN RELIANCE WITH TENTATIVE MAP REVISION:

Comply with all of the Conditions of this resolution and the requirements of TM0-000-
0061, as applicable.

All physical elements of the project shown on the approved grading, improvement,
building, landscape, and related plans shall be maintained and located substantially
where they are in accordance with appropriate City Codes.

-33-



Attachment C

10.

Iy
Iy

-34-

The City approved CC&Rs shall be abided by at all times.

All landscaping shall be well maintained and adequately watered at all times. The
landscaping located on the subject property shall be maintained in a healthy and
growing condition at all times. All on-site & off-site landscaped areas shall be planted
and irrigated by a permanent irrigation system.

The proposed facility shall fully comply with the requirements of the California Fire Code
to the satisfaction of the Fire Chief.

All fences and walls on the subject property shall be maintained in good condition at all
times.

All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away
from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises.

All graffiti shall be removed or painted over with a paint that closely matches the color of
the exterior of the building within 48 hours of the discovery of the graffiti.

Any deviations proposed from the approved plans relating to the construction of facilities
and maintenance of improvements shall substantially conform to the approved plans
dated March 17, 2016 to the satisfaction of the Development Services Department.

This approval of this Planned Development Permit will expire two years from the date of
approval or such longer period as may be extended by State Law (the Planned
Development Permit will be extended automatically with any extensions required of
Tentative Map TM0-000-0061 in accordance with State Law).

The terms and conditions of the Planned Development Permit shall be binding upon the
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property
subject to this Planned Development Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal corporations, public
agencies, and districts. |



Attachment D

ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM
CITY OF LEMON GROVE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. ND16-03

10.

Project Title: Tentative Subdivision Map (TM0-000-0061), Planned Development Permit (PDP-150-
0002)

Lead Agency Name and Address: City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Contact Person and Phone Number: David De Vries, Development Services Director
(619) 825-3812

Project Location: 6800 Mallard Street, Lemon Grove, CA 91945
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 479-402-23-00

Project Sponsor's Name and Address: Lorraine Weiland, Infill Development Company, 771
Jamacha Rd., # 516, El Cajon, CA 92019 Phone: (619) 334-5200

General Plan Designation: The subject property is designated as Low/Medium Density Residential
(4.1 to 7 dwelling units per acre) on the Land Use Element of the General Plan.

Zoning: The subject property is located in the Residential Low/Medium (RL/M) zone.

Description of the Project: The proposed project is a request for a Tentative Subdivision Map and
a Planned Development Permit to authorize a 14-lot subdivision on a 1.59 acre parcel, including 12
residential lots, one private street lot and one common area lot, and a Planned Development Permit
with a total of 12 single-family dwelling units (four restricted to moderate-income households),
including common open space, pedestrian paths, all-ages play equipment, lighting, landscaping, and
other improvements. The project site is a vacant lot located at 6800 Mallard Street, Lemon Grove,
CA.

Surrounding Land Uses and Setting: The subject vacant parcel is located on the north side of
Mallard Street directly across from the intersection of Springfield Street and Mallard Street
approximately 140 feet west of 69" Street. To the north, south, east and west are single-family
residential land uses.

Other public agencies whose approval is required (e.g. permits, financing approval, or
participation agreement): None known.

.35.




Attachment D

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED:

The environmental factors highlighted below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at leas.
one impact that is a “Potentially Significant Impact” as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

Aesthetics

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Population/Housing

Agricultural Resources

Hazards & Hazardous
Materials

Public Services

Air Quality

Hydrology/Water Quality

Recreation

Biological Resources

Land Use/Planning

Transportation/Traffic

Cultural Resources

Mineral Resources

Utilities/Service Systems

Geology/Soils

Noise

Mandatory Findings of
Significance

DETERMINATION: (To be completed by the Lead Agency)

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

X | find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a

NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

| find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will
not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreec
to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

| find that the proposed project MAY have a "potential significant impact” or “ potentially significant
unless mitigated” impact on the environment, but a least one effect (1) has been adequately
analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and (2) has been addressed
by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to
be addresses.

| find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because
all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed in and earlier EIR or NEGATIVE
DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards and (b) have been avoided or mitigated to that
earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are
imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required.

David De Vries, Development Services Director

City of Lemon Grove

Printed Name

March 24, 2016

-36-

For



Attachment D

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

1.

A brief explanation is required for all answers except “No Impact” answers that are adequately
supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each
question. A “No Impact” answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show
that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g. the project falls outside a
fault rupture zone). A “No Impact’ answer should be explained where it is based on the project-
specific factors as well as general standards (e.g. the project will not expose sensitive receptors to
pollutants, based on a project.

All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site,
cumulative as well as project level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational
impacts.

Once the lead agency has determined that a particularly physical impact may occur, then the
checklist answers must indicated whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant
with mitigation, or less than significant. “Potentially Significant Impact” is appropriate if there is
substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more “Potentially
Significant Impact” entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required.

“Negative Declaration: Potentially Significant Unless Mitigation Incorporated” applies where the
incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from “Potentially Significant impact” to a
“Less Significant Impact’. The lead agency musty describe the mitigation measures, and briefly
explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level (mitigation measures from Section
17, “Earlier Analysis”, may be cross-referenced).

Earlier analysis may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR or other CEQA process,
and effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. Section 15063
(c) (3) (d). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following:

a) Earlier Analysis used. Identify and state where they are available for review.

b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were
within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to
applicable legal standards, and state whether such effect were addressed by mitigation
measures based on the earlier analysis.

c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are “Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures
Incorporated” describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined
from the earlier document and extent to which they address site-specific conditions
for the project.

Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for
potential impacts (e.g. general plans, zoning ordinances, etc.). Reference to a previously prepared
or outside document should where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the
statement is substantiated.

Supporting Information Sources: a source list should be attached and other sources use d or
individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion.

This is only a suggested form and lead agencies are free to use different formats: however, lead

agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that relevant to the project’s
environmental effects in whatever format is selected.

-37-



Attachment D

9. The analysis of each issue should identify: (a) the significance criteria or threshold used to evaluate
each question; and (b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less tha’
significance.

ISSUES AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1. AESTHETICS. Would the Project:
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?
b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to trees, rock outcroppings, and

historic buildings within a state scenic?
) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings?
Create a new source of substantial light or glare, which would adversely affect day or nighttime
views in the area?

[oRN¢)
—

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X _Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The subject property is not located in or near a scenic vista or scenic highway. The site is currently vacant.
Eleven mature trees exist onsite that are proposed to be removed. Forty-nine new trees are proposed to be
planted. The project is proposed to be built at a height permitted by the General Plan and the development
standards of the Zoning Ordinance. The project proposes 12 single-family residences, which, since the site
is currently vacant, will change the look of the property. Night time lighting of new residences may occur as
a result of this project. Glare onto adjacent public-rights-of-ways is required to be reduced to a level of nc
impacts. Aesthetic impacts are expected to be less than significant.

Source: 1, 2,10

2, AGRICULTURE RESOURCES: In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are
significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land
Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Department of
Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. Would
the project:

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as
shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the
California Resources Agency to non-agricultural use?

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?

c) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result
in conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use?

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact
X __No Impact
Discussion:

The project is located within a developed suburban residential area. The property is not located in an area
used for agricultural purposes and no such impacts will occur.
Source: 1, 2

-38-



Attachment D

3. AIR QUALITY: Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality
management or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations.
Would the project:

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality
violation?

C) Results in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project
region is non-attainment under any applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard (including
releasing emissions, which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors?

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X __Less Than Significant Impact
No Impact
Discussion:

The project may result in a very slight increase in traffic and no significant impact on air resources is likely to
occur. While the proposed project may resuit in a slight increase in vehicular traffic and a slight increase in
air quality impacts to the region, the MEIR for the City of Lemon Grove's General Plan anticipates air quality
impacts associated with the build out of Lemon Grove but not to a level of significance. The cumulative air
quality impacts will remain significant and unmitigated. However, this project is not considered to result in a
cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant. Potential temporary impacts could occur
due to grading, building construction, and paving. Standard conditions of project approval consistent with
the San Diego Air Pollution Control District's Rule 55 will require the control of fugitive dust during site
grading and construction.

Source: 1, 2

>

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

) Have a substantial adverse effect either directly or through habitat modifications on any species
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or
regulations, or by the California Department of fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife service?

) Have a substantially adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community

identified in local or regional plan, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish and

Game or U.S. Wildlife service?

)

O

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the
Clean Water Act (including but not limited to march vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal,
filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any resident, migratory wildlife species or with
established native resident migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery
sites?

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree
preservation policy or ordinance?

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Conservation
Community Plan and other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?
Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X __ No Impact

-39.



Attachment D

Discussion:

The subject property is currently vacant and located in a developed suburban area consisting of single
family residential land uses. The MEIR for the City of Lemon Grove’s General Plan confirms there are no
known sensitive biological resources, riparian habitat or wetlands on the subject property.

Source: 1, 2

5. CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in Section
15064.57

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to
Section 15064.57

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X ___Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The subject property is currently vacant. There are no known cultural resources located on the property.
There are no known human remains or those interred outside of formal cemeteries on the subject property
or in the surrounding area. The site is underlain by the San Diego formation which has a very high potential
to contain paleontological resources. This formation typically contains important marine mammal and
invertebrate fossils. Grading will occur on-site, but will not impact the San Diego Formation.

A standard condition of approval will require the project proponent to conduct a cultural resources records
search and a Sacred Lands File search of the project area to determine if there is likelihood for on-site
Native American cultural resources. A copy of a letter regarding the records search shall be provided to the
Development Services Department prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits. The report shall
provide recommendations for further analysis and those recommendations shall be implemented as a part
of the mitigation measures. Potential impacts to cultural resources will be less than significant.

Source: 1,2,5

o

GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project:

Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury

or death involving: (i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent

Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area based on the

other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special

Publication 42. (ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? (i) Seismic-related ground failure, including

liquefaction? (iv) Landslides?

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of
the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence,
liquefaction or collapse?

d) Locate on the expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-I-b of the Uniform Building Code (1997),
creating substantial risks to life or property?

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water

disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water?

Q
~—

-40-



Attachment D

__Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X _Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The subject property is currently vacant. Site development will consist of removal and compaction of the
upper three feet of the soil in the area of proposed construction. The proposed structures will be required to
comply with the current seismic requirements of the California Building Code. Like most urban areas in
Southern California, Lemon Grove is subject to earthquakes. The project site is not located in an
Earthquake Fault Zone according to the Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act and no active faults or
ground ruptures have been mapped underlying the site or within the City of Lemon Grove. Active regional
faults may cause ground shaking in Lemon Grove. Liquefaction is considered unlikely at this site.
Landslide and earth movement is not a likely hazard to the site. There are no known unstable soils in the
area of the subject property. Typical erosion control measures will be required during site grading. No
significant geotechnical or geologic constraints exist. New structures on the subject property will be
required to comply with the current seismic requirements of the California Building Code (CBC). The subject
property will be connected to the Lemon Grove municipal sewer system. Compliance with the CBC and the
City’s building permit process and inspection would result in less than significant impacts.

Source: 1,2,5

7. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project:

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact
on the environment?

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the

emissions of greenhouse gases?

Potentially Significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The City of Lemon Grove is located within the San Diego County Air Basin. The six greenhouse gases are
carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulfur hexafluoride. The
project will not generate significant GHG emissions. During grading and project construction, a temporary
increase in operational emissions may occur. Operational emissions include mobile source emissions and
building emissions. The San Diego Air Pollution Control District Rule 55 requires compliance with standard
fugitive dust control best management practices. The impact is expected to be less than significant.
Source: 1, 2,3

8. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project:

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use or
disposal of hazardous materials?

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset

and accident conditions involving the likely release of hazardous materials into the environment?
) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or
waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

O

41-



Attachment D

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous material sites complied pursuant to
Government Code Section 65962.5 and , as a result would it create a significant hazard to the publi
or the environment?

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan, or where such a plan has not been adopted,
within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard for
people residing or working in the area?

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip would the project result in a safety hazard for
people resident or working in the project area?

Q) Impair implementation of, or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or
emergency evacuation plan?

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires,
including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas, or where residences are intermixed with
wildlands?

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact
X __No Impact
Discussion:

The site is to be developed as a residential project and will not create a hazardous environment through the
use or transport of hazardous materials. There are no known hazardous material sites within the city.

The site is not located within an airport land use plan or within two miles of a public airport or public use
airport and no such detriment should occur.

The proposed project will not impair implementation of or physically interfere with any emergency response
plan or evacuation plan because the project design and access has been reviewed and approved by the
Fire Department.

The project is located within an urbanized area and there are no wildlands located within the vicinity of the
subject property. There will be no impact regarding hazards and hazardous materials.
Source: 1, 2

9. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the project:

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements?

b) Substantially degrade groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge
such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the groundwater table level
((e.g. the production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to a level which would not support
existing land uses or planned uses for which permits have been granted)?

C) Substantially alter existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the
course of a stream or river, in a manner which would resulting a substantial erosion or siltation on- or
off-site?

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of

the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate of surface runoff in a manner which
would resulting flooding on- or off-site.

e) Create or contribute runoff which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater
drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff?
f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?



Attachment D

g) Place housing within a 100-year floodplain on a Federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance
\ Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which would impede or redirect flood flows?

i) Expose people or structures to significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, including

flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?
Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?

[—
~—

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X __Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The proposed project consists of 12 single-family units served by a private street accessing Mallard Street.
The private street is proposed to utilize rolled curb and gutter. The site runoff will be collected within the
private street and conveyed to bioretention areas along the easterly property line. The design of the project
has been reviewed by the City of Lemon Grove Engineering Department in order to assess the need for
drainage improvements which have been included into the design of the project. According to the Drainage
Study prepared for the project, there are no major diversions of drainage that will create nuisances
downstream. The project will detain the proposed runoff so that the amount leaving the site will be equal to
or less than the amount leaving the site in the Existing Condition. This will be accomplished by the proposed
bioretention areas on the east side of the project site. The bioretention areas will also allow the runoff time
to infiltrate into the soil stratum, providing an opportunity for cleansing of pollutants. The bioretention areas
have been sized to accommodate the amount of proposed impervious surface attributed to them.

The subject property is not located within a flood zone and is not subject to flooding. Hydrology and water

quality impacts would be less than significant.
Source:1,2,4,5,6,7

10. LAND USE PLANNING. Would the project:

a) Physically divide an established community?

b) Conflict with an applicable land use plan, policy or regulation of agency with jurisdiction over the
project (including, but not limited to the general plan, specific plan, local coastal program, or zoning
ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating environmental effect?

Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural communities’ conservation plan?

O
~—

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X _No Impact

Discussion:

The project will not divide the community. The General Plan Land Use designation for this site is Residential
Low/Medium (RL/M), which allows up to seven dwelling units per net acre (du/ac). The gross area of the
site is 1.59 acres. After required dedications and subtracting the area of the private street, the net area
would be 1.24 acres. Based on the allowable density of up to seven du/ac for the RL/M designation, a
maximum of 8.68 units would be allowed. With the density bonus, a maximum of 12 units would be allowed.
The project proposes a density bonus to allow the construction of four dwelling units that are restricted to
moderate income households, which is consistent with the General Plan. There would be no land use
jplanning impacts.

Source: 1,2

43-



Attachment D

11. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project:
a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region anr
the residents of the state?

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a
local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X _No Impact

Discussion:
There are no known mineral resources of value located within the City of Lemon Grove. There will be no
impact to mineral resources.

Source: 1,2, 5

12. NOISE. Would the project:

a) Expose persons to or generate noise levels in excess of standards established in the local general
plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

b) Expose persons to or generate excessive ground borne vibration or ground borne noise levels?

) Result in a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels
existing without the project?

d) Result in a substantially temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity
above levels existing without the project?

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or where such a plan has not been adopted
within two miles of a public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the
area to excessive noise levels?

f) For a project within vicinity of a private airstrip would the project expose people residing or working
in the project area to excessive noise levels?

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X __Less Than Significant Impact
No Impact
Discussion:

The proposed project is single-family residential in nature and will not introduce significant noise sources in
the vicinity that are inconsistent with the existing residential development of the area. The MEIR prepared
for the 1996 General Plan indicates that the subject property is located within an area encompassing 60 dB
CNEL noise levels or less. The MEIR states that projects with existing noise levels below 60 dB CNEL is
normally acceptable or satisfactory for the area and no conditions are required. The General Plan requires
noise studies only for projects exceeding 60 dB CNEL. This project proposes to maintain interior noise
levels at 45 dB CNEL or less as required by Title 24 of the California Building Code and the Lemon Grove
General Plan. The project is expected to generate temporary construction noise during site preparation and
grading, building construction, and paving. Conformance with the City’s Noise Abatement and Control
ordinance (Chapter 9.24 of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code) is required for operation of any single or
combination of powered construction equipment at any construction site. The subject property is not located
within the vicinity of a private airstrip or public airport. The noise impact would be less than significant.
Source: 1, 2

-44-



Attachment D

A3, POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the project:

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new
homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other
infrastructure)?

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing units, necessitating the construction of
replacement housing units elsewhere?

C) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement housing
elsewhere?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X _Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The project will not induce substantial population growth because the project is consistent with the Land use
Plan of the Community Development Element of the Lemon Grove General Plan and has been evaluated
under the MEIR for the General Plan. Four of the proposed units will be restricted to moderate-income
households, which assists the City in meeting its State-mandated affordable housing goals. The site is
currently vacant; therefore, the project does not displace existing housing units or numbers of people. The
impact to population and housing would be less than significant.

Source: 1, 2

=

4. PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated
with the provision of new or physically altered government facilities, need for new or physically
altered government facilities, the construction which could cause significant environmental impacts,
in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for
any of the public services:

a) Fire protection?
b) Police protection?
c) Schools?
d) Parks?
e) Other public facilities?
Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X _Less Than Significant Impact
No Impact
Discussion:

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in the demand for public services and facilities.
The Fire Department, EDCO disposal service, Helix Water District, the Lemon Grove Sanitation District and
the Sheriff's Department have reviewed the proposed project and determined that existing services are
adequate to serve the increase in households proposed by the project. The impact to public services would
be less than significant.

Source: 1, 2

-45-



Attachment D

15. RECREATION. Would the project:

a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood or regional parks or other recreatione’
facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?
b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of

recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X_Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The proposed project will not likely cause a significant increase in the demand on recreational services in
the community. Standard conditions of approval require the developer to pay a Parkland dedication in lieu
fee for each proposed dwelling unit. The project includes a 15,254 square foot biofiltration area along the
east side of the site that will be incorporated into common area for the residents with a decomposed granite
walking path, an all-ages play structure, site furnishings, lighting, and numerous gathering spaces. The
impact to recreation would be less than significant.

Source: 1, 2,10

16. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC. Would the project:

) Cause an increase in the traffic which is substantial in relation to the existing traffic load and

capacity of the street system (i.e., resulting a substantial increase in either the number of vehicle

trips, the volume to capacity ratio on roads, or congestion at intersections? ‘

Exceed, either individually or cumulatively, a level of service standard established by the County

Congestion Management Agency for designated roads or highways?

) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a change ir.
location that result in substantial safety risks?

) Substantially increase hazards to a design feature (e.g. sharp curves or dangerous intersection) or
incompatible uses (e.g. farm equipment)?

) Result in inadequate emergency access?
Result in inadequate parking capacity?

) Conflict with adopted policies or programs supporting alternative transportation (e.g. bus turnouts,
bicycle racks)?

Q

Q O
N

o

«a =>o

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:

The project is located on the north side of Mallard Street in the City of Lemon Grove. It should be noted that
Mallard Street and 69" Street south of Mallard Street are located in the Community of Encanto in the City of
San Diego. The project includes a private street which will provide access to the residential lots. The private
street is designed with rolled curb and gutter, four-foot wide sidewalks, four-foot planted parkways, and
enhanced lighting on each side. The project will generate approximately 120 average daily trips (ADT)
based on a trip generation rate of 10 ADT for a single-family residence, or 120 trips for 12 single-family
residences. Based on the San Diego Traffic Engineers’ Council (SANTEC) and the Institute of
Transportation Engineers (ITE) document SANTEC/ITE Guidelines for Traffic Impact Studies in the San
Diego Region, a Traffic Impact Study is not required because the project’s trip generation is calculated to be
less than 1,000 ADT and less than 100 peak hour trips. The project does not increase the volume-to-

-46-



Attachment D

capacity ratio by more than 0.02 per the significance threshold of both the jurisdictions and therefore would
not have an impact on adjacent roadway segments. The 69™ Street/Mallard Street intersection is projected
to operate at Level of Service (LOS) C or better with and without project conditions; therefore, the proposed
project would not have an impact under future conditions.

The Fire Department and Engineering Department have determined that the private road is adequate to
provide access for the proposed project and emergency vehicles. The proposed project meets the City’s
parking requirements and provides required bike racks. There are no hazardous street design features
proposed. A sight distance analysis was provided and indicates there are no potential sight distance issues
that will result from project improvements. The project will be responsible for frontage improvements along
Mallard Street, including a 30-foot street dedication along the length of the property on Mallard Street, and
construction of curb, gutter, and sidewalk along the south property line. The subject property is not located
within the vicinity of a private airstrip or public airport. Transportation and traffic impacts would be less than
significant.

Source: 1,2,8,9,10

17. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project:
a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board?
b) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of

existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?
) Require or result in the construction of new storm drainage facilities or expansion of existing
facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?

O

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and
resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed?
e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment facilities which services or may serve the
, project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in addition to the
provider’s existing commitments?
f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project’s solid waste
disposal needs?
g) Comply with the federal, state, and local statues and regulations related to solid waste?
Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X _Less Than Significant Impact
No Impact
Discussion:

Best Management Practices (BMPs) will be implemented towards overall water quality. According to the
Drainage Study prepared for the project, there are no major diversions of drainage that will create
nuisances downstream. The project will detain the proposed runoff so that the amount leaving the site will
be equal to or less than the amount leaving the site in the Existing Condition. This will be accomplished by
the proposed bioretention areas on the east side of the project site. The bioretention areas will also allow
the runoff time to infiltrate into the soil stratum, providing an opportunity for cleansing of pollutants. The
bioretention areas have been sized to accommodate the amount of proposed impervious surface attributed
to them.

The subject property is served by the City of Lemon Grove Sanitation District. The proposed project will not
result in a substantial increase in the demand for sanitary services. Standard conditions of project approval
will require that the project obtain sewer permits, pay sewer service and connection fees and connect to the
Sanitation District.

-47-



Attachment D

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in demand for domestic water supplies.
Standard conditions of project approval will require that the project obtain water service permits, pay th-
water service and connection fees and connect to the Helix Water District.

The proposed project will not result in a substantial increase in the generation of solid waste. The project
will be required to comply with all federal, State and local statutes and regulations regarding solid waste.
Source: 1, 2,6,7,10

18. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE.

a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce
the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-
sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict
the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate important examples of the major
periods of California history or prehistory?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X _No Impact

Discussion:

The proposed project will not degrade the quality of the environment because it is located in an area that is
built out with single-family residential land uses in a developed suburban community. The development of
the site does not support or influence critical habitat or sensitive vegetation or wildlife and there are no
examples of California history or prehistory onsite.

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable'.
(Cumulatively Considerable” means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when
viewed in connection with the effects of the past projects, the effects of other current projects, and
the effects of probable future projects)?

Potentially significant Impact

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
X _Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion:
The project will result in a slight increase in the number of residents located within a suburban community
and will not have impacts that are cumulatively considerable.

)

) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human
beings, either directly or indirectly?

Potentially significant Impact

. Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X_No Impact

Discussion:
The proposed project will not cause a substantial adverse effect on human beings.
Source: 1,2, 3,4,5,6,7,8,10



Attachment D

In view of the above analysis, it is determined that the project will not have a significant impact on
the environment and an environmental impact report is not required.

EARLIER ANALYSIS

Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, one or more
effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. Section 15063 (c)(3)(D).

Earlier Documents prepared and utilized in this analysis are listed below. All of the documents are available
at the City of Lemon Grove, Development Services Department, 3232 Main Street, Lemon Grove.

Reference # Document Title

1, City of Lemon Grove General Plan

2 Master Environmental Impact Report for the Lemon Grove General Plan

3. City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code

4, Firm Insurance Rate Map Community Panel No. 06073C1910G May 16, 2012

5 Geotechnical Investigation, TM0061/PDP150-002, by Applied Consultants
(11/18/2015)

6. Drainage Study, TM0061/PDP150-002, by Polaris Development Consultants
(1/26/2016)

7. Storm Water Management Plan, TM0061/PDP150-002, by Polaris Development
Consultants (1/26/2016)

8. Traffic Study for Mallard Court, prepared by Darnell & Associates (3/11/2008)

9. Brief Guide of Vehicular Traffic Generation Rates for the San Diego Region,
SANDAG (April 2002)

10. TMO0-000-0061/PDP-150-0002 application package

Individuals and Organizations Consulted

David De Vries, Development Services Director, City of Lemon Grove
Jeremiah Harrington, Assistant Engineer, City of Lemon Grove

Chris Jensen, Fire Marshal, Heartland Fire and Rescue

Kurt Culver, President and CEO, Esgil

Patricia Bluman, City Place Planning




VICINITY MAP AND AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

Attachment E

Legend

m G800 Mallard 51

[ [ Fare

o

Is

6800 Mallard St

il

il

0 3060 120 180

-51-




Attachment F

LETTER FROM THE APPLICANT

September 17,2015

David De Vries

City of Lemon Grove

Community Development Department
3232 Main Streed

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

RE: Matiard Court Project - Development Submittal

Dear David,

We arc pleased to present to you this ‘Development Submittal’ for the Mallard Court Project in
the City of Lemon Grove. The prolject will ultimately consist of 12 affordable single family
homes for first time/entey level homebuyers.

-

Indill Development Company has been developing small, atfordable infill projects throwgbout the
San Diego County for over 23 years. 1o doing this, we lave been very suc ful ani
siie @ leader in infill development with a special einiphasis on entry fevel honsing. Our
is based on a strong Toundation of partnering with cities, investors, gon-pr fits, and) Tand
s, offeving superior srehitectural design, otilizing top noteh comslevction practices, and
servicing our homeowners with excellunt customer service.

tnonr Company Mission Stalement, Tnfill Development Company is committed (o providing
homes of the Tighest quality while always striving for improvement. We also know that our
actions are our opporunity 1o express our abilities and our intentions. In striving for these

i yeets are always planned. designed, constructed, and serviced with the utmost

gualities, our pi !
ot for the mer and the community.

Therefore, in order to improve on our projects and w enlunee, ridel, strengthen, and beantily the
comminily, we are providing you with this package for your review to see how we addressed the
gite desigy, We went throu sh numerous design sehiemes (o arrive at a design that worked best for
{he site as well as for the conmmunity, the swrroumding neighborhood , and tE

v Futtre residents.

As a result, you can see that a project such as this can achieve greal housing opportunities for the
community.” Infill Development will again speud a considerable amount of tme and energy on
the smallest details in order 1o pravide the City of Lemon Grove and its residents with a superior
entry level infill project that everyone can bencfit from.

If you have any questions or need more information please call and we look forward to working
with you on this project.

Sincerely .y

Infill evélopmeyt Company
e Vi i
Vi A

/ P

David L Weiland

771 Jamacha Road #516 E| Cajon, CA 92019
p.619.334.5200 f.619.334.5800
e.infilldevelopment®yahoo.com

-53.



Attachment G

EXHIBIT “A” — PROJECT PLANS

-55.



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 4
Mtg. Date _April 19, 2016
Dept. Development Services Department

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider an Appeal AA1-600-0001 of the Development
Services Director Determination Regarding the Denial of a Home Occupation
Permit Application for General Gunsmithing. -

Staff Contact: Dave DeVries, Development Services Director
Miranda Evans, Assistant Planner

Recommendation:

1. Conduct the public hearing; and

2. Either adopt a Resolution (Attachment B) upholding the Development Services Director
determination to deny the home occupation permit or adopt a Resolution (Attachment C)
reversing the decision of the Development Services Director conditionally approving the
home occupation permit for general gunsmithing ;

Item Summary:

On February 16, 2016, Mr. James Woods applied for a home occupation permit to perform general
gunsmithing (which includes firearm service, repair, and restoration) from his single-family home
located at 8204 Blossom Hill Court. Upon submission of his home occupation permit, Mr. Woods
was informed that gunsmithing is not shown as a permitted use or a conditionally permitted use
within the City of Lemon Grove. For this reason, the Home Occupation permit was denied. Mr.
Woods is appealing this determination prohibiting general gunsmithing in his home. The staff
report outlines Mr. Wood's administrative appeal request in more detail:

Fiscal Impact:

None.
Environmental Review:

X Not subject to review [ ] Negative Declaration

(] Exempt, Section _ [ ] Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

[ ] None [ ] Newsletter article [] Tribal Government Consultation Request
X Notice published in local newspaper Notice to property owners within 500 ft.
Attachments:

A. Staff Report E. Applicant’s Letter

B. Resolution of Denial F. Director Determination

C. Resolution of Conditional Issuance G. Appeal Application

D. Home Occupation Permit Application H. Aerial and Vicinity Map



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT
Item No. 4

Mtg. Date _April 18, 2016

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider an Appeal AA1-600-0001 of the Development
Services Director Determination Regarding the Denial of a Home Occupation
Permit Application for General Gunsmithing.

Staff Contact: Dave DeVries, Development Services Director
Miranda Evans, Assistant Planner

Background:

On February 16, 2016, James Woods applied for a home occupation permit for general
gunsmithing under the business name CJ's Custom Shop. Gunsmithing relates to firearm repair,
modification and manufacturing. Mr. Woods was informed by staff that the term “gunsmithing” is
not specified as a permitted use in any zone in the City and therefore would not be allowed as a
home occupation in the Residential Low/Medium Zone. Staff met with Mr. Woods and
suggested that a zoning amendment be applied for to allow the City Council to consider
gunsmithing and related restrictions as a home occupation or permitted use in commercial
zones in the City and the applicant opted for an appeal of the decision to deny the home
occupation application. The same day, Mr. Woods was issued an official letter of denial for his
home occupation permit from the Development Services Department.

On February 25, 2016, Mr. Woods filed an appeal application stating that the denial of a home
occupation permit was unwarranted because it is an acceptable accessory use and in
compliance with home occupation provisions, that all required Federal and State permits will be
obtained, and other reasons (Attachment G).

The applicant has submitted a letter identifying the justification for the home occupation
(Attachment E). Staff has no additional response to the applicants justification, except that a
garage is not allowed to be converted into an office or workshop in a single-family home unless
a new two-car garage is provided.

Discussion:

The process for land use decisions begins with the General Plan. The General Plan Land Use
Designation for this property is Low/Medium Density Residential which allows for detached
houses primarily and accessory dwelling units, day care, open space, public facilities, and home
businesses which are compatible with the surrounding neighborhood. The corresponding zones
are established to prevent conflicting land uses from being located next to each other or within
the vicinity, specifically: to promote, protect and preserve the public health, safety, peace,
comfort and general welfare.

The Municipal Code is constructed as a restrictive code and it identifies only the uses that are
allowed by right or by discretionary permit. Where the Municipal Code is silent or a particular
use does not meet the functional and/or operational characteristics of an identified allowable
use, that use is prohibited. Should the Council wish to continue to categorize the business solely
as gunsmithing, a term not found in the LGMC, the Council may uphold the decision of the
Development Services Director, further denying the home occupation permit (Attachment B).
Should the Council wish to categorize gunsmithing as maintenance and repair of consumer
goods, a permitted use in the General Commercial Zone, the Council may reverse the decision
of the Development Services Director and approve the home occupation permit (Attachment



Attachment A

C). Under the approval scenario, the home occupation permit would be conditionally issued and,
in accordance with the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms (ATF) provisions, the home
occupation permit for gunsmithing would require a Federal Firearm Licensing (FFL) Level 1 (no
selling, only service) license to perform the requested firearm repairs. Additionally, Sheriff
licensing requires review and approval. !

Public Information:

The Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the April 7, 2016 edition of the East
County Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject property.

The City received no comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing as of April 13, 2016.
Staff will provide the Council at the time of the public hearing with any comments that may come
in past the distribution of the staff report.

Conclusion:

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct a public hearing and either adopt a Resolution
(Attachment B) upholding the Development Services Director determination to deny the home
occupation permit or adopt a Resolution (Attachment C) reversing the decision of the
Development Services Director conditionally approving the home occupation permit for general
gunsmithing at 8204 Blossom Hill Ct.



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE UPHOLDING THE
DECISION OF THE DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR DENYING A HOME
OCCUPATION PERMIT FOR GENERAL GUNSMITHING AT 8204 BLOSSOM HILL COURT,
LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2016, Mr. John Woods applied for a home occupation
permit for general gunsmithing at 8204 Blossom Hill Ct. in the Residential Low/Medium Zone
(APN: 577-720-07-00); and

WHEREAS, gunsmithing is defined as the service, repair, restoration, modification, and
customization of firearms; and

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2016, the Development Services Department denied the
home occupation permit because gunsmithing is not a permitted home occupation use
within the Residential Low/Medium zone; and

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2016, Mr. John Woods filed an appeal application (AA1-
600-0001); and

WHEREAS, the City Council duly noticed and held a public hearing on April 19, 2016 to
consider the appeal of the Development Services Director determination; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that gunsmithing is not shown a permitted use within
the City, and

WHEREAS, the appeal of this determination is not a project and is not subject to the
environmental review requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove hereby:

1. Upholds determination of the Development Services Director denying a home
occupation permit for gunsmithing at 8204 Blossom Hill Ct.

Iy
11111



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO.:

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE REVERSING THE

DECISION OF THE DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR CONDITIONALLY APPROVING

A HOME OCCUPATION PERMIT FOR GENERAL GUNSMITHING AT 8204 BLOSSOM HILL
COURT, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2016, Mr. John Woods applied for a home occupation
permit for general gunsmithing 8204 Blossom Hill Ct. in the Residential Low/Medium Zone
(APN: 577-720-07-00); and

WHEREAS, gunsmithing is defined as the service, repair, restoration, modification, and
customization of firearms; and

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2016, the Development Services Department denied the
home occupation permit because gunsmithing is not a permitted use with the City; and

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2016, Mr. John Woods filed an appeal application (AA1-
600-0001); and

WHEREAS, the City Council duly noticed and held a public hearing on April 19, 2016 to
consider the appeal of the Development Services Director determination; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that gunsmithing is a permissible use within the City
and is categorized as a use, that provides maintenance, cleaning and repair services for
consumer goods within applicable commercial zones, and

WHEREAS, the project is found to be categorically exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and |

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove hereby:

1. Reverses the determination of the Development Services Director and conditionally
approves the home occupation permit ailowing for gunsmithing at 8204 Blossom Hill
Court with conditions that appropriate Sheriff and Federal licenses for gunsmithing
are obtained.

11111
1111



Attachment D

HOME OCCUPATION PERMIT APPLICATION

Community Development Department/ Planning Division
3232 Main Street, Lemon Grove, CA 91945
Phone: 619-825-3805  Fax: 619-825-3818
www.ci.lemon-grove.ca.us

i

A City of Lemon Grove Business License is required for all Home Occupation Permits. Please fill out the

following application, answering all the questions completely and accurately,

NAME OF BUSINESS: PHONE:
ADDRESS: s A4
EMAIL:

Lo PIe as

APPLICANT(SYNAME: . . sl

PROPOSED BUSINESS DESCRIPTION: = _ _  « "= .,

ARE YOU THE PROPERTY OWNER AT THIS ADDRESS | B YES L[] NO

If you are not the Property Owner, please have the property owner answer the following questions, including a
written statement that the praperty owner is aware that you propose to conduct a business out of this residence,
PROPERTY OWNER NAME:

PHONE NUMBER:

ETATEMENT FROM PROPERTY OWNER:

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE: DATE:

| HEREBY AGREE TO ABIDE BY THE REGULATIONS STATED ABOVE,

BUSINESS NAME:
ADDRESS:

APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE:

TO BE COMPLETED BY PLANNING STAFF

APPLICATION wzwqﬁmme:

ZONE: il " | LAND USE:
APN:  ~»7f ) ﬁM,{ o /M

RN (7% [JappRovED — BisapeROVED
FEES: RECEIPT #: |_I CONDITIONALLY AWPROVED (See Below)

COMMENTS and/or CONDITIONS:




Attachment D

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

3232 Maln Street - Lemon Grove, CA 91345

Atin: Business License * (619) 825-3800

| 1 New Appiication
BUSINESS LICENSE APPLICATION O Chango of Businesa Name
i Entor numbay Enter number
| Busineas Nems 7 of Emphoy o of Vehicies
Business Locatlon N j
(Mot PO, Boxy
Articles of Incorporation DYES G NO
Fictituous Name Filed QYES %No
Malling Address Busineas (n Operation f
(f Ditfarant) Preceding year oyes ,("0
iy Sy Zip 0 inClty
Bus. Phone (4 /4). —~——0 BusFax( ) |0 OuofChy
i 7
- & H (o] th
E-Mail Address i 4 =, Home Occupation
e i - P -
Start Date Description of Business
Bt By ¢ i o

;

{ Corporation () Lid Liabifty G 18 Patveretvip ;M;SOM Proprietar [ Trust
State Lic. No. - L Type Expiration Date
Resale No. State L. D. No.

Ownsr Name

o
Tt ly,l e Phong

ome A Cell Phoﬁ- { )
A T —_—
cley Dot 1., Zigs N
r Title Phone ( }
Home Addrees ot phome ).._..___

City Bt Zip ...

Phone No. ( ¥¢¢3- .4
License No.

1 declare under peneity of perjury that to the best of my knowleige and heiled ths a‘mmenhfnmf/ﬂnmn are frus.fod-Toprect
e -

=z - 1S
Date: Lo /L Z{D/}f ] Slgnetuse of Gwier o Repreasnidtive, s 555555775
IS R BaseFoep $ _J
Planning m\wm " | T
' Employee Fee ﬂ $ ‘]
Reowlpt# . CodeEnforcernent /[ :
Date Pald Fire Dopt. ot ! Per Item Fee j % I
COMMENTS: 2Lim Pracessing Fee | § 3000 |
OCash T Check Q MC/MVISA AV E s T
e Storm Water Feo | § |
Nama as it appears on Credit Card: . Fire Fea 3 J}
Account # i
TOTAL [T
Expiration Daps: UNT DUE j
A t Authorized:
mount Authorized: $ MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO THE
Authorized Signature: CITY OF LEMON GROVE

-10-



Attachment

CITY GF LERMON GROVE
HEHEDULE OF ANNUAL BUSINESS LICENSE FEES

FIXED LOCAYION IN CITY (IN-CITY) BILLBOARD ADVERTISING PROFEGSION .
Base Fee $ 15.00 Base Fee $ 100.00 BaseFes ; 200 eech
Employee Charge $ 2.00each Three (3)or more $ 10.00 each h;“p |°Ve° z a’?‘ Gharge=$100.00 eac
(Maximum Employee Charge =$100.00) BOWLING ALLEY (Maximum Employee Charge=$100.00)
APARTMENTS ) Base Fee $ 15.00 glfsl:LFﬁTATE BROKER $ 15.00
Per Unit (Min. fes = $10) $ 3.00 each Perlane $ 1000 Per Salesman $ 10.00
NO FIX LOCATION IN CITY (OUT-OF-CITy)  CIRCUS/CARNIVAL §250.00 SHOOTING GALLERIES/ARCADE
Wholesalers/Licensed Contractors COIN OPERATED VENDING MACHINES Armusement Center $100.00
Base Fee $ 15.00 Base Fee $ 2500 TAXI CABS/VEHIGLES FOR HIRE
Employee Charge $ 2.00sach PerMachine w $ 200 In City $ 50.00
(Maximum Employee Charge =$100.00) ICE CREAM CARTS, WAGONS/ Outside Ci
y FOOD VENDING VEHICLES utside City $100.00
All Other Services TRAILER PARK
Base Fas $ 40.00 Per Vehicle $ 200.00 Base Fes $ 15.00
Employen Charge _.,.8 2.00each paAwWNBROKERS $ 100,00 Per Space $ 2,00 each
(Maximum Employse Charge =$100.00) PEDDLERS, SOLICITORS FROCEEBING FEE
RETAIL ROUTE DELIVERIES TRANSIENT MERCHANT ' s Al Bvs] $30.00
Base Fes Por \Vehicle $ 40.00 Fived Location On Tax Rofl $ 10.00 | STORM WATER FEE
AMUSEMENT/MECHANICAL/MUSIC No Fixed Location On Tax Rolt ~ § 15.00 | Vorlas - soe “"Storm Water Fes Schedule”
7] - y i g
Each Machine $ 25.00 oo | TR MRS TUONG FFEE
AUCTION ;:JOLFROO"S' BILLARD $ 1500 g.:% Wathes - so0 "Flra Fow Sohgdun”
$150.00 se Fee ! PG ATE LICENSE § 200
ACTIONEER $ 75.00 Per Table $ 1000 [0|pysiNESS NAME CHANGE  $  2.00

HOME OCCUPATION - GENERAL INFORMATION

Description of Proposed Business:
8) Describe any product to be mesdtacheed or assembled. .1 ¢ o d st i s it

b} Describe materials or supplies to be stored in or st your home. m pmelith L L a3,

¢) Describe any service you will provide. <<

d) Describe any machinery or equipment to be used (type, size, number, horsepower.) . 5% =il o

e) Please give any additional tutaits to fully describe the nature of the proposed business. Attach an additional page if necessary.

N L W, ™

f) Approximately what percentage of the floor area of your home wlll be used in the home occupation

@) During what hours of the day will the home occupation be conducted. .o/ nivwe i

h) If any vehicles will be used in the conduct of your home gccupation, please describe them (number, size, capacity, inlended use, etc.)

- i
b ,

i g beom e g Pgn ey s o b p s L

i} Hyou anticipate commmrclal deliveries or pick-up of ilems produced on the premises, please describe the type of commercial carier and the
frequency of deliveries and pick-ups.
L *,, . )

;oL jowl SREEE T ey g b

Will equipment used by you have the potential to
disrupt or adversely effect radlo and television
rsceplion in the neighborhaod? o ves M NO

Will the home occupation change the appearance of
your Mg el will there be any indi¢ation the

Do all i persens whio am erviplayed in the home
ocouption e s your harme? /N YES O NO
WIll theww bye wny visiile evidence that you are
corniuching o horme oooupetion which can e seen
from o public shrest, sidowale or adfoining nearty

s T YES & NG dweling o being used for anytiing other than a

Prop /"1 residusibinl purpose’ O YES P( NO
MU the borme oocopation genstste sousds which Do you intend ta candisst sales of olfr some service

s b Sy eosdesbele I | it b YES O NO : Ak e o Gl x .

e by hasitesd crtsleie e woinlls of yesr borve? ) ,D( S in your fotrss ar within yéut tesfdstial property? M ¥ES . wNo
If the answer to the above guestion is yes, wil Wil -

such sounds be audible between the hours of Q ves J No il you offer any ftems for rari? @ YEs & No
8 PM and 8 AM? g Do you intend to advartise your home occupation? O YES & NO

IF YOU ANSWERED "YES" TO ANY OF THE ABOVE QUESTIONS, PLEASE EXPLAIN IN DETAIL YOUR REASONS FOR YOUR AFFIRMATIVE
RESPONSE(S). PLEASE USE AN ADDITIONAL PAGE
i declare unq'q,[mﬁ'on_luyoi ppr that the foregoing informetion is true and correct

,,,,,, -

Signaturé of MW}MWW ' ‘ Date

D

-11-



Attachment E

February 16, 2016

To: From;

Planning Board of Lemon Grove James N. Woods

3232 Main Street 8204 Blossom Hill Ct
Lemon Grove, CA 91945 Lemon Grove, CA 91945

619-825-3800

My name is James Woods and | would like to run a small business from my home. My mission
is to provide top notch quality service to San Diego for firearms service, repair and
preservation. I appreciate your consideration in the following:

1.) Business to Business. I plan on working with area businesses to provide service to their
customers for all their repair needs. | will pick up and return, to the company, any client
firearms that | have serviced. This will allow me to not have any “walk-in" clients.

2.) Low Key Operations. All of my equipment is no louder than an average air compressor in
your garage. | plan on conducting work between 9:00 am and 3:00 pm. The work to be
completed will usually be completed by hand with non-power tools.

3.) Services to Provide. | plan on providing the following services: general cleaning services,
general repairs, light machine work, customization of legal firearms and firearms appraisals

4.} Security of the Property. | have contacted BATFE and CAL DOJ in regards to my security
plan. As soon as the planning board of Lemon Grove approves my “Sole Proprietor” business
application, { will finish the security plan. | wish to build a workshop in my garage, which will be
turned into a secure space. | will need to add a deadbolt lock to the side walk-in door to the
garage, add an additional security point to my home security system, and install a security
camera for extra measure. | have an eight (8) gun security cabinet and a pistol security cabinet
that will be installed on the premises for additional security, as well.

Respectfully,

.'-ij’a‘més Woods



Attachment F

CITY OF LEMON GROVE “Hest Climate On Rarlh”

Development Services Department

.
bt B

February 16, 2016

James Woods
8204 Blossom Hill Ct
Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Subject: Home Occupation Permit Application received February 16, 2016 at
8204 Blossom Hill Ct, Lemon Grove, CA

Dear Mr. Woods,

The City of Lemon Grove (“City”) is in receipt of your application for a Home Occupation Permit
Application for “Gunsmithing: Firearms repair, modification and manufacture” at 8204 Blossom
Hill Ct.
City staff has determined that your business for gunsmithing, as proposed, is not a permitted
use in the City of Lemon Grove and is inconsistent with the purpose and general provisions of
the Lemon Grove Municipal Code and the Residential Low Medium zone and is therefore
denied.
The denial of your Home Occupation Permit Application is based on the information you
submitted and the following conclusions:
The Home Occupation Permit application states that the proposed home
occupation business is “Gunsmithing: Firearms repair, modification and
manufacture”. This use is not listed as a permitted use or a conditionally permitted
use within the City of Lemon Grove and is inconsistent with the purpose and
general provisions of any of the City of Lemon Grove’'s commercial or residential
zones (LGMC § 17.16.070.)
City records indicate that uses related to "firearms” were previously identified in the LGMC, but
were specifically removed in 1995. |In 1995 and 1996, the City Council was deliberating on a
proposed Ordinance to allow firearm sales and gunsmithing during the course of three
meetings. The Ordinance was not adopted.
The Lemon Grove Municipal code is constructed as a restrictive code and identifies only those
uses that may be allowed by right or by discretionary permit. Where the Municipal Code is sitent
or a particular use does not meet the functional and/or operational characteristics of an
identified allowable use, that use is prohibited.

The Development Services Director is responsible for determinations regarding the appropriate
classification for any proposed use (LGMC 17.12.070). Any application made in conflict with the
provisions of the LGMC, state law, or federal law shall be denied.

3232 Maln Street  Lemon Grove Callfornia 91945-1705

619.825.3805 FAX: 619.825.3818 www.cl.lemon-grove.ca.us



Attachment F

The City Council is the body that establishes the rules and regulations under Title 17 and may,
on its own motion, interpret the scope and meaning of any provision under this title, including
the applicability of any provision to a particular person or property. The City Council may request
the advice on any interpretation from the development services director or any other advisory
body it has formed, or chooses to form, for this purpose.

If you disagree with the denial of your home occupation permit application, you may request the
City Council's review of the Development Director's determination and interpretation of the
regulations. The filing fee for this application is $75.00.

Sincerely,

I

David De Vries
Acting Development Services Director

cc:  City Manager
City Attorney

-16-



Attachment G

T
Fea 26 208 APPEAL APPLICATION &
REQUEST FOR PUBLIC HEARING

YEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Community Development Department / Planning Division
3232 Main Street, Lemon Grove, CA 91945
Phone: 619-825-3805 Fax: 619-825-3818

www.cl.lemon-grove.ca.us

( L% Loagsboan Shup Oueospectively )

mr Chynve, LA 21945

[ingnsies 3 vaoda, il

S0 Wheynsinyny THELS

CASE/PROJECT NUMBER.  None given; APN 577-720-07-00  RI/M

 DECISION /CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL BEING APPEALED (INCLUDE CONDITION ITEM NUMBERS):
plication; Denial of Planning Department Approval, Denial of

Denial of Home Oveupation Permit Ap
Zoning Clearance; Denial of Business .l[_,ﬂ(,&,me Application; all at above addyess.

—

SPECIFIC REASON(S) FOR APPEAL OR REQUEST FOR PUBLIC HEARING:

Proposed Use/liome Qccupation is an acceptable Accessory Use under LGMC section 17.24.060 1. 5. (Accessory
Uses in Residential Zumea,’i;”lfmm ()kcupamms}, Proposed Use s in c,mrm;;ljmxc& with the definition and limitalions
of LGMC 18.20.020 ("Home Occupation”l. The Proposed Use will not give “any indication of other than residential
use, and will not be detrimental ... by virtue of Lraftic flow, noise, odor or other adverse conditions. '

The roposed Use is not violl wive of aiy restriclion in LGMC section 18.20.030. No firearms sales, tnuliciuri iy

nor discharge will ocour All federsl and State permits will be i place but are sulsect vo this City approval.

Attach additional sheets if necessary
...... e

Y

TO BE COMPLETED BY PLANNING STAFF

FLE#e) /1A ]- (200 (0o] o o
DATE: /)4 wf
DATE [R— e e o el

|

|
p

-17-



Attachment H

x

Legen

Eilanaonn Mt D1

-19-



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

item No. 5

Mtg. Date April 19, 2016
Dept. _City Attorney.

Item Title: ‘Authorization to Recruit Three Members of the Community Advisory
Commission pursuant to Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter 2.08.

Staff Contact: James P. Lough, City Attorney:

Recommendation:

1) Discuss options and give direction on selection process; and

2) Adopt a Resolution establishing the recruitment process (Attachment B).

Item Summary:

In September 2015, the City Council established the Community Advisory Commission
(“CAC"). This Agenda item asks the City Council to establish a recruitment and appointment
process. The recommended process follows procedures used by the City Council in the past
for other permanent advisory committees. There are three permanent positions on the CAC to
be filled by this process. The Council, on an assignment-by-assignment basis, will add
members based on the complexity of the task.

Fiscal Impact:

No fiscal Impact.

Environmental Review:
X Not subject to review [] Negative Declaration
[] Categorical Exemption [] Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

X None [] Newsletter article ] Notice to property owners within 300 ft.
[ ] Notice published in local newspaper [_] Neighborhood meeting
Attachments:

A. Staff Report
B. Resolution No.
C. Draft Application Form




Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT
Item No. 5

Mtg. Date_April 19, 2016

Item Title: Authorization to Recruit Three Permanent Members of the Community
Advisory Commission pursuant to Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter
2.08.

Staff Contact: | James P. Lough, City Attorney]

Background:

On September 15, 2015, the City Council adopted an Ordinance to assign Planning
Commission jurisdiction to the City Council. (Ordinance No. 431.) The Ordinance also
established the Community Advisory Commission (*“CAC”). The CAC is made up of three
permanent and a variable number of temporary members. The number and makeup of the
temporary membership would change based upon the need for citizen-members as determined
on an issue-to-issue basis by the City Council.

The CAC would serve the role as either a Committee or Focus Group with the permanent
members serving in the leadership positions for the Committee (i.e. Chair and Vice Chair of the
overall committee or focus group and chairs of any sub-groups formed). The purpose would be
to provide more stability to the Committee/Group with less reliance on staff to assume a
leadership role.

The Community Advisory Commission consists of three permanent members who shall be
residents of the City. By resolution, the City Council can appoint additional members that serve
for a limited duration (temporary) to assist the permanent members in the study of issues
assigned to the Community Advisory Commission by the City Council. Limited duration
members can be residents, business owners or property owners within the City.

Permanent positions on the Commission shall be appointed by the City Council and shall serve
for a period of three years, or until reappointment or appointment of a successor. Temporary
members of the Commission shall be appointed for a limited duration by resolution of the City
Council that establishes the task to be studied by the Commission or by subsequent resolution.
The temporary Commission members shall serve for the length of time designated in the
Resolution of the City Council establishing the matter to be studied or as amended by
subsequent resolution of the City Council.

The Commission shall have all of the powers and duties established by state law, ordinances
and resolutions, which the Council may enact. The City Council, acting as the Planning
Commission in all matters, may delegate to the Commission advisory functions on a case-by-
case basis by Resolution. It is the duty of the Commission to advise the City Council upon the
amendment or revision of the General Plan when requested by the City Council.

The CAC will operate under the spirit of the Brown Act and comply with all public noticing and
open meeting requirements. Permanent CAC members will be required to submit conflict if
interest forms and complete ethics training.



Attachment A

Discussion and Analysis:

Since the adoption of the Ordinance establishing the CAC, the City Council has been making
changes in the code to reflect the changes in authority. Most of the necessary changes have
been made with some held in abeyance to make sure they do not conflict with changes reflected
in the General Plan update. This Agenda Item establishes the recruitment process to fill the
three permanent positions of the CAC. Each position will eventually have a three-year term. It
is recommended that the three members be appointed for staggered terms of one, two and
three years. A staggered appointment will help ensure continuity of leadership on the
Committee

Attachment C is the draft application. It is a modified application previously used by the City to
recruit candidates for permanent advisory committees. It lists the Second and Fourth Mondays
at 7:00 P.M. as the likely date for meetings.

Attachment B is the Resolution. It contains the deadlines for the recruitment process as follows:

April 28, 2016 Public Notices
June 2, 2016 Deadline for Applications
June 21, 2016 City Council Appointment

It is recommended that the Announcement be published once in a newspaper of general
circulation; posted on the City's Website and a notice be sent to all persons on the City’s
electronic mailing list. The deadline for these notices would be April 28, 2016. In addition to
adopting the recruitment process, the City Council is asked to give direction to Staff on how it
wishes to set up the procedures for the June 21% appointment process. In the past, the City
Council has used a variety of methods. It has held interviews of either each candidate or the
candidates that have been recommended participate in the interview process by at least two
council members. This second process is used when a large number of candidates have
applied. Other times, the Council has appointed from the application without interviews. The
Resolution does not require any particular method for choosing the three appointees. It is
asked that the Council either give direction to Staff at this meeting or wait until June 2" and
decide the process based on the number of applicants.

Conclusion:
Staff recommends that the City Council: 1) Give direction to Staff regarding Appointment

Process procedures and 2) Adopt Resolution No. , establishing a recruitment process for the
three permanent members of the Community Advisory Commission (Attachment B).



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
ESTABLISHING A RECRUITMENT PROCESS TO APPOINT THE INITIAL THREE
PERMANENT MEMBERS OF THE COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMISSION.

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2015, the Lemon Grove City Council adopted an
Ordinance establishing the Community Advisory Commission; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, after having made implementing changes in the municipal
code to set the general parameters for the Community Advisory Commission, desires to appoint
the three permanent members of the Commission through a recruitment process established
hereunder; and

WHEREAS, the City Council authorizes the City Manager and city staff to advertise for
the appointment of three permanent members of the Community Advisory Commission in the
manner set out below.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California hereby
resolves as follows that:

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

2. The City Council authorizes the City Manager, and her designees, to advertise the
recruitment of citizens to serve in three permanent offices on the Community Advisory
Commission as follows:

April 28, 2016 Public Notice Deadline
June 2, 2016 Deadline for Applications
June 21, 2016 City Council Appointment

3. The appointment process shall be posted and advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation within the City of Lemon Grove. Further notices shall be given
through electronic mail and on the City’'s Website.

4. The City Council intends to appoint three members to initial terms of one, two and
three years.

ADOPTED by the City Council on April 19, 2016.



Attachment C

APPLICATION FOR COMMUNITY ADVISORY

COMMISSION
CONTACT INFORMATION
Name: Address:
Phone: ~ Email Address:
WORK & COMMUNITY EXPERIENCE
Employer: Title:

Statement of Occupational Experience:

List any past or current community or public service appointments with dates served:

What experience or special knowledge can you bring to the Community Advisory Commission?

It is anticipated that the Community Advisory Commission will meet on a periodic basis as
determined by the City Council. It is likely that the meetings will be on the second Monday of
each month at 7:00 p.m. Does your schedule allow you to attend on this day at this time?
(Circle one)

Yes No

Comment:

PERSONS HOLDING THIS POSITION ARE REQUIRED TO FILE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLITICAL REFORM ACT AND THE CITY OF
LEMON GROVE CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE.

Signature: Date:




CITY OF LEMON GROVE COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMISSION

Purpose:

The Community Advisory Commission acts as a resident advisory/focus group to the Lemon
Grove City Council on myriad of topics and issues.

Membership:

The Community Advisory Commission (CAC) consists of three permanent Lemon Grove
residents that are appointed to by the City Council to and serve three-year terms.

Ad hoc members will be added depending on topic/issue specified by Resolution of the Lemon
Grove City Council. Ad hoc members are open to Lemon Grove residents, business owners and
property owners.

Meeting Time/Location:

Tentatively scheduled for the second Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m. Additional meetings
may be called on an as needed basis. Meeting will be held at the Lemon Grove Community
Center, 3146 School Lane.

Compensation:

None

Financial Disclosure:

Permanent Members - Must submit a Conflict of Interest statements (FPPC Form 700)

Responsible Department:

City Manager’s Department/Administration



